

Washington State Register

SEPTEMBER 17, 1986

OLYMPIA, WASHINGTON

ISSUE 86-18



IN THIS ISSUE

Agriculture, Department of
Apple Advertising Commission
Bellevue Community College
(District 8)
Community Development, Department of
Corrections, Department of
Ecology, Department of
Fisheries, Department of
Game, Department of
Higher Education Coordinating Board
Human Rights Commission
Insurance Commissioner

Labor and Industries, Department of
Licensing, Department of
Liquor Control Board
Natural Resources, Department of
Personnel, Department of
Pharmacy, Board of
Public Works Board
Revenue, Department of
Social and Health Services, Department of
Transportation, Department of
Vocational Education, Commission for

(Subject/Agency index at back of issue)
This issue contains documents officially
filed not later than September 3, 1986

CITATION

Cite all material in the Washington State Register by its issue number and sequence within that issue, preceded by the acronym WSR. Example: The 37th item in the August 5, 1981, Register would be cited as WSR 81-15-037.

PUBLIC INSPECTION OF DOCUMENTS

A copy of each document filed with the code reviser's office, pursuant to chapter 28B.19 or 34.04 RCW, is available for public inspection during normal office hours. The code reviser's office is located on the ground floor of the Legislative Building in Olympia. Office hours are from 8 a.m. to noon and from 1 p.m. to 5 p.m. Monday through Friday, except legal holidays. Telephone inquiries concerning material in the Register or the Washington Administrative Code (WAC) may be made by calling (206) 753-7470 (SCAN 234-7470).

REPUBLICATION OF OFFICIAL DOCUMENTS

All documents appearing in the Washington State Register are prepared and printed at public expense. There are no restrictions on the republication of official documents appearing in the Washington State Register. All news services are especially encouraged to give wide publicity to all documents printed in the Washington State Register.

CERTIFICATE

Pursuant to RCW 34.08.040, the publication of rules or other information in this issue of the Washington State Register is hereby certified to be a true and correct copy of such rules or other information, except that headings of public meeting notices have been edited for uniformity of style.

DENNIS W. COOPER
Code Reviser

STATE MAXIMUM INTEREST RATE

The maximum allowable interest rate applicable for the month of September 1986 pursuant to RCW 19.52.020 is twelve percent (12%).

NOTICE: FEDERAL LAW PERMITS FEDERALLY INSURED FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS IN THE STATE TO CHARGE THE HIGHEST RATE OF INTEREST THAT MAY BE CHARGED BY ANY FINANCIAL INSTITUTION IN THE STATE. THE MAXIMUM ALLOWABLE RATE OF INTEREST SET FORTH ABOVE MAY NOT APPLY TO A PARTICULAR TRANSACTION.

The maximum allowable retail installment contract service charge applicable for calendar year 1986 pursuant to RCW 63.14.130(1)(a) is fourteen percent (14%).

WASHINGTON STATE REGISTER

(ISSN 0164-6389) is published twice each month by the Statute Law Committee, Office of the Code Reviser, Olympia, WA 98504, pursuant to RCW 34.08.020. Subscription rate is \$150.92 per year, sales tax included, postpaid to points in the United States. Second-class postage paid at Olympia, Washington.

Changes of address notices, subscription orders, and undelivered copies should be sent to:

WASHINGTON STATE REGISTER
Code Reviser's Office
Legislative Building
Olympia, WA 98504

The Washington State Register is an official publication of the state of Washington. It contains proposed, emergency, and permanently adopted administrative rules, as well as other documents filed with the code reviser's office pursuant to RCW 34.08.020 and 42.30.075. Publication of any material in the Washington State Register is deemed to be official notice of such information.

Robert L. Charette,
Chairman, Statute Law Committee

Dennis W. Cooper,
Code Reviser

Gary Reid,
Chief Assistant Code Reviser

Susan J. Brooks
Editor

Joyce Matzen
Subscription Clerk

STYLE AND FORMAT OF THE WASHINGTON STATE REGISTER

1. ARRANGEMENT OF THE REGISTER

Documents are arranged within each issue of the Register according to the order in which they are filed in the code reviser's office during the pertinent filing period. The three part number in the heading distinctively identifies each document, and the last part of the number indicates the filing sequence within an issue's material.

2. PROPOSED, ADOPTED, AND EMERGENCY RULES OF STATE AGENCIES AND INSTITUTIONS OF HIGHER EDUCATION

The three types of rule-making actions taken under the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) or the Higher Education Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 28B.19 RCW) may be distinguished by the size and style of type in which they appear.

- (a) **Proposed rules** are those rules pending permanent adoption by an agency and set forth in eight point type.
- (b) **Adopted rules** have been permanently adopted and are set forth in ten point type.
- (c) **Emergency rules** have been adopted on an emergency basis and are set forth in ten point oblique type.

3. PRINTING STYLE—INDICATION OF NEW OR DELETED MATTER

RCW 34.04.058 requires the use of certain marks to indicate amendments to existing agency rules. This style quickly and graphically portrays the current changes to existing rules as follows:

- (a) In amendatory sections—
 - (i) underlined matter is new matter;
 - (ii) ~~deleted matter is ((lined out and bracketed between double parentheses))~~;
- (b) Complete new sections are prefaced by the heading NEW SECTION;
- (c) The repeal of an entire section is shown by listing its WAC section number and caption under the heading REPEALER.

4. EXECUTIVE ORDERS, COURT RULES, NOTICES OF PUBLIC MEETINGS

Material contained in the Register other than rule-making actions taken under the APA or the HEAPA does not necessarily conform to the style and format conventions described above. The headings of these other types of material have been edited for uniformity of style; otherwise the items are shown as nearly as possible in the form submitted to the code reviser's office.

5. EFFECTIVE DATE OF RULES

- (a) Permanently adopted agency rules take effect thirty days after the rules and the agency order adopting them are filed with the code reviser. This effective date may be delayed, but not advanced, and a delayed effective date will be noted in the promulgation statement preceding the text of the rule.
- (b) Emergency rules take effect upon filing with the code reviser and remain effective for a maximum of ninety days from that date.
- (c) Rules of the state Supreme Court generally contain an effective date clause in the order adopting the rules.

6. EDITORIAL CORRECTIONS

Material inserted by the code reviser for purposes of clarification or correction or to show the source or history of a document is enclosed in brackets [].

7. INDEX AND TABLES

A combined subject matter and agency index and a table of WAC sections affected may be found at the end of each issue.

1985 – 1986

DATES FOR REGISTER CLOSING, DISTRIBUTION, AND FIRST AGENCY ACTION

Issue No.	Closing Dates ¹			Distribution Date	First Agency Action Date ³
	Non-OTS & 30 p. or more	Non-OTS & 11 to 29 p.	OTS ² or 10 p. max. Non-OTS		
For Inclusion in—	File no later than—			Count 20 days from—	For hearing/adoption on or after
85-18	Aug 7	Aug 21	Sep 4	Sep 18	Oct 8
85-19	Aug 21	Sep 4	Sep 18	Oct 2	Oct 22
85-20	Sep 4	Sep 18	Oct 2	Oct 16	Nov 5
85-21	Sep 25	Oct 9	Oct 23	Nov 6	Nov 26
85-22	Oct 9	Oct 23	Nov 6	Nov 20	Dec 10
85-23	Oct 23	Nov 6	Nov 20	Dec 4	Dec 24
85-24	Nov 6	Nov 20	Dec 4	Dec 18	Jan 7, 1986
<hr/>					
86-01	Nov 21	Dec 5	Dec 19, 1985	Jan 2, 1986	Jan 22
86-02	Dec 5	Dec 19	Dec 31, 1985	Jan 15, 1986	Feb 4
86-03	Dec 26, 1985	Jan 8, 1986	Jan 22	Feb 5	Feb 25
86-04	Jan 8	Jan 22	Feb 5	Feb 19	Mar 11
86-05	Jan 22	Feb 5	Feb 19	Mar 5	Mar 25
86-06	Feb 5	Feb 19	Mar 5	Mar 19	Apr 8
86-07	Feb 19	Mar 5	Mar 19	Apr 2	Apr 22
86-08	Mar 5	Mar 19	Apr 2	Apr 16	May 6
86-09	Mar 26	Apr 9	Apr 23	May 7	May 27
86-10	Apr 9	Apr 23	May 7	May 21	Jun 10
86-11	Apr 23	May 7	May 21	Jun 4	Jun 24
86-12	May 7	May 21	Jun 4	Jun 18	Jul 8
86-13	May 21	Jun 4	Jun 18	Jul 2	Jul 22
86-14	Jun 4	Jun 18	Jul 2	Jul 16	Aug 5
86-15	Jun 25	Jul 9	Jul 23	Aug 6	Aug 26
86-16	Jul 9	Jul 23	Aug 6	Aug 20	Sep 9
86-17	Jul 23	Aug 6	Aug 20	Sep 3	Sep 23
86-18	Aug 6	Aug 20	Sep 3	Sep 17	Oct 7
86-19	Aug 20	Sep 3	Sep 17	Oct 1	Oct 21
86-20	Sep 3	Sep 17	Oct 1	Oct 15	Nov 4
86-21	Sep 24	Oct 8	Oct 22	Nov 5	Nov 25
86-22	Oct 8	Oct 22	Nov 5	Nov 19	Dec 9
86-23	Oct 22	Nov 5	Nov 19	Dec 3	Dec 23
86-24	Nov 5	Nov 19	Dec 3	Dec 17	Jan 6, 1987

¹All documents are due at the code reviser's office by 5:00 p.m. on the applicable closing date for inclusion in a particular issue of the Register; see WAC 1-12-035 or 1-13-035.

²A filing of any length will be accepted on the closing dates of this column if it has been prepared by the order typing service (OTS) of the code reviser's office; see WAC 1-12-220 or 1-13-240. Agency-typed material is subject to a ten page limit for these dates; longer agency-typed material is subject to the earlier non-OTS dates.

³*No proceeding may be held on any rule until twenty days have passed from the distribution date of the Register in which notice thereof was contained.* RCW 28B.19.030(4) and 34.04.025(4). These dates represent the twentieth day after the distribution date of the applicable Register.

WSR 86-18-001
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Public Assistance)
 [Filed August 21, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Social and Health Services intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning Child care agencies—Minimum licensing/certification requirements, amending chapter 388-73 WAC.

Public hearings concerning this issue have already been held. The purpose of this notice is to postpone adoption to give the secretary additional time to consider public testimony.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on September 12, 1986.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 74.15.030.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 74.15.030.

This notice is connected to and continues the matter in Notice No. WSR 86-12-020 filed with the code reviser's office on May 28, 1986.

Dated: August 18, 1986
 By: Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
 Division of Administration and Personnel

WSR 86-18-002
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Institutions)
 [Order 2412—Filed August 21, 1986]

I, Lee D. Bomberger, acting director of the Division of Administration and Personnel, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to IMR program and reimbursement system, amending chapter 275-38 WAC.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-059 filed with the code reviser on June 27, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 74.09.120 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 14, 1986.

By Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
 Division of Administration and Personnel

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1853, filed 8/3/82)

WAC 275-38-555 COMPLETING REPORTS AND MAINTAINING RECORDS. (1) All reports shall be legible and reproducible. It is recommended all entries be typed or in black ink.

(2) Reports shall be completed in accordance with instructions provided by the department. If no specific instruction covers a situation, generally accepted accounting principles shall be followed.

(3) The accrual method of accounting shall be used, except for governmental institutions operated on a ((cash)) modified accrual method of accounting, data based on this method of accounting will be acceptable. All revenue and expense accruals shall be reversed against the appropriate accounts if not received or paid within one hundred twenty days after the accrual is made, unless special circumstances are documented justifying continuing to carry all or part of the accrual (e.g., contested billings). Accruals for vacation, holiday, sick pay, and taxes may be carried for longer periods, provided the contractor's usual policy is followed.

(4) Methods of allocating costs shall be consistently applied. Written approval must be obtained from the department if a contractor wishes to change an allocation method. Contractors operating multiservice facilities or facilities incurring joint facility costs shall allocate costs using the methods approved by the department under WAC 275-38-735.

(5) If a contractor fails to maintain records adequate for audit purposes or fails to allow inspection of such records by authorized personnel as provided in the contractor's IMR contract, the department may suspend all or part of subsequent reimbursement payments due under the contract until compliance is forthcoming. Upon compliance, the department shall resume current contract payments and shall release payments suspended pursuant to the contractor's IMR contract.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2312, filed 12/5/85)

WAC 275-38-860 RESIDENT CARE AND HABILITATION COST CENTER RATE. (1) For C and D level facilities, the resident care and habilitation cost center will reimburse for resident living services, habilitative and training services, recreation services, and nursing services in accordance with applicable federal and state regulation.

(2) For E level facilities, the resident care and habilitation cost center will reimburse for resident living services, habilitative and training services, recreation services, and nursing services in accordance with applicable federal and state regulation. The cost center will also reimburse for resident care and training staff performing administration and operations functions specified in WAC 275-38-870.

(3) A facility's resident care and habilitation cost center rate shall be determined as follows:

(a) The facility's most recent desk-reviewed costs per resident day shall be adjusted for inflation except those

costs for resident care and training (RCT) and recreation staff.

(b) RCT staff and recreation staff shall be determined by multiplying the number of reimbursed RCT and recreation staff hours per resident day reported in the facility's ((1984)) most recent cost report by the greater of seven dollars and twenty-nine cents or the ((1984)) most recent reported cost for RCT and recreation staff per reported hour.

~~((i) As part of a contractor's resident care and habilitation cost center payment for October 1985, a contractor will receive a one-time distribution of RCT and recreation staff compensation enhancement.~~

~~((ii) The distribution will be the contractor's 1984 desk-reviewed RCT and recreation staff hours divided by the number of days in the contractor's 1984 cost report, multiplied by ninety-two days, and multiplied by the difference between seven dollars and twenty-nine cents and the contractor's 1984 cost for RCT and recreation staff per hour where the contractor's 1984 cost per RCT and recreation staff hour is less than seven dollars and twenty-nine cents.))~~

(c) The amounts determined in subsections (3)(a) and (b) of this section shall be summed to establish the facility's rate.

WSR 86-18-003
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Public Assistance)

[Order 2413—Filed August 21, 1986]

I, Lee D. Bomberger, acting director of the Division of Administration and Personnel, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to physician's services, amending WAC 388-86-095.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-067 filed with the code reviser on June 30, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Social and Health Services as authorized in RCW 74.08.090.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 18, 1986.

By Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2321, filed 12/27/85)

WAC 388-86-095 PHYSICIANS' SERVICES.
The department shall purchase the services of physicians participating in the program on a fee-for-service or

contract basis subject to the exceptions and restrictions listed as follows.

~~(1) ((Physicians' services are provided through contract agreements for certain voluntary child care agencies and maternity homes.~~

~~(2) Cost of a) Physical examinations ((is authorized only)) are provided for recipients related to federal programs under the following circumstances:~~

~~(a) For admission to skilled nursing facility if within forty-eight hours of admission or change of status from a private-pay to a medicaid-eligible patient.~~

~~(b) Given as a screening under the EPSDT program; see WAC 388-86-027.~~

~~(c) For physical examination not covered by medicaid, see the following:~~

~~(i) AFDC incapacity, see chapter 388-24 WAC.~~

~~(ii) Determination of whether an individual's health will or will not permit his return to his home, see chapter 388-28 WAC.~~

~~(iii) Request by the claimant or examiner in a fair hearing procedure, see chapter 388-08 WAC.~~

~~(iv) Foster home placement, see chapter 388-70 WAC.~~

~~(v) Adoptive home placement, see chapter 388-70 WAC.~~

~~(vi) Employability for WIN program, see chapter 388-24 WAC.~~

~~(vii) Incapacity for GAU program, see chapter 388-37 WAC.~~

~~((3) When covered services of a) (2) Consultant or specialist ((are necessary payment)) fees for covered services shall be ((made)) paid in accordance with local medical bureau practices((-)) with the following limitations:~~

~~(a) A fee for consultation shall not be paid when the specialist subsequently performs surgery or renders treatment for which flat fees or fees-for-service accrue.~~

~~(b) On initial or subsequent visits for the purpose of establishing a diagnosis and when services of a specialist or consultant are required, payment shall be limited to not more than two such services.~~

~~((4) Limitations on payment for) (3) Physicians' services are subject to the following limitations:~~

~~(a) Payment for physicians' calls for nonemergent conditions in a skilled nursing facility or an intermediate care facility, is limited to two calls per month. Requests for payment for additional visits must be justified at the time the billing is submitted by the physician.~~

~~(b) Payment for hospital calls is limited to one call per day. This is applicable to other than flat fee care.~~

~~(c) Individual outpatient psychotherapy shall be provided by a psychiatrist ((shall be)) and is generally limited to one hour per month or equivalent combinations. ((Up to a maximum of two hours psychotherapy may be authorized when justified during the first month of treatment. Subdivisions of (4)(a) and (b) of this section, also apply unless other rules take precedence. See WAC 388-86-067(1) for service provided by a contracting mental health center.~~

~~(5) All nonemergent surgical procedures require prior approval unless otherwise excepted.~~

(6)) Additional hours of outpatient psychotherapy require prior approval and will be provided only when medically necessary. Except as described in WAC 388-86-067(1), the limits on physician calls set by subsection (4)(a) and (b) of this section also apply to outpatient psychotherapy.

(d) For limitations on out-of-state physicians' services see WAC 388-86-115.

(4) Nonemergent surgical procedures require prior approval except for:

(a) Minor surgery and diagnostic procedures performed in a physician's office ((do not require prior approval)).

((7) A recipient of public assistance is not required to obtain medical care in the county of his residence.

(8) For limitations on out-of-state physicians' services see WAC 388-86-115.

(9)) (b) Other procedures listed in numbered memoranda published by the division of medical assistance.

(5) Cataract surgery ((will be)) is considered medically necessary when the following conditions exist:

(a) When vision is 20/200 in the worse eye.

(b) When vision is worse than 20/70, distant vision, and J-5 with +3.50, near vision, in better eye.

(c) When extenuating circumstances, such as employment requirements, need to drive, are present, the vision is worse than 20/40, distant vision, in the better eye.

(d) Other unusual circumstances.

((10)) (6) Contact lenses ((would be)) are considered medically necessary for certain medical conditions of the eyes, i.e., keratoconus, recurrent corneal erosions, other medical conditions where visual acuity either cannot be corrected with spectacles or there is a true therapeutic effect, i.e., transparent bandage effect, and when suffering from high refractive errors, over +6 or over -6 diopters.

WSR 86-18-004
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(General Provisions)

[Order 2415—Filed August 21, 1986]

I, Lee D. Bomberger, acting director of the Division of Administration and Personnel, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to radioactive waste site surveillance fee, amending WAC 440-44-061.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-006 filed with the code reviser on June 19, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 43.20A-.055 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 18, 1986.

By Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2283, filed 9/23/85)

WAC 440-44-061 RADIOACTIVE WASTE SITE SURVEILLANCE FEE. The operator of a low-level radioactive waste disposal site in this state shall collect from the waste generators and brokers a surveillance fee as an added charge on each cubic foot of low-level waste disposed at the disposal site. The fee shall be ((three)) four percent of the basic minimum fee as defined in RCW ((70.98.—(section 3, chapter 383, Laws of 1985))) 70.98.085 and shall be remitted to the department ((quarterly)) monthly by the site operator. This fee will be reviewed prior to June 30, 1987, for consistency with budget allocations authorized by the legislature.

WSR 86-18-005
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Public Assistance)

[Order 2411—Filed August 21, 1986]

I, Lee D. Bomberger, acting director of the Division of Administration and Personnel, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to:

Amd WAC 388-95-335 Ownership of income.

Amd WAC 388-95-340 Computation of available income and resources.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-068 filed with the code reviser on June 30, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Social and Health Services as authorized in RCW 74.08.090.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 14, 1986.

By Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2224, filed 4/10/85)

✓WAC 388-95-335 OWNERSHIP OF INCOME. (1) Community property law ~~((as defined in RCW 26-16.030 shall be followed))~~ is used in determining ownership of income for purposes of Medicaid eligibility.

(2) All income received after marriage by either husband or wife or both is presumed to be community income.

(3) The total of the community income, received by the husband and the wife, ~~((shall be))~~ is divided by two with one-half of the total assigned to each individual, as their income.

(4) An agreement between spouses transferring or assigning rights to future income from one spouse to the other is invalid in determining eligibility for medical assistance or the limited casualty program for the medically needy.

(5) Income produced by transferred or assigned resources is recognized as the separate income of the transferee.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2132, filed 8/3/84)

✓WAC 388-95-340 COMPUTATION OF AVAILABLE INCOME AND RESOURCES. (1) ~~((Total income of a beneficiary of supplemental security income is not considered available in determining eligibility.~~

~~(2))~~ Financial responsibility of spouses ~~((and parents))~~.

(a) ~~((Income and resources are considered jointly for spouses who live together in a common household and blind or disabled children who live with their parent(s).~~

(b)) If both spouses apply or are eligible as aged, blind, or disabled and cease to live together their income and resources are considered available to each other for the time periods specified below. After the appropriate time period only the income and resources that are actually contributed by one spouse to the other are considered available.

(i) If spouses cease to live together because of the institutionalization of one spouse—

(A) Consider their income as available to each other through the month in which they cease to live together. Mutual consideration of income ceases with the month after the month in which separation occurs.

(B) Consider their resources as available to each other for the month during which they cease to live together and the six months following that month.

(ii) If spouses cease to live together for any reason other than institutionalization consider their income and resources as available to each other for the month during which they cease to live together and the six months following that month. If the mutual consideration of income and resources causes the individuals to lose eligibility as a couple, the agency will determine if an individual is eligible in accordance with subsection ~~((c))~~ (b) of this section.

~~((c))~~ (b) If only one spouse in a couple applies or is eligible, or both spouses apply and are not eligible as a couple, and they cease to live together consider only the

income and resources of the ineligible spouse that are actually contributed to the eligible spouse beginning with the month after the month in which they cease to live together.

~~((d))~~ (c) When both spouses are eligible and institutionalized((:

(i) ~~Income and resources are considered jointly if they share the same room.~~

~~((ii))~~ income and resources are considered separately ~~((if they don't))~~ even if they share the same room.

~~((e))~~ (d) When only one spouse is eligible and both are institutionalized consider only the income and resources of the ineligible spouse that are actually contributed to the eligible spouse, even if they share the same room.

~~((3))~~ When computing available income for a family of three or more the relative responsibility requirement of the appropriate cash assistance program shall be applied, except that relative responsibility shall be limited to spouse for spouse and parent for child.

~~((4))~~ (e) If the community income received in the name of the nonapplicant spouse exceeds the community income received in the name of the applicant spouse, the applicant's interest in that excess is considered unavailable to the applicant.

(2) Relative responsibility shall be limited to spouse for spouse and parent for child.

(3) For ~~((SSI related individuals;))~~ children age eighteen to twenty-one~~((;))~~ the parents' income is not deemed ~~((available))~~ to the child. Count only the income that is actually contributed to the child.

~~((5))~~ For SSI related individuals under age eighteen, parents' income is deemed available when living in the same household.

(6) ~~When the spouse of an SSI related applicant is ineligible or does not apply, the exclusions in subsections (7) and (9) of this section, shall be applied to his/her income in determining the amount to be deemed to the applicant. If the remaining income of the ineligible spouse exceeds the monthly state supplement benefit standard all the remaining income shall be deemed to the applicant.~~

~~((7))~~ (4) Exclusions from income. The following shall be excluded sequentially from income:

(a) Any amount received from any public agency as a return or refund of taxes paid on real property or on food purchased by such individual or spouse;

(b) Supplemental security income and state public assistance based on financial need;

(c) Any portion of any grant, scholarship, or fellowship received for use in paying the cost of tuition and fees at any educational institution;

(d) Income that is not reasonably anticipated, or received infrequently or irregularly, if such income does not exceed twenty dollars per month if unearned, or ten dollars per month if earned;

(e) ~~((Any amounts received for the foster care of a child, who is not an eligible individual, but who is living in the same house as such individual and was placed in such home by a public or nonprofit private child placement or child-care agency;~~

~~((f))~~ One-third of any payment for child support received from an absent parent ~~((will be excluded))~~;

~~((g))~~ ~~(f)~~ The first twenty dollars per month of earned or unearned income ~~((, not otherwise excluded in subsection (7)(a) through (f) of this section, for a person at home. The exclusion is considered only once for a husband and wife))~~. There is no exclusion on income which is paid on the basis of need ~~((of the eligible individual, such as VA pension and cash from private charitable organizations))~~ and is totally or partially funded by the federal government or by a private agency;

~~((h))~~ ~~(g)~~ Tax exempt payments received by Alaska natives under the Alaska Native Claims Settlement Act;

~~((i))~~ ~~(h)~~ Tax rebates or special payments excluded by other statutes ~~((. When necessary these exclusions will be publicized by numbered memoranda from the state office))~~;

~~((j))~~ ~~(i)~~ Compensation provided to volunteers in ACTION programs established by Public Law 93-113, the Domestic Volunteer Service Act of 1973;

~~((k))~~ When an ineligible minor is in the household of an SSI applicant, an amount will be excluded for such child's needs. The exclusions will be the difference between the SSI couple cash benefit and the SSI individual cash benefit;

~~((l))~~ ~~(j)~~ Veteran's benefits, only the following portions ~~((of the payment which is attributable to the veteran is counted as income in determining eligibility for Medicaid))~~ are excluded.

(i) The veteran's aid and attendance/house bound allowance ~~((is to meet the cost of unusual medical care and is excluded in determining eligibility for Medicaid))~~.

~~((For institutionalized individuals, the amount subsequently is considered in the cost of institutional care.))~~

(ii) The portion attributable to the dependent ~~((is counted as income to the dependent))~~.

~~((m))~~ Current recipients who become ineligible for SSI benefits and/or state supplementary payments after April 1, 1977, solely because of OASDI cost of living benefit increases shall remain categorically eligible for medical assistance (MA). Any subsequent OASDI cost of living benefit increase shall be disregarded for eligibility. For institutionalized recipients, the amount subsequently is considered in the cost of institutional care. This disregard does not apply to:

(i) New applicants (i.e., who were not receiving SSI/SSP prior to increase);

(ii) Persons who are not actually receiving SSI/SSP payments for some other reason;

(iii) Persons who would have received SSI/SSP if they had applied;

(iv) Persons who would have received SSI/SSP if they were not living in a medical or intermediate care facility.

~~((n))~~ ~~(k)~~ A fee charged by a guardian to reimburse himself or herself for services provided ~~((is not considered available to the individual and is not treated as income))~~.

~~((o))~~ ~~(l)~~ Income received by an ineligible or nonapplying spouse from a governmental agency for services provided to an eligible recipient (e.g. chore services).

~~((8))~~ An ineligible or nonapplying individual under the age of twenty-one who is a student regularly attending a school, college or university or pursuing a course of vocational or technical training designed to prepare him for gainful employment will have all earned income excluded unless that income is actually contributed to the applicant.

~~((9))~~ ~~(5)~~ Earned income exclusions for SSI related individuals shall be the first sixty-five dollars per month of earned income not excluded according to subsection ~~((7))~~ ~~(4)~~ of this section, plus one-half of the remainder.

~~((10))~~ In mixed households, where more than one assistance unit exists, determine income for the AFDC related assistance unit according to AFDC grant regulations.

~~((11))~~ ~~(6)~~ Money voluntarily withheld from SSA Title II benefits by the Social Security Administration (for the recovery of SSI overpayments) is considered as available income for the institutionalized individual's contribution toward the cost of care.

WSR 86-18-006

EMERGENCY RULES

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

[Order 490—Filed August 21, 1986]

I, Brian J. Boyle, Commissioner of Public Lands, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to an emergency rule restricting industrial operations, activities on forest lands and burning on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

I, Brian J. Boyle, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is prolonged periods of dry weather have made the forests in Washington extremely dry and in a condition which necessitates restrictions to prevent a fire from starting.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 76.04.315 and 76.04.325 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 21, 1986.

By Brian J. Boyle
Commissioner of Public Lands

NEW SECTION

WAC 332-26-086 LOGGING RESTRICTIONS
Effective midnight, Thursday, August 21, 1986, through

midnight, Tuesday, August 26, 1986, the following restrictions will be in effect in the identified areas on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

Restrictions:

1) The operating of power saws, except those at loading sites on landings, is prohibited from 11:00 A.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

2) The operating of power saws at loading sites on landings is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

3) The operating of tractors, mechanized yarding, mechanized loading, mechanized hauling of any product or material, mechanized treatment of slash, blasting, welding and operating acetylene or other torches with open flame is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

4) The operating of any other spark-emitting equipment not specifically mentioned in sections (1) (2) or (3) is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

5) A one-hour fire watch is required at the site(s) of sections (1) through (4) after ceasing operating at the required times.

6) All outdoor burning, by permit or rule burn, and the use of burning barrels is suspended: **PROVIDED**, That the use of burning barrels is permitted in the affected zones in the Olympic Area only.

7) During the shutdown period of 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M., all persons are excluded from logging operating areas and areas of logging slash except those persons present in the interest of fire protection.

Affected areas:

Olympic Area:

Shutdown zone 650 in Clallam, Jefferson and Grays Harbor Counties; shutdown zone 652 in Jefferson County; shutdown zone 653 in Clallam and Jefferson Counties.

Central Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Mason County; shutdown zone 659 in Lewis County; shutdown zone 660 in Lewis County.

South Puget Sound Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Mason County; shutdown zone 659 in Pierce and King Counties.

Northwest Area:

Shutdown zone 653 in Island, San Juan, Whatcom and Skagit Counties; shutdown zone 656 in Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and King Counties; shutdown zone 658 in Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and King Counties.

Southeast Area:

Shutdown zone 624 in Klickitat and Yakima Counties; shutdown zone 631 in Asotin, Garfield, Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 633 in Asotin, Garfield, Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 675 in Yakima and Kittitas Counties; shutdown zone 680 in Yakima and Kittitas Counties; shutdown zone 681 in Klickitat and Yakima Counties; shutdown zone 682 in Chelan County.

Northeast Area:

Shutdown zone 678 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 679 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 684 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 685 in Okanogan, Ferry and Lincoln Counties; shutdown zone 686 in

Stevens, Lincoln and Spokane Counties; shutdown zone 687 in Stevens and Spokane Counties; shutdown zone 688 in Stevens, Pend Oreille and Spokane Counties.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

1) WAC 332-26-084c Logging Restrictions

WSR 86-18-007

EMERGENCY RULES

DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES

[Order 86-85—Filed August 21, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to commercial fishing regulations.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is this rule conforms Washington state regulations with those of the Pacific Fisheries Management Council for protection of groundfish stocks, and is needed until permanent regulations take effect.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 19, 1986.

By Russell W. Cahill
for William R. Wilkerson
Director

WAC 220-44-05000X COASTAL BOTTOM-FISH CATCH LIMITS. Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 220-44-050, effective August 22, 1986 until further notice, it is unlawful to possess, transport through the waters of the state, or land in any Washington State port bottomfish taken for commercial purposes from Coastal Marine Fish-Shellfish Management and Catch Reporting Areas 58B, 59A, 59B, 60A, 61, 62, or 63 in excess of the amounts or less than the minimum sizes shown below for the species indicated:

(1) Widow Rockfish (*Sebastes entomelas*) – One vessel trip per week not to exceed 30,000 pounds. No restriction on landing up to 3,000 pounds per vessel trip.

(2) Shortbelly rockfish (*Sebastes jordani*) and Idiot Rockfish (*Sebastes spp.*) – no maximum poundage per vessel trip, no minimum size.

(3) Pacific ocean perch (*Sebastes alutus*) – no restriction on landing up to 1,000 pounds per vessel trip. Landings above 1,000 pounds allowed only if Pacific ocean perch represent 20 percent or less of total weight of fish on board. Under no circumstances may a vessel land more than 10,000 pounds of Pacific ocean perch in any one vessel trip.

(4) All other species of rockfish (*Sebastes* spp.) – 25,000 pounds of all other species combined per vessel trip per calendar week, defined as Sunday through the following Saturday, of which no more than 10,000 pounds may be yellowtail rockfish (*Sebastes flavidus*) except that a fisherman having a made a 1986 declaration of intent, may make either one landing of no more than 50,000 pounds of all other species combined per vessel trip biweekly, defined as Sunday through the second Saturday following of which no more than 20,000 pounds may be yellowtail rockfish or two landings of not more than 12,500 pounds of all other species in any one calendar week of which no more than 5,000 pounds in any one landing may be yellowtail rockfish. All previous declaration forms covering 1985 landings have expired and it is unlawful for any vessel to make other than one vessel trip per week unless a new declaration form has been completed as provided for in this subsection. The 1986 declaration of intent to make other than one vessel trip per week must be mailed or delivered to the Department of Fisheries, 115 General Administration Building, Olympia, Wa., 98504, and must be post-marked at least seven days prior to the beginning of such fishing. The declaration of intent must contain the name and address of the fishermen, the name and registration number of the vessel, the date on which such fishing for other species of rockfish will commence, and must be signed and dated by the fisherman. The fisherman may return to the one vessel trip per calendar week fishing at the beginning of any month by filing a declaration of intent to stop fishing other than once weekly on other species of rockfish with the department in the above manner. The declaration to stop such fishing for other species of rockfish and begin one vessel trip per calendar week fishing must be made at least seven days prior to the beginning of the month in which the one vessel trip per calendar week fishing will resume. It is unlawful for any vessel to make other than one landing in excess of 3,000 pounds of other rockfish species in any calendar week, if no declaration to land other species of rockfish twice weekly has been made.

(5) Sable fish – Vessels using trawl gear are limited to 8,000 pounds per vessel trip. Minimum size 22 inches in length, dressed in which case minimum size 16 inches in length from the anterior insertion of the first dorsal fin to the tip of the tail except that an incidental catch less than the minimum size of 5,000 pounds is allowed.

(6) It is unlawful during unloading of the catch and prior to its being weighed or leaving the unloading facility to intermix with any other species a species or category of bottomfish having a vessel trip limit.

(7) For purposes of this section, a vessel trip is defined as having occurred upon the initiating of transfer of catch from the fishing vessel, and all fish aboard the

vessel are considered part of the vessel trip limit at the initiating of transfer of catch.

Reviser's note: The typographical errors in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

WSR 86-18-008
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
[Order 86-86—Filed August 21, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to commercial fishing regulations.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is this rule conforms Washington state regulations with those of the Pacific Fisheries Management Council for protection of groundfish stocks, and is needed until permanent regulations take effect.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 19, 1986.

By Russell W. Cahill
for William R. Wilkerson
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-44-05000Y COASTAL BOTTOM-FISH CATCH LIMITS. Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 220-44-050, effective August 31, 1986 until further notice, it is unlawful to possess, transport through the waters of the state, or land in any Washington State port bottomfish taken for commercial purposes from Coastal Marine Fish-Shellfish Management and Catch Reporting Areas 58B, 59A, 59B, 60A, 61, 62, or 63 in excess of the amounts or less than the minimum sizes shown below for the species indicated:

(1) Widow Rockfish (*Sebastes entomelas*) – One vessel trip per week not to exceed 30,000 pounds. No restriction on landing up to 3,000 pounds per vessel trip.

(2) Shortbelly rockfish (*Sebastes jordani*) and Idiot Rockfish (*Sebastes spp.*) – no maximum poundage per vessel trip; no minimum size.

(3) Pacific ocean perch (*Sebastes alutus*) – no restriction on landing up to 1,000 pounds per vessel trip.

Landings above 1,000 pounds allowed only if Pacific ocean perch represent 20 percent or less of total weight of fish on board. Under no circumstances may a vessel land more than 10,000 pounds of Pacific ocean perch in any one vessel trip.

(4) All other species of rockfish (*Sebastes* spp.) – 30,000 pounds of all other species combined per vessel trip per calendar week, defined as Sunday through the following Saturday, of which no more than 12,500 pounds may be yellowtail rockfish (*Sebastes flavidus*) except that a fisherman having a made a 1986 declaration of intent, may make either one landing of no more than 60,000 pounds of all other species combined per vessel trip biweekly, defined as Sunday through the second Saturday following of which no more than 25,000 pounds may be yellowtail rockfish or two landings of not more than 15,000 pounds of all other species in any one calendar week of which no more than 6,500 pounds in any one landing may be yellowtail rockfish. All previous declaration forms covering 1985 landings have expired and it is unlawful for any vessel to make other than one vessel trip per week unless a new declaration form has been completed as provided for in this subsection. The 1986 declaration of intent to make other than one vessel trip per week must be mailed or delivered to the Department of Fisheries, 115 General Administration Building, Olympia, Wa., 98504, and must be post-marked at least seven days prior to the beginning of such fishing. The declaration of intent must contain the name and address of the fishermen, the name and registration number of the vessel, the date on which such fishing for other species of rockfish will commence, and must be signed and dated by the fisherman. The fisherman may return to the one vessel trip per calendar week fishing at the beginning of any month by filing a declaration of intent to stop fishing other than once weekly on other species of rockfish with the department in the above manner. The declaration to stop such fishing for other species of rockfish and begin one vessel trip per calendar week fishing must be made at least seven days prior to the beginning of the month in which the one vessel trip per calendar week fishing will resume. It is unlawful for any vessel to make other than one landing in excess of 3,000 pounds of other rockfish species in any calendar week, if no declaration to land other species of rockfish twice weekly has been made.

(5) Sable fish – Vessels using trawl gear are limited to 8,000 pounds per vessel trip. Minimum size 22 inches in length, dressed in which case minimum size 16 inches in length from the anterior insertion of the first dorsal fin to the tip of the tail except that an incidental catch less than the minimum size of 5,000 pounds is allowed.

(6) It is unlawful during unloading of the catch and prior to its being weighed or leaving the unloading facility to intermix with any other species a species or category of bottomfish having a vessel trip limit.

(7) For purposes of this section, a vessel trip is defined as having occurred upon the initiating of transfer of catch from the fishing vessel, and all fish aboard the vessel are considered part of the vessel trip limit at the initiating of transfer of catch.

Reviser's note: The typographical errors in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed effective 12:01 a.m. August 31, 1986:

WAC 220-44-05000X COASTAL BOTTOMFISH CATCH LIMITS (86-85)

WSR 86-18-009

ADOPTED RULES

PUBLIC WORKS BOARD

[Resolution No. 86-12—Filed August 21, 1986]

Be it resolved by the Public Works Board, acting at the Mercury 12 Room, Sea-Tac Red Lion Inn, Seattle, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to the operations of the Public Works Board, including the evaluation of applications for public works loans and pledges, and the conditions of public works loans and pledges.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-053 filed with the code reviser on June 27, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Public Works Board as authorized in RCW 43.155.040.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 19, 1986.

By Pete A. Butkus
Manager, Public Works Trust Fund

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Resolution No. 85-17, filed 1/15/86)

WAC 399-30-040 BOARD DELIBERATIONS.

(1) The board will consider and prioritize, or disapprove, all applications for loans or financing guarantees at regular or special meetings of the board. The applicant will be notified of meetings at which its application will be considered.

(2) Applications will be evaluated and prioritized in accordance with the following procedures:

(a) Staff will log in all applications as received.

(b) Staff will review all applications for compliance with the minimum qualification requirements of WAC 399-30-030(2) in application Form A. Jurisdictions whose applications do not meet the minimum qualification requirements will be notified in writing of the disqualification.

(c) Staff will perform a preliminary evaluation of all applications which meet the requirements of WAC 399-

30-030(2). Applications will be scored according to the number of points awarded for responses provided in the statements of local effort and project need.

(i) ~~Up to two hundred ((points may be awarded in the evaluation of the applicant jurisdiction's demonstration that it is making a reasonable effort to meet its public works needs:~~

~~(A) In application Form C "road, bridges or storm sewer projects," responses to questions 26 through 31 will be evaluated to determine this score:~~

~~(B) In application Form D "water projects" responses to questions 32 through 35 and to questions 37 through 39 will be evaluated to determine this score:~~

~~(C) In application Form E "sanitary sewer projects," responses to questions 41 through 44 and to questions 46 through 48 will be evaluated to determine this score:~~

~~(ii) Up to three hundred points may be awarded in the evaluation of each application's demonstration of need for the proposed project:~~

~~(A) Up to two hundred points may be awarded in the evaluation of the statements of project need and health and safety impacts provided in applicant responses to questions 8, 9, and 21:~~

~~(B) Up to one hundred points may be awarded in the evaluation of responses to questions 20, 22, and 23 that indicate natural disasters, emergency public works needs and joint projects)) fifty points may be awarded in the evaluation of each application's demonstration of need for the proposed project:~~

~~(A) Responses to questions 10 through 21 will be evaluated to determine this score.~~

~~(B) Up to two hundred and forty-five points may be awarded in the evaluation of the extent and severity of public works problems provided in applicant responses to questions 10 through 13 and 16 through 21. Extent and severity referred to include health and safety, emergency needs, high maintenance and operation costs and community and regional benefit.~~

~~(C) Up to five points may be awarded in the evaluation of coordinated projects provided in applicant responses to question 14.~~

~~(ii) Up to two hundred points may be awarded in the evaluation of the applicant jurisdiction's demonstration that it is making a reasonable effort to meet its public works needs:~~

~~(A) Responses to questions 22 through 38 will be evaluated to determine this score.~~

~~(B) In the case of nonrate-based projects, up to one hundred and fifty points may be awarded in the evaluation of the management initiatives undertaken by applicant jurisdictions provided in applicant responses to questions 22 through 26.~~

~~(C) In the case of nonrate-based projects, up to fifty points may be awarded in the evaluation of local option tax measures charged by applicant jurisdictions provided in applicant responses to questions 27, 28, 29, 30 and 31.~~

~~(D) In the case of rate-based projects, up to one hundred points may be awarded in the evaluation of the management initiatives undertaken by applicant jurisdictions provided in applicant responses to questions 22 through 26.~~

(E) In the case of rate-based projects, up to one hundred points may be awarded in the evaluation of user rates charged by applicant jurisdictions provided in applicant responses to questions 27, 28, and 32 through 38.

(d) Staff will provide the board with preliminary evaluation and scoring of the applications, including a summary of each proposal. All application materials will be available to the board for their deliberations. The board will develop a ranked list of projects based on the information provided to them by the staff and the applications.

(e) The board will then adjust the ranked list in consideration of the following factors:

(i) Geographical balance;

(ii) Economic distress;

(iii) Type of projects;

(iv) ~~(Readiness to proceed;~~

~~(v) Size of projects))~~ Type of jurisdiction.

(f) Staff will verify critical information on each project as required by the board.

(g) The board may consult on any issue it wishes to address, with officials of jurisdictions having projects on the list recommended for funding.

(3) Applicants will be notified in writing of board decisions.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-17, filed 12/4/85)

WAC 399-30-060 LOAN AND FINANCING GUARANTEE CONTRACTS. (1) The board shall not sign (~~contracts~~) loan agreements or otherwise financially obligate funds from the public works assistance account until the list (~~is in final form and the appropriations are received from~~) and accompanying appropriation are approved by the legislature.

(2) After the legislature has appropriated funds from the public works assistance account for a specific list of public works projects, the loan funds will be disbursed to the applicant local government pursuant to a contract therefor, which will be offered to the local government with such reasonable terms and conditions as the board may determine: PROVIDED, That the amount loaned to a local government shall not exceed ninety percent of eligible proposed project cost: PROVIDED FURTHER, That the funds provided by a local government which are considered local financial participation shall consist of locally generated revenues and/or federal and/or state-shared revenues subject to discretionary allocation by the recipient unit of local government: PROVIDED FURTHER, That the interest rate for loans shall not exceed three percent per annum: PROVIDED FURTHER, That loans may be provided at rates of lower than three percent but greater than one percent if the local government participates to a greater extent than ten percent in financing the project receiving a trust fund loan: PROVIDED FURTHER, That loans shall not exceed twenty years in duration, or the useful life of the improvements, whichever is shorter. Exception to these provisions shall be made only in cases of severe economic distress and/or natural disaster.

(3) Public works project loan and/or financing guarantee (~~contracts~~) agreements offered to local governments shall be formally executed by the local government and ((an original contract returned to the board)) the department of community development prior to the disbursal of any funds thereunder.

(4) Public works project loan and/or financing guarantee contracts offered to local governments shall be executed by the local government within ninety days of the date a loan agreement is initiated.

(5) Work on public works projects financed through loans or financing guarantees offered to local governments must commence prior to October 1 of the year in which the loan or financing guarantee is offered.

(6) Work on public works projects financed through loans or financing guarantees offered to local governments must be completed within twenty-four months of the date work has begun on such projects, unless a written request for extension is approved by the board.

(7) Funds expended by local governments on projects financed through loans or financing guarantees by the public works assistance account before an agreement has been formally executed by the local government and the department of community development may not be reimbursed with funds from the public works assistance account. Such funds may be used by the local government as an element in its required local participation in a project financed by the public works assistance account.

WSR 86-18-010
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF GAME
(Game Commission)
 [Order 278—Filed August 22, 1986]

Be it resolved by the State Game Commission, acting at the Spokane Ridpath, 515 West Sprague, Spokane, WA 99204, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to:

- Rep WAC 232-16-289 Quincy Lake Game Reserve.
- Rep WAC 232-16-630 Rocky Ford Springs Game Reserve.
- Rep WAC 232-16-650 Harris Lake Game Reserve.
- Rep WAC 232-16-670 Lower Crab Creek Game Reserve.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-105 filed with the code reviser on July 2, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 77.12.040 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 11, 1986.
 By Archie U. Mills
 Chairman, Game Commission

REPEALER

The following sections of the Washington Administrative Code are hereby repealed:

- ✓ WAC 232-16-289 QUINCY LAKE GAME RESERVE
- ✓ WAC 232-16-630 ROCKY FORD SPRINGS GAME RESERVE
- ✓ WAC 232-16-650 HARRIS LAKE GAME RESERVE
- ✓ WAC 232-16-670 LOWER CRAB CREEK GAME RESERVE

WSR 86-18-011
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
 [Order 491—Filed August 22, 1986]

I, Brian J. Boyle, Commissioner of Public Lands, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to an emergency rule restricting industrial operations, activities on forest lands and burning on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources and an amendment to a previous emergency rule.

I, Brian J. Boyle, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is prolonged periods of dry weather have made the forests in shutdown zone 658 in the northwest area of the Department of Natural Resources extremely dry and in a condition which necessitates a general logging shutdown with other restrictions to prevent a fire from starting.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 76.04.315 and 76.04.325 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 22, 1986.
 By Brian J. Boyle
 Commissioner of Public Lands

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Emergency Order 490, filed 8/21/86)

WAC 332-26-086 LOGGING RESTRICTIONS Effective midnight, Thursday, August 21, 1986, through midnight, Tuesday, August 26, 1986, the following restrictions will be in effect in the identified areas on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

Restrictions:

1) The operating of power saws, except those at loading sites on landings, is prohibited from 11:00 A.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

2) The operating of power saws at loading sites on landings is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

3) The operating of tractors, mechanized yarding, mechanized loading, mechanized hauling of any product or material, mechanized treatment of slash, blasting, welding and operating acetylene or other torches with open flame is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

4) The operating of any other spark-emitting equipment not specifically mentioned in sections (1) (2) or (3) is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

5) A one-hour fire watch is required at the site(s) of sections (1) through (4) after ceasing operating at the required times.

6) All outdoor burning, by permit or rule burn, and the use of burning barrels is suspended: **PROVIDED**, That the use of burning barrels is permitted in the affected zones in the Olympic Area only.

7) During the shutdown period of 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M., all persons are excluded from logging operating areas and areas of logging slash except those persons present in the interest of fire protection.

Affected areas:**Olympic Area:**

Shutdown zone 650 in Clallam, Jefferson and Grays Harbor Counties; shutdown zone 652 in Jefferson County; shutdown zone 653 in Clallam and Jefferson Counties.

Central Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Mason County; shutdown zone 659 in Lewis County; shutdown zone 660 in Lewis County.

South Puget Sound Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Mason County; shutdown zone 659 in Pierce and King Counties.

Northwest Area:

Shutdown zone 653 in Island, San Juan, Whatcom and Skagit Counties; shutdown zone 656 in Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and King Counties; shutdown zone 658 in ((~~Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and~~)) King ((~~Counties~~)) County.

Southeast Area:

Shutdown zone 624 in Klickitat and Yakima Counties; shutdown zone 631 in Asotin, Garfield, Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 633 in Asotin, Garfield, Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 675 in Yakima and Kittitas Counties; shutdown zone 680 in Yakima and Kittitas Counties; shutdown zone 681 in Klickitat and Yakima Counties; shutdown zone 682 in Chelan County.

Northeast Area:

Shutdown zone 678 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 679 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 684 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 685 in Okanogan, Ferry and Lincoln Counties; shutdown zone 686 in Stevens, Lincoln and Spokane Counties; shutdown zone

687 in Stevens and Spokane Counties; shutdown zone 688 in Stevens, Pend Oreille and Spokane Counties.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

1) WAC 332-26-084c Logging Restrictions

NEW SECTION

WAC 332-26-087 **GENERAL LOGGING SHUTDOWN** Effective midnight, Friday, August 22, 1986, through midnight, Tuesday, August 26, 1986, the following restrictions will be in effect in the identified areas on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

Restrictions:

1. The operating of all power saws is prohibited.

2. The operating of tractors, mechanized yarding, mechanized loading, mechanized hauling of any product or material, mechanized treatment of slash, blasting, welding and operating of acetylene or other torches with open flame is prohibited.

3. The operating of any other spark-emitting equipment not specifically mentioned is prohibited.

4. All persons are excluded from logging operating areas and areas of logging slash, except those persons present in the interest of fire protection.

5. All burning, by permit or rule burn, and the use of burning barrels is prohibited.

Affected areas for these restrictions:**Northwest Area:**

Shutdown zone 658 in Whatcom, Skagit and Snohomish Counties only.

WSR 86-18-012**ADOPTED RULES****DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING
(Securities Division)**

[Order SDO-114-86-Filed August 22, 1986]

I, Theresa Anna Aragon, director of the Department of Licensing, do promulgate and adopt at the Highways-Licenses Building, 4th Floor, Olympia, Washington 98504, the annexed rules relating to the regulation and exemption of securities:

Amd	WAC 460-46A-020	Ability of exemption (to make exemption available to issuers who have filed a registration statement, but sold no securities pursuant to said registration).
Amd	WAC 460-46A-090	Disclosure document (to require IRA, Keogh and similar plans to independently meet suitability requirements of the rule).
New	WAC 460-46A-115	Reports of sales (requiring the issuer to file a report of sales within thirty days of the expiration of the offering).
Amd	WAC 460-46A-150	Suitability of investors (to require IRA, Keogh and similar plans to independently meet suitability requirements of the rule).

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-045 filed with the code reviser on June 26, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 21.20.320(9) and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 21.20.450 which directs that the director of the Department of Licensing has authority to implement the provisions of chapter 21.20 RCW.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 6, 1986.

By Theresa Anna Aragon
Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order SDO-95-83, filed 7/15/83)

WAC 460-46A-020 AVAILABILITY OF EXEMPTION. Only corporations may use the limited offering exemption. The limited offering exemption may be used by an issuer more than once provided that the aggregate amount raised by all offerings by the issuer and its affiliates under the limited offering exemption shall not exceed \$500,000. (The foregoing notwithstanding, offerings by affiliates of the issuer under the limited offering exemption with respect to business ventures unrelated to that of the issuer occurring twenty-four months prior to or twenty-four months after the offering of the issuer under consideration shall not be included in calculating the \$500,000 limitation as to the issuer.) The limited offering exemption is available only if one class of stock is outstanding after the offering provided however, that upon written request, this requirement may be waived by the administrator as not being necessary under the circumstances for the protection of investors. The limited offering exemption may not be used for the offer and sale of debt securities. The limited offering exemption is not available if the issuer or its affiliates have previously sold securities of such issuer or affiliate under the provisions of RCW 21.20.210 (registration by qualification) or RCW 21.20.180 (registration by coordination) or of similar provisions of the securities or blue sky laws of any other state. If an issuer has previously filed an application for registration of its securities in this or any state but no sales were made pursuant to that registration, the limited offering exemption remains available, but the issuer must advise the securities division of its prior applications for registration. The securities division may require disclosure of the reasons why no sales were made pursuant to the prior registration applications. The total amount of funds raised by the issuer and its affiliates under all exemptions, including the limited offering exemption, but excepting the statutory nonpublic offering exemption of RCW 21.20.320(1), may not exceed

\$500,000 in any 12-month period during which the limited offering exemption is used.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order SDO-95-83, filed 7/15/83)

WAC 460-46A-090 DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. Each offeree under the limited offering exemption must be furnished a disclosure document on a form provided by the securities administrator (called "Form LOE-82"). A copy of such disclosure document with all attachments must be furnished to prospective purchasers ((24)) twenty-four hours before either agreeing to purchase the shares or making any payment of consideration, whichever is earlier. A manually signed copy of the disclosure document and an additional copy must be filed with the securities administrator at least ((5)) ten business days prior to commencement of the offering. If the financial statements attached to the disclosure document are audited, subject to review or compilation by an accountant, a copy of the disclosure document and all attachments shall be forwarded to the accountant at the same time it is forwarded to the securities administrator. Certified mail, return receipt requested, is recommended. If during the course of an offering made under the limited offering exemption there shall occur an event which would materially affect the issuer, its prospects or properties, or otherwise materially affect the accuracy or completeness of the information contained in the disclosure document, the disclosure document shall be promptly revised to reflect such event, filed with the securities administrator as so revised, and used for all sales of shares in the offering thereafter.

NEW SECTION

WAC 460-46A-115 REPORT OF SALES. The issuer must file a report of sales on a form prescribed by the administrator no later than thirty days after the expiration of the offering.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order SDO-116-82, filed 10/5/82)

WAC 460-46A-150 SUITABILITY OF INVESTORS. No person may purchase shares under the limited offering exemption in excess of (a) \$15,000, (b) 25% of his or her annual income for the last calendar year, or (c) 25% of his or her net worth, exclusive of equity in residence, automobiles, furnishings, jewelry and personal effects, whichever amount is greater. The issuer must obtain and preserve for three years a signed statement from any purchaser who purchases more than \$15,000 worth of shares in the offering that the amount of his or her investment does not exceed 25% of his or her annual income or net worth. If shares are to be purchased by a pension fund, for an IRA account or for a Keogh plan, the pension fund, IRA account or Keogh plan must meet independently the suitability requirements of this section.

WSR 86-18-013
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
 [Order 86-87—Filed August 22, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to commercial fishing regulations.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is openings in Area 7B and 7C provide opportunity to harvest non-Indian chinook allocations. Openings in Area 12 and 12B provide opportunity to harvest non-Indian chinook allocations.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 22, 1986.

By Russell W. Cahill
 for William R. Wilkerson
 Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-47-705 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY. Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 220-47 WAC, effective August 24 until further notice, it is unlawful to take, fish for, or possess salmon for commercial purposes taken from the following Puget Sound Salmon Management and Catch Reporting Areas except in accordance with the following restrictions:

Areas 4B, 5, 6C – Under control of Pacific Salmon Commission. Drift gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open.

Areas 6, 6A, 7, 7A – Under control of Pacific Salmon Commission. Gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open.

**Area 7B – Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish from 6:00 PM to 9:00 AM nightly, August 24 through the morning of August 29. Fishery exclusion zones applicable to Area 7B commercial fisheries are described in WAC 220-47-307.*

**Area 7C – Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish from 6:00 PM to 9:00 AM nightly, August 25 through the morning of August 27. Fishery exclusion zones applicable to Area 7C commercial fisheries are described in WAC 220-47-307.*

**Area 12 – Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish from 6:00 PM to 9:00 AM nightly, August 25 through the morning of August 27, and purse seines using the 5-inch strip may fish from 5:00 AM to 9:00 PM daily, August 25 and August 26. Effective through September 6, closed to all commercial fishing east of a line from Lone Rock southwest to the navigational light off the mouth of Big Beef Creek, and thence southerly to the tip of the outermost northern headland of Little Beef Creek.*

**Area 12B – Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish from 6:00 PM to 9:00 AM nightly, August 25 through the morning of August 27, and purse seines using the 5-inch strip may fish from 5:00 AM to 9:00 PM daily, August 25 and August 26. Fishery exclusion zones applicable to Area 12B commercial fisheries are described in WAC 220-47-307.*

Areas 6B, 6D, 7D, 7E, 8, 8A, 8D, 9, 9A, 10, 10A, 10C, 10D, 10E, 10F, 10G, 11, 11A, 12A, 12C, 12D, 13, 13A, 13C, 13D, 13E, 13F, 13G, 13H, 13I, 13J, and 13K and all freshwater areas – Closed.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed effective August 24, 1986.

WAC 220-47-704 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY ORDER NO. 86-79

WSR 86-18-014
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETINGS
HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION
 [Memorandum—August 22, 1986]

The commissioners of the Washington State Human Rights Commission have agreed to change the time that the September 1986 regular commission meeting will begin. The meeting is now scheduled to begin at 9:30 a.m. The meeting will be held at the City Hall Council Chambers, 129 North Second Street, Yakima, Washington. The date of the meeting, September 25, 1986, has not changed. The public will be notified of the time and location of the meeting through the news release.

WSR 86-18-015
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
 [Order 492—Filed August 25, 1986]

I, Brian J. Boyle, Commissioner of Public Lands, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to an emergency rule restricting industrial operations, activities on forest lands, and burning on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

I, Brian J. Boyle, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is prolonged periods of dry weather have made the forests of Washington extremely dry necessitating the implementation of hoot owl logging restrictions and general logging restrictions. Along with logging restrictions burning, by permit or rule burn, is restricted. These restrictions are being imposed to prevent a fire from starting.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 76.04.315 and 76.04.325 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 25, 1986.

By Brian J. Boyle
 Commissioner of Public Lands

NEW SECTION

WAC 332-26-086a LOGGING RESTRICTIONS
Effective midnight, Monday, August 25, 1986, through midnight, Tuesday, September 2, 1986, the following restrictions will be in effect in the identified areas on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

Restrictions:

- 1) *The operating of power saws, except those at loading sites on landings, is prohibited from 11:00 A.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.*
- 2) *The operating of power saws at loading sites on landings is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.*
- 3) *The operating of tractors, mechanized yarding, mechanized loading, mechanized hauling of any product or material, mechanized treatment of slash, blasting, welding and operating acetylene or other torches with open flame is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.*
- 4) *The operating of any other spark-emitting equipment not specifically mentioned in sections (1) (2) or (3) is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.*

5) *A one-hour fire watch is required at the site(s) of sections (1) through (4) after ceasing operating at the required times.*

6) *All outdoor burning, by permit or rule burn, and the use of burning barrels is suspended.*

7) *During the shutdown period of 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M., all persons are excluded from logging operating areas and areas of logging slash except those persons present in the interest of fire protection.*

Affected areas:

Olympic Area:

Shutdown zone 649 in Clallam, Jefferson and Grays Harbor Counties; shutdown zone 650 in Clallam, Jefferson and Grays Harbor Counties; shutdown zone 651L in Grays Harbor County; shutdown zone 653 in Clallam and Jefferson Counties; shutdown zone 654 in Jefferson County.

Central Area:

Shutdown zone 654 in Thurston County; shutdown zone 655 in Grays Harbor, Mason, Pacific and Thurston Counties; shutdown zone 651L in Lewis, Grays Harbor and Pacific Counties; shutdown zone 651H in Pacific and Lewis Counties; shutdown zone 649 in Grays Harbor and Pacific Counties; shutdown zone 657 in Pierce County.

South Puget Sound Area:

Shutdown zone 654 in Mason, Kitsap, Pierce, King and Snohomish Counties; shutdown zone 657 in Snohomish, King and Pierce Counties.

Northwest Area:

Shutdown zone 653 in Island, San Juan, Whatcom and Skagit Counties; shutdown zone 656 in Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and King Counties.

Southwest Area:

Shutdown zone 649 in Wahkiakum County; shutdown zone 621W in Cowlitz and Clark Counties.

Southeast Area:

Shutdown zone 624 in Klickitat and Yakima Counties; shutdown zone 631 in Asotin, Garfield, Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 633 in Asotin, Garfield, Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 675 in Yakima and Kittitas Counties; shutdown zone 680 in Yakima and Kittitas Counties; shutdown zone 681 in Klickitat and Yakima Counties; shutdown zone 682 in Chelan County.

Northeast Area:

Shutdown zone 678 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 679 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 684 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 685 in Okanogan, Ferry and Lincoln Counties; shutdown zone 686 in Stevens, Lincoln and Spokane Counties; shutdown zone 687 in Stevens and Spokane Counties; shutdown zone 688 in Stevens, Pend Oreille and Spokane Counties.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

- 1) WAC 332-26-086 Logging Restrictions

NEW SECTION

WAC 332-26-087a **GENERAL LOGGING SHUTDOWN** Effective midnight, Monday, August 25, 1986, through midnight, Tuesday, September 2, 1986, the following restrictions will be in effect in the identified areas on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

Restrictions:

1. The operating of all power saws is prohibited.
2. The operating of tractors, mechanized yarding, mechanized loading, mechanized hauling of any product or material, mechanized treatment of slash, blasting, welding and operating of acetylene or other torches with open flame is prohibited.
3. The operating of any other spark-emitting equipment not specifically mentioned is prohibited.
4. All persons are excluded from logging operating areas and areas of logging slash, except those persons present in the interest of fire protection.
5. All burning, by permit or rule burn, and the use of burning barrels is prohibited.

Affected areas for these restrictions:**Northwest Area:**

Shutdown zone 658 in Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and King Counties.

South Puget Sound Area:

Shutdown zone 659 in Snohomish, King and Pierce Counties; shutdown zone 652 in Mason County.

Central Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Mason County; shutdown zone 659 in Lewis County; shutdown zone 660 in Lewis County.

Southwest Area:

Shutdown zone 660 in Cowlitz, Skamania and Clark Counties; shutdown zone 621E in Clark and Skamania Counties.

Olympic Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Jefferson and Clallam Counties.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

1) WAC 332-26-087 **GENERAL LOGGING SHUTDOWN**

WSR 86-18-016

EMERGENCY RULES

DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

[Order 493—Filed August 26, 1986]

I, Brian J. Boyle, Commissioner of Public Lands, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to the amending of an emergency order related to industrial restrictions and suspension of burning.

I, Brian J. Boyle, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the

public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is prolonged periods of dry weather have made the forests of Washington extremely dry, necessitating the implementation of hoot owl and general logging shutdowns. Along with logging restrictions burning, by permit or rule burning, is restricted. These restrictions are being imposed to prevent a fire from starting.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 76.04.315 and 76.04.325 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 26, 1986.

By Brian J. Boyle

Commissioner of Public Lands

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Emergency Order 492, filed 8/25/86)

WAC 332-26-086a **LOGGING RESTRICTIONS** Effective midnight, Monday, August 25, 1986, through midnight, Tuesday, September 2, 1986, the following restrictions will be in effect in the identified areas on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

Restrictions:

1) The operating of power saws, except those at loading sites on landings, is prohibited from 11:00 A.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

2) The operating of power saws at loading sites on landings is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

3) The operating of tractors, mechanized yarding, mechanized loading, mechanized hauling of any product or material, mechanized treatment of slash, blasting, welding and operating acetylene or other torches with open flame is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

4) The operating of any other spark-emitting equipment not specifically mentioned in sections (1) (2) or (3) is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

5) A one-hour fire watch is required at the site(s) of sections (1) through (4) after ceasing operating at the required times.

6) All outdoor burning, by permit or rule burn, and the use of burning barrels is suspended.

7) During the shutdown period of 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M., all persons are excluded from logging operating areas and areas of logging slash except those persons present in the interest of fire protection.

Affected areas:**Olympic Area:**

Shutdown zone 649 in Clallam, Jefferson and Grays Harbor Counties; shutdown zone 650 in Clallam, Jefferson and Grays Harbor Counties; shutdown zone 651L in Grays Harbor County; shutdown zone 653 in

Clallam and Jefferson Counties; shutdown zone 654 in Jefferson County.

Central Area:

Shutdown zone 654 in Thurston County; shutdown zone 655 in Grays Harbor, Mason, Pacific and Thurston Counties; shutdown zone 651L in Lewis, Grays Harbor and Pacific Counties; shutdown zone 651H in Pacific and Lewis Counties; shutdown zone 649 in Grays Harbor and Pacific Counties; shutdown zone 657 in Pierce County.

South Puget Sound Area:

Shutdown zone 654 in Mason, Kitsap, Pierce, King and Snohomish Counties; shutdown zone 657 in Snohomish, King and Pierce Counties.

Northwest Area:

Shutdown zone 653 in Island, San Juan, Whatcom and Skagit Counties; shutdown zone 656 in Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and King Counties.

Southwest Area:

Shutdown zone 649 in Wahkiakum County; shutdown zone 621W in Cowlitz and Clark Counties; shutdown zones 651L and 651H in Wahkiakum and Cowlitz Counties; shutdown zone 655 in Cowlitz County.

Southeast Area:

Shutdown zone 624 in Klickitat and Yakima Counties; shutdown zone 631 in Asotin, Garfield, Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 633 in Asotin, Garfield, Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 675 in Yakima and Kittitas Counties; shutdown zone 680 in Yakima and Kittitas Counties; shutdown zone 681 in Klickitat and Yakima Counties; shutdown zone 682 in Chelan County.

Northeast Area:

Shutdown zone 678 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 679 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 684 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 685 in Okanogan, Ferry and Lincoln Counties; shutdown zone 686 in Stevens, Lincoln and Spokane Counties; shutdown zone 687 in Stevens and Spokane Counties; shutdown zone 688 in Stevens, Pend Oreille and Spokane Counties.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

- 1) WAC 332-26-086 Logging Restrictions

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Emergency Order 492, filed 8/25/86)

WAC 332-26-087a **GENERAL LOGGING SHUTDOWN** Effective midnight, Monday, August 25, 1986, through midnight, Tuesday, September 2, 1986, the following restrictions will be in effect in the identified areas on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

Restrictions:

1. The operating of all power saws is prohibited.
2. The operating of tractors, mechanized yarding, mechanized loading, mechanized hauling of any product or material, mechanized treatment of slash, blasting, welding and operating of acetylene or other torches with open flame is prohibited.

3. The operating of any other spark-emitting equipment not specifically mentioned is prohibited.

4. All persons are excluded from logging operating areas and areas of logging slash, except those persons present in the interest of fire protection.

5. All burning, by permit or rule burn, and the use of burning barrels is prohibited.

Affected areas for these restrictions:

Northwest Area:

Shutdown zone 658 in Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and King Counties.

South Puget Sound Area:

Shutdown zone 659 in Snohomish, King and Pierce Counties; shutdown zone 652 in Mason County.

Central Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Mason County; shutdown zone 659 in Lewis County; shutdown zone 660 in Lewis County.

Southwest Area:

Shutdown zone 660 in Cowlitz, Skamania and Clark Counties; shutdown zone 621E in Clark and Skamania Counties.

Olympic Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Jefferson and Clallam Counties.

Southeast Area:

Shutdown zone 677 in Chelan County.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

- 1) WAC 332-26-087 **GENERAL LOGGING SHUTDOWN**

WSR 86-18-017

EMERGENCY RULES

HIGHER EDUCATION COORDINATING BOARD

[Order 6/86, Resolution No. 87-1—Filed August 26, 1986]

Be it resolved by the Higher Education Coordinating Board, acting at the Sea-Tac Hyatt Hotel, Seattle, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to the Degree Authorization Act, chapter 250-61 WAC.

We, the Higher Education Coordinating Board, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is the Degree Authorization Act became effective on July 1, 1986. Higher Education Coordinating Board needs rules in order to administer the act for certain degree-granting institutions which are required to be authorized by this agency in order to operate in the state of Washington.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Higher Education Coordinating Board as authorized in RCW 28B.10.806.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 26, 1986.

By A. Robert Thoeny
Executive Director

CHAPTER 250-61

REGULATIONS FOR THE DEGREE AUTHORIZATION ACT

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-010 SCOPE AND PURPOSE. The Degree Authorization Act, chapter 28B.85 RCW established a requirement that degree-granting institutions operating in Washington obtain authorization from the Higher Education Coordinating Board, unless specifically exempted from the authorization requirement by the act. This chapter is promulgated by the board as a supplement to the act in order to establish necessary regulations for the authorization of degree-granting institutions.

The purpose of the act is to insure fair business practices and adequate quality among degree-granting institutions operating in the state of Washington and to protect citizens against substandard, fraudulent, and deceptive practices.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-020 PREVIOUS REGULATIONS REPEALED. Regulations previously adopted by this agency pursuant to chapter 28B.05 are repealed. Degree-granting institutions registered under the previous regulations will be governed by the previous rules and are not required to apply for authorization until the expiration date of such registration.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-030 DUTIES OF EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR. In addition to other administrative responsibilities vested in the executive director of the Higher Education Coordinating Board under the act and this chapter, the executive director shall carry out the following administrative responsibilities:

(1) Process authorization applications, fee payments, and bonds or security deposits, to include the denial and issuance of authorization, signed by the executive director.

(2) Cause the payment of any unsatisfied final judgment against an authorized institution, from the resources available through the institution's surety bond or other security deposit.

(3) Upon written notice from an authorized institution, release the surety on the institution's bond.

(4) Upon written notice from an authorized institution, return the institution's security deposit.

(5) In the event of impaired liability of the surety upon a bond, notify the institution of suspension until the bond liability in the required amount, unimpaired by unsatisfied judgment claims, shall have been furnished.

(6) To the extent that there is a payment by a surety, release the bond to the extent of the payment.

(7) Establish and maintain all records called for under the provisions of the act and this chapter.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-040 DEFINITIONS. The definitions set forth in this section are intended to supplement the definitions in chapter 28B.85 RCW and shall apply throughout this chapter.

(1) "Board" means the Washington Higher Education Coordinating Board.

(2) "Executive Director" means the executive director of the board or the executive director's designee.

(3) "Degree" means any designation, appellation, letters, or words including but not limited to "associate," "bachelor," "master," "doctor," or "fellow" which signify or purport to signify satisfactory completion of the requirements of an academic program of study beyond the secondary school level.

(a) "Associate degree" means a lower division undergraduate degree that requires no fewer than 60 semester hours or 90 quarter hours.

(b) "Bachelor's degree" or "baccalaureate degree" means an undergraduate degree that requires no fewer than 120 semester hours or 180 quarter hours.

(c) "Master's degree" means a graduate degree that requires no fewer than 24 semester hours or 36 quarter hours beyond the baccalaureate degree.

(d) "Doctor's degree" or "doctorate" means a post-graduate degree that requires no fewer than 60 semester hours or 90 quarter hours beyond the baccalaureate degree.

(4) "Program of study" means any course or grouping of courses prerequisite to or indicative of a degree.

(5) "Degree-granting institution" means an entity that offers educational credentials, instruction, or services prerequisite to or indicative of an academic or professional degree beyond the secondary level.

(6) "Recognized institutional accrediting agency" means an agency or association, of regional or national scope, recognized by the Council on Postsecondary Accreditation and the board for purposes of this chapter and published by the Board as recognized accrediting agencies under this chapter.

(7) "To operate" means but is not limited to the following:

(a) Offering courses in person, by correspondence, or electronic media, at any Washington location for degree credit, including electronic courses transmitted into the state of Washington.

(b) Granting or offering to grant degrees in Washington for credit obtained within or outside the state.

(c) Maintaining or advertising a Washington location, mailing address, or telephone number for any purpose

connected with the administration, promotion, recruiting, instruction, fee collection or any other function of a degree-granting institution, other than customary and periodic contact with the institution's alumni.

(8) "To offer" includes, in addition to its usual meanings, to advertise or publicize. "To offer" shall also mean to solicit or encourage any person, directly or indirectly, to perform the act described.

(9) The "Act" means the Degree Authorization Act, Chapter 36, Laws of 1986.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-050 EXEMPTIONS. The provisions of this chapter do not apply to:

(1) Honorary credentials clearly designated as such on the front side of the diploma or certificate and awarded by institutions offering other educational credentials in compliance with state law.

(2) Any public college, public university, public community college or other entity operating as part of the public educational system of this state.

(3) Institutions that have received institutional accreditation from an agency recognized by the board; **PROVIDED:**

(a) That this exemption shall pertain only to degrees that are covered by the institution's accreditation or have achieved candidacy status with the agency that has accredited the institution.

(b) That any non-degreed programs offered by the institution have been determined by the commission for vocational education or its successor agency to be in substantial compliance with operational criteria established under chapter 299, Laws of 1986 and chapter 490-861, Washington administrative code, such determinations being effected and reported to the executive director via an interagency agreement executed between the respective agencies.

(c) That a branch campus, extension center, or off-campus facility operating within the state of Washington, which is affiliated with an institution domiciled outside this state, must have separate institutional accreditation as a free-standing institution from a recognized accrediting agency to qualify for this exemption.

(4) Institutions which offer program(s) of study whose sole stated objective is training in the religious beliefs of the controlling religious organization and/or preparation of students for occupations that are primarily church-related and are represented in an accurate manner in institutional catalogs and other official publications. The following procedures shall be employed in the implementation of this subsection:

(a) The executive director shall ask the chief administrative officer of any institution that may qualify for an exemption on religious grounds to forward to the board office a copy of the institution's catalog and/or any other official publications that describe the nature of the institution and its programs. This information shall be used by the executive director to verify the exempt status of the institution.

(b) In the case of a religious institution that offers both religious and secular programs of instruction, the requirements of chapter 28B.85 RCW and this chapter

shall pertain only to the secular programs of the institution.

(c) If the executive director has reasonable cause to believe that certain religious or theological programs offered by a religious institution are not represented in a materially accurate manner in the institution's catalog and other official publications, the executive director shall proceed according to the provisions of this chapter.

(5) Institutions not otherwise exempt which offer only workshops and seminars lasting no longer than three calendar days and for which academic credit is not awarded.

(6) The executive director may suspend or modify the authorization requirements contained in this chapter for a particular institution if the executive director finds:

(a) That such suspension or modification will not frustrate the purposes of this chapter.

(b) That the educational services to be offered address a substantial, demonstrated need among residents of the state of Washington or that literal application of this chapter works a manifestly unreasonable hardship on the educational institution.

(c) An application for an agency exemption shall be submitted on a form developed by the executive director.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-060 AUTHORIZATION STANDARDS. These standards form the basis for the review of an institution by the board staff and guide the decisions of the executive director and the board. To receive authorization, the institution shall meet all of these standards in addition to the specific requirements of this chapter.

(1) **Name:** The official name of the institution shall be consistent with and appropriate to the program(s) of study offered.

(2) **Purpose.**

(a) The institution shall clearly define its purpose or mission in an official statement which describes its role in higher education.

(b) The statement of purpose shall be concise and reflect the official philosophy and practice of the institution.

(3) **Administration and Governance.**

(a) The institution shall establish and maintain a board responsible for developing policy and oversight of the institution consistent with the stated purposes.

(b) The institution shall have bylaws or policies defining a chain of authority and responsibility.

(c) The institution shall follow management practices and controls to maintain standards appropriate to its purpose.

(d) Administrators shall normally be graduates of recognized accredited institutions and possess academic and experiential qualifications for their area of responsibility. In unusual circumstances, comparable credentials and extensive work experience shall be considered in lieu of graduation from a recognized accredited institution.

(4) **Educational Programs and Curricula.**

(a) The educational program and curricula shall be related to the purpose of the institution and accurately

described in all published materials which refer to such offerings.

(b) Admission, retention and degree requirements shall be based on the institution's objectives and consistently applied to each program of study.

(i) Admission to an undergraduate program of study by those under age 18 shall normally require a high school diploma or the equivalent.

(ii) Admission to a graduate program of study shall normally require a baccalaureate degree or the equivalent, unless the institution can demonstrate, upon request from the board, that these are not the normally accepted practices in a particular field of study.

(iii) This subsection is not intended to prohibit early admissions and dual-degree programs for which systematic procedures have been established and published in the institution's catalog.

(c) Undergraduate degree programs shall require, as a minimum, 20 percent of the program in general education curricula.

(d) Graduate degree programs shall provide for advanced levels of scholarship, research, and competence in the area of specialization.

(e) Doctoral degree programs shall provide a broad range of advanced course offerings and faculty in ancillary and supporting fields and comparability of program requirements and resources to those of residency programs offered by recognized accredited institutions.

(f) Home study, correspondence, and electronic media program(s) of study must be comparable in content, faculty, and resources to those offered in residency by recognized accredited institutions.

(g) Each curriculum shall provide a sequence of appropriate courses leading to the attainment of competence and educational credentials in the respective area or field of study.

(5) Faculty.

(a) Faculty shall be professionally prepared, with background, degree levels, and experience demonstrably higher than the instructional activities for which they are responsible. As a minimum:

(i) Faculty teaching at the associate degree level shall possess a baccalaureate degree or comparable credentials in their assigned program area.

(ii) Faculty teaching at the baccalaureate degree level shall possess a master's degree or comparable credentials in their assigned program area.

(iii) Faculty teaching at the graduate degree level shall possess a doctorate degree or comparable credentials and be experienced in directing independent study and research.

(b) Faculty shall be sufficient in number and kind and in the proportion of full-time and part-time positions to sustain rigorous courses, programs and services. As a minimum, 25 percent of the curriculum, defined in terms of the number of courses or credit hours necessary for program completion, shall be taught by full-time faculty.

(6) Student Services.

(a) The institution shall provide student services that support institutional policies and assist students in achieving their educational objectives. As a minimum,

the institution shall provide students with programs of counseling, testing, advisement, and orientation.

(b) The institution shall have an orderly system of admission which evaluates the prospective student's intellectual and personal qualifications in relation to the purposes and objectives of the institution.

(c) The institution shall maintain student records in accordance with A Guide to Adequate Permanent Records and Transcript of the American Association of Collegiate Registrars and Admission Officers, and right to privacy legislation shall be observed.

(7) Instructional Resources.

(a) Instructional support personnel, facilities, equipment, and other learning resources shall be sufficient in size, number, and location to support courses, programs, and services.

(b) The institution's library shall be accessible and contain a collection of books, periodicals and other resource materials sufficient for the educational needs of students and faculty. If the institution does not maintain its own library, there shall be a written agreement with another institution or organization to provide for faculty and student access to a collection sufficient for the needs of the program(s) of study.

(c) The institution shall be operated in compliance with all applicable ordinances, laws, codes, and rules concerning the safety, health, and access of all persons on its premises.

(8) Finances.

(a) The resources of the institution shall be sufficient to adequately support its programs, activities, and personnel now and in the future.

(b) Financial management and fiscal practices shall be consistent with those set forth in the College and University Business Administration, third edition, or such later editions as published.

(9) Evaluation.

(a) Provision shall be made for the continual reassessment of the educational program and the evaluation and improvement of instruction.

(b) All areas of the institution and personnel shall be evaluated periodically to determine their effectiveness in fulfilling institutional objectives.

(10) Publications.

(a) All publications relating to the institution, including catalogs, advertisements, and other communications shall be accurate and not misleading.

(b) Authorized institutions shall provide in a conspicuous place in its catalogs disclosure statements regarding their institutional and specialized accreditation status.

(c) Authorized institutions shall not advertise or publicize that they are approved, recommended, accredited or endorsed in any way by the board.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-070 CATALOG REQUIREMENTS. (1) An institution shall publish a catalog supplemented as necessary by other published materials (a draft copy may be provided for initial application) which shall include at least the following information:

(a) Official name, address, and telephone number of institution.

(b) Identifying data, such as volume number, date of publication, and year(s) for which the catalog is effective.

(c) A statement of purpose, objectives, and educational programs of the institution.

(d) A listing of the names of all faculty, showing earned degrees and the institution conferring them; names of administrative officers and the governing board.

(e) Specific programs of study, listing the degrees and majors offered, a brief description of each course offering, and the requirements for successful completion of each program.

(f) Admission, retention, and degree completion requirements.

(g) A detailed schedule of fees, charges for tuition, books, supplies, tools, student activities, laboratory fees, deposits, and all other student charges necessary for the completion of each program of study.

(h) Cancellation and refund policies.

(i) Policies and procedures relative to the granting of credit for experience, along with the maximum amount of credit which can be obtained in this manner.

(j) A statement of the institution's policy on acceptance of transfer credits and credit by examination.

(k) A statement explaining the transferability of the institution's credits to other institutions and the process by which a student may determine whether the institution's credits are transferable to another institution.

(l) Policies and procedures for the development of individualized courses and programs.

(m) A description of the types of financial aid assistance available to students enrolled in the institution.

(n) A description of the auxiliary services available to students enrolled in the institution.

(o) A description of the institution's facilities and equipment.

(p) A table of contents.

(q) An institutional calendar showing legal holidays, beginning and ending dates of each term, and other important dates.

(r) An authorization statement on the cover or front page of the catalog which reads: The (name of institution) is authorized by the Washington Higher Education Coordinating Board and meets the requirements and minimum educational standards established for degree-granting institutions under the Degree Authorization Act. Any person desiring information about the requirements of the act or the applicability of those requirements to the institution may contact the board office.

(2) An institutional catalog shall be published at least once every two years and be provided to students at the time of their enrollment.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-080 CANCELLATION AND REFUND REQUIREMENTS. (1) Each institution shall publish its cancellation and refund policies in clear language that can be easily understood by prospective students. These policies apply to all terminations for any reason, by either party.

(2) The refund policy for resident institutions, as a minimum, shall comply with the following requirements:

(a) An applicant rejected by an institution shall be entitled to a refund of all money paid, less an application fee, not to exceed \$100.00.

(b) All money paid by a successful applicant, less an application fee, shall be refunded to the applicant if requested in writing within six business days after signing an enrollment agreement or making initial payment, whichever comes later.

(c) If a successful applicant chooses to withdraw after the initial six day period but before the first day of instruction, the applicant shall be entitled to a refund of all money paid, less 10 percent of tuition and fee charges, for the current term.

(d) Starting on the first day of classes and continuing through the first calendar week, the tuition and fee charges retained by the institution shall not exceed 25 percent of the tuition and fees paid for the current term.

(e) Starting on the eighth calendar day and continuing through the fourteenth day, the tuition and fee charges retained by the institution shall not exceed 50 percent of the tuition and fees paid for the current term.

(f) Following completion of the first fourteen days, the institution may retain 100 percent of tuition and fees paid for the current term but shall refund any tuition and fees paid in advance for subsequent terms.

(g) The termination date for refund computation shall be the date on which the student initially requests cancellation or the date on which the institution withdraws a student.

(h) If a student, without written notice to the institution, fails to attend classes for 30 calendar days, the institution shall notify the student in writing that enrollment has been terminated, effective the 30th calendar day, and shall refund tuition and fees according to its published refund policy.

(i) The institution shall provide an exact pro rata refund to the student for any arbitrary and unilateral change by the institution of scheduled times of instruction, reduction in length of instruction, reduction of course content, or other actions that reduce the ratio of instruction to course costs.

(j) All money due the applicant shall be refunded within 30 days after written notice of cancellation or termination.

(3) Correspondence and home study schools must comply with the refund and cancellation policy of the National Home Study Council accrediting association.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-090 SURETY BOND REQUIREMENT. (1) The amount of the surety bond or other security acceptable to the executive director shall be ten percent of the preceding year's total tuition and fee charges received for educational services in Washington, but not less than \$5,000 nor more than \$100,000.

(2) In the case of new institutions, the bond or security amount for the first year shall be \$5,000.

(3) Release of surety bonds and other securities shall be made in compliance with chapter 28B.85 RCW.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-100 CLOSURE REQUIREMENTS. (1) In the event an institution proposes to discontinue its operation, the chief administrative officer of the institution shall:

(a) Notify the executive director immediately by certified mail.

(b) Furnish enrolled students with a written notice explaining the reasons for closure and what procedures they are to follow to secure refunds and their official records.

(2) In the event it appears to the executive director that the official records of an institution discontinuing its operation are in danger of being destroyed, secreted, mislead, or otherwise made unavailable to the students and the board, the executive director may seek court order to take possession of the records and provide for their permanent maintenance.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-110 APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS. (1) Initial application requirements:

(a) No institution is eligible to apply for authorization if the institution is based outside of Washington and is not authorized to do business in the state in which it is primarily located.

(b) At least six months prior to operation, an institution shall apply to the board for authorization by completing application forms provided by the executive director. As a minimum, the application must include:

(i) Name and address of institution.

(ii) Purpose of institution.

(iii) Names and addresses of the owner(s) of the institution and shareholders holding more than a ten percent interest, and members of the institution's governing board.

(iv) Name and address of the chief administrative officer and representatives of the institution in Washington.

(v) Bylaws and regulations established for the governance and operation of the institution.

(vi) Bank or other financial institution that may be consulted as a financial reference.

(vii) Qualifications of administrators and faculty.

(viii) A description of the degrees and programs of study offered.

(ix) A description of the facilities and equipment utilized.

(x) A signed written statement from the chief administrative officer attesting to the truth and accuracy of the information provided and pledging that the institution will comply with the requirements of the act and this chapter.

(c) Each application shall be accompanied by the following:

(i) An initial application fee payable to the Washington State Treasurer for \$800.00.

(ii) A surety bond or other form of security as specified in Chapter 136, Laws of 1986, and this chapter.

(iii) An audited financial statement consistent with the general accounting principles established by the College and University Business Administration, third edition, or such later editions as published.

(iv) A copy of enrollment agreements or student contracts utilized by the institution.

(v) A copy of the institution's articles of incorporation on record with the Washington State Office of the Secretary of State.

(vi) A copy of the institution's catalog.

(vii) Documentation verifying the institution's accreditation status and authorization status in primary location.

(viii) Documentation that fire, safety, and health codes are met by the institutional facility.

(d) If additional program(s) of study are proposed during the current authorization year, the institution must submit to the board a supplemental application at least 60 days before the program is to be offered. The program(s) of study shall be authorized prior to operation, which includes advertising and recruitment.

(2) Annual renewal Application for Authorization.

(a) At least three months prior to the expiration date of the institution's current authorization, the institution shall:

(i) Submit a renewal application fee payable to the Washington State Treasurer for \$400.00.

(ii) Provide evidence of continued compliance with the surety bond or security requirement.

(iii) Submit an audited financial statement consistent with the general accounting principles established by the College and University Business Administration, third edition, or such later editions as published.

(iv) File a renewal application on a form developed by the executive director, together with a signed, written statement from the chief administrative officer, attesting to the truth and accuracy of the information provided in the renewal application and pledging continued compliance with all the requirements of the act and this chapter.

(b) A change of ownership or control of an institution shall nullify any previous authorization, and the chief administrator, representing the new owner(s) shall comply with all the application requirements outlined in this section.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-120 APPLICATION REVIEW PROCEDURES. (1) Staff Analysis. Following receipt of the application, board staff shall review and analyze the application and documentation submitted.

(2) Site Visit and Additional Documentation. In the case of an application where the board staff determines it is necessary to verify or supplement the information provided in the application, the staff may require additional written documentation and arrange for a site visit.

(3) Outside Consultants. The executive director and the executive director's designee, at their discretion, may utilize the expertise of other higher education experts to assist in a site visit and in the evaluation of the documentation submitted.

(4) *Staff Report.* Following the staff analysis, board staff shall summarize its findings and develop a recommendation to the executive director regarding the application. This recommendation shall be shared with the applicant as follows:

(a) That the institution be granted authorization, subject to annual reporting and maintenance of the conditions under which authorization has been granted; or

(b) That the institution be denied authorization.

(5) *Authorization Notification.* Following the executive director's decision to authorize or deny the institution's request, a letter signifying the action shall be sent from the executive director to the chief administrative officer of the institution. The letter of authorization will serve as official authorization for the institution to operate in Washington and offer the stated program(s) of study at stated location(s).

(6) An institution denied authorization shall file a new application in order to be given reconsideration for authorization.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-130 REVOCATION OF AUTHORIZATION. (1) The executive director may revoke an institution's authorization if it finds that:

(a) Any statement contained in the application for authorization is untrue.

(b) The institution has failed to maintain faculty, facilities, equipment, and programs of study on the basis of which the authorization was granted.

(c) Advertising or representations made on behalf of and sanctioned by the institution is deceptive or misleading.

(d) The institution has violated any provision of this chapter.

(2) The executive director's and board's actions are subject to due process hearing procedures of the Washington Administrative Procedures Act.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-140 COMPLAINTS. (1) Upon written receipt of a complaint that an institution has failed or is failing to comply with the provisions of the act or this chapter, the executive director shall notify the institution by mail of the nature of the complaint and shall conduct an investigation.

(2) If preliminary findings indicate that a violation(s) may have occurred or are occurring, the executive director shall attempt, through mediation and conciliation, to effect compliance and bring about a settlement.

(3) If no agreement is reached, the executive director shall file a formal complaint with the board and notify the institution of the conduct which warrants the complaint. Final resolution of the complaint shall be subject to hearing procedures provided for in this chapter and the institution may be subject to a summary suspension of its authorization, pending further proceedings for revocation, suspension or other actions deemed proper after the hearing.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-150 APPEAL. Any dispute arising from the following actions shall require a hearing pursuant to this chapter:

(1) A denial of an exemption.

(2) A denial of authorization.

(3) A cease and desist order issued under the provisions of chapter 28B.85 RCW.

(4) Any action taken by the executive director which is alleged to adversely affect an institution or a student and which is allegedly not in keeping with the intent and purpose of the act or this chapter.

NEW SECTION

WAC 250-61-160 HEARINGS. Any hearing called for under the act shall be conducted in the following manner:

(1) The executive director or a designated hearing officer shall conduct a hearing and make findings and conclusions in accordance with the Administrative Procedure Act, chapter 34.04 RCW. The findings, conclusions, and any recommendations for action shall be submitted to the board for final action pursuant to RCW 34.04.110.

(2) The board may accept or reject, in whole or in part, any recommendations made by the hearing officer, may remand for further findings and/or take any other action the board deems appropriate under the circumstances, pursuant to the provisions of the act and this chapter.

WSR 86-18-018

ADOPTED RULES

LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD

[Order 197, Resolution No. 206—Filed August 26, 1986]

Be it resolved by the Washington State Liquor Control Board, acting at the Office of the Liquor Control Board, 5th Floor, Capital Plaza Building, 1025 East Union Avenue, Olympia, WA 98504, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to musicians, disc jockeys, sound or lighting technicians, persons performing janitorial services, employees of amusement device companies, security officers, fire fighters and law enforcement officers, employment, WAC 314-16-075.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-15-039 filed with the code reviser on July 16, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 66.44.316, 66.44.310 and 66.44.350 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Washington State Liquor Control Board as authorized in RCW 66.08.030.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 26, 1986.

By Robert D. Hannah
Member

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 9, filed 2/17/70)

WAC 314-16-075 ((PROFESSIONAL MINOR MUSICIANS—EMPLOYMENT)) MUSICIANS, DISC JOCKEYS, SOUND OR LIGHTING TECHNICIANS, PERSONS PERFORMING JANITORIAL SERVICES, EMPLOYEES OF AMUSEMENT DEVICE COMPANIES, SECURITY OFFICERS, FIRE FIGHTERS AND LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS EMPLOYMENT. Pursuant to the provisions of chapter 250, Laws of 1969 ex. sess. (RCW ((66.44-315)) 66.44.316), professional musicians 18 years of age and older are permitted to enter and to remain in liquor licensed establishments during and in the course of their employment as musicians. The following definitions and requirements shall be applicable.

(1) Definitions:

(a) The term "professional minor musician" shall be construed as a person between 18 and 21 years of age who is employed to perform in his or her capacity as a musician at a retail liquor licensed establishment.

(b) The term "professional minor musician" shall include a person who plays a musical instrument and/or is a vocalist, professional disc jockeys, or professional sound or lighting technicians actively engaged in support of professional musicians or professional disc jockeys.

(c) To assure that the professional minor musician employed is engaged for that purpose, he or she shall be compensated at a rate not less than the minimum wage provided for by state law.

(2) Areas in licensed establishments where professional minor musicians may perform:

(a) Professional minor musicians during their performance shall, except as provided in ((subdivision)) (b) and (c) of this subsection, remain on the stage or bandstand of the licensed premises.

(b) The style of a "strolling musician" or a group of "strolling musicians" may be utilized in licensed establishments.

(c) Disc jockeys and sound and lighting technicians may enter and remain on the licensed premises, in such locations as required, during and in the course of their employment.

(3) Areas where professional minor musicians may remain when not performing:

(a) Prior to commencing a performance; at breaks or intermissions during the performance; and after concluding a performance, professional minor musicians shall be permitted only: On the stage or bandstand; in a private room or separate area on the premises in which

no liquor is served; or in areas where minors are permitted under the licensee's minor classification [for example, in the restaurant section of a Class H licensed premises].

(b) Professional minor musicians are permitted to enter and remain on the licensed premises not more than ((30 minutes)) one hour prior to the start of their performance, in order to set up their equipment and tune their musical instruments, and to remain not more than ((30 minutes)) one hour after concluding their performance in order to properly secure their equipment.

(4) Responsibilities of licensees:

(a) ((A)) Licensees having board authorization for live music and wishing to employ professional minor musicians ((shall notify his local inspection office in writing before his initial employment of said professional minor musicians.

((b) Licensees)) shall have available for inspection by the board, or any peace officer, at all reasonable times, a current list of professional minor musicians employed at the licensed premises. Such list shall be retained for a period of 30 days after termination of employment and shall designate the following information with respect to each minor:

(i) True name and professional or stage name, if any.

(ii) Permanent resident address and temporary address, if any.

(iii) Date and place of birth.

(iv) Mother's maiden name; father's name.

(v) Social security number.

(vi) Terms of the agreement of employment.

((c)) (b) Licensees shall at all times provide adequate supervision in order to insure that there will be neither the sale of nor the supplying of any alcoholic beverages to professional minor musicians, and that professional minor musicians will not be permitted to consume alcoholic beverages at any place on the premises.

(5) Responsibilities of professional minor musician:

(a) Professional minor musicians shall at all times during the course of their employment on licensed retail premises have with them documents available for inspection which disclose their true age and date of birth.

(6) Practice sessions — "jam sessions":

(a) Practice sessions involving professional minor musicians shall not be permitted on licensed premises.

(b) "Jam sessions" involving professional minor musicians shall not be permitted on any licensed premises unless the participants are being paid for such "jam sessions" in accordance with subsection (1)(c) of this regulation.

(7) Persons eighteen years of age and older performing janitorial services may enter and remain on premises licensed under the provisions of Title 66 RCW during the hours when there is no sale, service, or consumption of liquor on the premises (or in the area being cleaned), but only during and in the course of their performance of janitorial services.

(8) Employees of amusement device companies or companies which are in the business of installing, maintaining, and repairing amusement devices, which employees are eighteen years of age or older, may enter and remain in any premises licensed under the provisions of

Title 66 RCW, but only during and in the course of their employment for the purpose of installing, maintaining, repairing, or removing an amusement device. For the purposes of this section amusement device means coin-operated video games, pinball machines, juke boxes, or other similar devices.

(9) Security officers, fire fighters and law enforcement officers eighteen years and over are permitted to enter and remain on premises licensed under the provisions of Title 66 RCW, but only during and in the course of their employment or official duties and only if they are not the direct employees of the licensee. Provided, however, that security officers access to classified portions of liquor licensed premises is limited to only isolated incidents arising in the course of their duties.

WSR 86-18-019
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF GAME
(Game Commission)
[Order 277—Filed August 26, 1986]

Be it resolved by the State Game Commission, acting at the Yakima Holiday Inn, 9 North 9th Street, Yakima, WA 98901, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to:

- New WAC 232-28-509 1986-87 Trapping seasons and regulations.
- Rep WAC 232-28-508 1985-86 Trapping seasons and regulations.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-12-053 filed with the code reviser on June 3, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 77.12.040 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED July 8, 1986.
By Archie U. Mills
Chairman, Game Commission

NEW SECTION

WAC 232-28-509 1986-87 TRAPPING SEASONS AND RULES.

Reviser's note: The text and accompanying pamphlet comprising the 1986-87 Trapping seasons and rules adopted by the Department of Game have been omitted from publication in the Register under the authority of RCW 34.04.050(3) as being unduly cumbersome to publish. Copies of the rules may be obtained from the main office of the Department of Game, 600 North Capitol Way, Olympia, Washington 98504, and are available in pamphlet form from the department, its six regional offices, and at numerous drug and sporting goods stores throughout the state.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is hereby repealed:

WAC 232-28-508 1985-86 TRAPPING SEASONS AND REGULATIONS

WSR 86-18-020
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF GAME
(Game Commission)
[Order 279—Filed August 26, 1986]

Be it resolved by the State Game Commission, acting at the Spokane Ridpath, 515 West Sprague, Spokane, WA 99204, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to:

- New WAC 232-28-410 1986-87 Upland game bird and migratory waterfowl seasons.
- Rep WAC 232-28-409 1985-86 Upland game bird and migratory waterfowl seasons.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-106 filed with the code reviser on July 2, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 77.12.040 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 11, 1986.
By Archie U. Mills
Chairman, Game Commission

NEW SECTION

WAC 232-28-410 1986-87 UPLAND GAME BIRD AND MIGRATORY WATERFOWL SEASONS.

Reviser's note: The text and accompanying pamphlet comprising the 1986-87 Upland game bird and migratory waterfowl seasons adopted by the Department of Game have been omitted from publication in the Register under the authority of RCW 34.04.050(3) as being unduly cumbersome to publish. Copies of the rules may be obtained from the main office of the Department of Game, 600 North Capitol Way, Olympia, Washington 98504, and are available in pamphlet form from the department, its six regional offices, and at numerous drug and sporting goods stores throughout the state.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is hereby repealed:

WAC 232-28-409 1985-86 UPLAND GAME BIRD AND MIGRATORY WATERFOWL SEASONS

WSR 86-18-021
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
 [Order 86-88—Filed August 26, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to commercial fishing regulations.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is openings in Areas 7B, 12 and 12B provide opportunity to harvest non-Indian chinook allocations. Previously scheduled opening in Area 7C for the night of August 26 was cancelled due to achievement of non-Indian allowable harvest in this area.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 26, 1986.

By Russell W. Cahill
for William R. Wilkerson
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-47-706 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY. Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 220-47 WAC, effective August 26, 1986, until further notice, it is unlawful to take, fish for, or possess salmon for commercial purposes taken from the following Puget Sound Salmon Management and Catch Reporting Areas except in accordance with the following restrictions:

Areas 4B, 5, 6C – Under control of Pacific Salmon Commission. Drift gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open.

Areas 6, 6A, 7, 7A – Under control of Pacific Salmon Commission. Gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open.

**Area 7B – Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish from 6:00 PM to 9:00 AM August 26 through the morning of August 29. Fishery exclusion zones applicable to Area 7B commercial fisheries are described in WAC 220-47-307.*

**Area 12 – Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish from 6:00 PM*

to 9:00 AM August 26 through the morning of August 27, and purse seines using the 5-inch strip may fish from 5:00 AM to 9:00 PM August 26. Effective through September 6, closed to all commercial fishing east of a line from Lone Rock southwest to the navigational light off the mouth of Big Beef Creek, and thence southerly to the tip of the outermost northern headland of Little Beef Creek.

**Area 12B – Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish from 6:00 PM to 9:00 AM August 26 through the morning of August 27, and purse seines using the 5-inch strip may fish from 5:00 AM to 9:00 PM August 26. Fishery exclusion zones applicable to Area 12B commercial fisheries are described in WAC 220-47-307. Areas 6B, 6D, 7C, 7D, 7E, 8, 8A, 8D, 9, 9A, 10, 10A, 10C, 10D, 10E, 10F, 10G, 11, 11A, 12A, 12C, 12D, 13, 13A, 13C, 13D, 13E, 13F, 13G, 13H, 13I, 13J, and 13K and all freshwater areas – Closed.*

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed effective August 26, 1986.

WAC 220-47-705 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY ORDER NO. 86-87

WSR 86-18-022

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

[Order ET 86-15—Filed August 26, 1986]

I, Matthew J. Coyle, acting director of the Department of Revenue, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to coin operated vending machines, amusement devices and service machines, amendatory section WAC 458-20-187.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-15-080 filed with the code reviser on July 23, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Revenue as authorized in RCW 82.32.300.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 26, 1986.

By Matthew J. Coyle
Acting Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order ET 78-4, filed 6/27/78)

WAC 458-20-187 COIN OPERATED VENDING MACHINES, AMUSEMENT DEVICES AND SERVICE MACHINES.

~~((COIN OPERATED VENDING MACHINES, AMUSEMENT DEVICES AND SERVICE MACHINES))~~

(1) DEFINITIONS. As used herein((:)) the term "vending machines" means machines which, through the insertion of a coin will return to the patron a predetermined specific article of merchandise or provide facilities for installing, repairing, cleaning, altering, imprinting, or improving of tangible personal property of or for consumers. It includes machines which vend photographs, toilet articles, cigarettes and confections as well as machines which provide laundry and cleaning services.

(2) The term "amusement devices" means those devices and machines which, through the insertion of a coin, will permit the patron to play a game. It includes slot and pinball machines and those machines or devices which permit the patron to see, hear or read something of interest.

(3) The term "service machines" means any coin operated machines other than those defined as "vending machines" or "amusement devices." It includes, for example, scales and luggage lockers, but does not include coin operated machines used in the conduct of a public utility business, such as telephones and gas meters; also excluded are shuffleboards and pool games.

~~((VENDING MACHINES.))~~ (4) BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX. Persons operating vending machines are engaged in a retailing business and must report and pay tax under the retailing classification with respect to the gross proceeds of sales.

~~((AMUSEMENT DEVICES.))~~ (5) Persons operating amusement devices, except shuffleboard, pool, and billiard games, are taxable under the service and other business activities classification on the gross receipts therefrom.

(6) Persons engaged in operating shuffleboards or games of pool or billiards are taxable under the retailing classification on the gross receipts therefrom and are responsible for collecting and reporting to the department the retail sales tax measured by the gross receipts therefrom.

~~((SERVICE MACHINES.))~~ (7) Persons operating service machines are taxable under the service and other business activities classification upon the gross income received from the operation of such machines.

(8) When coin operated machines are placed at a location owned or operated by a person other than the owner of the machines, under any arrangement for compensation to the operator of the location, the person operating the location has granted a license to use real property and will be responsible for reporting and paying tax upon his gross compensation therefor under the service classification.

(9) Where the owner of amusement devices which are placed at the location of another has failed to pay the

gross receipts tax and/or retail sales tax due, the department may proceed directly against the operator of the location for full payment of all tax due.

(10) RETAIL SALES TAX. The retail sales tax applies to the sale of merchandise ~~((except see WAC 458-20-244 for sales of food products))~~ through vending machines and persons owning and operating such machines are liable for the payment of such tax. (However, see WAC 458-20-244 for vending machine sales of food). For practical purposes such persons are authorized to absorb the amount of the tax on the individual sales and to pay directly to the department the retail sales tax on the total amount received from such machines.

(11) Effective March 11, 1986, on all retail sales through vending machines the tax need not be stated separately from the selling price or collected separately from the buyer. (See RCW 82.08.050.) The seller may deduct the tax from the total amount received in the machines to arrive at the net amount which becomes the measure of the tax.

(12) Where a vending machine is designed or adjusted so that single sales are made exclusively in amounts less than the minimum sale on which a 1¢ tax may be collected from the purchaser, and the kind of merchandise sold through such machines is not sold by the operator over the counter or other than through vending machines at that location, the selling price for purposes of the retail sales tax shall be 60% of the gross receipts of the vending machine through which such sales are made. This 60% basis of reporting is available only to persons selling tangible personal property through vending machines.

(13) In order to qualify for the foregoing reduction in the measure of the retail sales tax, the books and records of the operator must show for each vending machine for which such reduction is claimed: ~~((+))~~ (a) The location of the machine, ~~((2))~~ (b) the selling price of sales made through the machine, ~~((3))~~ (c) the type and brands of merchandise vended through the machine and ~~((4))~~ (d) the gross receipts from that machine. The foregoing records may be maintained for each location, rather than for each machine, in cases where several machines are maintained by the same operator at the same location, provided that all of such machines make sales exclusively in amounts less than the minimum sale on which a 1¢ tax may be collected. The reduction will be disallowed in any instance where sales made through vending machines in such amounts are not clearly and accurately segregated from other sales by the operator and the burden is on the operator to make sales under such conditions and to maintain such records as to demonstrate absolute compliance with this requirement.

(14) Every operator or owner of a vending machine, before taking a deduction from gross sales through certain vending machines, shall file with the department annually an addendum to his application for registration with the department, on a form provided by the department, which form shall contain the following information:

~~((+))~~ (a) Number of vending machines in his ownership making sales under the above minimum.

~~((2))~~ (b) Value of such sales in the most recent calendar year.

~~((3))~~ (c) A statement that no sales are made by the owner or operator at any machine location of articles or products sold through such machines, except by vending machines and no provision is made either through the machine or otherwise, for multiple sales under circumstances where the tax may legally be collected from the buyer.

(15) The department will require a bond sufficient to assure recovery of any disallowed discount of tax due in any instance of registration where the department has reason to feel such recovery could be in jeopardy.

(16) Sales of vending machines, service machines and amusement devices to persons who will operate the same are sales at retail and the retail sales tax is applicable to all such sales.

(17) USE TAX. The use tax applies to all tangible personal property used by persons making sales through vending machines, upon which the retail sales tax has not been paid, except inventory items resold through such machines.

Revised April 28, 1978.
Effective July 1, 1978.

WSR 86-18-023

ADOPTED RULES

BOARD OF PHARMACY

[Order 201—Filed August 26, 1986]

Be it resolved by the Board of Pharmacy, acting at Seattle, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to hard gelatin capsule restrictions, new section WAC 360-20-200.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-108 filed with the code reviser on July 2, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 18.64.005(11) and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 14, 1986.

By Barbara Vanderkolk
Chair

NEW SECTION

WAC 360-20-200 HARD GELATIN CAPSULE RESTRICTIONS. Effective immediately, no pharmacy, shopkeeper or other drug outlet may offer for sale in this state any nonprescription drug which is manufactured in

unsealed, two-piece, hard gelatin capsules. All such products must be removed from the store shelves and returned to the manufacturer or be destroyed, unless restricted to sale by prescription only.

WSR 86-18-024

EMERGENCY RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES

[Order 86-34—Filed August 27, 1986]

I, Richard A. Davis, director of the Department of Labor and Industries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to medical aid rules and maximum fee schedule, chapter 296-20 WAC, dealing with rules for treatment of industrially injured workers.

I, Richard A. Davis, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is the Department of Labor and Industries has adopted emergency legislation June 11, 1986, approving prophylactic treatment for exposure to infectious occupational diseases.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 51.04.020(4), 51.04.030 and 51.36.010 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 27, 1986.

By Richard A. Davis
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-20-03005 INOCULATION OR IMMUNOLOGICAL TREATMENT FOR EXPOSURE TO INFECTIOUS OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE. Authorization for inoculation or other immunological treatment for occupational disease shall be given only in cases in which a work related activity has resulted in probable exposure of the worker to a potential infectious occupational disease. In no case shall such inoculation or immunological treatment be authorized until such time as a work related activity has resulted in such probable exposure. Inoculation or other treatment required as a condition for employment or otherwise obtained prior to the worker's performing a work related activity resulting in probable exposure to an occupational disease shall not be authorized. For purposes of this section, probable exposure is an incident which gives rise to a clear and immediate likelihood of contracting an occupational disease process.

WSR 86-18-025

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES

[Order 86-34—Filed August 27, 1986—Eff. November 1, 1986]

I, Richard A. Davis, director of the Department of Labor and Industries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to medical aid rules and maximum fee schedule, new section WAC 296-20-03005, inoculation or immunological treatment for exposure to infectious occupational disease.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-13-034 filed with the code reviser on June 11, 1986. These rules shall take effect at a later date, such date being November 1, 1986.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 51.04.020(4), 51.04.030 and 51.36.010 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 27, 1986.

By Richard A. Davis
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-20-03005 INOCULATION OR IMMUNOLOGICAL TREATMENT FOR EXPOSURE TO INFECTIOUS OCCUPATIONAL DISEASE. Authorization for inoculation or other immunological treatment for occupational disease shall be given only in cases in which a work related activity has resulted in probable exposure of the worker to a potential infectious occupational disease. In no case shall such inoculation or immunological treatment be authorized until such time as a work related activity has resulted in such probable exposure. Inoculation or other treatment required as a condition for employment or otherwise obtained prior to the worker's performing a work related activity resulting in probable exposure to an occupational disease shall not be authorized. For purposes of this section, probable exposure is an incident which gives rise to a clear and immediate likelihood of contracting an occupational disease process.

WSR 86-18-026

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT

[Order 86-02—Filed August 27, 1986]

I, Chuck Clarke, deputy director of the Department of Community Development, do promulgate and adopt at the Ninth and Columbia Building, Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to the conditions and procedures under which state funds will be made available to head start programs.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-10-061 filed with the code reviser on May 7, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to chapter 43.63A RCW which directs that the Department of Community Development has authority to implement the provisions of the Economic Opportunity Act, RCW 43.06.110.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED June 10, 1986.

By Chuck Clarke
Deputy Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-03, filed 6/7/85)

WAC 365-40-020 DEFINITIONS. (1) "Applicant" means a unit(s) of local government, a qualified private organization, or a combination thereof, which applies for state Head Start funds.

(2) (~~"Contractor"~~) "Grantee" means an applicant which has been allocated state Head Start funds and which has entered into a contract to carry out a Head Start program.

(3) "Director" means the director of the department of community development (hereafter, the agency).

(4) "Head Start program" means an operation undertaken in accordance with the program performance standards set forth in the OCD-HS HEAD START POLICY MANUAL (OCD Notice N-30-364-4) "Head Start program performance standards," published by the United States Department of Health, Education, and Welfare July, 1975.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-03, filed 6/7/85)

WAC 365-40-041 FINANCIAL SUPPORT APPLICATION PROCESS. (1) Each potential applicant will be notified by the agency that application for state Head Start financial assistance is to be made to the agency.

(2) An applicant must make formal application in the form and manner specified by the agency. Such application shall be for the period July 1 - June 30 of each fiscal year. Failure of an applicant to make application in ~~((a timely manner, within 45 days of receipt of application notice and application form from the agency;))~~ the specified time will result in no state Head Start funds being allocated.

(3) Applications for state Head Start funds shall contain the following information, in detail:

(a) A description of the services to be provided or activities proposed to be undertaken by the applicant consistent with the provisions of WAC 365-40-051 and 365-40-061.

(b) A budget specifying intended uses of state Head Start funds.

(4) The agency shall provide a contract for signature to the applicant or a request for additional information ~~((within thirty days of receipt of the completed application from the applicant))~~.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-03, filed 6/7/85)

WAC 365-40-051 ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA. In order to receive Head Start funds, a ~~((contractor))~~ grantee must provide services to families and individuals eligible according to federal Head Start guidelines who are in need of skills, knowledge, opportunities and motivation to become economically self-sufficient. Each Head Start program must be designed to improve the health and general well-being of the children involved, develop their mental processes, and enhance their conceptual and verbal skills. Head Start funds may be used only for activities which result in direct and measurable services to Head Start program children. State Head Start funds are allocated to programs based on the federal enrollment levels. An additional set-aside of 3% of the pass through funds are allocated for programs with 60 or less children.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-03, filed 6/7/85)

WAC 365-40-071 METHOD OF PAYMENT AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS. (1) State Head Start funds will be paid in accordance with the provisions of the applicable contract and these regulations.

(2) All contracts will ~~((provide for monthly or quarterly))~~ specify procedures for expenditure reimbursement, with vouchers submitted within ~~((fifteen days of the end of each quarter or month, as appropriate))~~ a specified time as required by the agency.

~~((a))~~ ~~((At the time of application the applicant shall state whether vouchers will be submitted on a quarterly or monthly basis:~~

~~((b))~~ If vouchers are not submitted in a timely manner, the agency may recapture unclaimed funds.

~~((c))~~ ~~((b))~~ If a ~~((contractor))~~ grantee fails to file a claim for expense reimbursement within any six month period, the agency may elect to terminate the contract.

~~((d))~~ ~~((c))~~ Funds allocated for a program may be reduced by the amount unclaimed in the program year immediately preceding the new funding year.

(3) If an intended use is not allowable under these rules or the approved contract, the ~~((contractor))~~ grantee will not be reimbursed for the cost of the item.

(4) The agency will notify the ~~((contractor))~~ grantee within ten days of its discovery of any deficiency and of the need to take corrective action.

(5) In the event corrective action is not taken within thirty days, the contract will be terminated. Funds allocated to the ~~((contractor))~~ grantee may be subject to redistribution upon termination of any contract.

(6) By agreement between the agency and the ~~((contractor))~~ grantee, the provisions of the contract may be amended.

(7) ~~((Quarterly))~~ Reports to the agency to assure that funds are being expended for purposes authorized in the approved contract are required in a format approved by the agency.

(8) The ~~((contractor))~~ grantee at time of application shall submit an annual audit of funds and resolution of findings provided under this rule by an independent auditor using standard accepted auditing techniques. Such audit may be that conducted for and provided to other funding sources. This audit report must include a breakdown of state funds by contract number.

WSR 86-18-027

ADOPTED RULES

INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

[Order R 86-2—Filed August 27, 1986—Eff. January 1, 1987]

I, Dick Marquardt, Insurance Commissioner, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to the establishment of standards for alcoholism treatment benefit provisions in group disability insurance contracts, group health care service contracts and group health maintenance organization agreements.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-112 filed with the code reviser on July 2, 1986. These rules shall take effect at a later date, such date being January 1, 1987.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 48.02.060, 48.44.050 and 48.46.200 which directs that the Insurance Commissioner has authority to implement the provisions of RCW 48.21.160, 48.21.180, 48.44.240 and 48.46.350.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 27, 1986.

Dick Marquardt
Insurance Commissioner
By Patricia D. Petersen
Deputy Insurance Commissioner

Chapter 284-53 WAC
STANDARDS FOR GROUP ALCOHOLISM COVERAGE

WAC

284-53-010

Standards for group alcoholism coverage.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-53-010 STANDARDS FOR GROUP ALCOHOLISM COVERAGE. Contractual provisions for alcoholism benefits required by RCW 48.21.180, 48.44.240, or 48.46.350 shall meet the following standards and administrative requirements.

(1) The coverage for alcoholism treatment shall provide payment toward reasonable charges for any medically necessary treatment and supporting services provided to covered individuals by an "approved treatment facility" approved pursuant to RCW 70.96A.020(2), which may include medical evaluations, psychiatric evaluations, room and board (inpatient only), psychotherapy (individual and group), counseling (individual and group), behavior therapy, recreation therapy, family therapy (individual and group) for the patient and covered persons, prescription drugs prescribed by an approved treatment facility, and supplies prescribed by an approved treatment facility. The coverage shall provide such payment whether the treatment or services are provided on an inpatient (resident) or an outpatient (non-resident) basis, except to the extent that inpatient or outpatient coverage is not provided to the individual insured for other common illnesses or disease. Inpatient coverage shall include detoxification if detoxification is not included in other contract coverage.

(2) Except to the extent prohibited by this section, the coverage may be limited by provisions of the contract that are applicable to other benefits or services including, but not limited to, provisions relating to deductibles, coinsurance and copayments. However, coverage shall not be denied by reason of contract provisions which are not pertinent to the treatment of alcoholism, such as provisions requiring a treatment facility to have surgical facilities or approval by the joint commission on accreditation of hospitals, that there be a physician in attendance, or that the exact date of onset be known.

(3) The minimum benefits for alcoholism treatment, supporting services and detoxification shall be an amount which is the lesser of five thousand dollars, exclusive of deductibles, coinsurance and copayments, in any consecutive twenty-four-month period or an amount equal to the benefit limit in the contract applicable to the individual insured which would normally be applied to treatment of any common major illness or disease other than alcoholism. The benefits may be limited to a lifetime maximum of not less than ten thousand dollars exclusive of deductibles, coinsurance and copayments, notwithstanding WAC 284-44-040(2). For purposes of determining the limitations allowed by this subsection, with regard to all benefits except the lifetime maximum a carrier may take credit for any benefits paid by any carrier on behalf of a covered individual for alcoholism treatment and supporting services received in an immediately preceding twenty-four month period. For purposes of determining the lifetime maximum allowed by this subsection, calculation must be made on either a per contract or per carrier basis except that when one group contract holder has utilized one or more carriers or plans then a carrier may take credit for amounts paid on behalf of a covered individual from the effective date of this section onward under all past and current carriers and plans with respect to that group contract holder.

(4) Contract provisions subject to this rule:

(a) Shall not impose waiting periods or preexisting condition limitations on alcoholism coverage, except that a carrier may impose a waiting period or preexisting

condition limitation for alcoholism treatment and supporting services to the extent that a waiting period or preexisting condition limitation is imposed for other common illnesses or disease.

(b) Shall not provide for the application of comparative statistical measures which are lacking in statistical reliability. Because of the limited number of approved treatment facilities in this state and the diversity of methodologies and fee structures, a measure based on the application of usual, customary and reasonable charges for overall alcoholism treatment and supporting services is not currently acceptable but comparison of costs for specific components of such treatment and supporting services may be acceptable.

(c) Shall not deny reasonable benefits for actual treatment and services rendered solely because a course of treatment was interrupted or was not completed.

(d) May limit coverage to specific facilities but only if the carrier provides one or more reasonably available and conveniently located approved treatment facilities under RCW 70.96A.020(2) which alone or in combination offer both inpatient and outpatient care. This right to limit coverage to specific facilities will permit a carrier to limit diagnosis and treatment to that rendered by itself or by a facility to which it makes referrals, but, in either case, only if the facility is an approved treatment facility under RCW 70.96A.020(2).

(e) May require prenotification in all reasonable situations; may also require a second opinion if such second opinion is required under the contract generally for other common illnesses and disease. Prenotification with respect to detoxification in most cases would not be reasonable.

(5) In situations where an insured is under court order to undergo an alcoholism assessment or treatment, or in situations related to deferral of prosecution, deferral of sentencing or suspended sentencing, or in situations pertaining to motor vehicle driving rights and the Washington state department of licensing, the carrier may require the insured to furnish at the patient's expense no less than ten and no more than thirty working days before treatment is to begin, an initial assessment of the need for alcoholism treatment and a treatment plan, made by an individual of the patient's choice who is a qualified alcoholism counselor employed by an approved treatment facility under RCW 70.96A.020(2) or licensed under chapter 18.57 or 18.71 RCW to enable the carrier to make its own evaluation of medical necessity prior to scheduled treatment.

(6) Except as provided in this section, contractual provisions subject to this section and the administration of such provisions shall not use definitions, predetermination procedures or other prior approval requirements, or other provisions, requirements or procedures, which unreasonably restrict access to treatment, continuity of care or payment of claims.

(7) This section applies to provisions for alcoholism benefits contained in contracts delivered or issued for delivery or renewed in this state on or after January 1, 1987.

WSR 86-18-028
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Public Assistance)
 [Filed August 27, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Social and Health Services intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning Kitsap physicians service—Sound care plan, new WAC 388-86-00901;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, October 8, 1986, in the Auditorium, OB-2, Olympia, Washington, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on October 9, 1986.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 74.08.090.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is chapter 74.09 RCW.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 8, 1986.

Correspondence concerning this notice and proposed rules attached should be addressed to:

Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
 Division of Administration and Personnel
 Department of Social and Health Services
 Mailstop OB 14
 Olympia, WA 98504

Interpreters for people with hearing impairments and brailled or taped information for people with visual impairments can be provided. Please contact Administrative Regulations Section, State Office Building #2, 12th and Franklin, Olympia, WA, phone (206) 753-7015 by September 24, 1986. The meeting site is in a location which is barrier free.

Dated: August 26, 1986

By: Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
 Division of Administration and Personnel

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

This statement is filed pursuant to RCW 34.04.045.

Re: New WAC 388-86-00901.

Purpose of the Rule: To delineate the rights of recipients in the KPS-sound care plan.

The Rule is Necessary: To resolve an issue with the legal services.

Statutory Authority: RCW 74.08.090.

Summary: WAC 388-08-009, effective February 1, 1986, required enrollment of all AFDC-R recipients living in Kitsap and Mason counties to enroll in KPS-sound care plan. This new section delineates their rights to exemption or disenrollment from the plan, to emergency services and to fair hearings.

Person Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement of the Rule: James Sparks, Program Manager, Division of Medical Assistance, mailstop HB-41, phone 753-7316.

Rules are proposed by the department.

These rules are not necessary as a result of a change in a federal or state law.

No economic impact statement is required under the Regulatory Fairness Act, Laws of 1982.

NEW SECTION

WAC 388-86-00901 KITSAP PHYSICIANS SERVICE—SOUND CARE PLAN. (1) All AFDC-R recipients who live in Kitsap or Mason counties shall be enrolled in the Kitsap Physicians Service Sound Care Plan (plan), except as provided in subsection (3) of this section.

(2) **Timely provision of services:** The recipient shall have the right to receive medically necessary care without unreasonable delay.

(3) **Exemptions and disenrollment:** An applicant or recipient has the right to be exempt from enrollment in the plan or to disenroll from the plan if medically necessary care that the plan is obligated by contract to provide cannot be made reasonably available. In making the determination, consideration shall include, but not be limited to:

(a) Whether distance or transportation problems make it unreasonably difficult for the recipient to obtain services; or

(b) Whether the absence of translators or of services accessible to disabled persons makes it unreasonably difficult for the recipient to obtain services.

(4) **Emergencies:** "Emergency" is defined as a situation in which medical services are immediately required to avoid placing an individual's health in serious jeopardy or to alleviate a condition manifesting itself by acute symptoms, including severe pain or discomfort, or active labor. Emergencies and emergency transportation services are exempt from routine medical care authorization procedures.

(a) The recipient is not responsible for determining, or for the cost of determining, if an emergency exists.

(b) If an emergency exists, the recipient is not financially responsible for any services rendered.

(c) If an emergency does not exist, and the plan will not authorize further services, the recipient is financially responsible for any further services received only if informed of his/her responsibility prior to the receipt of the services.

(5) **Fair hearings:** Any applicant or recipient aggrieved by a decision of the plan or the department has the right to a fair hearing as provided in chapter 388-08 WAC.

(a) Except as provided in (b) and (c) of this subsection, a recipient shall exhaust the plan's grievance procedure prior to requesting a fair hearing. The plan's grievance procedure shall result in a written decision stating the basis for the decision. The recipient has the right to request a fair hearing if the decision is adverse or the written decision is not received within thirty days from the date the plan received the grievance.

(b) In any case in which urgently needed medical services are being denied a recipient by the plan, a recipient is only required to provide a written grievance to the plan prior to or at the time of requesting a fair hearing.

(c) An applicant or recipient requesting exemption from enrollment in the plan is not required to file a formal grievance with the plan prior to requesting a fair hearing. The plan may be a party to any such fair hearing.

WSR 86-18-029
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Public Assistance)

[Order 2417—Filed August 27, 1986]

I, Lee D. Bomberger, acting director of the Division of Administration and Personnel, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to Kitsap physicians service—Sound care plan, new WAC 388-86-00901.

I, Lee D. Bomberger, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of

the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is these rules are necessary to avoid a law suit.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Social and Health Services as authorized in RCW 74.08.090.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 26, 1986.

By Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

NEW SECTION

WAC 388-86-00901 KITSAP PHYSICIANS SERVICE—SOUND CARE PLAN. (1) All AFDC-R recipients who live in Kitsap or Mason counties shall be enrolled in the Kitsap Physicians Service Sound Care Plan (plan), except as provided in subsection (3) of this section.

(2) *Timely provision of services:* The recipient shall have the right to receive medically necessary care without unreasonable delay.

(3) *Exemptions and disenrollment:* An applicant or recipient has the right to be exempt from enrollment in the plan or to disenroll from the plan if medically necessary care that the plan is obligated by contract to provide cannot be made reasonably available. In making the determination, consideration shall include, but not be limited to:

(a) Whether distance or transportation problems make it unreasonably difficult for the recipient to obtain services; or

(b) Whether the absence of translators or of services accessible to disabled persons makes it unreasonably difficult for the recipient to obtain services.

(4) *Emergencies:* "Emergency" is defined as a situation in which medical services are immediately required to avoid placing an individual's health in serious jeopardy or to alleviate a condition manifesting itself by acute symptoms, including severe pain or discomfort, or active labor. Emergencies and emergency transportation services are exempt from routine medical care authorization procedures.

(a) The recipient is not responsible for determining, or for the cost of determining, if an emergency exists.

(b) If an emergency exists, the recipient is not financially responsible for any services rendered.

(c) If an emergency does not exist, and the plan will not authorize further services, the recipient is financially responsible for any further services received only if informed of his/her responsibility prior to the receipt of the services.

(5) *Fair hearings:* Any applicant or recipient aggrieved by a decision of the plan or the department has

the right to a fair hearing as provided in chapter 388-08 WAC.

(a) Except as provided in (b) and (c) of this subsection, a recipient shall exhaust the plan's grievance procedure prior to requesting a fair hearing. The plan's grievance procedure shall result in a written decision stating the basis for the decision. The recipient has the right to request a fair hearing if the decision is adverse or the written decision is not received within thirty days from the date the plan received the grievance.

(b) In any case in which urgently needed medical services are being denied a recipient by the plan, a recipient is only required to provide a written grievance to the plan prior to or at the time of requesting a fair hearing.

(c) An applicant or recipient requesting exemption from enrollment in the plan is not required to file a formal grievance with the plan prior to requesting a fair hearing. The plan may be a party to any such fair hearing.

WSR 86-18-030

EMERGENCY RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING

[Order PM 611—Filed August 27, 1986]

I, Theresa Anna Aragon, director of the Washington State Department of Licensing, do promulgate and adopt at the Highways-Licenses Building, Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to:

- Amd WAC 308-128F-050 Claim on cash deposit or securities.
- Rep WAC 308-128F-030 Deductible amount.

I, Theresa Anna Aragon, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is the current status of the insurance industry presents a great difficulty for escrow agents to obtain insurance with the currently specified deductible amount so more escrow agents are filing cash or securities instead of obtaining insurance and the present rule on making claims against the cash or securities contain some legal problems. The Escrow Commission is studying this matter and obtaining information to assist in preparation of new rules.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 18.44.050 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 27, 1986.

By Theresa Anna Aragon
Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order RE 126, filed 6/7/79)

WAC 308-128F-050 CLAIM ON CASH DEPOSIT OR SECURITIES. (1) Upon receipt of notification of a legal action for which notice is required to be given ~~((to the administrator of the real estate division))~~ under WAC 308-128D-070 ~~((in which the amount of the claim exceeds \$2000))~~, the ~~((administrator of the real estate division))~~ department of licensing shall attempt to notify the complaining party of the existence of any cash deposit or securities and the provisions of this chapter.

(2) ~~((Any claim against the cash deposit or securities shall be commenced by serving and filing the claim with the director. Within ten days of service of claim, the director shall serve a copy of the claim on the escrow agent by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the last known address of the escrow agent as reflected in the department files.~~

(3) ~~The director or the director's designee shall hear and decide the claim. The claim shall be heard as a contested case under chapter 34.04 RCW between the claimant and the escrow agent. However, there is no right to appeal the decision of the director or the director's designee to superior court.~~

(4) ~~The escrow agent shall appear and defend the cash deposit or securities from the claim. Should the escrow agent fail to appear and defend, the claimant shall be awarded the amount of the claim from the cash deposit or securities.~~

(5) ~~An award from the cash deposit or securities may be made only upon receipt of a certified copy of a final judgment of any court of competent jurisdiction for harm suffered by the claimant from the actions or non-actions of an escrow agent, escrow officer, or the employee or agent of either.~~

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

WAC 308-128F-030 DEDUCTIBLE AMOUNT.

WSR 86-18-031**ADOPTED RULES****DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING****(Board of Practical Nursing)**

[Order PM 612—Filed August 27, 1986]

Be it resolved by the Washington State Board of Practical Nursing, acting at Des Moines, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to:

Amd WAC 308-117-025 Standards of conduct for discipline for licensed practical nurses.

Amd WAC 308-117-100 Renewal of licenses.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-085 filed with the code reviser on July 1, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 18.78.050, 18.130.050 (1) and (2) and sections 19, 128 and 131,

chapter 259, Laws of 1986 (SHB 131), and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 21, 1986.

By Ellen Rosback
Chairman

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PL 574, filed 12/18/85)

WAC 308-117-025 STANDARDS OF CONDUCT FOR DISCIPLINE FOR LICENSED PRACTICAL NURSES. The standards of conduct for discipline ~~((with))~~ serve as guidelines for the licensed practical nurse ~~((as to what is considered to be good licensed practical nurse practice))~~. Violation of these standards may be grounds for disciplinary action ~~((with regard to the license to practice practical nursing))~~ pursuant to RCW ~~((18.78.135(9)))~~ 18.130.180(7). ~~((Each individual, upon entering))~~ The ~~((practice of))~~ licensed practical ~~((nursing,))~~ nurse assumes a measure of responsibility ~~((and))~~, trust and the corresponding obligation to adhere to the standards of conduct, which include, but are not limited to the following:

(1) The licensed practical nurse, functioning under the direction and supervision of other licensed health care professionals as provided in RCW 18.78.010(5), shall be responsible and accountable for his or her own nursing judgments, actions and competence.

(2) The licensed practical nurse shall practice practical nursing in the state of Washington only with a current Washington license.

(3) The licensed practical nurse shall not permit his or her license to be used by another person for any purpose.

(4) The licensed practical nurse shall have knowledge of the statutes and rules governing licensed practical nurse practice and shall function within the legal scope of licensed practical nurse practice.

(5) The licensed practical nurse shall not aid, abet or assist any other person in violating or circumventing the laws or rules pertaining to the conduct and practice of licensed practical nursing.

(6) The licensed practical nurse shall not disclose the contents of any licensing examination or solicit, accept or compile information regarding the contents of any examination before, during or after its administration.

(7) The licensed practical nurse shall delegate activities only to persons who are competent and qualified to undertake and perform the delegated activities, and shall not delegate to unlicensed persons those functions that are to be performed only by licensed nurses.

(8) The licensed practical nurse, in delegating functions, shall supervise the persons to whom the functions have been delegated.

(9) The licensed practical nurse shall act to safeguard clients from unsafe practices or conditions, abusive acts, and neglect.

(10) The licensed practical nurse shall report unsafe acts and practices, unsafe practice conditions, and illegal acts to the appropriate supervisory personnel or to the appropriate state disciplinary board.

(11) The licensed practical nurse shall respect the client's privacy by protecting confidential information, unless required by law to disclose such information.

(12) The licensed practical nurse shall make accurate, intelligible entries into records required by law, employment or customary practice of nursing, and shall not falsify, destroy, alter or knowingly make incorrect or unintelligible entries into client's records or employer or employee records.

(13) The licensed practical nurse shall not sign any record attesting to the wastage of controlled substances unless the wastage was personally witnessed.

(14) The licensed practical nurse shall observe and record the conditions of a client, and report significant changes to appropriate persons.

(15) The licensed practical nurse may withhold or modify client care which has been authorized by an appropriate health care provider, only after receiving directions from an appropriate person, unless in a life threatening situation.

(16) The licensed practical nurse shall leave a nursing assignment only after properly reporting to and notifying appropriate persons and shall not abandon clients.

(17) The licensed practical nurse shall not misrepresent his or her education and ability to perform nursing procedures safely.

(18) The licensed practical nurse shall respect the property of the client and employer and shall not take equipment, materials, property or drugs for his or her own use or benefit nor shall the licensed practical nurse solicit or borrow money, materials or property from clients.

(19) The licensed practical nurse shall not obtain, possess, distribute or administer legend drugs or controlled substances to any person, including self, except as directed by a person authorized by law to prescribe drugs.

(20) The licensed practical nurse shall not practice nursing while affected by alcohol or drugs, or by a mental, physical or emotional condition to the extent that there is an undue risk that he or she, as a licensed practical nurse, would cause harm to him or herself or other persons.

(21) It is inconsistent ~~((with good))~~ for a licensed practical ~~((nursing practice))~~ nurse to perform functions below the minimum standards of competency as expressed in WAC 308-117-400.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PL 452, filed 12/19/83)

WAC 308-117-100 RENEWAL OF LICENSES.

(1) Individuals making applications for initial license and examination, provided they meet all such requirements, will be issued a license, to expire on their next birth anniversary date.

(2) Individuals making application for initial license with the state of Washington under the interstate endorsement regulations, provided they meet all such requirements, will be issued a license, to expire on their next birth anniversary date.

(3) Issuance of license - Licensed practical nurses who complete the renewal application accurately, are practicing nursing in compliance with the law, and pay the renewal fee shall be issued a license to practice. Should the licensee fail to renew his or her license prior to the expiration date, the individual is subject to the penalty fee ~~((and all back fees))~~ as stated in RCW 18.78.090.

(4) Illegal practice - Any person practicing as a licensed practical nurse during the time that his/her license has lapsed shall be considered an illegal practitioner and shall be subjected to the penalties provided for violators under the provisions of RCW ~~((18.78.170))~~ 18.130.190.

WSR 86-18-032
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
[Filed August 27, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Corrections intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning restriction of incoming and/or outgoing mail, amending WAC 137-48-040.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on October 14, 1986.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 72.01.090 and 72.09.050.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 72.09.010.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 7, 1986.

Robert W. Sampson, Administrator
Office of Contracts and Regulations
Division of Management and Budget
Department of Corrections
P.O. Box 9699 - MS: FN-61
Olympia, WA 98504
(206) 753-5770
Scan 234-5770

Dated: August 25, 1986
By: Chase Riveland
Secretary

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title and Purpose of Rule: To amend WAC 137-48-040, Restriction of incoming and/or outgoing mail.

Statutory Authority: RCW 72.01.090 and 72.09.050.

Summary of Rule and Reason for Proposed Change: To change the final word of subdivision (a) of WAC 137-48-040(4) from "or" to "and" so that subdivisions (a) and (b) of WAC 137-48-040(4) will read in the conjunctive rather than the disjunctive. As amended, the

rule will permit the restriction of inmate mail which advocates that any ethnic, racial, or religious group is inferior and makes it subject to ridicule or scorn, and may reasonably be thought to precipitate a violent confrontation. As amended, said subdivisions (a) and (b) will be repositioned as subdivision (k) of WAC 137-48-040(1).

Person Responsible for Drafting the Rule: Robert W. Sampson, Administrator, Office of Contracts and Regulations, Department of Corrections, P.O. Box 9699, Mailstop FN-61, Olympia, WA 98504, (206) 753-5770; Implementing and Enforcing the Rule: Walter L. Kautzky, Director, Division of Prisons, Department of Corrections, P.O. Box 9699, Mailstop FN-61, Olympia, WA 98504, (206) 753-1502.

Person or Organization Proposing the Rule: Department of Corrections.

Agency Comments and Recommendations: None.

The amendment of this rule is not necessitated by federal law or federal or state court action.

The amendment of this rule will have no economic impact on small businesses.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 83-09, filed 9/27/83)

WAC 137-48-040 RESTRICTION OF INCOMING AND/OR OUTGOING MAIL. (1) Incoming mail to inmates may be disapproved for receipt for any one of the following reasons:

- (a) The mail contains threats of physical harm against any person or threats of criminal activity.
- (b) The mail threatens blackmail or extortion.
- (c) The mail concerns sending contraband in or out of the institution.
- (d) The mail contains plans to escape.
- (e) The mail contains plans for activities in violation of institutional rules, such as riots.
- (f) The mail concerns plans for criminal activity.
- (g) The mail is in code or in a foreign language and its contents are not understood by the reader.
- (h) The mail contains information which, if communicated, would create a risk of violence and/or physical harm.
- (i) The mail contains contraband.
- (j) The mail contains obscene material as defined in department policy directives.

(k) The mail advocates that any ethnic, racial, or religious group is inferior for any reason and makes such group an object of ridicule and scorn, and it may reasonably be thought to precipitate a violent confrontation between the recipient and a member or members of the target group.

(2) Outgoing mail from inmates of institutions may be disapproved for mailing for any one of the following reasons:

- (a) For any one of the reasons set forth in WAC 137-48-040(1).
- (b) The mail is addressed to a minor whose parents or guardian have objected in writing to such correspondence; an individual previously has been sent obscene or threatening mail by the inmate and has complained or has asked that such mail not be received; the mail solicits money or goods from persons other than the immediate family of the inmate without the permission of the superintendent. This provision may not be construed to preclude the purchase of noncontraband goods or payment for such goods which have been approved by the superintendent or his designee.

(3) No ~~((letter))~~ mail is to be restricted for the reason that it appeals to a particular ethnic, racial, or religious group, or that it contains critical opinions of departmental policy or departmental employees.

(4) ~~((In addition to those reasons cited in this section, publications received by inmates may be restricted if:~~

~~(a) It advocates that any ethnic, racial, or religious group is inferior for any reason and makes such group an object of ridicule and scorn; or~~

~~(b) It may reasonably be thought to precipitate a violent confrontation between the recipient(s) and a member(s) of the target group. No~~

~~publications will be withheld solely on the basis of their appeal to a particular ethnic, racial, or religious group.~~

~~(5))~~ In addition to those reasons cited in this section, packages sent either to or from an inmate are subject to the following restrictions:

(a) An inmate may receive one gift package not to exceed fifteen pounds in weight on a quarterly basis. Quarterly periods shall consist of December through February, March through May, June through August, and September through November. Rules governing the contents of quarterly packages shall be developed specifically by each institutional superintendent and approved by the secretary. The superintendent may allow exceptions from the one gift package limitation and weight limitation provided that appropriate contraband controls are maintained.

(b) The contents of the quarterly package shall be restricted to those items that are otherwise not available to the inmate through the institutional store. A replacement package may be sent during the same quarter for damaged packages that are returned to the sender by the inmate. Packages containing contraband shall be refused delivery to the inmate and will be counted as the package for that quarter.

(c) Prepaid merchandise approved by the superintendent and ordered by the inmate from any wholesaler or retailer shall not be considered one of the quarterly packages.

(d) Inmates may mail packages containing materials which have been sent to him or her in the institution or gifts consisting of his or her own hobby craft or curio work. Packages must be made and mailed at the inmate's expense.

(e) Newly admitted inmates at the Washington Corrections Center will not receive packages while assigned to the reception center.

WSR 86-18-033

EMERGENCY RULES

APPLE ADVERTISING COMMISSION

[Order 18—Filed August 27, 1986]

Be it resolved by the Washington State Apple Advertising Commission, acting at the Cole and Webber Offices, 308 Occidental Avenue South, Seattle, WA 98104, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to increasing the state apple advertising assessment as follows: From 32.6 cents cwt. gross billing weight to 43.5 cents cwt. gross billing weight effective September 1, 1986; from 43.5 cents cwt. gross billing weight to 50.0 cents cwt. gross billing weight effective September 1, 1988; and from 50.0 cents cwt. gross billing weight to 54.3 cents cwt. gross billing weight effective September 1, 1990.

We, the Washington State Apple Advertising Commission, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is a grower referendum mail ballot approved the foregoing assessment increases initially effective September 1, 1986, and further action is required by the commission prior to September 1, 1986, to implement the increases.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Washington State Apple Advertising Commission as authorized in RCW 15.24.070(1).

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 22, 1986.

By G. M. Smeltzer
Chairman

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 16, filed 9/20/84)

WAC 24-12-010 AMOUNT OF ASSESSMENTS. There is hereby levied upon all fresh apples grown annually in this state, and upon all apples packed as Washington apples, an assessment of 32.6 cents on each one hundred pounds (100 lbs.) gross billing weight(=) until September 1, 1986. On and after September 1, 1986 the assessment on fresh apples is hereby increased on each one hundred pounds (100 lbs.) gross billing weight in the following amounts:

- (a) By 10.9 cents from 32.6 cents to 43.5 cents effective September 1, 1986;
- (b) By 6.5 cents from 43.5 cents to 50.0 cents effective September 1, 1988;
- (c) By 4.3 cents from 50.0 cents to 54.3 cents effective September 1, 1990.

Assessments shall be payable as provided in WAC 24.12.012, whether in bulk or loose in boxes or any other container, or packed in any style package. The gross billing weights for the following containers shall apply for the purpose of computing said assessments:

DESCRIPTION OF CONTAINER	GROSS BILLING WEIGHTS
1/3 Bushel Box (packed or loose)	15 lbs.
1/2 Bushel Box (loose)	23 lbs.
Bulk Bushel Container (loose)	Net weight plus 3 lbs. tare
9/4 and 12/3 Bag Containers	41 lbs.
13/3 Bag Container	44 lbs.
10/4 and 8/5 Bag Containers	45 lbs.
12/4 Bag Container	53 lbs.
Standard Tray Pack Container	46 lbs.
Pocket Cell Tray Pack Container	46 lbs.
Cell Pack Containers, all counts	46 lbs.
2-Layer Tray Pack Container	23 lbs.
Single-Layer Tray Pack Container	12 lbs.

Reviser's note: The typographical errors in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

WSR 86-18-034
PROPOSED RULES
APPLE ADVERTISING COMMISSION
[Filed August 27, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Washington State Apple Advertising Commission intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning increasing the state apple advertising assessment as follows: From 32.6 cents cwt. gross billing weight to 43.5 cents cwt. gross billing weight effective September 1, 1986; from 43.5 cents cwt. gross billing weight to 50.0 cents cwt. gross billing weight effective September 1, 1988; and from 50.0 cents cwt. gross billing weight to 54.3 cents cwt. gross billing weight effective September 1, 1990;

that the agency will at 9:00 a.m., Thursday, October 9, 1986, in the Thunderbird Motor Inn, 1507 North 1st, Yakima, WA 98901, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 15.24.070(1).

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 15.24.090 and 15.24.100.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before 9:00 a.m., Thursday, October 9, 1986.

Dated: August 22, 1986
By: G. M. Smeltzer
Chairman

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title: WAC 24-12-010 Amount of assessments.

Description of Purposes: To increase state apple advertising assessment.

Statutory Authority: RCW 15.24.070(1) and 15.24.090.

Summary of Rule: To increase the state apple advertising assessment from 32.6 cents cwt. gross billing weight in the following amounts: From 32.6 cents cwt. gross billing weight to 43.5 cents cwt. gross billing weight effective September 1, 1986; from 43.5 cents cwt. gross billing weight to 50.0 cents cwt. gross billing weight effective September 1, 1988; and from 50.0 cents cwt. gross billing weight to 54.3 cents cwt. gross billing weight effective September 1, 1990.

Reasons Supporting the Proposed Action: The revenue presently being raised by the Washington State Apple Advertising Commission is inadequate to accomplish the purposes of the commission, as a result of inflationary increase in costs, increasing production, and need for additional market promotion.

Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement of the Rule: Thomas J. Hale, President, 229 South Wenatchee Avenue, Wenatchee, Washington 98801, phone (509) 662-2123.

Person or Organization Proposing the Rule, and Whether Public, Private, or Governmental: Washington State Apple Advertising Commission, governmental state agency.

Agency Comments or Recommendations Regarding Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement and Fiscal Matters Pertaining to the Rule: None.

Whether the Rule is Necessary as Result of Federal Law or Federal or State Court Action: No.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: The proposed increase of Washington state apple advertising assessments from 32.6 cents cwt. to 54.3 cents cwt. over three stages, i.e. 1986, 1988 and 1990, does not increase the costs of equipment, supplies, labor or administration since the apple industry is already reporting and paying assessments and an increase in the amount thereof is not expected to increase these costs.

There will, however, be an increase in the costs of sales. The sales costs of a packed box of apples will be ultimately increased over the three stages in the total amount of 10.2 cents based on a 46 pound box of apples. While the sales price of a box of packed apples is dependent upon the market, size, variety, and condition, among other factors, if an average sales price of \$10.00 per box is assumed, 10 boxes of apples will equal \$100.00 of sales. If each box is assessed an additional 5.336 cents, \$100.00 of sales will incur an additional cost of assessment in the amount of approximately \$1.02.

Since the proposed rule equally affects each box of apples, it is not anticipated there will be any significant difference in cost of compliance for small businesses as compared to the 10% of firms which are the largest businesses required to comply with the proposed amendatory rule.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 16, filed 9/20/84)

WAC 24-12-010 AMOUNT OF ASSESSMENTS. There is hereby levied upon all fresh apples grown annually in this state, and upon all apples packed as Washington apples, an assessment of 32.6 cents on each one hundred pounds (100 lbs.) gross billing weight((-) until September 1, 1986. On and after September 1, 1986 the assessment on fresh apples is hereby increased on each one hundred pounds (100 lbs.) gross billing weight in the following amounts:

- (a) By 10.9 cents from 32.6 cents to 43.5 cents effective September 1, 1986;
- (b) By 6.5 cents from 43.5 cents to 50.0 cents effective September 1, 1988;
- (c) By 4.3 cents from 50.0 cents to 54.3 cents effective September 1, 1990.

Assessments shall be payable as provided in WAC 24.12.012, whether in bulk or loose in boxes or any other container, or packed in any style package. The gross billing weights for the following containers shall apply for the purpose of computing said assessments:

DESCRIPTION OF CONTAINER	GROSS BILLING WEIGHTS
1/3 Bushel Box (packed or loose)	15 lbs.
1/2 Bushel Box (loose)	23 lbs.
Bulk Bushel Container (loose)	Net weight plus 3 lbs. tare
9/4 and 12/3 Bag Containers	41 lbs.
13/3 Bag Container	44 lbs.
10/4 and 8/5 Bag Containers	45 lbs.
12/4 Bag Container	53 lbs.
Standard Tray Pack Container	46 lbs.
Pocket Cell Tray Pack Container	46 lbs.
Cell Pack Containers, all counts	46 lbs.
2-Layer Tray Pack Container	23 lbs.
Single-Layer Tray Pack Container	12 lbs.

Reviser's note: The typographical errors in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

WSR 86-18-035
NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETINGS
COMMISSION FOR VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

[Memorandum—August 25, 1986]

September 17-18, 1986

Student Union Building #17
 Spokane Falls Community College
 West 3410 Fort George Wright Drive
 Spokane, Washington

Work Session – Wednesday, September 17, 1986, 1:00 p.m., Student Senate – Members of the Commission for Vocational Education will meet in a work session to discuss the job skills program, the certification of consultation with the Council on Vocational Education, and the proposed amendment to chapter 490-800 WAC, Private School Vocational Act.

Regular Meeting – Thursday, September 18, 1986, 9:00 a.m., Lounges A and B – The regular business meeting of the commission will convene at 9:00 a.m. Primary agenda items will include the job skills program applications, election of commission officers, and a preliminary report on a national study conducted on the implementation of the Carl Perkins Vocational Education Act. In addition, the commission will hear public testimony and consider adoption of an amendment to chapter 490-800 WAC, Private School Vocational Act.

The meeting site is barrier free. Interpreters for people with hearing impairments and brailled or taped information for people with visual impairments can be provided. Please contact Commission for Vocational Education, Building 17, Airdustrial Park, Mailstop LS-10, Olympia, WA 98504, by September 5, 1986, phone (206) 753-5662 or scan 234-5662.

WSR 86-18-036
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES

[Order 86-33—Filed August 28, 1986]

I, Richard A. Davis, director of the Department of Labor and Industries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to:

- New WAC 296-14-100 Definition of voluntary retirement and no longer attached to the work force.
- New WAC 296-14-150 Definition of gainful employment for wages.
- New WAC 296-14-200 Waiver of workers' compensation benefit overpayments.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-13-026 filed with the code reviser on June 11, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 51.32.060, 51.32.090, 51.32.160, 51.21.220(6) [51.32.220(6)] and 51.32.240 (1), (2) or (3) and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 28, 1986.

By Richard A. Davis
Director

Chapter 296-14 WAC
INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE ((=~~RECIPROCAL~~
AGREEMENT))

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-14-100 DEFINITION OF VOLUNTARY RETIREMENT AND NO LONGER ATTACHED TO THE WORK FORCE. (1) For the purpose of this title a claimant will be deemed to be voluntarily retired and no longer attached to the work force if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) The claimant is no longer receiving income, salary or wages from any gainful employment.

(b) The claimant has provided no evidence, if requested by the department or the self-insurer, of a bona fide attempt to return to gainful employment after retirement.

(2) Payment made by the worker or on his or her behalf in the form of premiums, for the purpose of continuation of life or medical insurance coverage, union dues or similar payments shall not constitute attachment to the work force.

(3) The claimants of new or reopened claims will not be deemed voluntarily retired if the injury or occupational disease was a proximate cause of the decision to retire and sever the attachment to the work force.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-14-150 DEFINITION OF GAINFUL EMPLOYMENT FOR WAGE. Gainful employment for wages for the purposes of RCW 51.32.160 shall mean performing work at any regular gainful occupation for income, salary or wages.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-14-200 WAIVER OF RECOVERY FOR WORKER COMPENSATION BENEFITS OVERPAYMENTS. Whenever the director determines whether to exercise the discretion granted by RCW 51.32.240 (1), (2) or (3) or RCW 51.32.220(6) the following shall apply:

(1) The decision of the director shall apply to the state fund or to the self-insurer, as the case may be.

(2) In the case of recoupment of an overpayment from any future payments, the director will entertain a request to exercise his or her discretion to waive recovery up to sixty days after communication of the order

and/or notice to the recipient that benefits are being withheld to satisfy the previous overpayment.

(3) A finding by the director that recovery of an overpayment would be against equity and good conscience shall be required before the overpayment can be waived in whole or in part. The director shall consider the following factors and any other factors relevant to the particular case:

(a) Whether the claimant was without fault in applying for and accepting benefits which gave rise to the overpayment;

(b) Whether recovery of the overpayment, in whole or in part, would defeat the purposes of Title 51 RCW;

(c) Whether the claimant reasonably relied upon the benefits, or notice that such benefits would be paid and relinquished a valuable right or changed his or her position for the worse;

(d) Whether the claimant reasonably relied upon misinformation from an official source (i.e., a representative of the department or self-insurer, as the case may be) in accepting the benefit payment which gave rise to the overpayment.

(4) The claimant's application for waiver of an overpayment contemplated under RCW 51.32.240 (1), (2), or (3), or RCW 51.32.220(6) shall clearly set forth the reason(s) that he or she believes that recovery of the overpayment in whole or in part, as the case may be, is against equity and good conscience.

WSR 86-18-037

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES

[Order 86-35—Filed August 28, 1986]

I, Richard A. Davis, director of the Department of Labor and Industries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington 98504, the annexed rules relating to this order amends, repeals and adds sections to chapter 296-15 WAC, rules and regulations for self-insured employers. They will set guidelines to respond to new legislation and clarify employers' reporting requirements and the department's responsibility in corrective action.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-004 filed with the code reviser on June 19, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 51.04.020 which directs that the director, Department of Labor and Industries, has authority to implement the provisions of Title 51 RCW, industrial insurance laws.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 28, 1986.

By Richard A. Davis
Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 83-22, filed 12/1/83, effective 1/1/84)

WAC 296-15-070 ACCIDENT REPORTS AND CLAIMS PROCEDURES. (1) Reporting of accidents ~~((and applications for compensation based thereon))~~ shall be on a form prescribed by the department, entitled the self-insurer's accident report (SIF #2), which will be supplied to all self-insurers, and by self-insurers to their employees. Forwarding a completed copy of this form to the department for compensable claims immediately and medical only claims monthly after closing by the self-insured employer shall satisfy the initial accident reporting responsibility and statistical reporting responsibility under the law.

(2) A self-insurer, on denying any claim, shall provide to the claimant, the department, and the attending physician, within ~~((30))~~ thirty days after such self-insurer has notice of the claim, a notice of denial of claim, substantially ~~((identical))~~ similar to the example SIF #4 ~~((; incorporated herein by reference))~~. With every such claim denial a self-insurer shall send to the department all information on which the denial was based.

(3) A self-insurer shall file a complete and accurate supplemental or final report on injury or occupational disease claims resulting in time loss payments, on a form substantially ((identical)) similar to ((the example SIF # 5, incorporated herein by reference.)) Labor and Industries form No. F207-005-000, Self-Insurer's Report of Occupational Injury or Disease, 7-86 (SIF-5) at the following times:

(a) Within five working days following the date the first time loss compensation is paid.

(b) Within five working days following the date the time loss compensation is terminated, reinstated, or the rate thereof changed.

(c) On the date a determination is requested or date temporary disability claim is closed.

All medical reports and other pertinent information in the self-insurer's possession not previously forwarded to the department must be submitted with the request for all determinations.

(4) (a) A ~~((self-insurer))~~ self-insured employer shall, upon notice of ~~((a claim, shall issue a claim number from numbers to be assigned to all self-insurers by the department.~~

~~((a) When a worker requests an accident report (SIF #2), the self-insurer shall provide the report in a timely manner. This report outlines the workers' rights and responsibilities in nontechnical language.))~~ an industrial injury, provide the injured worker with the opportunity to file a self-insurer accident report (SIF-2) and shall notify the worker of his/her rights and responsibilities under Title 51 RCW. A completed copy of the self-insurer accident report (SIF-2), with an assigned department claim number, is to be provided to the worker within five working days of the date an injured worker submits the SIF-2 to the employer.

(b) A self-insurer, upon closure of a medical only claim, shall issue an order on a form prescribed by the department entitled self-insurer's claim closure order and notice (LI-207-20), which will be supplied to all

self-insurers, and by the self-insurers to their employees, in compliance with reporting responsibilities under the law, a copy of which shall be sent to the attending physician.

~~((c))~~ The self-insurer shall submit monthly statistical information on medical only claims closed during the month by copy of the accident report (SIF #2) ~~((, with a memo attached indicating that the claims are closed))~~.

(c) A self-insurer, upon closure of a temporary disability claim, shall issue an order on a format substantially similar to Labor and Industries form No. F207-070-000, Self-Insured Employer's Time Loss Claim Closure Order and Notice, 7-86. The self-insurer shall send a copy of the closing order and final SIF-5 to the claimant and the department at the time of closure of a temporary disability claim.

(d) ((When a written protest is received by the department, the department shall require a self-insurer to submit within ten working days from the date of receipt of certified mailing from the department, all information in the self-insurer's possession dealing with the claim in question)) When the department requests claim information by certified mail, the self-insurer shall submit all information in its possession dealing with the claim in question, within ten working days from the date of receipt of such certified mail.

(e) In any case where the department or the self-insured employer has issued an appealable order on a medical-only claim, all subsequent orders in that claim shall be issued by the department.

(f) When an application for reopening of claim for aggravation of condition is received by a self-insured employer or its authorized representative, it shall be the responsibility of the self-insured employer to forward it to the department within five working days from the date of receipt.

(5) Self-insurers may close temporary disability claims with the date of injury occurring July 1, 1986, through June 30, 1988, and occupational disease claims filed July 1, 1986, through June 30, 1988. Self-insured claims that involve a permanent partial disability, an order issued by the department resolving a disagreement, or return to work with a different employer are not subject to closure by the self-insurer.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-15-072 CLAIM CLOSURE STUDY. A study shall be conducted to determine if self-insured employers are administering claim closure in a proper manner. The study shall include issues involving proper payment of time loss benefits, correctness of claim closure including attending physician concurrence, conditions and duration of reemployment, and correct application of the rehabilitation laws. Protests to claim closures and the outcome of these protests will also be considered. The study will be accomplished by having department disability adjudicators review self-insured temporary disability closures and compile the statistics. This staff will review documents submitted to the department and employer's workers' compensation files. A form will be used to ensure consistency and objectivity in the study. The special assessment base shall be the total

claim payments as defined for the administrative cost assessment in WAC 296-15-060.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-15-255 HEARINGS FOR CORRECTIVE ACTION OR WITHDRAWAL OF CERTIFICATION. (1) This section applies only to proceedings to withdraw certification or for corrective action instituted by the director in response to a petition filed with the department pursuant to RCW 51.14.090. This section shall not apply to actions instituted by the director to withdraw certification pursuant to RCW 51.14.080 nor to corrective action instituted by the director pursuant to RCW 51.14.095.

(2) The director is authorized to institute proceedings which may result in corrective action or decertification of a self-insured employer when there is a petition for such action by any employee or union or association having a substantial number of employees in the employ of the self-insured.

When such proceedings are instituted in response to a petition filed under RCW 51.14.090, there shall be a hearing before the director to review and determine findings pertaining to the alleged grounds for action. Any such hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the department's rules governing administrative hearings. The director will notify all parties at least twenty days prior to the date of the hearing. The notice shall include the following:

- (a) Nature of proceedings;
- (b) Legal authority for holding the hearing;
- (c) Reference to the section of statutes and rules involved;
- (d) A description of matters asserted;
- (e) The date, time, and place of the hearing.

All parties will be allowed to respond and present evidence and arguments on the issues involved.

Within thirty days of the hearing date, the department will provide written notification of the proceedings, findings, and conclusions to all hearing participants.

(3) If, following the hearing, the decision is to withdraw certification or take corrective action, such action shall comply with the provisions of RCW 51.14.090 (2) and (3) in the case of withdrawal of certification, and RCW 51.14.095 (1), (2), and (3) in the case of corrective action.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 83-22, filed 12/1/83, effective 1/1/84)

WAC 296-15-260 CORRECTIVE ACTION OR WITHDRAWAL OF CERTIFICATION. (1) ~~(The director is authorized to institute proceedings which may result in corrective action or decertification of a self-insured employer when there is cause to believe that a self-insured employer's program is not operating in accordance with the requirements of chapter 51 RCW or when there is a petition for such action by a union or association having a substantial number of employees in the employ of the self-insured. (RCW 51.14.090.)~~

~~(2) Corrective action or decertification proceedings shall include a hearing before the director to review and~~

~~determine findings pertaining to the alleged grounds for action. Any such hearing shall be conducted in accordance with the department's rules governing administrative hearings.~~

~~(3) Corrective action or decertification proceedings may be based upon:~~

~~(a) Grounds for decertification specified in RCW 51.14.080;~~

~~(b) Grounds for corrective action specified in section 2, chapter 21, Laws of 1983;~~

~~(c) A petition filed pursuant to RCW 51.14.090;~~

~~(4) The director will notify all parties at least twenty days prior to the date of the administrative hearing. The notice shall include the following:~~

~~(a) Nature of proceedings;~~

~~(b) Legal authority for holding the hearing;~~

~~(c) Reference to the section of statutes and rules involved;~~

~~(d) A description of matters asserted;~~

~~(e) The date, time and place of the hearing;~~

~~All parties will be allowed to respond and present evidence and arguments on the issues involved.~~

~~(5) Within 30 days of the hearing date, the department will provide written notification of the proceedings, findings and conclusions to all hearing participants. If the self-insurer's program is deemed to be not in compliance with chapter 51 RCW, the following orders may be issued:~~

~~(a) A notice of corrective action which shall include the nature and specifics of the findings and may include any or all of the following:~~

~~((i)) Corrective action against a self-insured employer shall be by order and notice. A notice of corrective action shall include the nature and specifics of the findings and may include the following:~~

~~(a) Probationary certification status for the self-insured employer for a period not to exceed one year;~~

~~((ii)) (b) Mandatory training to correct areas of program deficiency to be approved by the department.~~

~~The subject matter to be covered shall be specified in the notice of corrective action. Personnel required to attend and the time period within which the training is to be conducted will also be identified.~~

~~((iii)) (c) Monitoring activities of the self-insured employer for a specified period of time to determine progress regarding correction of program deficiencies may be required. The department may require submission of complete and accurate records and/or conduct an audit to verify program compliance.~~

~~((iv)) (d) If there is a contract between the self-insured employer and a service organization which has been filed with the ~~((supervisor of industrial insurance))~~ department (WAC 296-15-110), the corrective action order may specify and require that the service organization be subject to mandatory training and monitoring of activity provisions of the order.~~

~~((v)) (e) The corrective action order shall specify a time frame for submission of progress reports to the department's self-insurance administrator.~~

~~((vi)) (f) During the first ~~((30))~~ thirty days following the corrective action order, the self-insured employer shall submit a plan for the implementation of corrective~~

action which shall include specific completion dates. If the plan is determined to be incomplete or inadequate, the department's self-insurance administrator shall notify the self-insurer of the necessary requirements or changes needed, and shall specify the date by which an amended plan shall be submitted.

~~((b))~~ (2) If sufficient grounds for decertification exist, an order and notice will be issued. The order and notice will include ~~(, but will not be limited to)~~ the following:

~~((i))~~ (a) The ~~(findings of fact)~~ grounds upon which the determination is based.

(b) The period of time within which the grounds existed or arose.

~~((ii))~~ (c) A statement to the self-insurer specifying the means by which the program deficiencies may be corrected.

~~((iii))~~ (d) The date, not less than ~~((30))~~ thirty days after the self-insured employer's receipt of the order and notice, when certification will be withdrawn in absence of satisfactory remedial action.

~~((iv))~~ (e) Provisions as stipulated by RCW 51.14.090.

~~((6))~~ (3) Upon conclusion of the probationary certification period in the case of corrective action, or the remedial action period in the case of decertification, the program deficiencies requiring corrective or remedial action by the self-insured employer shall be evaluated by the department and a written report sent to affected parties. Program activities may be reaudited beyond the stated time period in order to assess continuing compliance with the objectives of the corrective action directives.

~~((7))~~ (4) If, at the conclusion of the probationary period or remedial action period, program deficiencies continue to exist, the department shall decide whether to extend the period of probation, require additional corrective action or proceed with decertification of the self-insured employer. An order and notice stating the decision shall be issued.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

WAC 296-15-21003 FORM—SIF #5—SUPPLEMENTAL OR FINAL REPORT ON OCCUPATIONAL INJURY OR DISEASE.

**WSR 86-18-038
ADOPTED RULES**

BELLEVUE COMMUNITY COLLEGE

[Order 93, Resolution No. 172—Filed August 28, 1986]

Be it resolved by the board of trustees of Community College District VIII, Bellevue Community College, acting at Bellevue Community College, 3000 Landerholm Circle S.E., Bellevue, WA 98007, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to [Admissions, residency classification and registration regulations—Schedule of fees

and financial aid for Community College District VIII, WAC 132H-160-550, comprehensive fee].

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-09-946 [86-09-046] filed with the code reviser on April 14, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 28B.19.050(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of Community College District VIII, Bellevue Community College, as authorized in RCW 28B.50.140.

The undersigned hereby declares that the institution has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Higher Education Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 28B.19 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED June 11, 1986.

By Paul N. Thompson
Secretary, Board of Trustees

NEW SECTION

WAC 132H-160-550 COMPREHENSIVE FEE. Students attending Bellevue Community College will be charged a fee based on a per credit hour (or the equivalent of a credit hour), in return for services including but not limited to, parking, transcripts, catalogs, graduation, and health services. The amount of the Comprehensive Fee shall be determined by the Board of Trustees.

WSR 86-18-039

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

[Order 104—Filed August 28, 1986]

I, Duane Berentson, secretary of the Department of Transportation, do promulgate and adopt at Room 1D19, Transportation Building, Olympia, Washington 98504, the annexed rules relating to rental of state highway lands and improvements that would clarify the basis for rental of improved property, amending WAC 468-30-060.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-12-005 filed with the code reviser on May 22, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Transportation as authorized in RCW 47.12.120 and 47.01.101(5).

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 28, 1986.

By A. D. Andreas
Deputy Secretary

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 82, filed 9/12/83)

WAC 468-30-060 RENTAL OF STATE HIGHWAY LANDS AND IMPROVEMENTS. (1) ~~((All property acquired by the department of transportation and held for future highway or related purposes may be rented whenever the need of the land for construction shall be sufficiently far in the future as to permit occupancy by a party in possession on date of acquisition for at least one month or by a party not in possession on date of acquisition for at least two months. The sale or demolition of improvements shall be avoided (except with respect to those deemed unrentable or deemed to constitute a hazard) to insure that maximum rental revenue is obtained and the effects of right of way clearance on the community are reduced to a minimum. Full occupancy of rentable improvements shall be maintained to the maximum extent possible; however, improvements which are substandard or unsightly to the extent that they cannot be rented in three months after acquisition shall be disposed of by sale or demolition:))~~ All improved property acquired by the department of transportation for future transportation purposes may be rented to the occupying owner or tenant (initial displacee) for a period of up to ninety days. If the improvement is deemed unrentable or does not meet DS & S standards, there are no further rentals. The improvement is then scheduled for sale and removal or demolition. Other improvements may be rented to subsequent tenants on a month-to-month basis until the property is required by pending construction. In no event shall the property be rented to the original displacee beyond the initial ninety day period unless there are extenuating circumstances and prior written approval of the Chief Right of Way Agent.

(2) Leases and rental agreements in furtherance of the policy set forth in subsection (1) of this section and pursuant to authority contained in chapter 162, Laws of 1949, shall be negotiated by the ~~((right of way division))~~ land management branch of the department of transportation where directed by the secretary of transportation. Said division shall prepare all necessary documents to accomplish such leases and shall submit same to the ~~((director))~~ secretary for action thereon as indicated in subsection (4) of this section.

(3) The rental rates are based on the following:

(a) The rental rate is economic rent as determined by either a market data report of rentals or a written determination by appraisal.

(b) For those rentals subject to excise tax under the provisions of chapter 82.29A RCW, the tax is payable in addition to the determined rental rate.

(c) The rental rate is evaluated as economic conditions require, but no more often than once per year.

(d) Where the acquired improvement is tenant occupied, the rental rate in effect at the time of acquisition shall continue for ninety days. Thereafter the rental rate shall be economic rent. Should the tenant be paying more than economic rent, the rent is to be immediately lowered to economic rent.

(e) The rent for the first month (pay period) is calculated and adjusted to the next closest first or fifteenth day. This adjusted rent and the last month's (pay period) rent are payable upon execution of the rental agreement.

(4) Authority to approve rental agreements:

(a) All rental agreements in which the rental rate equals or exceeds the "minimum standard rental rates" of the applicable provisions of subsection (3) of this section may be approved by the secretary of transportation or his designee.

(b) The following described agreements (i) and (ii) will not be considered under the provisions of subsection (3) of this section and may be approved by the secretary of transportation.

(i) Interim possession agreements—Interim agreements will give possession to a prospective air space lessee during the period prior to the formalization and approval of an air space lease. The agreements will provide interim rental at a negotiated figure and will be terminable on thirty days' notice.

(ii) Mutual benefits possession agreements—Mutual benefits possession agreements will involve those properties where the benefits to the state will equal those derived by the lessee and will be terminable on thirty days' notice. The value of mutual benefit will be determined by the secretary or his designee.

(5) Leases and rental agreements shall be subject to termination on a maximum of sixty days' written notice, provided, that the secretary or his designee may approve time extensions in specific cases.

WSR 86-18-040

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE

[Order 1901—Filed August 29, 1986]

I, C. Alan Pettibone, director of the Washington State Department of Agriculture, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to rules pertaining to sale of organic foods, chapter 16-154 WAC.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-17-031 filed with the code reviser on June 15, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to chapter 15.86 RCW and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 29, 1986.

By Michael V. Schwisow
Deputy Director

Chapter 16-154 WAC

RULES PERTAINING TO SALE OF ORGANIC FOODS

WAC

- 16-154-010 Fertilization, soil amendment, weed and pest control.
- 16-154-020 Records.

NEW SECTION

WAC 16-154-010 FERTILIZATION, SOIL AMENDMENT, WEED AND PEST CONTROL.

Producers of food marketed as "Organic", may use the following substances in the production of that food. (1) Fertilization and soil amendment:

- (a) micro-organisms;
 - (b) micro-biological products;
 - (c) materials consisting of or derived or extracted solely from plants, animals, or mineral bearing rocks and not otherwise adulterated;
 - (d) gypsum;
 - (e) natural or amino acid chelated trace elements for known deficiencies as determined by soil and/or tissue testing;
 - (f) soluble aquatic plant products;
 - (g) unadulterated fish fertilizers;
 - (h) treated sludge (provided that it falls within EPA guidelines).
- (2) Weed, pest, and disease control, in addition to the above:
- (a) botanicals;
 - (b) predatory and parasitic insects;
 - (c) host specific bacterial and viral pesticides;
 - (d) Bordeaux mixture;
 - (e) lime sulphur;
 - (f) dormant oils;
 - (g) summer oils;
 - (h) soap and detergents;
 - (i) lures and traps.
- (3) Veterinary medicines for the treatment of specific livestock or poultry diseases or maladies in no event administered within ninety days of slaughter.
- (4) The application of aromatic petroleum solvents, nicotine sprays, diesel, and other petroleum fractions used as weed or carrot oil is prohibited.

NEW SECTION

WAC 16-154-020 RECORDS. All producers who sell farm products identified as organic shall keep accurate records of the location of the acreage used for growing such products and the additions, excluding water, made to the soil or applied to the plants or added to irrigation water. Such records shall be retained for two years after date of such sale.

WSR 86-18-041

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES

[Order 86-23—Filed August 29, 1986]

I, Richard A. Davis, director of the Department of Labor and Industries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to:

- New WAC 296-46-348 Regarding the use of electrical metallic tubing.
- Amd WAC 296-46-360 Regarding amusement rides or structures, carnivals, circuses and traveling shows.
- New WAC 296-46-600 Regarding portable electric signs.
- New WAC 296-46-680 Regarding hydromassage bathtubs.
- New WAC 296-46-915 Electrical contractor license, administrator certificate and examination and copy fees.
- New WAC 296-46-920 Regarding civil penalties for violating chapter 19.28 RCW, or chapters 296-46 and 296-401 WAC.
- New WAC 296-46-930 Electrical contractor license and administrator certificate designation.
- New WAC 296-46-940 Electrical contractor license issuance and renewal.
- New WAC 296-46-950 Administrator certificate issuance, renewal and duties.
- Amd WAC 296-401-030 Issuing temporary permits.
- Amd WAC 296-401-060 Regarding specialty certificates.
- Amd WAC 296-401-080 Regarding eligibility for journeyman's examination.
- Amd WAC 296-401-090 Status of person who has failed an examination for an electrician certificate of competency.
- Amd WAC 296-401-100 Computation of years of employment.
- Amd WAC 296-401-120 Regarding electrical trainee certificates.
- Amd WAC 296-401-160 Regarding enforcement.
- Amd WAC 296-401-165 Regarding issuing and renewing an electrician certificate of competency.
- New WAC 296-401-168 Regarding reciprocal electrician certificates.
- Amd WAC 296-401-170 Regarding hearing or appeal procedures.
- Amd WAC 296-401-175 Regarding journeyman, specialty and trainee certificate and examination fees.

Correspondence relating to this notice and the proposed rules should be addressed to:

J. Philip Simmons
 Chief Electrical Inspector
 Department of Labor and Industries
 Electrical Section
 805 Plum Street S.E.
 P.O. Box 9519
 Olympia, WA 98504-9519
 (206) 753-2330

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-077 filed with the code reviser on July 1, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 19.28.060 and 19.28.600 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Labor and Industries as authorized in chapter 19.28 RCW.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 29, 1986.

By R. A. Davis
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-46-348 ELECTRICAL METALLIC TUBING. In addition to complying with the provisions of Article 348 of the National Electrical Code, electrical metallic tubing shall not be installed in direct contact with the earth or in concrete on or below grade. See also section 300-6 of the National Electrical Code.

Electrical metallic tubing shall not be installed as the wiring method for service entrance conductors inside a building.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 84-10, filed 7/17/84)

WAC 296-46-360 AMUSEMENT RIDES OR STRUCTURES, CARNIVALS, CIRCUSES, AND TRAVELING SHOWS. ((Wiring methods shall comply with Chapter 3 of the National Electrical Code.

(1) Secondary feeders shall be a type approved for the purpose, and shall use type "S" cable or an equivalent.

(2) Each concession or ride is a single occupancy. A separate enclosed externally operable fused switch or circuit breaker shall be provided for each concession or ride.)) (1) Electrical installations. Service equipment, separately derived systems, feeders and circuits for each amusement ride, structure or concession and the interconnection of each ride, structure or concession, shall comply with the National Electrical Code and this chapter. Feeders for portable rides, structures or concessions shall be type "S" flexible cord or an equivalent.

(2) Disconnecting means. A separate, enclosed, externally operable fused switch or circuit breaker, shall be installed on each amusement ride, structure or concession to disconnect all electrical equipment. The disconnecting means shall be readily accessible.

(3) Rotating equipment. Components of amusement rides or structures which rotate more than three hundred sixty degrees and which have electrically operated equipment, shall be supplied by approved collector rings which shall be totally enclosed or located so they are accessible to authorized personnel only. The collector rings shall be factory produced with an equipment grounding segment having a voltage and current rating which equals or exceeds the rating of the current carrying segments. Collector rings shall have an ampacity not less than one hundred twenty-five percent of the full-load current of the largest device served plus the full-load current of all other devices served. Collector rings for control and signal purposes shall have an ampacity not less than one hundred twenty-five percent of the full-load current of the largest device served plus the full-load current of all other devices served.

(4) Equipment grounding. All noncurrent carrying metal parts of amusement rides and structures shall be grounded in accordance with the National Electrical Code and these rules. The metallic structure shall not be used as a current carrying conductor.

Exception:

The metallic structure shall be permitted to be used as the return path for low voltage systems which do not exceed thirty volts, provided that the ungrounded conductors are protected by an overcurrent device in accordance with the National Electrical Code and the system is factory built for such use.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-46-600 PORTABLE OUTDOOR ELECTRICAL SIGNS. A weatherproof receptacle outlet which is weatherproof with the supply cord connected shall be installed within six feet of each electrical sign. Extension cords shall not be permitted. All new portable outdoor electrical signs shall be listed by an electrical testing laboratory which has been accredited by the department. Existing portable signs which are not listed or which do not have ground-fault circuit-interrupter protection, as required by section 600-11 of the National Electrical Code, shall have ground-fault circuit-interrupter protection provided in the branch circuit which supplies the portable sign.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-46-680 HYDROMASSAGE BATH-TUBS. (1) Electrical equipment associated with hydromassage bathtubs shall be listed by an electrical products testing laboratory which is accredited by the department and shall have the supply circuit protected by a ground-fault circuit-interrupter.

(2) Receptacle outlets. Receptacle outlets shall not be located closer than six feet to a hydromassage bathtub unless located above or within one foot of a basin or vanity, in which case a receptacle outlet shall be permitted to be located no closer than three feet to the inside walls of a hydromassage bathtub. Receptacles located within the room or within twelve feet from the inside walls of a hydromassage bathtub, shall be protected by a ground-fault circuit-interrupter. A door or sliding window is not considered to be a permanent barrier.

(3) Lighting fixtures and lighting outlets. Lighting fixtures other than the pendant or hanging type shall be permitted above a one-person hydromassage bathtub if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) The fixture is of the totally enclosed type;

(b) The distance from the bottom of the fixture to the maximum water level is not less than five feet;

(c) The fixture is rigidly attached to the wall or ceiling; and

(d) A ground-fault circuit-interrupter is installed in the branch circuit supplying the fixture(s).

(4) Wall switches. Switches shall be located at least three feet measured horizontally from the inside walls of the hydromassage bathtub. Circuits controlled by wall

switches located within six feet of the hydromassage bathtub shall be protected by a ground-fault circuit-interrupter.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-46-915 ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR LICENSE, ADMINISTRATOR CERTIFICATE AND EXAMINATION, AND COPY FEES.

- (1) General or specialty contractor license (per twenty-four month period) \$72
- (2) Administrator certificate examination (nonrefundable) \$20
- (3) Administrator certificate examination \$50
- (4) Administrator certificate or renewal (per twenty-four month period) \$48
- (5) Late renewal of administrator certificate (per twenty-four month period) \$96
- (6) Transfer of administrator designation \$10
- (7) Certified copy of each document (maximum \$24 per file) \$2

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-46-920 CIVIL PENALTY. A person, firm, partnership, corporation or other entity that violates a provision of chapter 19.28 RCW, chapter 296-46 or 296-401 WAC is liable for a civil penalty based upon the following schedule.

- (1) Offering to perform, submitting a bid for, installing or maintaining conductors or equipment that convey or utilize electrical current without having an unexpired, unrevoked and unsuspended electrical contractor license.

First offense:	\$ 500
Second offense:	\$1,000
Third offense:	\$3,000
Each offense thereafter:	\$5,000
- (2) Employing an individual for the purposes of RCW 19.28.510 through 19.28.620 who does not possess a valid certificate of competency or training certificate.

First offense:	\$ 50
Second offense:	\$ 100
Each offense thereafter:	\$ 250
- (3) Working as an electrician or electrical trainee in the electrical construction trade without having a valid certificate of competency or electrical training certificate.

First offense:	\$ 50
Second offense:	\$ 100
Each offense thereafter:	\$ 250
- (4) Employing electricians and trainees in an improper ratio.

First offense:	\$ 50
Second offense:	\$ 100
Each additional offense:	\$ 250
- (5) Failing to provide supervision to an electrical trainee as required by RCW 19.28.510.

First offense:	\$ 50
Second offense:	\$ 100
Each additional offense:	\$ 250
- (6) Working as an electrical trainee without proper supervision as required by RCW 19.28.510.

First offense:	\$ 50
Second offense:	\$ 100
Each additional offense:	\$ 250

(7) Performing electrical installations, alterations or maintenance outside the scope of the firm's specialty electrical contractors license.

First offense:	\$ 500
Second offense:	\$1,000
Each additional offense:	\$3,000

(8) Selling or exchanging electrical equipment associated with spas, hot tubs, swimming pools or hydromassage bathtubs which is not listed and labeled by an approved electrical testing laboratory.

First offense:	\$ 500
Second offense:	\$1,000
Each additional offense:	\$2,000

Definition: The sale or exchange of electrical components associated with hot tubs, spas, swimming pools or hydromassage bathtubs means: "Sell, offer for sale, advertise, display for sale, dispose of by way of gift, loan, rental, lease, premium, barter or exchange."

(9) Violating any of the provisions of chapter 19.28 RCW or chapters 296-46 or 296-401 WAC which are not identified in subsections (1) through (8) of this section.

First offense:	\$ 50
Second offense:	\$ 100
Each additional offense:	\$ 250

(10) Each day that a violation occurs will be a separate offense. A violation will be a "second" or "additional" offense only if it occurs within one year from the first violation.

(11) In case of continued, repeated or gross violation of the provisions of chapter 19.28 RCW, chapter 296-46 or 296-401 WAC or if property damage or bodily injury occurs as a result of the failure of a person, firm, partnership, corporation, or other entity to comply with chapter 19.28 RCW, the department may double the penalty amounts shown in subsections (1) through (6) of this section.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-46-930 ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR LICENSE AND ADMINISTRATOR CERTIFICATE DESIGNATION. See RCW 19.28.120. (1) General electrical license and/or administrator's certificate encompasses all phases and all types of electrical installations.

(2) Specialty (limited) electrical licenses and/or administrator's certificates are as follows:

(a) Residential (02): Limited to the wiring of one and two family dwellings, or multifamily dwellings not exceeding three floors above grade. All wiring to be in nonmetallic sheathed cable, except service and/or feeders. This specialty does not include wiring commercial occupancies such as motels, hotels, offices, or stores.

(b) Pump and irrigation (03): Limited to the electrical connection of domestic and irrigation water pumps, circular irrigating systems and related pumps and pump houses. This specialty license includes circuits, feeders, controls, and services to supply said pumps.

(c) Signs (04): Limited to placement and connection of signs and outline lighting, the electrical supply, related controls and associated circuit extensions thereto; and the installation of a maximum 60 ampere, 120/240 volt single phase service to supply power to a remote sign only.

(d) Domestic appliances (05): Limited to the electrical connection of household appliances and the wiring thereto; such as hot water heaters, ranges, dishwashers, clothes dryers, oil and gas furnaces, and similar appliances. This specialty license includes circuits to the appliances; however, it does not include the installation of service and/or feeders or circuits to electric furnaces and heat pump equipment.

(e) Limited energy system (06): Limited to the installation of signaling and power limited circuits and related equipment. Such license includes the installation of fire protection signaling systems, intrusion alarms, nonutility

owned communications systems, and such similar low energy circuits and equipment.

(f) Nonresidential maintenance (07): Limited to maintenance, repair and replacement of electrical equipment and conductors on industrial or commercial premises. This specialty certificate of license does not include maintenance activities in hotel, motel, or dwelling units.

(3) Combination specialty electrical contractor license. The department may issue a combination specialty electrical contractor license to a firm which qualifies for more than one specialty electrical contractor license. The license shall plainly indicate the specialty licenses which are included in the combination electrical contractor license.

(4) Combination specialty electrical administrator certificate. The department may issue a combination specialty administrator certificate to an individual who qualifies for more than one specialty administrators' certificate. The combination specialty administrators' certificate shall plainly indicate the specialty administrators' certificate the holder has qualified for.

NEW SECTION

✓ WAC 296-46-940 ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR LICENSE. (1) The department shall issue an electrical contractor license to a person, firm, partnership, corporation or other entity that complies with RCW 19.28.120 which shall expire twenty-four months following the date of issue. The department may issue an electrical contractor license for a period greater or less than twenty-four months for the purpose of equalizing the number of electrical contractor licenses which expire each month. The department shall prorate the electrical contractor license fee according to the number of months in the license period. All subsequent licenses shall be issued for a twenty-four month period.

(2) Cash or securities deposit release. A cash or security deposit which has been filed with the department in lieu of a surety bond, shall not be released until one year after the date the electrical contractor notifies the department in writing, that the person, firm, partnership, corporation, or other entity who (which) has been issued the electrical contractor license, has ceased to do business in the state of Washington.

NEW SECTION

✓ WAC 296-46-950 ADMINISTRATORS CERTIFICATE. (1) The department shall issue an administrator certificate to a person who qualifies for a certificate in accordance with RCW 19.28.125. The first certificate issued shall expire on the person's birthdate at least one year and not more than three years from the date of issue. If a person was born in an even numbered year, the certificate shall expire on the holder's even numbered birthdate. If the person was born in an odd numbered year, the certificate shall expire on the holder's odd numbered birthdate. The department shall prorate the administrators certificate fee according to the number of months or major portions of months in a certificate period. All subsequent certificates shall be issued

for a twenty-four month period. The signature of a person who desires to renew their certificate shall be notarized.

(2) Effective July 1, 1987, an administrator designated on the electrical contractor license shall be a member of the firm who shall fulfill the duties of a full-time supervisory employee, or be a full-time supervisory employee. In determining whether the person is a member of the firm, the department shall require that the person is named as the sole proprietor, a partner or an officer in a corporation as shown on the electrical contractor license application on file with the department. In determining whether a person is a full-time supervisory employee, the department shall consider whether the person is on the electrical contractor's full-time payroll; receives a regular salary or wage similar to other employees; has supervisory responsibility for work performed by the electrical contractor and carries out the duties shown in RCW 19.28.125(2).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 83-32, filed 11/14/83)

✓ WAC 296-401-030 ISSUING OF TEMPORARY PERMITS. (1) The department will issue to an applicant who meets the eligibility requirements of RCW 19.28.530, one out-of-state temporary permit for a period of ninety days or less before the examination of the applicant ((for a period of ninety days or less)).

((The applicant shall surrender the permit to the person conducting the examination when the applicant appears for the examination.)) If the applicant with a temporary permit does not appear for ((his)) the examination the applicant has been scheduled for, the permit will expire on the expiration date specified on the permit.

(2) The department will issue a second temporary certificate of competency to an applicant for a period of ninety days or less only if the applicant furnishes evidence to the department of enrollment in an electrician training or refresher course which has been approved by the board of electrical examiners.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 83-32, filed 11/14/83)

✓ WAC 296-401-060 SPECIALTY CERTIFICATES. The department shall issue specialty electrician's certificates of competency in the following areas of electrical work:

(1) Residential (02). The holder of a residential certificate is limited to wiring one-family and two-family dwellings, or ((multi-family)) multifamily dwellings that do not exceed three floors above grade. All wiring shall be in nonmetallic sheathed cable, except service and feeder wiring. This specialty does not include wiring commercial occupancies such as motels, hotels, offices, or stores.

(2) ((Domestic appliances. The holder is limited to the electrical connection of domestic appliances and their wiring, such as hot water heaters, ranges, dishwashers, clothes dryers, oil and gas furnaces, and similar appliances. The holder may also install the circuits to

domestic appliances but may not install service or feeder wires.

~~((3))~~ Pump and irrigation (03). The holder is limited to the electrical connection of domestic and irrigation water pumps, circular irrigating systems, and related pumps and pump houses. The holder may also install the circuits, feeders, controls, and services necessary to supply electricity to the pumps.

~~((4))~~ Limited energy system. The holder is limited to installing signaling circuits, power limited circuits, and related equipment. Such equipment includes fire protection signaling systems, intrusion alarms, nonutility-owned communication systems, and similar low energy circuits and equipment.

~~(5))~~ (3) Signs (04). The holder is limited to; placing and connecting signs and outline lighting and their electrical supply, controls, and associated circuit extensions; and the installation of a maximum 60 ampere, 120/240 volt, single phase service to supply power to a remote sign only.

(4) Domestic appliances (05). The holder is limited to the electrical connection of domestic appliances and their wiring, such as hot water heaters, ranges, dishwashers, clothes dryers, oil and gas furnaces, and similar appliances. The holder may also install the circuits to domestic appliances but may not install service or feeder wires, or circuits to electric furnaces and heat pump equipment.

(5) Limited energy system (06). The holder is limited to installing signaling circuits, power limited circuits, and related equipment. Such equipment includes fire protection signaling systems, intrusion alarms, nonutility-owned communication systems, and similar low energy circuits and equipment.

(6) Nonresidential maintenance (07). The holder is limited to maintaining, repairing and replacing electrical equipment and conductors on industrial or commercial premises. This specialty certificate does not include maintenance activities in hotel, motel or dwelling units.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 81-5, filed 2/27/81, effective 4/1/81)

WAC 296-401-080 ELIGIBILITY FOR JOURNEYMAN'S EXAMINATION. A person holding an electrical trainee certificate who has been employed under the direct supervision of a journeyman electrician for four years, or who has completed a four year apprenticeship program in the electrical construction trade that is registered with the state apprenticeship council or the Federal Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training, or who is a graduate of a trade school program in the electrical construction trade that was established during 1946, shall be eligible to take the examination for a journeyman's certificate of competency. A person who has had two years of schooling under the conditions provided in RCW 19.28.530 in addition to two years of employment under the direct supervision of a journeyman electrician shall be eligible to take the examination for a journeyman's certificate of competency.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 80-1, filed 1/16/80)

WAC 296-401-090 STATUS OF PERSON WHO HAS FAILED AN EXAMINATION FOR ((A JOURNEYMAN)) AN ELECTRICIAN CERTIFICATE OF COMPETENCY. (1) A person who fails an examination for ((a journeyman's)) an electrician certificate of competency may take a ((90)) ninety day refresher course and may work in the electrical construction trade only if the person has a valid electrician training certificate or temporary permit.

(2) A person who has a training certificate and/or who is taking a refresher course shall ((have the status of a fourth year trainee and may)) work ((with)) only under the supervision of a certificated electrician.

(3) ((If any person refuses to take the refresher course, or finishes the refresher course and again fails the examination, that person shall have the status of a fourth year trainee; however, that person may not work without supervision until he or she passes an examination for a journeyman or specialty certificate of competency.)) Upon application, the department may issue an electrician trainee certificate to a person who has failed an examination for a certificate of competency, only if the person furnishes evidence of enrollment in an electrician training or refresher course which is approved by the board of electrical examiners. To be eligible to renew the training certificate, the person must furnish evidence of, (a) successfully completing the electrician training or refresher course, and (b) failing the certificate of competency again.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 81-5, filed 2/27/81, effective 4/1/81)

WAC 296-401-100 COMPUTATION OF YEARS OF EMPLOYMENT. (1) For the purposes of RCW 19.28.530, 1800 hours of employment shall be considered one year of employment.

(2) At the time of renewal of an electrical training certificate, the holder shall provide the department with an accurate list of the holder's employers in the electrical industry for the previous year, the specialty the holder worked in and the number of hours worked for each employer in each specialty.

(3) A person who has completed a four year apprenticeship program in the electrical construction trade that is registered with the state apprenticeship council or the Federal Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training shall be considered to have completed 7200 hours (four years) of employment.

~~((4) A person who has completed a two year apprenticeship program in an electrical specialty that is registered with the state apprenticeship council or the Federal Bureau of Apprenticeship and Training shall be considered to have completed 3600 hours (two years) of employment.))~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 80-1, filed 1/16/80)

WAC 296-401-120 ELECTRICAL TRAINEE CERTIFICATES. (1) The department upon proper application and verification shall issue separate electrical trainee certificates for the first, second, third, and fourth years of training. If a person has ~~((less than))~~ 1800 hours of employment or less in the electrical construction trade, the department shall ~~((give))~~ issue the individual a first year certificate; if more than ~~((1799 but less than))~~ 1800 through 3600 hours, a second year certificate; if more than ~~((3599 but less than))~~ 3600 through 5400 hours, a third year certificate; and if more than ~~((5399))~~ 5400 hours a fourth year certificate.

(2) A holder of an electrical trainee certificate may apply for the next year's certificate whenever he or she has sufficient hours of employment.

(3) A holder of an electrical trainee certificate may apply for authorization to work without supervision if he or she has over 6299 hours of employment, and has successfully completed or is currently enrolled in an approved apprenticeship program or in a technical school program in the electrical construction trade in a school approved by the commission for vocational education.

(4) The department shall not issue an electrical trainee certificate to a person who is eligible for a temporary or reciprocal electrician certificate of competency.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 83-32, filed 11/14/83)

WAC 296-401-160 ENFORCEMENT. (1) The department shall ensure that employers and employees subject to chapter 19.28 RCW comply with that chapter and chapter 296-401 WAC by inspecting electrical job sites. The inspections shall be made by the department's compliance officers, or electrical inspectors.

(2) The compliance officer or electrical inspector shall determine whether:

(a) Each person doing electrical work on the job site has a proper journeyman, specialty, or trainee certificate;

(b) The ratio of the certified journeyman electricians to the certified trainees on the job site is correct; and

(c) Each certified trainee is directly supervised by an individual with a journeyman or proper specialty certificate of competency for the type of electrical work being performed.

(3) If the compliance officer or electrical inspector determines that an employer or employee has violated chapter ~~((s))~~ 19.28 RCW or chapter 296-401 WAC, the department shall issue a ~~((cease and desist order))~~ citation that describes the reason the employer or employee has violated chapter ~~((s))~~ 19.28 RCW or chapter 296-401 WAC. If an employer or employee continues to violate chapter 19.28 RCW or chapter 296-401 WAC, the department electrical inspectors or compliance officers may issue a cease and desist order.

(4) The employer or employee to whom a citation or cease and desist order is directed may request a hearing pursuant to ~~((WAC 296-401-170))~~ RCW 19.28.620;

however, the request shall not stay the effect of the citation or cease and desist order. If the employer or employee disobeys the cease and desist order, the department shall apply to the superior court for a court order enforcing the cease and desist order. If the employer or employee disobeys the court order, the department shall request the attorney general to apply to the superior court for an order holding the employer or employee in contempt of court.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 83-32, filed 11/14/83)

~~WAC 296-401-165 ((ELECTRICAL LICENSE AND ADMINISTRATOR CERTIFICATE DESIGNATION)) ISSUING AND RENEWING AN ELECTRICIAN CERTIFICATE OF COMPETENCY. ((See RCW 19.28.120. (1) General electrical license and/or administrator's certificate encompasses all phases of electrical installations for heat, light and power.~~

~~(2) Specialty (limited) electrical licenses and/or administrator's certificates are as follows:~~

~~(a) Residential: Limited to the wiring of one and two family dwellings, or multi-family dwellings not exceeding three floors above grade. All wiring to be in nonmetallic sheathed cable, except service and/or feeders.~~

~~(b) Domestic appliances: Limited to the electrical connection of household appliances and the wiring thereto, such as hot water heaters, ranges, dishwashers, clothes dryers, oil and gas furnaces and similar appliances. This specialty license includes circuits to the appliances; however, it does not include the installation of service and/or feeders.~~

~~(c) Pump and irrigation: Limited to the electrical connection of domestic and irrigation water pumps, circular irrigating systems and related pumps and pump houses. This specialty license includes circuits, feeders, controls and services to supply said pumps.~~

~~(d) Limited energy system: Limited to the installation of signaling and power limited circuits and related equipment. Such license includes the installation of fire protection signaling systems, intrusion alarms, nonutility owned communication systems and such similar low energy circuits and equipment.~~

~~(e) Signs: Limited to the placement and connection of signs and outline lighting, the electrical supply, related controls and associated circuit extensions thereto.~~

~~(f) Nonresidential maintenance: Limited to maintenance, repair and replacement of electrical equipment and conductors on industrial or commercial premises. This specialty certificate or license does not include maintenance activities in hotel, motel, or dwelling units.)~~ (1) The department shall issue an electrician certificate of competency to journeyman or specialty electricians who meet the qualifications in RCW 19.28.530 and who have successfully passed a certification examination in accordance with RCW 19.28.540.

(2) The electrician certificate of competency shall expire on the holder's birthdate at least one year and not more than three years from the date of original issue. All subsequent certificates shall be issued for a two year period. If the person was born in an even numbered year, the certificate shall expire on the holder's even

numbered birthdate. If the person was born in an odd numbered year, the certificate shall expire on the holder's odd numbered birthdate. The department shall prorate the electrician fee according to the number of months or major part of a month in a certificate period.

(3) An individual who successfully passes an examination for a certificate of competency, shall apply for a certificate of competency within thirty days of the date the person is notified about the results of the examination. A person who does not apply for a certificate of competency within thirty days of the date the person is notified about the results of the examination, shall be required to apply for, take and pass the examination again.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-401-168 **RECIPROCAL ELECTRICIAN CERTIFICATES.** The department shall issue a reciprocal electrician certificate to an electrician coming into the state of Washington from another state who meets the eligibility requirement in RCW 19.28.530 in accordance with the following conditions:

(1) The department has a valid reciprocal agreement with another state in the journeyman or specialty category requested.

(2) The application shall be made on forms prescribed by the department.

(3) The person shall furnish evidence that he or she meets the eligibility requirements in RCW 19.28.530.

(4) The applicant shall pay a fee with the application which shall equal the electrician certification examination application fee and the certificate fee as determined in accordance with chapter 296-401 WAC.

(5) The applicant must have obtained a certificate of competency for which reciprocity is requested while a resident of another state.

(6) A person is not eligible for a reciprocal electrician certificate who has taken an examination to obtain a certificate of competency in the state of Washington, who has failed an examination for a certificate of competency in the state of Washington or who has failed to renew a certificate of competency in accordance with chapter 19.28 RCW.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 80-1, filed 1/16/80)

WAC 296-401-170 **HEARING OR APPEAL PROCEDURE.** An employer or employee to whom a cease and desist order is directed; a person who is aggrieved by the department's denial of a trainee, journeyman, or specialty certificate, or the opportunity to take an examination for a certificate; or a person who has had his or her hours reduced pursuant to WAC 296-401-150; may request a hearing within ~~((+10))~~ fifteen days from receipt of the citation, cease and desist order, the denial, or the reduction of hours. The ~~((department shall appoint a person to preside over the hearing))~~ appeal shall be made in writing to the department and shall be accompanied by a certified check in the amount of two hundred dollars made payable to the department. The deposit shall be returned to the aggrieved party if the

decision of the department is not sustained or upheld. If the decision of the department is sustained or upheld, the deposit shall be used to pay the expenses of holding the hearing and any balance remaining after payment of the hearing expenses shall be paid into the electrical license fund. The appeal shall be held in conformance with the requirements of the Administrative Procedure Act, chapter 34.04 RCW.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-16, filed 9/27/85)

WAC 296-401-175 ((ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR LICENSE, ADMINISTRATOR,)) JOURNEYMAN, SPECIALTY AND TRAINEE CERTIFICATE, AND EXAMINATION ((AND COPY)) FEES.

(((1) General or specialty electrical contractor license (expires December 31 each year) -	\$ 40
(2) Electrical contractor name or business structure change -	\$ 40
(3) Administrator certificate examination -	\$ 50
(4) Administrator certificate renewal (expires December 31 each year) -	\$ 20
(5) Late renewal of administrator certificate -	\$ 40
(6) Transfer of administrator designation -	\$ 20
(7) Journeyman or specialty certificate (expires June 30 each year) -	\$ 25
(8) Late renewal of journeyman or specialty electrician certificate -	\$ 50
(9) Journeyman or specialty electrician examination -	\$ 50
(+10) Trainee certificate (expires one year after purchase) -	\$ 20
(+11) Certified copy of bond and/or license -	\$ 2)
(1) Journeyman or specialty electrician certificate (per 24-month period) -	\$ 24
(2) Late renewal of journeyman or specialty electrician certificate (per 24-month period) -	\$ 48
(3) Journeyman or specialty electrician examination application (nonrefundable) -	\$ 20
(4) Journeyman or specialty electrician examination -	\$ 30
(5) Trainee certificate (expires one year after purchase) -	\$ 12

WSR 86-18-042

PROPOSED RULES

INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

[Filed August 29, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Insurance Commissioner intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning the amendment of WAC 284-24-060 to require the approval of the commissioner before commercial rate filings may be used and excluding the need for rate filings with respect to surplus line coverages placed in this state; the amendment of WAC 284-24-080 to require the approval of the commissioner before certain inland marine risks' rate filings may be used, adding boatowners' and/or boats under twenty-seven feet to the rule; and adding a new section to chapter 284-20 WAC

to exclude the need for form filings with respect to surplus line coverages placed in this state.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on September 18, 1986, at 10:00 a.m., in the Insurance Commissioner's Office, Olympia, Washington.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 48.02.060 (3)(a).

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 48.19.030, 48.19.070, 48.19.080 and 48.18.100.

This notice is connected to and continues the matter in Notice No. WSR 86-15-085 filed with the code reviser's office on July 23, 1986.

Dated: August 29, 1986
 By: Robert E. Johnson
 Deputy Commissioner

WSR 86-18-043
ADOPTED RULES
INSURANCE COMMISSIONER
 [Order R 86-3—Filed August 29, 1986]

I, Dick Marquardt, Insurance Commissioner, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to the establishment of a joint underwriting association pursuant to chapter 141, Laws of 1986, to provide liability insurance for day care services.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-15-062 filed with the code reviser on July 21, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 48.02.060 (3)(a) which directs that the Insurance Commissioner has authority to implement the provisions of chapter 141, Laws of 1986.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 29, 1986.

Dick Marquardt
 Insurance Commissioner
 By Robert E. Johnson
 Deputy Commissioner

Chapter 284-78 WAC
JOINT UNDERWRITING ASSOCIATION FOR DAY CARE INSURANCE

WAC

- 284-78-010 Purpose.
- 284-78-020 Definitions.
- 284-78-030 The association.
- 284-78-040 Activation of association.
- 284-78-050 Administration.
- 284-78-060 General powers and duties of the board.
- 284-78-070 Assessments.

- 284-78-080 Statistics, records, and reports.
- 284-78-090 Eligibility of licensees for coverage.
- 284-78-100 Standard policy coverage—Premiums.
- 284-78-110 Renewal of policies.
- 284-78-120 Cancellation of policies.
- 284-78-130 Right of appeal.
- 284-78-140 Cooperation of producers.
- 284-78-150 Commissions.
- 284-78-160 Additional notice required.
- 284-78-170 Termination of association.
- 284-78-180 Effective date.

NEW SECTION

✓ WAC 284-78-010 PURPOSE. The purpose of this chapter is to establish a joint underwriting association pursuant to chapter 141, Laws of 1986, to provide liability insurance for day care services.

NEW SECTION

✓ WAC 284-78-020 DEFINITIONS. Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the definitions in this section apply throughout this chapter.

(1) "Insurer" means any insurance company that, on or after July 1, 1986, possesses a certificate of authority to write property and casualty insurance within this state on a direct basis.

(2) "Day care insurance" means insurance coverage against the legal liability of the insured and against loss, damage, or expense incident to a claim arising out of the death or injury of any person as a result of negligence or malpractice in rendering professional service by any licensee.

(3) "Association" means the joint underwriting association established pursuant to the provisions of chapter 141, Laws of 1986.

(4) "Licensee" means any person or facility licensed to provide day care services pursuant to chapter 74.15 RCW.

(5) "Commissioner" means the insurance commissioner of the state of Washington.

(6) "Service insurer" means any insurance company designated by the association and approved by the commissioner to issue policies pursuant to this chapter.

(7) "Board" means the governing board of the association.

NEW SECTION

✓ WAC 284-78-030 THE ASSOCIATION. (1) A nonprofit joint underwriting association for day care insurance is hereby established. Membership in the association shall be mandatory for all insurers that on or after July 1, 1986, possess a certificate of authority to write property and casualty insurance within this state on a direct basis. Every such insurer shall be and remain a member of the association and fulfill all its membership obligations as a condition of its authority to continue to transact property and casualty insurance business in this state.

(2) The association shall remain inactive, except for the actions of the board enumerated in WAC 284-78-

050 through 284-78-080, until it is activated by the commissioner as provided in WAC 284-78-040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-78-040 **ACTIVATION OF ASSOCIATION.** If the commissioner finds that any licensee is unable to obtain day care insurance with liability limits of at least one hundred thousand dollars per occurrence from the voluntary insurance market, or through any market assistance plan organized pursuant to section 906, chapter 305, Laws of 1986, the commissioner may notify the board in writing of such finding and may direct the board to activate the association and commence writing day care insurance within thirty days of receipt of the notice in accordance with the provisions of these regulations.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-78-050 **ADMINISTRATION.** (1) The association shall be administered by a governing board, subject to the supervision of the commissioner, and operated by a manager appointed by the board.

(2) The board shall consist of nine members. Five board members shall be insurers, one of which shall be appointed by the commissioner from each of the following: American Insurance Association, Alliance of American Insurers, National Association of Independent Insurers, all other stock insurers, and all other nonstock insurers. A sixth board member shall be the insurer designated as the service insurer for the association (or, if there is more than one service insurer, the sixth board member shall be such service insurer as the commissioner designates as the board member). The other three board members shall be licensees who are appointed by the commissioner to so serve, none of whom shall be interested, directly or indirectly, in any insurer except as a policyholder. Board members shall serve for a period of one year or until their successors are appointed. Not more than one insurer in a group under the same management or ownership shall serve on the board at the same time. At least one of the six insurers on the board shall be a domestic insurer. All members of the board shall serve at the pleasure of the commissioner.

(3) Each person serving on the board or any subcommittee thereof, each member insurer of the association, and each officer and employee of the association shall be indemnified by the association against all costs and expenses actually and necessarily incurred by him, her, or it in connection with the defense of any action, suit, or proceeding in which he, she, or it is made a party by reason of his, her, or its being or having been a member of the board, or a member or officer or employee of the association, except in relation to matters as to which he, she, or it has been judged in such action, suit, or proceeding to be liable by reason of wilful misconduct in the performance of his, her, or its duties as a member of such board, or member, officer, or employee of the association. This indemnification shall not be exclusive of other rights as to which such member, or officer, or employee may be entitled as a matter of law.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-78-060 **GENERAL POWERS AND DUTIES OF THE BOARD.** (1) Within thirty days after the appointment of its members by the commissioner, the board shall prepare and adopt articles of association consistent with this chapter, subject to approval by the commissioner. In a timely manner thereafter, the board shall take all actions necessary to prepare the association to receive applications and issue policies, when and if the commissioner activates the association as provided in WAC 284-78-040. These actions shall include the preparation of all necessary policy forms and rating information to be filed with the commissioner for approval and all necessary operating manuals and procedures to be followed.

(2) The board shall meet as often as may be required to perform the general duties of the administration of the association or on the call of the commissioner. Three insurer members of the board shall constitute a quorum.

(3) The board may appoint a manager, who shall serve at the pleasure of the board, to perform any duties necessary or incidental to the proper administration of the association, including the hiring of necessary staff.

(4) The board shall annually furnish to all insurer members of the association and to the commissioner a written report of operations.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-78-070 **ASSESSMENTS.** (1) The board may calculate, levy, and collect assessments from member insurers whenever necessary for the orderly operation of the association.

(2) After its formation, the board may calculate, levy, and collect from member insurers a start-up assessment to pay initial expenses of the association and to establish any necessary reserves. The start-up assessment shall not exceed one million dollars. For ease of administration, the share of the start-up assessment levied upon and collected from each member insurer shall be the same for each member insurer, regardless of size and regardless of whether it is actively writing business in this state.

(3) Any assessment subsequent to the initial start-up assessment shall be used to offset losses and/or expenses in excess of income received by the association. These assessments may be made as often as the board determines is necessary. To the extent such an assessment exceeds one million dollars, each member insurer shall be assessed a proportionate share relating to premium volume. The first one million dollars of such an assessment shall be levied and collected in equal amounts from each member insurer.

(4) Any member insurer failing to remit its assessment when due is subject to revocation of its certificate of authority to write property and casualty insurance in this state.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-78-080 **STATISTICS, RECORDS, AND REPORTS.** (1) The association shall maintain

separate statistics on business written and shall make the following quarterly report to the commissioner:

(a) Number of applications received by the association;

(b) Number of applications accepted by the association and the total and average premiums charged, including the high and low premiums;

(c) Number of risks declined;

(d) Number of risks conditionally declined and the number ultimately accepted after having been conditionally declined; and

(e) Number of risks cancelled.

(2) In addition to statistics, the association shall maintain complete and separate records of all business transactions, including copies of all policies and endorsements issued by the association, and records of reasons provided for each declination of coverage or cancellation of coverage, including the results of any on-site inspections, or investigations of applicants or insureds or their employees.

(3) Regular reports of the association's operations shall be submitted to all members of the board, such reports to include, but not necessarily to be limited to, premiums written and earned, losses, including loss adjustment expense, paid and incurred, all other expenses incurred, outstanding liabilities, and, at least once a year, the proposed annual budget of the association for the next fiscal year.

(4) The books of account, records, reports, and other documents of the associations shall be open to the commissioner for examination at all reasonable times.

(5) The books of account, records, reports, and other documents of the association shall be open to inspection by members only at such times and under such conditions as the board shall determine.

(6) The books of account of any and all servicing insurers may be audited by a firm of independent auditors designated by the board.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-78-090 ELIGIBILITY OF LICENSEES FOR COVERAGE. Any licensee that is unable to obtain day care insurance with liability limits of at least one hundred thousand dollars per occurrence from the voluntary insurance market or from any market assistance plan organized pursuant to section 906, chapter 305, Laws of 1986, is eligible to apply for coverage through the association. The association's service insurer shall promptly process such application and, if the licensee is judged to be an acceptable insurable risk, offer coverage to the licensee. In view of the purpose of chapter 141, Laws of 1986, every licensee will be presumed to be an acceptable insurable risk for the association. To refuse coverage to any licensee meeting the other eligibility requirements of this section, the association must have the prior written approval of the commissioner. The commissioner will grant such approval only if the association demonstrates that extraordinary circumstances justify refusing coverage to such individual licensee.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-78-100 STANDARD POLICY COVERAGE—PREMIUMS. (1) All policies issued by the association shall have liability limits of at least one hundred thousand dollars per occurrence and shall be issued for a term of one year.

(2) Premiums shall be based on the association's rate filings approved by the commissioner in accordance with chapter 48.19 RCW. Such rate filings shall provide for modification of rates for licensees according to the type, size, and past loss experience of each licensee, and any other differences among licensees that can be demonstrated to have a probable effect upon losses.

(3) A policy shall be offered which provides liability coverage with respect to child abuse, whether a sexual nature or not. In the discretion of the association, such policy may exclude from coverage an individual who directly commits or participates in the actual abuse, but it may not exclude from coverage other persons who may be liable only vicariously for such abuse. In addition, the association may offer coverage with a broader exclusion with respect to coverage for child abuse.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-78-110 RENEWAL OF POLICIES. Policies written by the association will not automatically renew. To obtain continuing coverage by the association, a licensee must again satisfy initial eligibility requirements under WAC 284-78-090 at the end of the expiring policy term.

(2) The association shall notify covered licensees at least forty-five days prior to the expiration of a policy term of the need to submit a new application for coverage to the association to continue coverage.

(3) If the association fails to provide the required notice, the existing policy shall continue in force until the association has provided the required notice. In such case, premium shall be charged the licensee on a pro rata basis for coverage during the extended coverage period.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-78-120 CANCELLATION OF POLICIES. (1) No policy or binder issued pursuant to this chapter shall be cancelled except:

(a) For nonpayment of premium, in which case cancellation of the policy shall be effected by providing ten days written notice in advance of the date of cancellation. Payment to the association of all premiums due, prior to the effective date of the cancellation, shall continue coverage as if no cancellation notice had been issued; or

(b) With the prior written approval of the commissioner upon the request of the board, for cause which would have been grounds for refusal of coverage under WAC 284-78-090.

(2) Notice of cancellation, accompanied by the actual reason therefor, shall be sent to the named insured.

(3) Any cancellation notice sent to the named insured shall be accompanied by a statement that the named insured has a right of appeal to the commissioner.

NEW SECTION

✓ WAC 284-78-130 RIGHT OF APPEAL. (1) Any applicant or insured, currently licensed pursuant to chapter 74.15 RCW, shall have a right of appeal to the commissioner, including the right to appear personally before the commissioner or his or her designee, if requested by the person seeking appeal, from any decision by the board to deny, cancel, or nonrenew coverage.

(2) Appeals to the commissioner under this provision shall be handled in accordance with chapters 48.04 and 34.04 RCW.

NEW SECTION

WAC 284-78-140 COOPERATION OF PRODUCERS. All licensed insurance agents and brokers shall provide full cooperation in carrying out the aims and the operation of the association.

NEW SECTION

✓ WAC 284-78-150 COMMISSIONS. The association shall pay commissions as established by the board on policies issued pursuant to this chapter to the licensed agent or broker designated by the applicant.

NEW SECTION

✓ WAC 284-78-160 ADDITIONAL NOTICE REQUIRED. Any notice of cancellation or nonrenewal of day care insurance given by an insurer to a licensee potentially eligible for coverage through the association shall include or be accompanied by an explanation of the licensee's right and procedure to obtain insurance through the association.

NEW SECTION

✓ WAC 284-78-170 TERMINATION OF ASSOCIATION. The association shall have perpetual existence, subject to repeal or modification of this chapter.

NEW SECTION

✓ WAC 284-78-180 EFFECTIVE DATE. This chapter is effective July 1, 1986.

WSR 86-18-044
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF GAME
(Game Commission)
[Order 309—Filed August 29, 1986]

Be it resolved by the State Game Commission, acting at Spokane, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to amendment to 1986 Washington game fish seasons and catch limits—Lewis River, North Fork, adopting WAC 232-28-61508.

We, the State Game Commission, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action

would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is the prohibition on internal combustion engines was intended to be implemented in conjunction with construction of a new boat launching ramp in the area. The launching ramp project has been delayed due to uncertainty over the exact siting of a new hatchery. The motor prohibition should be delayed until such time as the launch ramp is actually constructed.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 77.12.040 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 10, 1986.

By Archie U. Mills
Chairman, Game Commission

NEW SECTION

WAC 232-28-61508 AMENDMENT TO 1986 WASHINGTON GAME FISH SEASONS AND CATCH LIMITS—LEWIS RIVER, NORTH FORK. *Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 232-28-615, the seasons and special regulations for the area described below of the Lewis River, North Fork, will be as follows.*

LEWIS RIVER, North Fork,

98:

From mouth of Colvin Creek to 1400' below spillway of Ariel Dam.	Jan. 1-Sep. 30 and Dec. 16-Dec. 31	TROUT - min. lgth. 12".
--	--	-------------------------

Seasons and special regulations for other areas of the Lewis River, North Fork remain unchanged, and are as shown in the 1986 Washington Game Fish Seasons and Catch Limits on page 32.

WSR 86-18-045
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
[Order 86-89—Filed August 29, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to personal use rules.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is the harvestable quota of coho salmon has been taken.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 29, 1986.

By Russell W. Cahill
for William R. Wilkerson
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-57-16000D COLUMBIA RIVER. Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 220-57-160, effective 12:01 a.m. September 1 through 11:59 p.m. September 6, 1986, it is unlawful to fish for or possess salmon taken for personal use from those waters of the Columbia River downstream from the Megler-Astoria Bridge.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed effective 12:01 a.m. September 1, 1986:

WAC 220-57-16000C COLUMBIA RIVER. (86-82)

WSR 86-18-046
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
[Order 86-90—Filed August 29, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to commercial fishing regulations.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is openings in Area 7B provide opportunity to harvest remaining surplus chinook. Openings in Area 12 and 12B provide opportunity to harvest non-Indian chinook allocations.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 29, 1986.

By Russell W. Cahill
for William R. Wilkerson
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-47-707 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY. Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 220-47 WAC, effective 12:01 PM, August 29, 1986, until further notice, it is unlawful to take, fish for, or possess salmon for commercial purposes taken from the following Puget Sound Salmon Management and Catch Reporting Areas except in accordance with the following restrictions:

Areas 4B, 5, 6C – Under control of Pacific Salmon Commission. Drift gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open.

Areas 6, 6A, 7, 7A – Under control of Pacific Salmon Commission. Gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open.

*Area 7B – Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish from 6:00 PM to 9:00 AM August 29 through the morning of August 30, and the night of September 1 through the morning of September 2. Fishery exclusion zones applicable to Area 7B commercial fisheries are described in WAC 220-47-307.

*Areas 12 and 12B – Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish from 6:00 PM to 9:00 AM nightly, September 1 through the morning of September 4 and purse seines using the 5-inch strip may fish from 5:00 AM to 9:00 PM daily September 2 through September 4. That portion of Area 12 east of a line from Lone Rock to the navigational marker off the north of Big Beef Creek thence, southerly to the tip of the outermost northern headland of Little Beef Creek remains closed to fishing. Additional fishing exclusion zones applicable to the Area 12B fishery are described in WAC 220-47-307.

Areas 6B, 6D, 7C, 7D, 7E, 8, 8A, 8D, 9, 9A, 10, 10A, 10C, 10D, 10E, 10F, 10G, 11, 11A, 12A, 12C, 12D, 13, 13A, 13C, 13D, 13E, 13F, 13G, 13H, 13I, 13J, and 13K and all freshwater areas – Closed.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed effective August 29, 1986.

WAC 220-47-706 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY ORDER NO. 86-88

WSR 86-18-047
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
 [Order 86-91—Filed August 29, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to commercial fishing regulations.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is restrictions in Areas 4B, 5, 6, 6C provide protection for Puget Sound and Canadian chinook stocks while allowing a limited effort, limited impact immobile set net fishery. Restrictions in 6A, 7, 7A provide protection for Puget Sound and Canadian chinook stocks. Restrictions in 10C, 10D, 10F, 10G and Cedar River provide protection for Lake Washington sockeye. Restrictions in the Dungeness River provide protection for summer/fall chinook. Restrictions in Area 12 provide protection for chinook returning to the Big Beef Creek experimental station. Restrictions in Areas 13A and the Nooksack and White rivers and Minter Creek provide protection for Puget Sound spring chinook stocks. Restrictions in Area 8 and the Skagit River, provide protection for chinook and Baker River sockeye. Restrictions in Area 7C and the Samish River provide protection for chinook returning to the Samish Hatchery. Restrictions in Area 10A provide protection for local summer/fall chinook. Restrictions in the Duwamish-Green, Hoko, Lyre, Pysht and the Sekiu rivers provide protection for summer/fall chinook. Restrictions in Area 6D and the Stillaguamish River provide protection for spring and summer/fall chinook. Restrictions in Area 7E provide protection for summer/fall chinook. Restrictions in Area 10 protect summer/fall chinook returning to the Suquamish Hatchery.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 29, 1986.

By Russell W. Cahill
for William R. Wilkerson
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-28-608 PUGET SOUND COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY RESTRICTIONS. *Effective August 31, 1986, it is unlawful for treaty Indian fishermen to take, fish for, or possess salmon for commercial purposes taken from the following Puget Sound*

Salmon Management and Catch Reporting Areas in accordance with the following restrictions:

Areas 4B, 5, 6, 6C, – Effective through September 6, drift gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open. Additional regulations pertaining to troll fishing in Area 4B may be found in WAC 220-28-01000A.

Areas 6A, 7, 7A – Effective through September 6, gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open.

Area 6D – Effective through September 20, closed to all commercial fishing.

Area 7C – Closed to all commercial fishing.

Area 7E – Effective through September 13, closed to all commercial fishing.

Area 8 and the Skagit River – (1) Below Mt. Vernon Bridge, effective through October 25, closed to all commercial fishing; (2) Mt. Vernon Bridge to Gilligan Creek, effective through November 1, closed to all commercial fishing; and (3) upstream of Gilligan Creek, effective until further notice, closed to all commercial fishing.

Area 10 – Effective until further notice, closed to all commercial fishing northwest of a line from the flashing buoy at the entrance to Agate Passage to the flashing light at the end of the Indianola Dock.

Area 10A – Effective through August 31, closed to all commercial fishing.

Area 10C – Effective until further notice, closed to all commercial fishing.

Area 10D – Effective through October 4, gill nets restricted to 6-1/2-inch minimum mesh, and other gear must release sockeye when open. Effective until further notice, closed to all commercial fishing in that portion within 250 yards of the eastern and northern shorelines of Lake Sammamish between the Sammamish River and Issaquah Creek.

Area 10F – Effective through September 13, gill nets restricted to 6-1/2-inch minimum mesh, and other gear must release sockeye when open.

Area 10G – Effective through September 27, gill nets restricted to 6-1/2-inch minimum mesh, and other gear must release sockeye when open.

Area 12 – Effective through September 6, closed to all commercial fishing east of a line from Lone Rock southwest to the navigational light off the mouth of Big Beef Creek and thence southerly to the tip of the outermost northern headland of Little Beef Creek.

Area 13A – Effective through August 31, closed to all commercial fishing in those waters within a 1,000-foot radius from the outer oyster stakes off Minter Creek and Minter Bay.

Dungeness River – Effective through September 20, closed to all commercial fishing.
Duwamish/Green Rivers – Effective until further notice, closed to all commercial fishing.
Hoko, Lyre, Pysht, and Sekiu River – Effective through September 27, closed to all commercial fishing.
Nooksack River – Upstream of confluence of forks, effective through September 27, closed to all commercial fishing.
Cedar and Samish River – Closed to all commercial fishing until further notice.
Stillaguamish River – Effective through September 20, closed to all commercial fishing.
White River and Minter Creek – Effective through September 27, closed to all commercial fishing.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed effective August 31, 1986.

WAC 220-28-607 PUGET SOUND COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY RESTRICTIONS ORDER NO. 86-80

WSR 86-18-048
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF PERSONNEL
(Personnel Board)
 [Filed August 29, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the State Personnel Board intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning:

- Amd WAC 356-05-500 Workweek.
- Amd WAC 356-10-060 Allocation—Request for review.
- Amd WAC 356-15-030 Overtime provisions and compensation.
- Amd WAC 356-26-060 Certification—General methods;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Thursday, October 9, 1986, in the Board Hearings Room, Department of Personnel, 600 South Franklin, Olympia, WA 98507-1789, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 41.06.040.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 41.06.150.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 7, 1986.

Dated: August 27, 1986
 By: Leonard Nord
 Secretary

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Amending WAC 356-05-500, Workweek.

Purpose: Defines the workweek and, for employees in scheduled standard work period positions, prescribes when the workweek shall begin.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150.

Summary: The proposed change would delete the requirement that the workweek begin at the scheduled start of the first shift of the scheduled standard work period employee's five uniform work shifts.

Reasons: The proposed change will enable supervisors to make minor adjustments in work schedules without encroaching on the previous 168 hour workweek and, thereby incurring an overtime obligation. The determination of the workweek is a decision that should be left with agency management. The preemption of this authority inflates the state's overtime costs by forcing agencies to pay overtime to employees who, for reasons of program need or personal convenience, change to a work schedule requiring an earlier starting time. This proposal would bring the merit system rules into conformity with rules adopted by the Higher Education Personnel Board as well as other public employers governed by the Fair Labor Standards Act.

Responsibility for Drafting: Arthur J. Morse, Personnel Manager, Department of Transportation, Transportation Building, Mailstop KF-01, Olympia, WA 98504, phone 753-6862; Implementation: All state agencies; and Enforcement: Department of Personnel and the Personnel Appeals Board.

Proposed by: Department of Transportation, governmental agency.

Comments: Any change in an employee's work schedule that encroaches on his/her old workweek will require the payment of overtime irrespective of the reason for the schedule change. Schedule adjustments promoted by a program need, or the transfer or promotion of an employee are viewed in the same light. Even where the employee requests an earlier starting time for reasons of personal convenience, agencies must pay overtime if the change causes the employee to work more than 40 hours in the previous workweek. To minimize this overtime liability, state agencies should be given the authority to determine when the employee's workweek begins.

Amending WAC 356-10-060, Allocation—Request for review.

Purpose: Outlines procedures for requesting an informal review of an allocation decision.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150.

Summary: Proposed change would place a limitation on the number of times an informal review hearing could be rescheduled. Also would allow an automatic withdrawal of a review if the requesting party fails to show up at the scheduled review.

Reasons: Presently, there is no limitation on the number of times a person may request an informal review to be rescheduled. Also, there is no time frame in which the requesting party must request a review to be rescheduled. This has resulted in persons calling to reschedule after a review hearing was to take place, rescheduling

reviews over and over, and also nonattendance at hearings without notice. This impacts the workload of the Department of Personnel review staff as well as impacting those persons waiting to have their requests for review scheduled.

Responsibility for Drafting: D. J. Patin, Personnel Analyst, Department of Personnel, 825 East 5th, Mailstop EY-11, Olympia, WA 98504, phone 586-1769; Implementation and Enforcement: Department of Personnel.

Proposed by: Department of Personnel, governmental agency.

Amending WAC 356-15-030, Overtime provisions and compensation.

Purpose: Outlines reasons for granting overtime and the methods in which employees shall be compensated for overtime hours worked.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150.

Summary: Proposal allows youth development and conservation corps camp supervisors to accumulate up to 480 hours of exchange time.

Reasons: Camp supervisors work six week camp sessions without any opportunity to utilize leave or exchange time. During such a session they earn 432 hours of exchange time. Without this exception they would be limited to 174 hours.

Responsibility for Drafting: Gail Salisbury, Personnel Analyst, Department of Personnel, 600 South Franklin, Mailstop FE-11, Olympia, WA 98507-1789, phone 753-5383; Implementation and Enforcement: Department of Personnel.

Proposed by: Department of Personnel, governmental agency.

Amending WAC 356-26-060, Certification—General methods.

Purpose: To provide guidelines and procedures for the certification of names from job registers.

Statutory Authority: RCW 41.06.150.

Summary: Amend subsection (7) to give the director of personnel or designee greater latitude in certifying names for hard-to-fill job vacancies.

Reasons: Subsection (7) currently allows the director or designee to certify additional names, but only for clerical job classes. The proposed amendment would allow the same flexibility for other classes that also are hard to fill for reasons such as isolated work location, undesirable working conditions, etc.

Responsibility for Drafting: D. J. Patin, Personnel Analyst, Department of Personnel, 825 East 5th, Mailstop EY-11, Olympia, WA 98504, phone 586-1769; Implementation: All client agencies of the Department of Personnel; and Enforcement: Department of Personnel.

Proposed by: Department of Personnel, governmental agency.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 209, filed 8/10/84)

WAC 356-05-500 WORKWEEK. A regular recurring period of 168 hours beginning at a time determined by the appointing authority and continuing for seven consecutive 24-hour periods. ~~((For scheduled standard work period positions the workweek begins at the scheduled starting time of the first shift of the employee's uniform shifts.))~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 163, filed 11/16/81)

WAC 356-10-060 ALLOCATION—REQUEST FOR REVIEW. A review by the director of personnel or designee of the allocation or reallocation of a position may be requested by the incumbent in the position at the time the reallocation was requested, or on the date the allocation decision was issued, or at the conclusion of a class study, or by the agency director as follows:

(1) The written request for a review must be filed with the director of personnel within ~~((30))~~ thirty calendar days following notification of the effective date of the action and must contain the reasons and basis for the review.

(2) The director of personnel or designee shall acknowledge receipt of the request and send a copy of the request to the agency.

(3) The agency shall make every effort to resolve the disagreement through agency procedures.

(4) During the review, the director of personnel or designee shall conduct a hearing and may investigate and obtain such information as may be deemed necessary.

(5) Within ~~((30))~~ thirty days of the receipt of the request for review, the director of personnel or designee shall set a date for a hearing and shall notify the incumbent employee, employing agency, ~~((employee organization, and))~~ designated department of personnel analyst ~~((: PROVIDED, That)), and the employee organization or representative, providing one has been identified by the incumbent employee. The notice shall not be less than ((20)) twenty calendar days. The notified parties will have three work days following receipt of the notice to request rescheduling of the hearing, which will be granted up to two times. Granting requests beyond the three work day period or a third request is not mandatory, and is at the discretion of the director of personnel or designee. Nonattendance at the scheduled review by the party that requested the review will constitute an automatic withdrawal of the review request. The hearing shall be informal and any of the above designated parties may present their views. The director of personnel or designee will enter a written determination and provide each of the participating parties with a copy.~~

(6) An employee or agency may appeal the determination of the director of personnel or designee to the state personnel appeals board as provided in Title 358 WAC.

(7) Allocation or reallocation reviews which result from a class-wide or broader position survey need not be heard until the director of personnel or designee has had a reasonable period of time to reexamine the position in question and all pertinent facts.

(8) Wherever possible, agencies shall continue employee's duties unchanged, pending an allocation decision.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 248, filed 5/28/86, effective 7/1/86)

WAC 356-15-030 OVERTIME PROVISIONS AND COMPENSATION. (1) The following conditions constitute overtime:

(a) For full-time employees, work in excess of the workshift within the work day.

(b) Work in excess of forty working hours in one workweek or eighty working hours in a scheduled fourteen consecutive day period as authorized under WAC 356-15-020 (2)(a)(ii).

(c) Work on a holiday (except Sunday when it is within the assigned workshift).

(d) Work on a scheduled day off.

(e) Time worked in excess of the 28-day work period by law enforcement positions.

(2) Scheduled work period employees shall receive overtime compensation for work which meets subsection (1)(a) through (d) of this section. However, an agency is not obligated to pay overtime due to a change in the work day or workweek, when such change is in response to a written request from an employee for employee convenience, and the employee still works no more than forty hours during a workweek.

(3) Nonscheduled work period employees shall receive overtime compensation for work which meets subsection (1)(b) through (d) of this section and may be paid overtime compensation for work which meets subsection (1)(a) of this section.

(4) Law enforcement positions have a one hundred sixty-hour, twenty-eight-day work period, rather than a forty-hour workweek.

(a) When the combination of credited work hours (vacation, sick leave, holidays, or compensatory time) and actual work hours exceeds one hundred sixty hours, the employee shall be compensated at time and one-half rates in cash or compensatory time at the option of the agency.

(b) Overtime compensation for actual work in excess of one hundred seventy-one hours in a work period may be in the form of compensatory time off if the employee and the agency agree.

(c) Assigned, actual work on a holiday shall be considered as work in excess of one hundred sixty hours.

(d) For the positions receiving assignment pay for an extended work period, the following special provisions apply:

(i) These law enforcement classes or positions have a one hundred seventy-one-hour, twenty-eight-day work period, for which they receive four ranges (approximately ten percent) above the base salary range.

(ii) When the combination of credited work hours and actual work hours exceeds one hundred seventy-one hours, the employee shall be compensated at time and one-half rates. Compensation may be in the form of compensatory time off if the employee and the agency agree.

(iii) Assigned, actual work on a holiday shall be considered as work in excess of one hundred seventy-one hours.

(5) Exceptions work period employees are not required to be compensated beyond their regular monthly rate of pay for work which meets subsection (1)(a) through (d) of this section. However, they may be compensated or granted exchange time for any of those conditions if their appointing authority deems it appropriate.

(a) If overtime compensation is authorized, the appointing authority may fix the rate, not to exceed the overtime rate (WAC 356-05-231). As indicated in subsection (5) of this section, the agency and the employee may agree to use compensatory time off in lieu of cash; in that event, the rules covering liquidation of compensatory time apply.

(b) Exchange time may be authorized for any number of hours worked beyond the exceptions work period employee's normal hours of work. For those hours authorized, the rate shall be equal hours off for those worked. Exchange time can be accrued to a limit determined by each agency, not to exceed one hundred seventy-four hours. The exchange time accrual for incumbents in the class of youth development and conservation corps camp supervisor may be increased to four hundred eighty hours by the employing agency.

(c) Employees must be allowed, and may be required, to use all exchange time in excess of eighty hours prior to each April 1 and October 1, or other semiannual dates fixed by an agency and made known to its employees and the director of personnel by that agency's director. As an exception to the above, the director of personnel may establish a single annual date based on the special needs of the requesting agency. Employees must exhaust their exchange time before using compensatory time or vacation leave unless this would result in a loss of accumulated leave.

(d) Employee absence on approved exchange time shall be considered as time worked for payroll purposes.

(e) Exchange time has no cash liquidation value. However, employees voluntarily terminating from state service or transferring to another agency must be offered the opportunity to postpone their cessation of employment by the granting agency until their accumulated, authorized exchange time has been used. Employees who were separated due to a reduction in force or disability separation are entitled to reinstatement of accumulated exchange time if they are rehired on a permanent basis by the granting agency within three years of separation.

(6) Overtime shall be compensated in accord with the provisions of WAC 356-14-230 through 356-14-265.

(7) Part time employees whose positions are in job classes designated as scheduled, nonscheduled, or law enforcement shall receive overtime compensation for work which meets subsection (1)(b) or (c) of this section.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 238, filed 11/18/85)

WAC 356-26-060 CERTIFICATION—GENERAL METHODS. Upon receipt of a request for certification, the director of personnel shall normally certify to the appointing authority a list of names equal in number to four more than there are vacancies to be filled from the ranked registers except:

(1) One name will constitute a complete certification when referrals are made from the agency reduction-in-force register, the service-wide reduction-in-force register, or the dual agency reversion register. When an appointing authority requests a selective certification for specialized qualifications, the eligible candidate must meet the selective criteria in order to be referred to the position, provided:

(a) The criteria were approved when the position was established, reallocated, or last filled; or

(b) The specialized qualifications were previously required for a classification that was later merged with other classifications that did not require them; or

(c) It has been determined that the position involves new duties that would warrant future selective certification. Such selective criteria shall not be applied for certification purposes until six months after the department of personnel approves the selective criteria for the position.

(d) In the case of (a), (b), or (c) of this subsection, the director of personnel or designee must determine that the specialized qualifications are still required for successful job performance and cannot be learned within a reasonable length of time.

(2) Where all names are certified exclusively from an open competitive register, the director of personnel may certify in ranked order up to all of the names from the open competitive register: PROVIDED, That the appointing authority shall select from those eligibles available from the highest ranking names which constitute five names per vacancy to be filled.

(3) When more than one candidate has the same examination rating and when necessary to limit the number of names to four more than the number of vacancies, ties shall be broken by lot upon each instance of certification.

(4) An unranked register may be used to complete a certification. In such cases, all names appearing on that register shall be certified. Subsequent unranked registers shall not be used until the certification is again incomplete.

(5) The director of personnel, upon request and after consultation with the employing department and employee representatives, may declare positions, groups of positions or classes of positions as training positions. Such positions may be filled from the next lower level register in the class series as designated by the director of personnel with employees being automatically advanced after completion of one year's service in the lower level class.

(6) When the vacancy to be filled is identified as part of an agency's affirmative action goals as established by their approved affirmative action plan, the director of personnel may, except where there are employees on the reduction in force register, refer up to three additional names per vacancy of individuals who are on existing registers and who are members of the protected groups under Title VII of the 1964 Civil Rights Act and chapter 49.60 RCW, state law against discrimination, or for federal contract compliance purposes, veterans and disabled veterans as defined in the Vietnam Era Veteran's Readjustment Act of 1974, Title 41, CFR, Chapter 60, Part 60-250, "Affirmative Action Obligations of Contractors and Subcontractors for Disabled Veterans and Veterans of the Vietnam Era." This action may be taken when necessary to comply with the best standards of personnel administration as contemplated by chapter 41.06 RCW.

Agencies shall request from the department of personnel a determination prior to the utilization of this rule as to whether there are members of the protected groups on existing registers. If there are no such members on the registers, active recruitment will be initiated.

(7) ~~((The director of personnel or designee may refer, for the following classes, a sufficient number of names to assure that requesting agencies have not less than five names available to fill the position:~~

Messenger clerk
Receptionist
Clerk 1
Clerk 2
Clerk-Steno 1 visually handicapped
Clerk-Steno 2 visually handicapped
Clerk-Typist 1
Clerk-Typist 2
Dictating machine transcriber
Word processing operator 1
Word processing operator 2
Clerk-Steno 1
Clerk-Steno 2
PBX operator
Data entry operator 1
Data entry operator 2))

When one or more of the following conditions exist, the director of personnel or designee may certify a sufficient number of names to assure that the requesting agency has not less than five names available for consideration:

(a) The position is in an isolated or undesirable location.

(b) The position has undesirable working conditions.

(c) The agency needs to fill several positions in the class.

(d) One or more agencies have had difficulty filling positions in the class.

(e) The director of personnel or designee determines that such certification is necessary to provide the requesting agency with efficient service.

If such certification contains five or more available promotional candidates, agencies shall appoint from the promotional candidates.

(8) Permanent employees certified from a ranked register for consideration of appointment shall be notified by the agency at the time of the referral. Upon appointment the agency shall advise those employees certified but not appointed of the action taken.

WSR 86-18-049
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Institutions)

[Order 2418—Filed August 29, 1986]

I, Lee D. Bomberger, acting director of the Division of Administration and Personnel, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to division of developmental disabilities services, amending chapter 275-27 WAC.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-14-060 filed with the code reviser on June 27, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 71.20.070 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 27, 1986.

By Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

~~(BUREAU)~~ Chapter 275-27 WAC
~~DISABILITIES SERVICES ((AND HOME AID RE-SOURCES))~~ DIVISION OF DEVELOPMENTAL
RULES

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2124, filed 7/18/84)

WAC 275-27-050 DETERMINATION FOR NECESSARY SERVICES. (1) Within sixty days from the date of the division's decision that an individual is developmentally disabled, the appropriate division field services office shall evaluate the individual's needs to determine which services, if any, are necessary to serve the client's best interest.

(2) Upon completion of the evaluation, an individual service plan with determination of necessary services shall be prepared pursuant to WAC 275-27-060 or other department forms as appropriate.

(3) Determination of necessary services shall not be regarded as a guarantee of service authorization or delivery. Service authorization and delivery of services

shall be ~~((based on availability of services and/or funding))~~ pursuant to WAC 275-27-230.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2124, filed 7/18/84)

WAC 275-27-060 INDIVIDUAL SERVICE PLAN. (1) The division shall develop a written individual service plan for each person determined eligible for division services within sixty days. Interim services may be provided if deemed necessary.

(2) ~~((The))~~ An individual service plan shall be based on an assessment of the individual's needs and will specify the services adjudged to be in the best interests of the client and meet the individual's habilitation needs. The individual service plan ((and authorization of services)) shall be in the form and manner specified by the director.

(3) A client, his or her parent or parents, or guardian may request review or modification of the service plan at any time based on changed circumstances.

(4) Development, review, and significant modifications of the individual service plan shall include, to the maximum extent possible, appropriate division staff, the client, his or her parent or parents or guardian, and personal representative or representatives of the agency or facility which is, or will be, primarily responsible for the implementation of specific provisions of the plan.

(5) An individual service plan is a planning document, and is not an authorization for services. A plan does not guarantee the authorization or delivery of services contained therein. The authorization of such services is pursuant to WAC 275-27-230.

NEW SECTION

WAC 275-27-220 FAMILY SUPPORT SERVICES. (1) The intent of family support services is to reduce or eliminate the need for out-of-home residential placements of clients wherein the in-home placement is in the client's best interest, to allow clients to live in the most independent setting possible, and to have access to services best suited to clients' needs.

(2) Family support services include, but are not limited to, the following services:

- (a) Emergency or planned respite care;
- (b) Attendant care;
- (c) Therapeutic services, including physical therapy, occupational therapy, behavior management therapy, and communication therapy;

(d) The purchase, rental, loan or refurbishment of specialized equipment, environmental modifications, and other adaptations;

(e) Other service pursuant to subsection (1) of this section approved by the director or designee.

(3) Family support services are time-limited. Services are authorized for a specified period. A service authorization shall state the type of, amount, and period (duration) of service. Each authorization constitutes a new service for a new period. If requested family support services are not authorized, such actions are deemed a denial of services. Family support services may be authorized below the level requested for the period. If during

the authorized service period, family support services are reduced or terminated below the levels specified in service authorizations, such actions are deemed a reduction or termination of services.

(4) Service priorities shall be used to determine monthly family support service authorizations. Factors used to establish the service priorities include the following:

(a) The client's need for assistance with personal care (bathing, dressing, feeding, mobility, toileting, etc.);

(b) The client's special medical support requirements (apnea monitor, gastrostomy, tracheotomy, gavage feeding, heart monitor, respirator, ventilator, etc.);

(c) The client's risk of behavioral episodes which may result in physical injury to the client or others, and/or in damage to property;

(d) The number of primary care givers available to assist the client and/or family;

(e) The availability to the client of private, local, other state, or federal resources;

(f) The likelihood of out-of-home placement; and

(g) The client and/or family's relative need for family support services when compared with other clients and/or families' need for services.

(5) Family support services shall be authorized in accordance with policies established by the director. Monthly service authorizations shall be based on:

(a) Service requests which are for family support services prescribed in subsection (2) of this section;

(b) Service priorities based on the factors prescribed in subsection (4) of this section;

(c) Availability of requested family support services; and

(d) Monthly regional family support services funding allocations, except for emergencies as defined in WAC 275-27-020(11).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2124, filed 7/18/84)

WAC 275-27-230 AUTHORIZATION OF SERVICES. (1) The division's field services section shall be responsible for authorizing services received by all eligible division clients ~~((from))~~ including, but not limited to:

(a) Placement to and from residential habilitation centers(;;);

(b) Other residential facilities, including, but not limited to, community IMR's, group homes, tenant support, and alternative living;

(c) Family support services; and

(d) Nonresidential programs.

(2) Authorization of services shall be based on the availability of funding and/or services.

(3) Determination of services to be authorized shall include, to the maximum extent feasible, the client, his or her parent or parents or guardian, and all other responsible parties.

~~((3))~~ (4) The emergency admission of any individual to a residential habilitation center shall not exceed thirty days.

~~((4))~~ (5) A temporary admission of any individual to a residential habilitation center for respite care or diagnostic services shall not exceed thirty days.

~~((5))~~ (6) Placement by the division in a county-funded service is limited as follows:

(a) The service must be included in a state-approved county plan;

(b) Placement and funding is limited to those cases where the local school district is not responsible for provision of county-funded services: PROVIDED, That:

(i) The division shall aid the client in obtaining required services from the local school district;

(ii) Exceptions may be granted by the division for county-funded services during nonschool months.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2124, filed 7/18/84)

WAC 275-27-400 ((REASONABLE NOTICE AND CONSULTATION) NOTIFICATION. (1) ~~((A notification of department decision with respect to eligibility, development, or modification of the individual service plan, proposed services, termination of division services, placements, and admission or readmission to, or discharge from residential habilitation centers, shall be delivered to the client and the parent or parents, guardian, or advocate of such individual by mail or in person. Termination of the division services shall not be implemented for a period of thirty days after notification of the department's decision to terminate services. Other decisions of the department may be acted upon by the department even though the thirty-day period in which to appeal pursuant to WAC 275-27-500(1) has not expired provided the client, or parent of a client under age eighteen, or guardian authorized to determine residential placements for the client may at any time, withdraw consent to any division service.))~~ The department shall notify the client or applicant, the parent when the client or applicant is a minor, and the guardian when the client or applicant is an adult, of the following decisions:

(a) Denial or termination of eligibility set forth in WAC 275-27-030;

(b) Development or modification of the individual service plan set forth in WAC 275-27-060;

(c) Authorization, denial, reduction, or termination of services set forth in WAC 275-27-230; and

(d) Admission or readmission to, or discharge from, a residential habilitation center.

(2) The notice shall set forth ~~((a statement of the reasons for the decision, and information pertaining to such person's or persons' right to))~~ appeal rights pursuant to WAC 275-27-500 and a statement that the client's case manager can be contacted for an explanation of the reasons for the ((decision)) action.

(3) The department shall provide at least thirty days' advance notice of action to terminate a client's eligibility, terminate or reduce a client's service, or discharge a client from a residential habilitation center to the community, except for the transfer or removal of a client from a service set forth in WAC 275-27-500 (5)(f).

~~((3))~~ (4) All parties affected by such department decision shall be consulted, whenever possible, during the decision process by the responsible field services regional office in person and/or by telephone.

~~((4))~~ (5) The division shall ensure notification to the school district in which a school-aged child is to be placed when a placement decision is reached.

Reviser's note: RCW 34.04.058 requires the use of underlining and deletion marks to indicate amendments to existing rules. The rule published above varies from its predecessor in certain respects not indicated by the use of these markings.

Reviser's note: The typographical errors in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2122, filed 7/13/84)

WAC 275-27-500 FAIR HEARINGS. ((An applicant or recipient has the right to appeal a division decision regarding eligibility for, development of, or modification of an individual program plan, eligibility for or termination of services, placement and admission to, placement and readmission to, or discharge from a state school. The hearings are governed by the Administrative Procedure Act, the rules in this chapter, and by chapters 10-08 and 388-08 WAC. In case of conflict between this section and chapter 388-08 WAC, the provisions in this chapter take precedence over the rules in chapter 388-08 WAC.))

(1) A client or applicant, the parent when the client or applicant is a minor, and the guardian when the client or applicant is an adult, has the right to appeal the following decision made by the division:

(a) Denial or termination of eligibility set forth in WAC 275-27-030;

(b) Development or modification of the individual service plan set forth in WAC 275-27-060;

(c) Authorization, denial, reduction, or termination of services set forth in WAC 275-27-230;

(d) Admission or readmission to, or discharge from, a residential habilitation center.

(2) Fair hearings are governed by the Administrative Procedure Act, the rules in this chapter, and by chapters 10-08 and 388-08 WAC. In cases of conflict between this chapter and chapter 388-08 WAC, the provisions in this chapter take precedence over the rules in chapter 388-08 WAC.

(3) The request for a fair hearing must be in writing and filed with the DSHS Office of Hearings ((P.O. Box 2465), Olympia, WA 98504)) within thirty days of receipt of the decision the appellant wishes to appeal.

~~((2) A request for a fair hearing may be made by the applicant or recipient, his or her parent when the applicant or recipient is a minor, or by his or her guardian or other authorized representative.~~

~~(3) Except for a decision to return a resident of a state residential school to the community, if the division has not implemented a decision before a written request for a hearing is properly filed, and a request is properly filed, the division shall not implement the decision without the client's or his or her representative's written consent until the earlier of:~~

~~(a) The final administrative decision being made, or~~

~~(b) Until an administrative law judge (or review judge) after notice to the parties rules the appellant has caused an unreasonable delay in the proceedings.))~~

(4) The department shall not implement the following actions while administrative proceedings are pending:

(a) Termination of eligibility;

(b) Reduction or termination of service, except when the action to reduce or terminate the service is based on the availability of funding and/or service; or

(c) Removal or transfer of a client from a service, except when a condition in subsection (5)(f) of this section is present.

(5) The department shall implement the following actions while administrative proceedings are pending:

(a) Denial of eligibility;

(b) Development or modification of an individual service plan;

(c) Denial of service;

(d) Reduction or termination of service when the action to reduce or terminate the service is based on the availability of funding and/or service;

(e) After notification of an administrative law judge's (or review judge) ruling that the appellant has caused an unreasonable delay in the proceedings; or

(f) Removal or transfer of a client from a service when:

(i) An immediate threat to the client's life or health is present;

(ii) The client's service provider is no longer able to provide services due to termination of the provider's contract; decertification of the provider; nonrenewal of provider's contract; revocation of provider's license; or emergency license suspension; or

(iii) The client, the parent when the client is a minor, or the guardian when the client is an adult, approves the decision.

(6) When the appellant requests a hearing to appeal a decision to return a resident of a state residential school to the community, the procedures specified in RCW 72-.33.161 shall govern the proceedings. These include:

(a) A placement decision shall not be implemented during any period during which an appeal can be taken or while an appeal is pending and undecided unless:

(i) The client's or his or her representative gives written consent, or

(ii) The administrative law judge (or review judge) after notice to the parties rules the appellant has caused an unreasonable delay in the proceedings.

(b) The burden of proof is on the department.

(c) The burden of proof is whether the specific placement proposed by the department is in the best interests of the resident.

(d) When a party files a petition for administrative review of an initial decision, the secretary shall rule on the petition and render the review decision. The secretary cannot delegate the authority to make the final decision. The secretary may get advice and assistance from agency employees who have not participated in the proceedings in any manner and whose duties do not include investigative or prosecutory functions and the secretary's review shall be confined to the record.

~~((5))~~ (7) The initial decision should be made within sixty days of the department's receipt of the request for a hearing. When a party files a petition for administrative review, the review decision should be made within

sixty days of the department's receipt of the petition. The decision-rendering time is extended by as many days as the hearing is continued on motion by, or with the assent of, the appellant.

Reviser's note: RCW 34.04.058 requires the use of underlining and deletion marks to indicate amendments to existing rules. The rule published above varies from its predecessor in certain respects not indicated by the use of these markings.

Reviser's note: The typographical errors in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

WAC 275-27-210 HOME AID RESOURCES.

WSR 86-18-050
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
[Order 494—Filed August 30, 1986]

I, Brian J. Boyle, Commissioner of Public Lands, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to an emergency rule restricting industrial operations, activities on forest lands, and burning on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

I, Brian J. Boyle, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is due to changes in weather condition lessening fire danger some modifications are necessary in certain shutdown zones.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 76.04.315 and 76.04.325 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 30, 1986.

By Brian J. Boyle
Commissioner of Public Lands

NEW SECTION

WAC 332-26-086b LOGGING RESTRICTIONS
Effective immediately and through midnight Tuesday, September 2, 1986, the following restrictions will be in effect in the identified areas on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

Restrictions:

1) The operating of power saws, except those at loading sites on landings, is prohibited from 11:00 A.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

2) The operating of power saws at loading sites on landings is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

3) The operating of tractors, mechanized yarding, mechanized loading, mechanized hauling of any product or material, mechanized treatment of slash, blasting, welding and operating acetylene or other torches with open flame is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

4) The operating of any other spark-emitting equipment not specifically mentioned in sections (1) (2) or (3) is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

5) A one-hour fire watch is required at the site(s) of sections (1) through (4) after ceasing operating at the required times.

6) All outdoor burning, by permit or rule burn, and the use of burning barrels, is suspended.

7) During the shutdown period of 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M., all persons are excluded from logging operating areas and areas of logging slash except those persons present in the interest of fire protection.

Affected areas:

Olympic Area:

Shutdown zone 649 in Clallam, Jefferson and Grays Harbor Counties; shutdown zone 650 in Clallam, Jefferson and Grays Harbor Counties; shutdown zone 651L in Grays Harbor County; shutdown zone 653 in Clallam and Jefferson Counties; shutdown zone 654 in Jefferson County.

Central Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Mason County; shutdown zones 659 and 660 in Lewis County.

South Puget Sound Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Mason County; shutdown zone 654 in Mason, Kitsap, Pierce, King and Snohomish Counties; shutdown zone 657 in Snohomish, King and Pierce Counties; shutdown zone 659 in Snohomish, King and Pierce Counties.

Northwest Area:

Shutdown zone 653 in Island, San Juan, Whatcom and Skagit Counties; shutdown zone 656 in Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and King Counties.

Southwest Area:

Shutdown zone 660 in Cowlitz, Skamania and Clark Counties; shutdown zone 621E in Clark and Skamania Counties.

Southeast Area:

Shutdown zone 624 in Klickitat and Yakima Counties; shutdown zone 631 in Asotin, Garfield, Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 633 in Asotin, Garfield Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 675 in Yakima and Kittitas Counties; shutdown zone 680 in Yakima and Kittitas Counties; shutdown zone 681 in Klickitat and Yakima Counties; shutdown zone 682 in Chelan County.

Northeast Area:

Shutdown zone 678 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 679 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 684 in Okanogan County; shutdown zone 685 in Okanogan, Ferry and Lincoln Counties; shutdown zone 686 in Stevens, Lincoln and Spokane Counties; shutdown zone 687 in Stevens and Spokane Counties; shutdown zone 688 in Stevens, Pend Oreille and Spokane Counties.

Reviser's note: Errors of punctuation or spelling in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

- 1) WAC 332-26-086a Logging Restrictions

NEW SECTION

WAC 332-26-087b GENERAL LOGGING SHUTDOWN Effective immediately through midnight Tuesday, September 2, 1986, the following restrictions will be in effect in the identified areas on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

Restrictions:

- 1) The operating of all power saws is prohibited.
- 2) The operating of tractors, mechanized yarding, mechanized loading, mechanized hauling of any product or material, mechanized treatment of slash, blasting, welding and operating of acetylene or other torches with open flame is prohibited.
- 3) The operating of any other spark-emitting equipment not specifically mentioned is prohibited.
- 4) All persons are excluded from logging operating areas and areas of logging slash, except those persons present in the interest of fire protection.
- 5) All burning, by permit or rule burn, and the use of burning barrels is prohibited.

Affected areas for these restrictions:**Northwest Area:**

Shutdown zone 658 in Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and King Counties.

Olympic Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Jefferson and Clallam Counties.

Southeast Area:

Shutdown zone 677 in Chelan County.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

- 1) WAC 332-26-087a GENERAL LOGGING SHUTDOWN.

WSR 86-18-051**WITHDRAWAL OF PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY**

[Filed September 2, 1986]

Notice of withdrawal, proposed revisions to chapter 173-555 WAC, Little Spokane water resources management regulation, Notice No. WSR 86-13-066, filed June 18, 1986.

Notice is hereby given that the Washington State Department of Ecology has decided not to adopt the above-referenced rule. The proposed rule is being withdrawn from consideration until further notice.

Any questions should be addressed to Ms. Cynthia Nelson, Water Resources Program, Department of Ecology, Mailstop PV-11, Olympia, Washington 98504-8711, (206) 459-6116.

Phillip C. Johnson
Deputy Director, Programs

WSR 86-18-052**ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF ECOLOGY**

[Order DE 86-15—Filed September 2, 1986]

I, Phillip C. Johnson, deputy director of programs for the Department of Ecology, do promulgate and adopt at Lacey, Washington, the annexed rules relating to Pacific County, WAC 173-19-330.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-17-071 filed with the code reviser on August 19, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 90.58.120 and 90.58.200 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 28, 1986.

By Phillip C. Johnson
Deputy Director, Programs

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 84-32, filed 9/27/84)

WAC 173-19-330 PACIFIC COUNTY. Pacific County master program approved April 8, 1975. Revision approved June 26, 1980. Revision approved March 16, 1982. Revision approved September 26, 1984. Revision approved August 28, 1986.

WSR 86-18-053
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
 [Order 495—Filed September 2, 1986]

I, Brian J. Boyle, Commissioner of Public Lands, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to an emergency rule restricting industrial operations, activities on forest lands, and burning on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

I, Brian J. Boyle, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is due to changes in weather conditions some areas of the state still require precautions and restrictions to prevent a fire from starting.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 76.04.315 and 76.04.325 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED September 2, 1986.

By Brian J. Boyle
 Commissioner of Public Lands

NEW SECTION

WAC 332-26-086c LOGGING RESTRICTIONS Effective midnight, Tuesday, September 2, 1986, through midnight, Friday, September 5, 1986, the following restrictions will be in effect in the identified areas on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources.

Restrictions:

1) The operating of power saws, except those at loading sites on landings, is prohibited from 11:00 A.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

2) The operating of power saws at loading sites on landings is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

3) The operating of tractors, mechanized yarding, mechanized loading, mechanized hauling of any product or material, mechanized treatment of slash, blasting, welding and operating acetylene or other torches with open flame is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

4) The operating of any other spark-emitting equipment not specifically mentioned in sections (1), (2) or (3) is prohibited from 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M. local time.

5) A one-hour fire watch is required at the site(s) of sections (1) through (4) after ceasing operating at the required times.

6) All outdoor burning, by permit or rule burn, and the use of burning barrels, is suspended.

7) During the shutdown period of 1:00 P.M. until 8:00 P.M., all persons are excluded from logging operating areas and areas of logging slash except those persons present in the interest of fire protection.

Affected areas:

Olympic Area:

Shutdown zone 652 in Clallam and Jefferson Counties.

Northwest Area:

Shutdown zone 658 in Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and King Counties.

Southwest Area:

Shutdown zone 660 in Cowlitz, Skamania and Clark Counties; shutdown zone 621E in Clark and Skamania Counties.

Southeast Area:

Shutdown zone 631 in Asotin, Garfield, Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 633 in Asotin, Garfield, Columbia and Walla Walla Counties; shutdown zone 677 in Chelan County.

Northeast Area:

Shutdown zone 686 in Stevens, Lincoln and Spokane Counties.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

1) WAC 332-26-086b Logging Restrictions

NEW SECTION

WAC 332-26-088 BURNING RESTRICTIONS. Effective midnight Tuesday, September 2, 1986, through midnight, Friday, September 5, 1986, all burning, by permit or rule, burn, is suspended on lands protected by the Department of Natural Resources in the identified areas. Provided, that the use of approved burning barrels is permitted.

Affected Areas:

Northwest Area:

Shutdown zone 653 in Island, San Juan, Whatcom and Skagit Counties; shutdown zone 656 in Whatcom, Skagit, Snohomish and King Counties.

WSR 86-18-054
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING
(Podiatry Board)

[Filed September 2, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Washington State Podiatry Board intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning:

Amd	WAC 308-31-010	Examination.
Amd	WAC 308-31-030	Approved schools of podiatric medicine.
Amd	WAC 308-31-550	Excessive fees;

that the agency will at 1:30 p.m., Friday, October 24, 1986, in the Solarium, 5th Avenue Medical Center, 10560 5th Avenue N.E., Seattle, WA 98125, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 18.22.015 and 18.22.010(5).

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 18.22.015 and section 20, chapter 259, Laws of 1986.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 24, 1986.

Written or oral submissions may also contain data, views, and arguments concerning the effect of the proposed rules or amendments of rules on economic values, pursuant to chapter 43.21H RCW.

The agency reserves the right to modify the text of these proposed rules before the hearing or in response to written or oral comments received before or during the hearing.

The agency may need to change the date for hearing or adoption on short notice. To ascertain that the hearing or adoption will take place as stated in this notice, an interested person may contact the person named below.

Correspondence relating to this notice and the proposed rules should be addressed to:

Barbara Hayes
Assistant Executive Secretary
Department of Licensing
Business and Professions Administration
P.O. Box 9649
Olympia, WA 98504

Dated: September 2, 1986

By: Joyce R. Dolliver
Assistant Attorney General

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title and Numbers of Rule Section(s) or Chapters: WAC 308-31-010 Examinations; 308-31-030 Approved schools of podiatric medicine; and 308-31-550 Excessive fees.

Statutory Authority and Specific Statute(s) that Rule(s) are Intended to Implement: WAC 308-31-010, 308-31-030 and 308-31-550 are proposed under authority of RCW 18.22.015 and are intended to implement RCW 18.22.015 and section 20, chapter 259, Laws of 1986.

Summary of Rule(s): WAC 308-31-010 adds Washington laws regulating podiatrists as an examination area; 308-31-030 lists the approved podiatric schools; and 308-31-550 makes the rule effective only for conduct prior to June 11, 1986.

Reasons Supporting the Proposed Rule(s): WAC 308-31-010 will allow the board to ascertain if podiatrists seeking licensure in this state have knowledge of Washington laws regulating podiatrists; 308-31-030 provides the list of approved schools without having to refer to another list; and 308-31-550 is necessitated by the repeal of RCW 18.22.151(13) as per section 20, chapter 259, Laws of 1986.

Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement of the Rule(s): Barbara Hayes, Assistant Executive Secretary, Business and Professions Administration, P.O. Box 9649, Olympia, WA 98504, (206) 753-2844 comm, 234-2844 scan.

Name of Person or Organization that is Proposing this Rule: Washington State Podiatry Board.

Agency Comments or Recommendations, if any, Regarding Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement and Fiscal Matters Pertaining to These Rule(s): None.

These rules are not necessary to comply with a federal law or state court decision.

Any Other Information that may be of Assistance in Identifying the Rule or its Purpose: None.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: Not required for these rules. The board has reviewed the impact that the adoption of the amendments to WAC 308-31-010, 308-31-030 and 308-31-550 would have on podiatrists. The board finds that a small business impact statement is not required. Podiatrists are classed in SIC Code 804, Offices of Other Health Care Practitioners. As such, they account for less than 10 percent of the health practitioners in this area. Also, they are less than 20 percent of all industries. Finally, any impact that these proposed rules may have is intended to fall equally on all podiatrists.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 418, filed 1/14/83)

WAC 308-31-010 EXAMINATION. (1) It is the determination of the board that after July 6, 1976, all applicants for licensure who have been licensed by examination in another state or who have satisfactorily passed examinations given by the national board of podiatry examiners will be required to pass a written examination in the clinical application of the following subjects:

Dermatology
Biomechanics
Surgery
Medicine
Podiatric medicine
Radiology
Pharmacology
Laboratory procedures

Washington laws regulating podiatrists, including but not limited to chapter 18.22 RCW, chapter 308-31 WAC, and chapter 18.130 RCW.

The examination will be given at least annually, at a time and place designated by the board.

(2) Every applicant for a podiatry license shall be required to pass the examination for such a license with a grade of at least 75%.

(3) The board shall determine the method of grading each examination, and shall apply such method uniformly to all applicants taking that examination.

(4) The board and the department shall not disclose any applicant's examination score to anyone other than the applicant, unless requested to do so in writing by the applicant.

(5) The applicant will be notified, in writing, of his or her examination scores.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 418, filed 1/14/83)

WAC 308-31-030 APPROVED SCHOOLS OF PODIATRIC MEDICINE. For the purpose of the laws relating to podiatric medicine, the board approves ~~((those))~~ the following list of schools of podiatric medicine ~~((listed as accredited schools of podiatric medicine set forth in the list of accredited colleges published as of August, 1980, by the Council on Podiatry Education of the American Podiatry Association))~~: California College of Podiatric Medicine, San Francisco, California; College of Podiatric Medicine and Surgery, Des Moines,

Iowa; New York College of Podiatric Medicine, New York, New York; Ohio College of Podiatric Medicine, Cleveland, Ohio; Pennsylvania College of Podiatric Medicine, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania; Dr. William Scholl College of Podiatric Medicine, Chicago, Illinois.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PL 450, filed 1/4/84)

WAC 308-31-550 EXCESSIVE FEES. Fees charged by podiatrists for professional services rendered to patients must not be excessive. Such fees may not exceed those in accord with the usual, customary and reasonable charges in the particular community. Complaints regarding excessive charges will be evaluated by the board on an individual basis governed by the following definitions of usual, customary and reasonable fees, as used herein:

(1) "Usual" is defined as the usual fee which is charged for a given service by an individual podiatrist in his practice (i.e., his or her own usual fee).

(2) "Customary" is defined as that range of usual fees charged by podiatrists of similar training and experience for the same service within a given metropolitan or specific geographic area.

(3) "Reasonable" is defined as a fee which meets the above two criteria or, in the opinion of the board, is justifiable in the circumstances of the particular case in question. This rule is intended to assist in applying RCW 18.22.151(13), which was repealed effective June 11, 1986; therefore, this rule applies only to conduct prior to June 11, 1986.

WSR 86-18-055

PROPOSED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING

[Filed September 2, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the state of Washington intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning passing grades on all examinations, amending WAC 308-20-171;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Monday, October 20, 1986, in the 1st Floor Examination Room, 1300 Quince Street S.E., Olympia, WA, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 18.16.030(2).

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 18.16.090 and 18.16.020(1).

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 20, 1986.

Dated: August 29, 1986

By: Cynthia J. Jones
Program Manager

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Name of Agency: Department of Licensing.

Purpose: To allow qualified persons to be licensed as cosmetology instructors.

Statutory Authority: RCW 18.16.030(2).

Summary: Revises the passing grade on the cosmetology instructors examination to a scaled score of eighty and deletes details about exam content.

Reason Proposed: Will enhance the Department of Licensing's ability to protect the public.

Responsible Departmental Personnel: In addition to the director of the Department of Licensing, the following Department of Licensing personnel have knowledge of and responsibility for drafting, implementing and enforcing these rules: Chris Robert Rose, Assistant Administrator, 234-3234 scan, 753-3234 comm, and Cynthia J. Jones, Program Manager, 234-1966 scan, 753-1966 comm, 1300 Quince S.E., Olympia, WA 98504.

Proponents: The subject matter of this rule hearing has been proposed by the Department of Licensing with advice from the Washington State Cosmetology, Barber and Manicurist Advisory Board.

Federal Law or Federal or State Court Requirements: Not necessitated as the result of federal law or of federal or state court requirements.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: Not required for this statement.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PL 502, filed 12/13/84)

WAC 308-20-171 PASSING GRADES ON ALL EXAMINATIONS. Passing grades are based on the standard of 100 percent and are determined by the cosmetology/barber/manicurist advisory board.

~~((Effective August 1, 1984, t))~~ The passing grade on the barber, manicurist, and chemical services examinations is 76 percent. An applicant who receives a passing score of not less than 76 percent shall be entitled to a license.

Applicants for a barber license will be required to obtain a passing grade on the barber examination.

Applicants for a manicurist license will be required to obtain a passing grade on the manicurist examination.

Applicants for a cosmetology license will be required to obtain a passing grade on the barber examination, the manicurist examination and the chemical services examination. No one will be licensed to perform chemical services until successfully passing all three examinations.

If a cosmetology applicant passes the barber examination, a barber license will be issued upon request.

If a cosmetology applicant passes the manicurist examination, a manicurist license will be issued upon request. There will be no refund of fees for separate licenses issued. If both barber and manicurist licenses are requested, an additional fee for a manicurist license will be required.

Applicants for cosmetology instructor license will be required to obtain a ~~((90 percent grade))~~ scaled score of eighty on the instructor's examination.

The instructor's examination will cover lesson planning and teaching techniques. ~~((The examination will consist of 200 questions with 45 percent of the questions to be on lesson planning.))~~

WSR 86-18-056

PROPOSED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF

SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES

(Public Assistance)

[Filed September 2, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Social and Health Services intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning periodic review and redetermination of eligibility, amending WAC 388-38-280;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, October 8, 1986, in the Auditorium, OB-2, Olympia,

Washington, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on October 9, 1986.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 74.08.090.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is chapter 74.08 RCW.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 8, 1986.

Correspondence concerning this notice and proposed rules attached should be addressed to:

Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel
Department of Social and Health Services
Mailstop OB 14
Olympia, WA 98504

Interpreters for people with hearing impairments and brailled or taped information for people with visual impairments can be provided. Please contact Administrative Regulations Section, State Office Building #2, 12th and Franklin, Olympia, WA, phone (206) 753-7015 by September 24, 1986. The meeting site is in a location which is barrier free.

Dated: August 28, 1986

By: Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

This statement is filed pursuant to RCW 34.04.025.

Re: WAC 388-38-280.

Purpose of the Rule or Rule Change: To have a yearly face-to-face redetermination for AFDC households. Yearly face-to-face interviews are necessary to comply with federal regulations dated March 18, 1986, CFR 206.10 (a)(9).

Statutory Authority: RCW 74.08.090.

Summary of the Rule or Rule Change: AFDC shall have at least one face-to-face eligibility review yearly.

Person or Persons Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement of the Rule: Roy Uppendahl, Program Manager, DIA, phone 753-4382, mailstop OB-31J.

These rules are necessary to comply with recent federal regulations, 7 CFR 233.20 (a)(3)(ii)(C) and 206.10.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2350, filed 3/20/86)

WAC 388-38-280 PERIODIC REVIEW AND REDETERMINATION OF ELIGIBILITY. (1) A redetermination of eligibility as used in this section means a complete periodic review of all eligibility and need factors.

(2) Chapters 388-28 and 388-33 WAC contain ~~((rules and procedures to keep the))~~ program eligibility and ~~((amount of the legal public assistance grant currently correct for all recipients at all times))~~ need factors. WAC 388-38-200 ~~((contains a description of methods used in establishing and maintaining))~~ describes eligibility.

(3) ~~((To ensure eligibility and correctness of grants and to meet federal requirements.~~

~~((a) AFDC-R and AFDC-FC))~~ AFDC recipients shall have their continued eligibility for such assistance redetermined at least once in every six months of continuous receipt of assistance(;

~~((b) AFDC-E recipients shall have their continued eligibility for such assistance redetermined at least once in every six months of continuous receipt of assistance)). At least one redetermination shall be a face-to-face once every twelve months.~~

~~((4) ((Forms designated by)) The department shall ((be used at the time of)) designate the forms to use during the periodic ((review of)) eligibility review. ((These)) The forms shall:~~

~~((a) Be the recipient's statement in support of continuing eligibility((: Completion and submission of the forms to the department are required from a recipient to establish continuing eligibility. The forms shall)), and~~

~~((b) Contain((; or be verified by;)) the recipient's written declaration that the answers ((thereon)) are made under the penalty of perjury ((and that this declaration shall be in lieu of any oath otherwise required. If there are)).~~

~~((5) The recipient shall complete and submit the designated form to the department to continue receiving assistance.~~

~~((6) The department shall only require one completed form from a family consisting of two or more assistance units ((in a family, only one currently valid review of eligibility form covering the family's resources is required)).~~

WSR 86-18-057
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Public Assistance)
[Filed September 2, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Social and Health Services intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning loss, theft or destruction of warrant payable to recipient, amending WAC 388-33-576;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, October 8, 1986, in the Auditorium, OB-2, Olympia, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on October 9, 1986.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 74.08.090.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is chapter 74.08 RCW.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 8, 1986.

Correspondence concerning this notice and proposed rules attached should be addressed to:

Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel
Department of Social and Health Services
Mailstop OB 14
Olympia, WA 98504

Interpreters for people with hearing impairments and brailled or taped information for people with visual impairments can be provided. Please contact Administrative Regulations Section, State Office Building #2, 12th and Franklin, Olympia, WA, phone (206) 753-7015 by September 24, 1986. The meeting site is in a location which is barrier free.

Dated: August 28, 1986

By: Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

This statement is filed pursuant to RCW 34.04.045.

Re: Amending WAC 388-33-576.

Purpose of the Amendment: To exercise a state option contained in revised federal regulations.

This rule is necessary to accurately reflect current procedure.

Statutory Authority: RCW 74.08.090.

Summary of the Rule: To require a recipient to file a report for a lost or stolen warrant with the police.

Person Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement of the Rule: Mary Barker, CSPM 2, Division of Income Assistance, phone 753-4917, mailstop OB-31J.

Person or Organization who Proposed this Rule: Does not apply.

This rule is not necessary as a result of federal law, federal court decision, or state court decision.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2094, filed 4/18/84)

WAC 388-33-576 LOSS, THEFT, OR DESTRUCTION OF WARRANT PAYABLE TO RECIPIENT. (1) ~~((The legal authority for issuing a duplicate warrant is found in))~~ RCW 43.08.064 and 43.08.066 provide the legal authority for issuing a duplicate warrant.

(2) ~~((A recipient payee reporting to the CSO he or she has not received his or her warrant or his or her unendorsed warrant has been lost, stolen, or destroyed is given full consideration:))~~ The ~~((CSO))~~ recipient shall ((require the recipient payee to)) complete an affidavit or affidavits attesting to the reported facts. The recipient shall file a report for a lost or stolen warrant with the police.

(3) The CSO shall secure all facts surrounding the nonreceipt or loss reported in subsection (2) of this section, determine a course of appropriate action, and inform the recipient ~~((and record the details of the report and the decision in the financial record)).~~

(4) After a "prompt report" of the loss, theft, destruction, or nondelivery of an unendorsed warrant, the CSO shall "promptly replace" the warrant.

(5) "Prompt report" of loss, theft, destruction, or nondelivery of a warrant shall constitute completion and submittal of appropriate written forms within sixty days of the date the warrant was due the recipient.

(6) "Prompt replacement" of a lost, stolen, nondelivered, or destroyed warrant shall be authorization of replacement on or before the tenth of the month in which the warrant was due or within five working days of the prompt report of loss, theft, nondelivery, or destruction, whichever is later.

(7) ~~((Replacement must be requested directly from disbursements when a loss or nonreceipt is reported to the CSO sixty days or more after the mailing date of the warrant, and, the department))~~ The CSO may inquire into the circumstances of the loss or nondelivery prior to authorization of a replacement warrant. In the event such inquiry results in a determination not to replace the reported warrant, the ~~((recipient))~~ CSO shall ~~((be sent written notification which))~~ notify the recipient in writing. Written notice shall include a statement of the determination, the reason or reasons for the decision, and a statement of the recipient's right to request a fair hearing appealing the decision.

(8) An unendorsed warrant which is lost, stolen, or destroyed shall be replaced in full. Restrictively or specially endorsed warrants shall be deemed to be unendorsed warrants for the purposes of this subsection. ~~((If a warrant which had been reported as lost, stolen, destroyed, or nondelivered is found, delivered, or restored to the recipient prior to the issuance of a replacement, the department is not required to issue a duplicate warrant:))~~

(9) When a recipient reports nondelivery of a public assistance warrant within six months of a prior report of nondelivery, the department shall promptly replace, verify the address, and:

(a) If there has been a change of address ~~((since the previous report or change of circumstances))~~ to better ensure receipt of public assistance warrants (e.g., a locked mailbox, post office box), the department shall continue to send warrants to the recipient's address;

(b) If there is no change in address or assurance of ~~((delivery:))~~ receipt of public assistance warrants (including the replacement warrant)

the CSO shall ~~((be redirected))~~ redirect warrants to the local office ((for pickup by the recipient)). The CSO shall redirect warrants for a period of six months((provided that this)). The redirection may be waived if it is determined there is hardship or other good cause.

(10) The CSO shall promptly replace a warrant when:

(a) A recipient reports loss, theft, or destruction of an unendorsed, public assistance warrant within six months of a prior report of loss, theft, or destruction ~~((or when));~~

(b) A recipient who has picked up his or her public assistance warrant at the community service office pursuant to the redirect procedure in subsection (9)(b) of this section, then promptly reports such unendorsed warrant as lost, stolen, or destroyed ~~((the community service office shall promptly replace the warrant but)).~~ The CSO shall have the right to inquire into the circumstances and evaluate the ability of the recipient to manage public assistance funds.

(11) The state and community service offices shall take appropriate action to protect the state from loss if the original unendorsed warrant is redeemed by the state treasurer.

Reviser's note: RCW 34.04.058 requires the use of underlining and deletion marks to indicate amendments to existing rules. The rule published above varies from its predecessor in certain respects not indicated by the use of these markings.

WSR 86-18-058

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF

SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES

(Public Assistance)

[Order 2419—Filed September 2, 1986]

I, Lee D. Bomberger, acting director of the Division of Administration and Personnel, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to food stamp monthly reporting, amending WAC 388-54-768.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-15-088 filed with the code reviser on July 23, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 74.04.510 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 29, 1986.

By Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2286, filed 9/24/85)

WAC 388-54-768 FOOD STAMP MONTHLY REPORTING. (1) ~~((As a condition of continuing eligibility for food stamps certain recipients must))~~ The following households shall return ((to the department)) a completed monthly status report by the fifth day of the month following the month for which the ((monthly status)) report describes the household circumstances((:

Recipients who must report monthly are):

(a) ((Food stamp)) Households with earned income or a recent work history; ((or)) and

(b) AFDC households subject to mandatory monthly reporting per WAC 388-24-044.

(2) Recent work history is defined as having received earnings in one of the two months prior to the payment month.

(3) Households with a recent work history shall:

(a) At initial application, report for two months beginning the month following the month of opening; or

(b) During the certification period, report for two months after the last month of earnings.

(4) ~~((Failure))~~ The department shall terminate households failing to return a completed report by the fifth day of the month ((shall result in termination)), except as provided in subsection ((~~(3)~~)) (5) of this section.

~~((3))~~ (5) If the recipient furnishes the completed report to the department by the compliance date, the department shall:

(a) Accept the monthly status report; and

(b) Continue food stamps if ((the information on the monthly status report indicates)) the recipient is still eligible.

(6) The department shall not require households reporting monthly to report any changes included on the monthly report prior to the submission of the next monthly report.

WSR 86-18-059
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Public Assistance)

[Order 2420—Filed September 2, 1986]

I, Lee D. Bomberger, acting director of the Division of Administration and Personnel, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to Food stamps—Overpayments, amending WAC 388-54-850.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-15-090 filed with the code reviser on July 23, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 74.04.510 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 29, 1986.

By Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2216, filed 3/20/85)

WAC 388-54-850 OVERPAYMENTS. (1) Definitions of overpayments for which ((recovery)) collection action may be taken.

(a) An administrative error overpayment is an overpayment caused solely by department action or failure to act when the household had properly and accurately reported all the household's circumstances to the department.

(b) An inadvertent household error overpayment is an overpayment caused by misunderstanding or unintended error on the part of the household.

(c) An intentional program violation overpayment is an overpayment which a court or an administrative decision determined was caused by fraud or intentional program violation.

(2) Households and household members against which ((recovery)) the department can take collection action ((can be taken)).

(a) ~~((The department shall take recovery action against a))~~ All household members who were adult members of the household ((which was overpaid)) at the time an overpayment occurred shall be jointly and severally liable for the value of any overpayment of food stamps.

(b) ~~((If the household membership at the time an agency error or inadvertent household error overpayment occurred is not the same when recovery action is to be taken, the department shall take action against the household containing a majority of those who were members at the time the overpayment occurred.~~

~~((c) If the household membership at the time an intentional program violation overpayment occurred cannot be determined, the department shall take recovery action against the household containing the individual committing the act of intentional program violation.~~

~~((d) If the department is unable to take recovery action under subsection (2)(a), (b), or (c) of this section, then the department shall take recovery action against the household containing the person who was the head of the household at the time the overpayment occurred))~~ The department shall establish an overpayment claim against any household that:

(i) Received more food stamp benefits than it was entitled to receive, or

(ii) Contains an adult member who was an adult member of another household that received more food stamp benefits than it was entitled to receive.

(3) Collection actions taken by the department.

(a) The department shall pursue collection action against any or all persons described in subsection (2)(a) of this section.

(b) If a change in household composition occurs, the department may pursue collection action against any household which has a member who was an adult member of the household that received the overpayment.

(c) The department shall not collect more than the amount of the overpayment.

(4) Amount of overpayment.

(a) When the department discovers an administrative error or inadvertent household error overpayment occurred in the prior twenty-four months or discovers an intentional program violation in the prior seventy-two months, the department shall calculate the allotment the household should have been authorized. The date of discovery shall be the month the overpayment is calculated by completion of the food stamp claim determination report (DSHS 5-07).

(i) If the household accurately and timely reports the household's circumstances and changes in circumstances to the department, the calculation shall be based on the day the household's circumstances were reported.

(ii) If the household did not accurately and timely report the household's circumstances and change of circumstances, the calculation shall be based on the household having accurately reported the household's circumstances to the department in the application or on the date the change of circumstances occurred.

(iii) Calculation shall be based on the department having given the household advance notice if such notice would have been required.

(b) The difference between the monthly allotment the household should have been authorized as calculated in subsection (3)(a) of this section and the monthly allotment actually authorized is the amount of the overpayment.

~~((4))~~ (5) Amount of a household's and/or household member's liability for an overpayment. The difference between the amount of the overpayment calculated in subsection (3)(b) of this section and any food stamp lost benefits incurred prior to writing a letter demanding repayment, which had not previously been restored or used as an offset, is the amount of a household's and/or a household member's liability for an overpayment.

~~((5))~~ (6) Demand letter. Prior to initiating recovery action, the department shall provide the household member a demand letter.

~~((6))~~ (7) Methods of recovery. A household or household member may repay an overpayment in a lump sum or sums, in regular installments under a payment schedule agreed upon by the household or member and the department, and/or through reductions in the food stamp allotment.

(a) Lump sum.

(i) A household member may pay all or part of his or her liability for an overpayment in a lump sum.

(ii) A household member may use food stamp coupons, money order, check, cash, or any combination thereof to make a lump-sum payment.

(b) Installments.

(i) A household member may use food stamp coupons, money order, check, cash, or any combination thereof to make installment payments.

(ii) If the full liability for the overpayment or overpayments cannot be paid through a lump sum or allotment reduction or reductions, and the remaining amount of liability cannot be repaid in full in installment payments in three years, then the department may compromise the claim by reducing the claim to an amount allowing the household to pay the claim in three years.

(iii) The minimum installment payment schedule the department will agree to with a currently participating household member liable for an overpayment caused by inadvertent household error or intentional program violation shall be not less than the amount that could be recovered through allotment reduction.

(iv) When an installment payment schedule has been agreed to by the household member and the department, the amount to be repaid each month shall be that agreed to regardless of subsequent changes in the household's monthly household allotment unless the parties renegotiate the payment schedule and agree on a new payment schedule.

(v) A household member and/or the department may request of the other party a payment schedule be renegotiated.

(A) The most recent agreed upon payment schedule shall remain in effect until the household member and the department agree to a different schedule.

(B) When a household member requests renegotiation and the department agrees the member's economic circumstances have changed enough to warrant a different schedule, the department shall offer a different schedule and/or consider any reasonable schedule the member offers.

(C) When a household member requests renegotiation and the department determines the member's economic circumstances have not changed enough to warrant a different schedule, the department shall inform the member of this determination and the most recently agreed upon schedule remains in effect.

(vi) When a household member agreeing to repay in installments fails to make a payment in accordance with the repayment schedule:

(A) The department shall give notice informing him or her:

(I) No payment or an insufficient payment was received;

(II) The household member may contact the department to discuss renegotiation of the payment schedule; and

(III) Unless the household member makes the overdue payment or payments or contacts the department to discuss renegotiation by a specified date, the allotment of a currently participating household will be reduced without additional notice of the overpayment being recovered.

(B) If the household member fails to make the overdue payments or request renegotiation of the payment schedule and the overpayment was caused by inadvertent household error or intentional program violation, the department shall reduce the food stamp allotment without additional notice.

(C) If the household member responds to the notice by making the overdue payments and wishes to continue the current payment schedule, the department shall permit him or her to do so.

(D) If the household member responds to the notice by requesting renegotiation of the payment schedule, the department shall consider the request.

(E) When the department determines agreement on a new repayment schedule cannot be reached and the

overpayment was caused by inadvertent household error or intentional program violation, the department may invoke allotment reductions against a currently participating household.

(c) Reduction in food stamp allotment.

(i) Administrative error overpayment.

(A) For administrative error overpayments, the household member may repay through reduction in the food stamp allotment.

(B) The amount to be recovered each month through a reduction in allotment for an agency error overpayment shall be entirely up to the household member.

(ii) Inadvertent household error overpayment and intentional program violation overpayment. The department shall reduce a currently participating household's food stamp allotment to repay an inadvertent household error overpayment by the greater of ten percent of the household's monthly allotment or ten dollars per month and for an intentional program violation overpayment by the greater of twenty percent of the entitlement or ten dollars per month.

(A) If the household member and the department are negotiating in good-faith for an agreement to repay in installments, the department shall reduce the household's food stamp allotment only when the household member and the head of the household consent.

(B) If the household member and the department have made an agreement to repay in installments and the member has made each payment when due, the department shall reduce the household's food stamp allotment only when the household member and the head of the household consent.

~~((7))~~ (8) The department shall suspend collection action when:

(a) The department determines the household member is financially unable to pay the claim; or

(b) The department determines there is little likelihood the state can collect or enforce collection of any significant sum from the household member; or

(c) The department cannot locate a liable household member; or

(d) The department determines cost of further collection action is likely to exceed the amount that can be recovered.

~~((8))~~ (9) After the claim has been held in suspense for three years, the claim shall be terminated.

WSR 86-18-060
ADOPTED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Public Assistance)

[Order 2421—Filed September 2, 1986]

I, Lee D. Bomberger, acting director of the Division of Administration and Personnel, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to student eligibility, amending WAC 388-54-670.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-15-012 filed with the code reviser on July 8, 1986. These

rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 74.04.510 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 29, 1986.

By Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1956, filed 4/6/83)

WAC 388-54-670 STUDENT ELIGIBILITY. (1) A student is any person who is:

(a) Between the ages of eighteen and sixty years; and

(b) Physically and mentally fit; and

(c) Enrolled at least half-time in an institution of higher education. A student shall be ineligible to ~~((participate in the))~~ receive food ~~((stamp program,))~~ stamps unless that person ~~((complies with))~~ meets one of the ~~((eligibility))~~ requirements of subsection (3) of this section.

(2) Institution of higher education ~~((shall be))~~ is any institution which normally requires a high school diploma or equivalency certificate for enrollment ~~((including, but not limited to,))~~. This includes colleges, universities, and vocational or technical schools at the post-high school level.

(3) ~~((In order to be eligible, any))~~ A student ~~((as defined in subsection (1) of this section))~~ shall meet ~~((at least))~~ one of the following ~~((criteria))~~ to receive food stamps:

(a) ~~((Be employed))~~ Work and be paid for a minimum of twenty hours per week ~~((and be paid for such employment or if))~~. A self-employed ~~((, be employed for a minimum of twenty hours per week and receive))~~ student must work at least twenty hours per week and the weekly earnings shall at least be equal to the federal minimum hourly wage multiplied by twenty hours;

(b) ~~((Participate in))~~ Receive money from a ~~((federally financed))~~ federal work study program during the regular school year;

(c) Be responsible for the care of a dependent household member under age six;

(d) Be responsible for the care of a dependent household member who ~~((has reached the))~~ is at least age ~~((of))~~ six but ~~((is))~~ under age twelve ~~((where))~~ and the CSO has determined adequate child care is not available;

(e) ~~((Receiving))~~ Receive benefits from the aid to families with dependent children program;

(f) Attend an institution of higher learning through a program under the Job Training Partnership Act.

(4) ~~((Enrollment status of a))~~ Student ~~((shall begin on))~~ status begins the first day of the school term ~~((of the institution of higher education. Such enrollment~~

shall be deemed to) and continues through normal periods of class attendance, vacation, and recess ((unless the)). Student status is lost when a student:

- (a) Graduates,
- (b) Is suspended ((or)),
- (c) Is expelled,
- (d) Drops out, or
- (e) Does not intend to register for the next normal school term ((f))excluding summer school((g)).

~~((5) The income and resources of an ineligible student living with a household shall not be considered in determining eligibility or level of benefits of the household.~~

~~((6) The remainder of the household in which the ineligible student resides shall be certified, if otherwise eligible.))~~

WSR 86-18-061
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF GAME
(Game Commission)
 [Order 308—Filed September 2, 1986]

Be it resolved by the State Game Commission, acting at Spokane, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to amendment to 1986 Washington game fish seasons and catch limits—Blue, Mirror, Park, Vic Meyers lakes (Grant County), Shadow Lake (King County), Mineral Lake (Lewis County), Proctor Lake (Okanogan County), and Clear Lake (Bald Hills) (Thurston County), adopting WAC 232-28-61514.

We, the State Game Commission, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is these lakes are scheduled for rehabilitation and will close to fishing before rotenone treatment dates. The season extensions for game fishing will allow the maximum number of trout to be taken by anglers before treatment.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 77.12.040 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 10, 1986.

By Archie U. Mills
 Chairman, Game Commission

NEW SECTION

WAC 232-28-61514 AMENDMENT TO 1986 WASHINGTON GAME FISH SEASONS AND

CATCH LIMITS—BLUE, MIRROR, PARK, VIC MEYERS LAKES (GRANT COUNTY), SHADOW LAKE (KING COUNTY), MINERAL LAKE (LEWIS COUNTY), PROCTOR LAKE (OKANOGAN COUNTY), AND CLEAR LAKE (BALD HILLS) (THURSTON COUNTY). Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 232-28-615, the following waters will have emergency game fishing season extensions as outlined below.

County	Lake	Season Extension	Beginning Date
Grant	Blue	30 days	October 1, 1986
Grant	Mirror	30 days	October 1, 1986
Grant	Park	30 days	October 1, 1986
Grant	Vic Meyers	30 days	October 1, 1986
King	Shadow	60 days	September 2, 1986
Lewis	Mineral	30 days	September 2, 1986
Okanogan	Proctor	30 days	November 1, 1986
Thurston	Clear (Bald Hills)	60 days	September 2, 1986

WSR 86-18-062
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
 [Order 86-92—Filed September 2, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to commercial fishing regulations.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is openings in Area 7B provide opportunity to harvest remaining surplus chinook. Openings in Area 12 and 12B provide opportunity to harvest non-Indian chinook allocations.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED September 2, 1986.

By William R. Wilkerson
 Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-47-708 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY. Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 220-47 WAC, effective 12:01 PM, September 2, 1986, until further notice, it is unlawful to take, fish for, or possess salmon for commercial purposes taken from the following Puget

Sound Salmon Management and Catch Reporting Areas except in accordance with the following restrictions:

Areas 4B, 5, 6C – Under control of Pacific Salmon Commission. Drift gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open.

Areas 6, 6A, 7, 7A – Under control of Pacific Salmon Commission. Gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open.

**Area 7B – Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish continuously from 6:00 PM September 2 through 9:00 AM the morning of September 6. Fishery exclusion zones applicable to Area 7B commercial fisheries are described in WAC 220-47-307.*

**Areas 12 and 12B – Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish from 6:00 PM to 9:00 AM nightly, September 2, through the morning of September 4 and purse seines using the 5-inch strip may fish from 5:00 AM to 9:00 PM daily September 2 through September 4. That portion of Area 12 east of a line from Lone Rock to the navigational marker off the north of Big Beef Creek thence, southerly to the tip of the outermost northern headland of Little Beef Creek remains closed to fishing. Additional fishing exclusion zones applicable to the Area 12B fishery are described in WAC 220-47-307.*

Areas 6B, 6D, 7C, 7D, 7E, 8, 8A, 8D, 9, 9A, 10, 10A, 10C, 10D, 10E, 10F, 10G, 11, 11A, 12A, 12C, 12D, 13, 13A, 13C, 13D, 13E, 13F, 13G, 13H, 13I, 13J, and 13K and all freshwater areas – Closed.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed effective September 2, 1986.

WAC 220-47-707 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY ORDER NO. 86-90

WSR 86-18-063

PROPOSED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF

SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES

(Public Assistance)

[Filed September 3, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Social and Health Services intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning Food stamps—Application, amending WAC 388-54-610;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, October 8, 1986, in the Auditorium, OB2, Olympia, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on October 9, 1986.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 74.04.510.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 74.04.510.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 8, 1986.

Correspondence concerning this notice and proposed rules attached should be addressed to:

Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel
Department of Social and Health Services
Mailstop OB 14
Olympia, WA 98504

Interpreters for people with hearing impairments and brailled or taped information for people with visual impairments can be provided. Please contact Administrative Regulations Section, State Office Building #2, 12th and Franklin, Olympia, WA, phone (206) 753-7015 by September 24, 1986. The meeting site is in a location which is barrier free.

Dated: August 29, 1986

By: Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Re: WAC 388-54-610(4).

Purpose of the Rule Change: An adult household member or authorized representative must sign the food stamp application. If the household consists solely of minors, a responsible household member or authorized representative must sign the application.

Reason These Rules are Necessary: Implement FNS final regulations published May 21, 1986, 7 CFR 273.2(b).

Statutory Authority: RCW 74.08.090.

Summary of the Rule Change: An adult household member or authorized representative must sign the food stamp application.

Person Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement of the Rule Change: Roy Uppendahl, Division of Income Assistance, mailstop OB-31J, phone 753-4382.

These rules are necessary as a result of federal law, federal court decision or state court decision, Pub. L. 99-198 (section 1525) and 7 CFR 273.2(b).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1548, filed 10/1/80)

WAC 388-54-610 APPLICATION AND PARTICIPATION—INITIATING THE APPLICATION. (1) The department shall make application forms readily accessible and provide one to anyone ((who requests)) requesting it.

(2) The household must file an application by submitting the form to the food stamp office either in person, through an authorized representative, or by mail.

Households consisting exclusively of SSI ((applicants/recipients)) applicants or recipients may file an application, have the information verified, and the form submitted by SSADO (see WAC 388-54-615).

(3) Each household has a right to file a food stamp application on forms as determined by the department on the same day it contacts the department.

(a) The department shall mail an application to any household who requests one by telephone. This shall be mailed the same day as the telephone request is received.

(b) When a written request for an application is received by the department, an application shall be mailed the same day the written request is received.

(c) If a household contacts the wrong certification office within a project area, in writing, in person or by telephone, the certification office shall:

(i) Give the household the address and telephone number of the appropriate office.

(ii) Mail the application to the appropriate office on the same day.

(4) An application can be filed as long as ((it)) the application contains the applicant's name and address and is signed by ((a responsible)) an adult member of the household or authorized representative. If the household consists solely of minors, the application must be signed by a responsible member of the household or authorized representative. The household shall be informed of this fact and also informed that it does not have to be interviewed before filing the application.

(5) The household may voluntarily withdraw its application at any time prior to determination of eligibility.

(6) If a household refuses to cooperate with the CSO, the application shall be denied at the time of refusal.

(i) The household must be able to cooperate but clearly demonstrate that it will not take action.

(ii) If there is any question as to whether the household has merely failed to cooperate, as opposed to refused to cooperate, the household shall not be denied.

WSR 86-18-064
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Health)

[Filed September 3, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Social and Health Services intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning shelters for victims of domestic violence, amending chapter 248-554 WAC;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, October 8, 1986, in the Auditorium, OB2, Olympia, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on October 9, 1986.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 70.123.030.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 70.123.030.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 8, 1986.

Correspondence concerning this notice and proposed rules attached should be addressed to:

Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel
Department of Social and Health Services
Mailstop OB 14
Olympia, WA 98504

Interpreters for people with hearing impairments and brailled or taped information for people with visual impairments can be provided. Please contact Administrative Regulations Section, State Office Building #2, 12th and Franklin, Olympia, WA, phone (206) 753-7015 by

September 24, 1986. The meeting site is in a location which is barrier free.

Dated: August 29, 1986

By: Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

This statement is filed pursuant to RCW 34.04.045.

Re: WAC 248-554-001, 248-554-005, 248-554-010, 248-554-015, 248-554-018, 248-554-020 and 248-554-030.

Purpose of the Rule or Rule Change: To amend and clarify WAC 248-554-001, 248-554-005 and 248-554-010; to amend and delete substantial portions of WAC 248-554-015; to adopt new section WAC 248-554-018; and to amend WAC 248-554-020 and 248-554-030.

Reasons Emergency Adoptions of These Rules are Necessary: WAC 248-554-020 requires domestic violence programs to have a qualified family violence counselor on staff or on contract. The qualified family counselor certification process has been discontinued. Therefore, it is no longer possible to comply with this requirement. Unanticipated federal funds require new contracts with domestic violence programs. The potential contractors cannot comply with chapter 248-554 WAC as it is now written. The federal funds must be obligated by September 30, 1986, which does not allow sufficient time for regular filing.

Statutory Authority: RCW 70.123.030.

Summary of the Rule Change: WAC 248-554-001 is amended for easier reading. The term "domestic violence services" is substituted for "shelters" to clarify that safe home programs are also included; WAC 248-554-005 is amended. Definitions that do not appear in the text or are unnecessary are deleted. The definition for "advocacy based counseling" is added and the definitions for "counseling" and "treatment" are deleted. Definitions for "clients" and "victims" are clarified. The definition of "domestic violence" contained in chapter 26.50 RCW is added. The term "domestic violence service" is substituted for "shelter service." This substitution carries through the entire section. The definition for "qualified family violence counselor" is deleted; WAC 248-554-010 is amended to allow domestic violence services to have staff present or on call to go [to] a shelter home instead of requiring staff to always be present when a client is in residence; WAC 248-554-015 (1) and (2) are amended to clarify that the domestic violence service is responsible for approving its own safe homes rather than the department. Subsections (5) through (22) are deleted and the major requirements contained therein for safe homes are combined with the requirements for shelter homes in new section WAC 248-554-018; WAC 248-554-018 is a new section which combines the deleted requirements for safe homes in WAC 248-554-015 and the requirements for shelter homes. These contain the physical facility requirements; WAC 248-554-020(1) clarifies that available services are not limited to forty-eight-hour shelter. Forty-eight-hour shelter is no longer the time frame for reimbursement from the department. Subsections (3)(a) and (b) and (5) are

amended to clarify the required staffing patterns for domestic violence services. Subsection (7)(a) deletes the requirement for a qualified family violence counselor to be on staff or on contract. The new amended subsections (5)(a) through (d) specify the training and experience requirements for all advocate counselors in domestic violence services. Subsection (5)(f) clarifies that assistance with child care is to be provided during counseling sessions. The new subsection (8)(a) requires that domestic violence services have a policy that clients in danger or at risk receive first priority for shelter. Subsection (8)(i) requires that domestic violence services have a policy of notifying resident clients of the times that the shelter is not staffed, how to contact staff, and what to do in an emergency. The tuberculin screening and testing required in subsection (9) are deleted. Subsection (9)(a) requires domestic violence services to have a designated staff member responsible for monitoring compliance with this WAC section; and WAC 248-554-030 is amended to clarify when waivers can be granted. The amended language specifies that waivers are determined by the department. New language specifies that one criterion shall be that the waiver will not place the client's safety or health in jeopardy and that secondly, the domestic violence service is unable to meet the requirement or the absence of the waiver will have a detrimental effect on services.

Person Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement of the Rule: Nancy Kerr, Program Manager, Division of Children and Family Services, mailstop OB-41C, phone 321-2380 scan.

This rule change is not a result of a federal law or court action.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-001 PURPOSE. The purpose of this section is to specify the uniform state-wide standards in rules and regulations (~~which~~) for domestic violence services funded by the department of social and health services. These standards address adequate food, clothing, housing, safety, security, advocacy, and counseling for victims of domestic violence utilizing (~~shelters which receive funds through the victims of domestic violence program of the department of social and health~~) domestic violence services. These minimal standards are developed and established pursuant to chapter 70.123 RCW.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-005 DEFINITIONS. For the purposes of these regulations, the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:

(1) "Advocacy-based counseling" means the (~~provision of information and agency referral(s) while teaching a victim to be problem oriented in the task of developing and maintaining self-help skills~~) involvement of a client with an advocate counselor in an individual, family, or group session with the primary focus on safety planning and on empowerment of the client through reinforcing the client's autonomy and self-determination. Advocacy-based counseling uses problem-solving methods and includes identifying the barriers to safety; developing safety checking and planning skills; clarifying issues; solving problems; increasing self-esteem and self-awareness; and improving and implementing skills in decision making, parenting, self-help, and self-care.

(2) "Advocate counselor" means a trained staff person within a (~~shelter~~) domestic violence service who provides (~~direct services to victims within shelters and who positively assists in provision of a supportive environment~~) advocacy-based counseling.

(3) "Bathing facility" means a (~~bath-tub~~) bathtub or shower.

(4) "Bathroom" means a room containing at least one bathing facility.

(5) "Client" means a victim of domestic violence or dependent child of the victim.

(6) "Cohabitant" means a person who is married or who is (~~cohabiting~~) living with a person as a husband or wife at the present time or at some time in the past. Any person who has one or more children in common with another person, regardless of whether they have been married or have lived together at any time, shall be treated as a cohabitant.

(~~(6)~~) "Counseling" means a combination of advocacy and treatment;

(7) (~~"Counselor-in-training" means an advocate who is supervised by a qualified family violence counselor and who may act as a family violence counselor in groups and in individual treatments.~~

(8) "Day or drop-in program" means the availability of counseling services in or through a shelter service without necessarily requiring that a victim reside in a shelter.

(~~9~~) "Department" means the department of social and health services.

(~~(10)~~) (8) "Domestic violence" includes but is not limited to any of the following crimes when committed by one cohabitant against another:

(a) Assault in the first degree (RCW 9A.36.010);

(b) Assault in the second degree (RCW 9A.36.020);

(c) Simple assault (RCW 9A.36.040);

(d) Reckless endangerment (RCW 9A.36.050);

(e) Coercion (RCW 9A.36.070);

(f) Burglary in the first degree (RCW 9A.52.020);

(g) Burglary in the second degree (RCW 9A.52.030);

(h) Criminal trespass in the first degree (RCW 9A.52.070);

(i) Criminal trespass in the second degree (RCW 9A.52.080);

(j) Malicious mischief in the first degree (RCW 9A.48.070);

(k) Malicious mischief in the second degree (RCW 9A.48.080);

(l) Malicious mischief in the third degree (RCW 9A.48.090);

(m) Kidnapping in the first degree (RCW 9A.40.020);

(n) Kidnapping in the second degree (RCW 9A.40.030);

(o) Unlawful imprisonment (RCW 9A.40.040).

(~~(11)~~) (p) Physical harm, bodily injury, assault, or the infliction of fear or imminent physical harm, bodily injury, or assault or causing another to engage in involuntary sexual relations by force, threat of force, or duress (chapter 26.50 RCW).

(9) "Domestic violence service" means an agency which provides shelter, advocacy, and counseling for domestic violence clients in a supportive environment.

(10) "Lavatory" means a plumbing fixture designed and equipped to serve for handwashing purposes.

(~~(12)~~) (11) "Lodging unit" means one or more rooms utilized for a victim of domestic violence including those rooms used for sleeping or sitting.

(~~(13)~~) "May" means permissive or discretionary with the department.

(14) "Person" means any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, company, association, or joint stock association, and the legal successor thereof.

(15) "Prevention" means services that provide information to community members and service providers about alternatives to violence.

(16) "Problem-oriented" means a focus on the clarification of the problem(s) presented, the teaching of decision-making process, and the provision of counseling.

(~~(17)~~) (12) "Program" means the (~~victims of~~) domestic violence program of the department.

(~~(18)~~) "Qualified family violence counselor" means an advocate who has been certified as a qualified family violence counselor by the Washington state shelter network or a person who has equivalent qualifications and has obtained approval in writing from the program.

(~~(19)~~) (13) "Secretary" means the secretary of the (~~Washington state~~) department (~~of social and health services~~) or (~~his/her~~) his or her designee.

(~~(20)~~) "Shall" means compliance is mandatory.

(~~(21)~~) (14) "Shelter" means a place of temporary refuge, which includes access to adequate food and clothing, offered on a twenty-four-hour, seven-day-per-week basis to victims of domestic violence and their children.

(a) "Safe home" means a shelter that (~~houses~~) has two or less lodging units(;) and has a working agreement with a (~~shelter~~) domestic violence service(, and has established rates).

(b) "Shelter home" means a shelter that (~~houses~~) has three or more lodging units(, has established rates,) and either is a component

of or has a working agreement with a ~~((shelter))~~ domestic violence service.

~~((22))~~ "Shelter service" means the organization and/or coordination of safe homes and/or shelter homes to provide for adequate food, clothing, housing, safety, security, advocacy and counseling for victims.

~~(23)~~ "Should" means a suggestion or recommendation, but not a requirement.

~~(24))~~ ~~(15)~~ "Staff" means persons who are paid or who volunteer services and are a part of a ~~((shelter))~~ domestic violence service.

~~((25))~~ "Supportive environment" means conditions, circumstances, and influences which encourage the victim to have an awareness and applicability of nonabusive egalitarian relationships, positive self-esteem, positive parenting, effective communication skills, mediation skills, nonstereotypic roles, financial independence and personal growth.

~~(26))~~ ~~(16)~~ "Toilet" means a ~~((room containing at least one water closet or one chemical or pit type facility))~~ plumbing fixture used for defecation, fitted with a seat, and a device for flushing the bowl with water.

~~((27))~~ "Treatment" means participation of victims in individual, family and/or group sessions within a supportive environment.

~~(28))~~ ~~(17)~~ "Victim" means a cohabitant who has been subjected to domestic violence ~~((and, where applicable children of this cohabitant, where appropriate.~~

~~(29)~~ "Water closet" means a plumbing fixture for defecation, fitted with a seat and a device for flushing the bowl of the fixture with water).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-010 SHELTER HOMES. (1) ~~((Shelter homes shall comply with chapter 70.62 RCW and chapter 248-144 WAC.~~

~~(2))~~ Shelter homes shall meet general requirements for shelters and ~~((shelter))~~ domestic violence services in accordance with chapter 70.123 RCW and this chapter ~~((, WAC 248-554-025)).~~

~~((3))~~ ~~(2)~~ At least one staff shall be present or on call to go to the shelter home at all times (twenty-four hours per day) when at least one ~~((victim has contracted to reside))~~ client is residing in the shelter home.

~~((4))~~ ~~(3)~~ There shall be ~~((an))~~ a biennial on-site evaluation by the department of each shelter home ~~((biennially))~~ to measure compliance with standards contained in this chapter.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-015 SAFE HOMES. (1) Prior to ~~((referring clients to))~~ receiving the domestic violence service client in a safe home, the ~~((shelter service))~~ safe home shall ~~((make))~~ have made application ~~((to))~~ and ~~((receive approval of the safe home from the program. Departmental approval of a safe home shall be required biennially. The shelter))~~ have been approved by the domestic violence service.

~~(2)~~ The domestic violence service shall keep ~~((on file))~~ available for department review a permanent ~~((register))~~ record of all safe homes ~~((for which it has requested approval)).~~ The ~~((register))~~ record shall ~~((list the code number used in the application for approval and))~~ contain the address and name of the person operating the safe home or an identification code for the safe home, the safe home application, and the approved certification of compliance.

~~((2))~~ To ensure client safety and security, identification of a safe home on the application form may be limited to a code identification contained in the shelter service's permanent register of safe homes. The department's approval or disapproval of a safe home shall be based either on an application accompanied by evidence submitted by the shelter service declaring that the safe home is in compliance with chapter 70.123 RCW and this chapter, or on the department's evaluation of the safe home. Applications and) ~~(3)~~ Certification of compliance shall be on forms provided by the department.

~~((3))~~ ~~(4)~~ The department shall utilize a ~~((random))~~ sampling method in selecting safe homes for inspection during biennial visits to ~~((shelter))~~ domestic violence service offices. ~~((b))~~ Inspections of approved safe homes shall measure their compliance with this chapter and with the ~~((shelter))~~ domestic violence service certification.

~~((4))~~ ~~(5)~~ When there is evidence that a safe home is out of compliance with the standards as specified in this chapter, the department shall provide the domestic violence service with written notice ~~((shall be provided to the shelter service by the department))~~ specifying the deficiencies. ~~((Safe homes may be granted a period of ninety days to~~

~~comply with standards based on a written))~~ The deficiencies shall be corrected in accordance with the plan of correction approved by the department.

~~((5))~~ Upon receipt of complaints which indicate specific violations of standards, the department shall notify the shelter service and make investigations, if necessary, to determine compliance. No lodging unit shall be entered for inspection if the lodging unit is occupied by a victim at the time of inspection.

~~(6)~~ The department may deny, revoke and suspend the approval and funding of a shelter service in which a safe home is out of compliance with this chapter.

~~(7)~~ Safe homes shall comply with local fire codes and requirements.

~~(8)~~ Shelter services operating safe homes shall insure compliance of safe homes with requirements of this chapter and shall be responsible for providing adequate supervision for monitoring the safe home, safe home facilities and equipment in good repair and in a clean, safe and sanitary condition.

~~(a)~~ Safe homes shall be maintained to protect the health, safety and well being of victims.

~~(b)~~ Floor, wall and ceiling surfaces shall be clean, dry and in good repair.

~~(c)~~ Equipment, fixtures, furniture and furnishings, including windows, draperies, curtains and carpets for the lodging units, corridors, stairways and other areas occupied or used by victims shall be clean and maintained in good repair.

~~(9)~~ Rooms used by victims as bedrooms shall have a window or opening to the outdoors.

~~(10)~~ The water supply used for human consumption shall be from an approved public water system as defined by chapter 248-54 WAC or, if an individual system, one approved as safe for human consumption by the local health department.

~~(11)~~ Minimally, one toilet, one lavatory and one bathing facility shall be provided on the safe home premises.

~~(a)~~ Pit or chemical type toilet facilities may be used in lieu of a water closet system upon written approval by the shelter service when this practice is not in conflict with local regulations and ordinances.

~~(b)~~ Hot and cold water shall be provided at all lavatories and bathing facilities. Hot water shall be at least 110°F. Hot and cold water may be carried to lavatories and bathing facilities and does not need to be water running from faucets at the lavatories or bathing facilities.

~~(12)~~ Lodging units shall have natural and/or mechanical ventilation capable of preventing objectionable odors and excessive condensation.

~~(13)~~ Heating:

~~(a)~~ Lodging units and other areas or rooms used by victims during periods requiring artificial heat shall be provided with a safe and adequate source of heat capable of maintaining a room temperature of not less than 68°F during the time of occupancy.

~~(b)~~ Gas fired, wood, or oil fired space heaters and water heaters shall be vented to the outside.

~~(14)~~ Natural and/or artificial lighting shall be available to provide minimum light intensities required to promote cleanliness and safety. Each lodging unit shall contain at least one lighting fixture suitable for reading. Lighting fixtures may be nonelectric provided open flames are enclosed.

~~(15)~~ Food and beverages prepared by and for victims shall be prepared, served and stored in a safe and sanitary manner.

~~(a)~~ Safe homes shall provide the following facilities and equipment for use by and for victims:

~~(i)~~ A place suitable for dishwashing;

~~(ii)~~ A refrigerator or other storage equipment maintained at a temperature of 45°F or lower, when perishable food is present;

~~(iii)~~ A range or stove with cooking space or equivalent cooking space which may be a two burner gas or electric hot plate;

~~(iv)~~ A washable or disposable covered waste food container.

~~(b)~~ Eating and cooking utensils supplied by the safe home for use by victims shall be maintained clean and free of cracks.

~~(16)~~ Appropriate measure shall be taken to prevent and control invasion by insects and rodents.

~~(17)~~ Plumbing, solid waste and sewage disposal:

~~(a)~~ Liquid drain lines shall be maintained in good repair.

~~(b)~~ Minimally, one washable or disposable refuse container shall be provided in each lodging unit. Waste shall be disposed of in a manner which prevents odors, unhealthful, unsafe or insanitary conditions.

~~(c)~~ Liquid waste shall be discharged to a municipal sewage disposal system.

~~(i)~~ When connection to a municipal sewage disposal system is not feasible, an individual sewage disposal system shall not discharge on to

the surface of the ground, into a ditch, nor to the waters of the state; except where such discharge meets applicable standards.

(ii) New installations, alterations, repairs or replacement of a major component on an individual disposal system shall be approved by the local health department and not create a nuisance or health hazard.

(18) Safe home operators shall establish and enforce rules designed to control or prohibit pets in the food preparation and storage areas.

(19) Bedding including but not limited to mattresses, mattress covers, mattress pads, quilts, blankets, pillows, sheets, pillow slips, and spreads for use by victims shall be kept clean and shall not be used when stained or worn so as to be unfit for further use.

(a) When bed linens are provided for victims, each bed, bunk, cot or other sleeping place shall be supplied with suitable pillow slip(s) and two sheets. After use by a victim, pillow slips, sheets, wash cloths and towels shall be laundered prior to use by another victim.

(b) Wash cloths, hand towels, bath towels, pillow slips, and sheets supplied by the safe home and used by the same victim for more than one day shall be changed as needed and minimally one time each two weeks.

(20) A means shall be provided for laundering of bed linens, towels, wash cloths, and personal clothing of resident victims.

(a) Laundry facilities may be located outside the premises of the safe home.

(b) Clean bed sheets, pillow slips, towels and other linens for use by victims shall be handled and stored in a sanitary manner.

(c) All soiled laundry and linens in the safe homes shall be handled and stored so as to prevent contamination of clean laundry and food supplies.

(21) Cleaning and housekeeping equipment and supplies shall be provided and maintained in a clean and safe condition.

(a) Containers of chemical cleaning agents and other toxic material shall be labeled and shall bear the instructions and precautions for use as described by the manufacturer.

(b) Containers of chemical cleaning agents shall be stored and secured in places out of reach of children.

(22) Chemical and physical hazards.

(a) Chemical agents shall be stored so as to prevent accidental poisoning, contamination of foodstuffs, clothing and bedding materials. Application or utilization of chemicals such as cleaners, disinfectants, pesticides, and rodent control products shall be in accordance with manufacturers recommendations for preventing a hazard to humans.

(b) Adequate and safe handrailings shall be provided for stairways, porches and balconies used by victims, when necessary.

(c) Swimming pools, wading pools and bathing beaches shall be maintained in a manner that does not present a health hazard or nuisance.)

NEW SECTION

WAC 248-554-018 SHELTER HOMES AND SAFE HOMES—GENERAL. (1) Safe homes shall comply with WAC 388-73-310, Fire safety requirements, and shelter homes shall comply with chapter 212-52 WAC, Standards for fire protection.

(2) These facilities, equipment, and supplies shall be in good repair and be in a clean, safe, and sanitary condition. This shall include the outdoor areas.

(3) Water supply.

(a) The water supply used for human consumption shall be from an approved public water system as defined in chapter 248-54 WAC or, if an individual system, the local health department shall approve it as safe for human consumption.

(b) Cross-connections between drinking water and nonpotable systems are prohibited.

(4) Toilet and bathing facilities. Minimally, one toilet, one lavatory, and one bathing facility shall be provided on the premises. Running hot and cold water shall be provided to all lavatories and bathing facilities. In shelter homes:

(a) All floor surfaces shall be impervious to moisture.

(b) At least one toilet, lavatory, and bathing facility shall be provided for each fifteen clients or fraction of this number.

(5) Ventilation.

(a) Lodging units shall have natural or mechanical ventilation capable of preventing objectionable odors and excessive condensation.

(b) Bedrooms shall have a window or opening to the outdoors which can be locked or secured from the inside.

(c) In shelter homes all bathrooms, toilet rooms, laundry rooms, and janitor closets containing wet mops and brushes shall be provided with

natural or mechanical ventilation capable of preventing objectionable odors and condensation.

(6) Heating.

(a) Rooms used by clients shall be provided with a safe and adequate source of heat, capable of maintaining the room at a healthful temperature during the time of occupancy.

(b) Gas-fired or oil-fired space heaters and water heaters shall be appropriately vented to the outside.

(7) Lighting. All areas should be appropriately lighted when in use.

(8) Food service. Food and beverages prepared by and for clients shall be prepared, served, and stored in a safe and sanitary manner. The following are required:

(a) A sink for dishwashing;

(b) A refrigerator or other storage equipment capable of maintaining a temperature of forty-five degrees Fahrenheit or lower;

(c) A range, stove, or hot plate;

(d) Covered garbage container;

(e) Eating and cooking utensils which are clean and in good repair;

(f) Impervious to moisture, cleanable, counter surfaces;

(g) Home-canned, low-acid foods (e.g., meats and vegetables) shall not be served to clients in residence;

(h) In shelter homes, when food is served to the clients, the staff shall prepare it in compliance with chapter 248-84 WAC, Food service sanitation.

(9) Insect and rodent control. Preventive measures shall be taken to control insect and rodent infestation.

(10) Sewage and liquid waste. Sewage and liquid waste shall be discharged into a public sewer system or into an independent sewage system approved by the local health authority or department.

(11) Pets. Pets shall be prohibited from the kitchen during food preparation.

(12) Bedding. Bedding shall be kept clean and in good repair.

(a) Clients shall be provided with bed linen, towels, and washcloths. After use by a client, bed linen, washcloths, towels, etc., shall be laundered prior to use by another client. If a sleeping bag is used, a liner is required unless the bag is cleaned between use by different clients.

(b) Washcloths, towels, and bed linen used by the same client for more than one day shall be changed as needed and minimally one time each week.

(13) Laundry.

(a) Means shall be provided for laundering of bed linen, towels, washcloths, and personal clothing of clients in residence.

(b) All laundry shall be handled and stored in a sanitary manner.

(14) Housekeeping, sanitation, and safety.

(a) Containers of chemical cleaning agents and other toxic materials shall be labeled and bear the instructions and precautions for use as described by the manufacturer.

(b) Containers of toxic agents shall be stored and secured in places out of reach of children and to prevent contamination of food stuff, clothing, and bedding.

(c) Wastebaskets shall be incombustible.

(d) Appropriate diaper changing areas shall be established and procedures developed for proper handling and storage of diapers.

(e) All medications shall be inaccessible to children.

(f) First-aid supplies including, at least, a department approved first-aid manual, band-aids, gauze (squares and rolls), adhesive tape, and syrup of ipecac shall be available.

(15) Physical hazards.

(a) Safe and adequate guard and handrails shall be provided for stairways, porches, and balconies used by clients when necessary.

(b) Swimming pools, wading pools, bathtubs and bathing beaches shall be maintained in the manner which does not present a health hazard, safety problem, or nuisance.

(c) Firearms shall be kept in locked storage, accessible only to authorized persons.

(16) Bedrooms in shelter homes.

(a) Bedrooms shall have a clear, average ceiling height of not less than seven feet six inches and a minimum of fifty square feet of usable floor area per bed.

(b) Floor area where the ceiling height is less than five feet shall not be considered as usable floor area.

(17) Building safety.

(a) There shall be a method for securing all windows, doors, and other building accesses to prevent the entry of intruders.

(b) There shall be provision for staff entry to any area occupied by clients should an emergency arise.

(c) All refrigerators and freezers accessible to children shall be secured in such a manner as to prevent children from climbing in and becoming trapped.

(18) Inspections, investigations, and certifications.

(a) Upon receipt of a complaint, the department shall notify the domestic violence service and shall make an investigation.

(b) There shall be an on-site inspection of each domestic violence service biennially to measure compliance with standards contained in this chapter.

(c) Safe homes and shelter homes shall document services provided to clients in residence.

(d) If a lodging unit is occupied at the time of an inspection or investigation, the domestic violence service shall give the client an opportunity to leave the unit.

(e) When there is evidence a safe home, shelter home, or domestic violence service is out of compliance with the standards as specified in this chapter, the department shall provide written notice to the domestic violence service specifying deficiencies. The deficiencies shall be corrected in accordance with the plan of correction approved by the department.

(f) The department may deny, revoke, or suspend the approval and funding of a domestic violence service in which a safe home, shelter home, or the service itself is out of compliance with this chapter.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-020 ((SHELTER)) DOMESTIC VIOLENCE SERVICES—GENERAL. (1) ((During)) The ((first forty-eight hours that a victim is in a shelter, the shelter)) domestic violence service shall provide food and beverage necessary and appropriate for the basic sustenance of the resident ((victim(s)). The food and beverage provided to resident victims shall be prepared and stored in a sanitary manner)) clients, unless other resources are available.

(2) ((Shelters)) The domestic violence service shall provide resident ((victims)) clients with access to adequate and basic clothing. Clothing provided for ((resident victims)) clients by the domestic violence service shall have been ((washed or)) cleaned and stored in a sanitary manner prior to disbursement.

(3) Bed and bedding shall be provided to resident ((victims when not supplied by other means)) clients.

(4) ((Shelter services)) The domestic violence service shall provide:

(a) ((Locks and/or alarms on windows, doors and other building access to prevent entry by intruders)) Twenty-four-hour access to advocacy-based counseling.

(b) ((Twenty-four hour staffing of shelters and/or on-call telephone or beeper service through the shelter)) A supportive environment offering safety and an opportunity for clients to examine events leading to the need for domestic violence services.

(c) A referral to other appropriate services ((and/or shelter)) or domestic violence agencies when:

(i) Shelter((s)) homes or safe homes are occupied at capacity.

(ii) Inappropriate referral has been made to a ((shelter)) domestic violence service.

(iii) The ((victim)) client has ((a compound or a multiplicity of)) problems requiring services of another ((agency(s))) agency or agencies prior to offering ((shelter)) domestic violence services.

(d) A telephone for contacting emergency services.

(5) ((There shall be sufficient numbers of advocates to staff shelter services twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week.

(6) Shelter services shall establish standards for advocacy to include:

(a) Availability of twenty-four hour per day, seven-day per week advocacy to victims residing in shelters.

(b) A supportive environment that offers safety and an opportunity for victim(s) to examine events which lead to the need for shelter services.

(7) Shelter)) Domestic violence services ((that receive moneys for counseling)) shall establish standards for counseling ((to include)) which meet or exceed the following:

(a) ((Provision of at least one qualified family violence counselor on staff or under contract with the shelter service)) All advocate counselors shall have a minimum of twenty hours of basic training covering:

(i) Theory and implementation of advocacy-based counseling.

(ii) The history of domestic violence.

(iii) Legal, medical, and social service advocacy.

(iv) Referrals and shelter transfers.

(v) Procedures and policies.

(vi) Confidentiality and ethics, and

(vii) Advocacy in diverse communities.

(b) Advocate counselors shall be skilled in the areas of client safety assessment and planning, problem-solving, and crisis intervention.

(c) Advocate counselors with less than one year counseling experience with a domestic violence service shall be supervised by another advocate counselor. The supervising counselor shall have:

(i) Two years' counseling experience with a domestic violence service, and

(ii) Fifty hours of training on domestic violence issues and counseling.

((b)) Counseling which may be contracted and shall include one or more of the following:

(i) Individual counseling and/or treatment.

(ii) Group, couple or family counseling and/or treatment.

(8) Shelter services receiving moneys for counseling shall provide:

(a) Appropriate)) (d) Advocate counselors shall attend a minimum of thirty hours of continuing education per year. At least fifteen hours of the continuing education must include training on advocacy-based counseling.

(e) Provision of private areas for counseling ((and/or treatment)).

((b)) (f) Assistance with child care ((in a supportive environment)) during counseling sessions.

((c)) Limitation of numbers during any group treatment or counseling session so that the group does not exceed fifteen persons.

(9) Shelter services shall make available to its staff and to the department upon request, the following:

(a)) (g) A minimum ratio of one group leader to eight group participants.

(h) Structured activities for children in shelter residence.

(6) Domestic violence services shall document the provision of shelter and counseling services.

(7) Domestic violence services shall have written personnel policies addressing:

((i)) (a) Nondiscrimination relating to staff.

((ii)) (b) Recruitment, hiring, periodic performance evaluation, promotion, and termination of staff.

((iii)) (c) Job descriptions ((and responsibilities)) for all staff positions including volunteers.

((iv)) (d) Health requirements ((and records for staff which shall include minimally the following:

(A) Each staff person beginning work with a shelter or shelter service, shall have or provide documented evidence of a tuberculin skin test by the Mantoux method unless medically contraindicated. When the skin test is negative (less than ten millimeters of induration), no further testing shall be required. A positive test shall consist of ten millimeters or more of induration read at forty-eight to seventy-two hours. Positive reactors shall have a chest x-ray within ninety days of the first day of employment. Health records including skin test results, x-rays, or exemptions to such shall be maintained in the facility.

Exceptions:

Those with positive tests, as defined above, shall have a biannual screening in the form of a chest x-ray. Those with positive tests whose chest x-ray shows no sign of active disease at least two years after the first documented positive skin test shall be exempted from further annual testing.

Those with positive skin test who have completed the recommended course of preventive or curative treatment, as determined by the local health officer, shall be exempted from further testing:

(B)) including that staff persons with a communicable disease in an infectious stage shall not work with ((victims)) clients.

(8) Domestic violence services shall have written program policies to include:

(a) Clients in immediate danger or at risk will receive first priority for shelter.

(b) ((Policies on)) Nondiscrimination ((related)) relating to services and clients.

(c) ((Program policies shall include and address:)) Encouraging clients, with the financial means to do so, to reimburse for services provided.

(d) Availability of services regardless of ability to pay.

((i)) (e) A ((system of)) procedure for referrals to available community services ((as well as)) resources ((and procedures for securing or facilitating the use of these services)), (e.g., medical, community services offices, bilingual or bicultural agencies, pastoral care, legal consultation).

((ii)) (f) Client access to ((her/his)) his or her files.

((iii)) (g) Confidentiality of client records ((and counseling case work)).

~~((iv)) (h) Description of ((shelter)) services provided by the domestic violence service.~~

~~((d) Administrative policies addressing:))~~

~~(i) ((Organizational charts and/or communication and policy-making procedures:))~~

~~(ii) If the shelter service is a subprogram of a larger administration organization, the philosophy of the larger organization must be congruent with that of the shelter service or allow the shelter service to have autonomous decision making policies in order to maintain a supportive environment for staff and victims of domestic violence.~~

~~((iii)) Notification to resident clients of times the shelter is staffed and whom to call in emergencies or for assistance if no staff is present.~~

~~(9) Domestic violence services shall have written administrative policies including:~~

~~(a) Organizational lines of authority (e.g., bylaws). There shall be one designated staff member responsible for certifying compliance with this chapter.~~

~~(b) Emergency procedures including fire, disaster, first aid, medical, and ((other emergency procedures)) police intervention.~~

~~((iv)) (c) Working agreements ((involving)) between the domestic violence service and safe homes, shelters ((homes and)), contracted services ((for counseling or other)), and child protective services of the department, if applicable.~~

~~((v) Financial and budget) (d) Appropriate accounting procedures.~~

~~((vi)) (e) Policies of cooperation with other ((shelter)) domestic violence services in the immediate geographic area and throughout the state of Washington.~~

~~((vii)) (f) Reporting of child abuse ((in conjunction and agreement with child protective services of the department:))~~

~~(c) Evidence and certification of compliance with WAC 248-554-015 shall be provided by shelter services on forms furnished by the department.~~

~~(10) There shall be an on-site evaluation of each shelter service biennially to measure compliance with standards contained in this chapter) as legally mandated.~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-030 EXEMPTIONS, SEPARABILITY, AND APPEAL. (1) Parts of regulations as stipulated in this chapter may be waived upon written application to the department ((provided)) and the department's determination that the following criteria are met:

(a) ~~((A thorough investigation by))~~ The ~~((department to establish that such))~~ waiver ~~((may be made in an individual case without placing))~~ will not place the client's safety or health ~~((of residents within a specific shelter))~~ in jeopardy, and that the domestic violence service is unable to meet the requirements without the waiver, or that the absence of such a waiver will have a detrimental effect on the provision of services.

(b) Substitution of procedures, materials, or equipment from those specified in this chapter have been demonstrated to be at least equivalent to those prescribed.

(2) If any of these regulations or their application ~~((to any person))~~ is held invalid, the remainder of the regulations or ~~((the))~~ application of the provision ~~((to other persons or circumstances))~~ is not affected.

(3) The department is not obligated to disburse funds to ~~((shelter))~~ domestic violence services complying with the ~~((minimum))~~ standards as stipulated in this chapter.

(4) Appeal procedures shall be in accordance with chapter 34.04 RCW.

WSR 86-18-065
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Health)

[Order 2422—Filed September 3, 1986]

I, Lee D. Bomberger, acting director of the Division of Administration and Personnel, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to shelters for victims of domestic violence, amending chapter 248-554 WAC.

I, Lee D. Bomberger, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is unanticipated federal funds require new contracts with domestic violence programs. The potential contractors cannot comply with chapter 248-554 WAC as it is now written. The federal funds must be obligated by September 30, 1986, which does not allow sufficient time for regular filing.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 70.123-.030 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 29, 1986.

By Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-001 PURPOSE. *The purpose of this section is to specify the uniform state-wide standards in rules and regulations ((which)) for domestic violence services funded by the department of social and health services. These standards address adequate food, clothing, housing, safety, security, advocacy, and counseling for victims of domestic violence utilizing ((shelters which receive funds through the victims of domestic violence program of the department of social and health)) domestic violence services. These minimal standards are developed and established pursuant to chapter 70.123 RCW.*

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-005 DEFINITIONS. *For the purposes of these regulations, the following words and phrases shall have the following meanings unless the context clearly indicates otherwise:*

(1) "Advocacy-based counseling" means the ~~((provision of information and agency referral(s) while teaching a victim to be problem oriented in the task of developing and maintaining self-help skills))~~ involvement of a client with an advocate counselor in an individual, family, or group session with the primary focus on safety planning and on empowerment of the client through reinforcing the client's autonomy and self-determination. Advocacy-based counseling uses problem-solving methods and includes identifying the barriers to safety; developing safety checking and planning skills; clarifying issues; solving problems; increasing self-esteem and self-awareness; and improving and implementing skills in decision making, parenting, self-help, and self-care.

(2) "Advocate counselor" means a trained staff person within a ~~((shelter))~~ domestic violence service who provides ~~((direct services to victims within shelters and who positively assists in provision of a supportive environment))~~ advocacy-based counseling.

(3) "Bathing facility" means a ~~((bath tub))~~ bathtub or shower.

(4) "Bathroom" means a room containing at least one bathing facility.

(5) "Client" means a victim of domestic violence or dependent child of the victim.

(6) "Cohabitant" means a person who is married or who is ~~((cohabiting))~~ living with a person as a husband or wife at the present time or at some time in the past. Any person who has one or more children in common with another person, regardless of whether they have been married or have lived together at any time, shall be treated as a cohabitant.

~~((6))~~ "Counseling" means a combination of advocacy and treatment.)

(7) ~~((Counselor-in-training))~~ means an advocate who is supervised by a qualified family violence counselor and who may act as a family violence counselor in groups and in individual treatments.

(8) "Day or drop in program" means the availability of counseling services in or through a shelter service without necessarily requiring that a victim reside in a shelter.

~~((9))~~ "Department" means the department of social and health services.

~~((10))~~ (8) "Domestic violence" includes but is not limited to any of the following crimes when committed by one cohabitant against another:

- (a) Assault in the first degree (RCW 9A.36.010);
- (b) Assault in the second degree (RCW 9A.36.020);
- (c) Simple assault (RCW 9A.36.040);
- (d) Reckless endangerment (RCW 9A.36.050);
- (e) Coercion (RCW 9A.36.070);
- (f) Burglary in the first degree (RCW 9A.52.020);
- (g) Burglary in the second degree (RCW 9A.52.030);
- (h) Criminal trespass in the first degree (RCW 9A.52.070);
- (i) Criminal trespass in the second degree (RCW 9A.52.080);
- (j) Malicious mischief in the first degree (RCW 9A.48.070);
- (k) Malicious mischief in the second degree (RCW 9A.48.080);
- (l) Malicious mischief in the third degree (RCW 9A.48.090);
- (m) Kidnapping in the first degree (RCW 9A.40.020);
- (n) Kidnapping in the second degree (RCW 9A.40.030);
- (o) Unlawful imprisonment (RCW 9A.40.040).

~~((11))~~ (p) Physical harm, bodily injury, assault, or the infliction of fear or imminent physical harm, bodily injury, or assault or causing another to engage in involuntary sexual relations by force, threat of force, or duress (chapter 26.50 RCW).

(9) "Domestic violence service" means an agency which provides shelter, advocacy, and counseling for domestic violence clients in a supportive environment.

(10) "Lavatory" means a plumbing fixture designed and equipped to serve for handwashing purposes.

~~((12))~~ (11) "Lodging unit" means one or more rooms utilized for a victim of domestic violence including those rooms used for sleeping or sitting.

~~((13))~~ "May" means permissive or discretionary with the department.

(14) "Person" means any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, company, association, or joint stock association, and the legal successor thereof.

(15) "Prevention" means services that provide information to community members and service providers about alternatives to violence.

(16) "Problem oriented" means a focus on the clarification of the problem(s) presented, the teaching of decision-making process, and the provision of counseling.

~~((17))~~ (12) "Program" means the ~~((victims of))~~ domestic violence program of the department.

~~((18))~~ "Qualified family violence counselor" means an advocate who has been certified as a qualified family violence counselor by the Washington state shelter network or a person who has equivalent qualifications and has obtained approval in writing from the program.

~~((19))~~ (13) "Secretary" means the secretary of the ~~((Washington state))~~ department ~~((of social and health services))~~ or ~~((his/her))~~ his or her designee.

~~((20))~~ "Shall" means compliance is mandatory.

~~((21))~~ (14) "Shelter" means a place of temporary refuge, which includes access to adequate food and clothing, offered on a twenty-four-hour, seven-day-per-week basis to victims of domestic violence and their children.

(a) "Safe home" means a shelter that ~~((houses))~~ has two or less lodging units~~((;))~~ and has a working agreement with a ~~((shelter))~~ domestic violence service~~((, and has established rates))~~.

(b) "Shelter home" means a shelter that ~~((houses))~~ has three or more lodging units~~((, has established rates,))~~ and either is a component of or has a working agreement with a ~~((shelter))~~ domestic violence service.

~~((22))~~ "Shelter service" means the organization and/or coordination of safe homes and/or shelter homes to provide for adequate food, clothing, housing, safety, security, advocacy and counseling for victims.

(23) "Should" means a suggestion or recommendation, but not a requirement.

~~((24))~~ (15) "Staff" means persons who are paid or who volunteer services and are a part of a ~~((shelter))~~ domestic violence service.

~~((25))~~ "Supportive environment" means conditions, circumstances, and influences which encourage the victim to have an awareness and applicability of nonabusive egalitarian relationships, positive self-esteem, positive parenting, effective communication skills, mediation skills, nonstereotypic roles, financial independence and personal growth.

~~((26))~~ (16) "Toilet" means a ~~((room containing at least one water closet or one chemical or pit type facility))~~ plumbing fixture used for defecation, fitted with a seat, and a device for flushing the bowl with water.

~~((27)) "Treatment" means participation of victims in individual, family and/or group sessions within a supportive environment.~~

~~((28)) (17) "Victim" means a cohabitant who has been subjected to domestic violence (and, where applicable children of this cohabitant, where appropriate.~~

~~((29) "Water closet" means a plumbing fixture for defecation, fitted with a seat and a device for flushing the bowl of the fixture with water).~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-010 SHELTER HOMES. (1) ~~((Shelter homes shall comply with chapter 70.62 RCW and chapter 248-144 WAC.~~

~~((2)) Shelter homes shall meet general requirements for shelters and ((shelter)) domestic violence services in accordance with chapter 70.123 RCW and this chapter((, WAC 248-554-025)).~~

~~((3)) (2) At least one staff shall be present or on call to go to the shelter home at all times (twenty-four hours per day) when at least one ((victim has contracted to reside)) client is residing in the shelter home.~~

~~((4)) (3) There shall be ((an)) a biennial on-site evaluation by the department of each shelter home ((biennially)) to measure compliance with standards contained in this chapter.~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-015 SAFE HOMES. (1) Prior to ~~((referring clients to)) receiving the domestic violence service client in a safe home, the ((shelter service)) safe home shall ((make)) have made application ((to)) and ((receive approval of the safe home from the program. Departmental approval of a safe home shall be required biennially. The shelter)) have been approved by the domestic violence service.~~

~~((2) The domestic violence service shall keep ((on file)) available for department review a permanent ((register)) record of all safe homes ((for which it has requested approval)). The ((register)) record shall ((list the code number used in the application for approval and)) contain the address and name of the person operating the safe home or an identification code for the safe home, the safe home application, and the approved certification of compliance.~~

~~((2) To ensure client safety and security, identification of a safe home on the application form may be limited to a code identification contained in the shelter service's permanent register of safe homes. The department's approval or disapproval of a safe home shall be based either on an application accompanied by evidence submitted by the shelter service declaring that the safe home is in compliance with chapter 70.123 RCW and this chapter, or on the department's evaluation of the safe home. Applications and)) (3) Certification of compliance shall be on forms provided by the department.~~

~~((3(a))) (4) The department shall utilize a ((random)) sampling method in selecting safe homes for inspection during biennial visits to ((shelter)) domestic violence service offices. ((b)) Inspections of approved safe homes shall measure their compliance with this chapter and with the ((shelter)) domestic violence service certification.~~

~~((4)) (5) When there is evidence that a safe home is out of compliance with the standards as specified in this chapter, the department shall provide the domestic violence service with written notice ((shall be provided to the shelter service by the department)) specifying the deficiencies. ((Safe homes may be granted a period of ninety days to comply with standards based on a written)) The deficiencies shall be corrected in accordance with the plan of correction approved by the department.~~

~~((5) Upon receipt of complaints which indicate specific violations of standards, the department shall notify the shelter service and make investigations, if necessary, to determine compliance. No lodging unit shall be entered for inspection if the lodging unit is occupied by a victim at the time of inspection:~~

~~((6) The department may deny, revoke and suspend the approval and funding of a shelter service in which a safe home is out of compliance with this chapter.~~

~~((7) Safe homes shall comply with local fire codes and requirements.~~

~~((8) Shelter services operating safe homes shall insure compliance of safe homes with requirements of this chapter and shall be responsible for providing adequate supervision for monitoring the safe home, safe home facilities and equipment in good repair and in a clean, safe and sanitary condition.~~

~~((a) Safe homes shall be maintained to protect the health, safety and well-being of victims.~~

~~((b) Floor, wall and ceiling surfaces shall be clean, dry and in good repair.~~

~~((c) Equipment, fixtures, furniture and furnishings, including windows, draperies, curtains and carpets for the lodging units, corridors, stairways and other areas occupied or used by victims shall be clean and maintained in good repair.~~

~~((9) Rooms used by victims as bedrooms shall have a window or opening to the outdoors.~~

~~((10) The water supply used for human consumption shall be from an approved public water system as defined by chapter 248-54 WAC or, if an individual system, one approved as safe for human consumption by the local health department.~~

~~((11) Minimally, one toilet, one lavatory and one bathing facility shall be provided on the safe home premises.~~

~~((a) Pit or chemical type toilet facilities may be used in lieu of a water closet system upon written approval by the shelter service when this practice is not in conflict with local regulations and ordinances.~~

~~((b) Hot and cold water shall be provided at all lavatories and bathing facilities. Hot water shall be at least 110°F. Hot and cold water may be carried to lavatories and bathing facilities and does not need to be water running from faucets at the lavatories or bathing facilities.~~

~~(12) Lodging units shall have natural and/or mechanical ventilation capable of preventing objectionable odors and excessive condensation.~~

~~(13) Heating:~~

~~(a) Lodging units and other areas or rooms used by victims during periods requiring artificial heat shall be provided with a safe and adequate source of heat capable of maintaining a room temperature of not less than 68°F during the time of occupancy.~~

~~(b) Gas fired, wood, or oil fired space heaters and water heaters shall be vented to the outside.~~

~~(14) Natural and/or artificial lighting shall be available to provide minimum light intensities required to promote cleanliness and safety. Each lodging unit shall contain at least one lighting fixture suitable for reading. Lighting fixtures may be nonelectric provided open flames are enclosed.~~

~~(15) Food and beverages prepared by and for victims shall be prepared, served and stored in a safe and sanitary manner.~~

~~(a) Safe homes shall provide the following facilities and equipment for use by and for victims:~~

~~(i) A place suitable for dishwashing;~~

~~(ii) A refrigerator or other storage equipment maintained at a temperature of 45°F or lower, when perishable food is present;~~

~~(iii) A range or stove with cooking space or equivalent cooking space which may be a two burner gas or electric hot plate;~~

~~(iv) A washable or disposable covered waste food container.~~

~~(b) Eating and cooking utensils supplied by the safe home for use by victims shall be maintained clean and free of cracks.~~

~~(16) Appropriate measure shall be taken to prevent and control invasion by insects and rodents.~~

~~(17) Plumbing, solid waste and sewage disposal:~~

~~(a) Liquid drain lines shall be maintained in good repair.~~

~~(b) Minimally, one washable or disposable refuse container shall be provided in each lodging unit. Waste shall be disposed of in a manner which prevents odors, unhealthful, unsafe or insanitary conditions.~~

~~(c) Liquid waste shall be discharged to a municipal sewage disposal system.~~

~~(i) When connection to a municipal sewage disposal system is not feasible, an individual sewage disposal system shall not discharge on to the surface of the ground, into a ditch, nor to the waters of the state, except where such discharge meets applicable standards.~~

~~(ii) New installations, alterations, repairs or replacement of a major component on an individual disposal system shall be approved by the local health department and not create a nuisance or health hazard.~~

~~(18) Safe home operators shall establish and enforce rules designed to control or prohibit pets in the food preparation and storage areas.~~

~~(19) Bedding including but not limited to mattresses, mattress covers, mattress pads, quilts, blankets, pillows, sheets, pillow slips, and spreads for use by victims shall be kept clean and shall not be used when stained or worn so as to be unfit for further use.~~

~~(a) When bed linens are provided for victims, each bed, bunk, cot or other sleeping place shall be supplied with suitable pillow slip(s) and two sheets. After use by a victim, pillow slips, sheets, wash cloths and towels shall be laundered prior to use by another victim.~~

~~(b) Wash cloths, hand towels, bath towels, pillow slips, and sheets supplied by the safe home and used by the same victim for more than one day shall be changed as needed and minimally one time each two weeks.~~

~~(20) A means shall be provided for laundering of bed linens, towels, wash cloths, and personal clothing of resident victims.~~

~~(a) Laundry facilities may be located outside the premises of the safe home.~~

~~(b) Clean bed sheets, pillow slips, towels and other linens for use by victims shall be handled and stored in a sanitary manner.~~

~~(c) All soiled laundry and linens in the safe homes shall be handled and stored so as to prevent contamination of clean laundry and food supplies.~~

~~(21) Cleaning and housekeeping equipment and supplies shall be provided and maintained in a clean and safe condition.~~

~~(a) Containers of chemical cleaning agents and other toxic material shall be labeled and shall bear the instructions and precautions for usage as described by the manufacturer.~~

~~(b) Containers of chemical cleaning agents shall be stored and secured in places out of reach of children.~~

~~(22) Chemical and physical hazards:~~

~~(a) Chemical agents shall be stored so as to prevent accidental poisoning, contamination of foodstuffs, clothing and bedding materials. Application or utilization of chemicals such as cleaners, disinfectants, pesticides, and rodent control products shall be in accordance with manufacturers recommendations for preventing a hazard to humans.~~

~~(b) Adequate and safe handrailings shall be provided for stairways, porches and balconies used by victims, when necessary.~~

~~(c) Swimming pools, wading pools and bathing beaches shall be maintained in a manner that does not present a health hazard or nuisance.))~~

NEW SECTION

WAC 248-554-018 SHELTER HOMES AND SAFE HOMES—GENERAL. (1) Safe homes shall comply with WAC 388-73-310, Fire safety requirements, and shelter homes shall comply with chapter 212-52 WAC, Standards for fire protection.

(2) These facilities, equipment, and supplies shall be in good repair and be in a clean, safe, and sanitary condition. This shall include the outdoor areas.

(3) Water supply.

(a) The water supply used for human consumption shall be from an approved public water system as defined in chapter 248-54 WAC or, if an individual system, the local health department shall approve it as safe for human consumption.

(b) Cross-connections between drinking water and nonpotable systems are prohibited.

(4) Toilet and bathing facilities. Minimally, one toilet, one lavatory, and one bathing facility shall be provided on the premises. Running hot and cold water shall be provided to all lavatories and bathing facilities. In shelter homes:

(a) All floor surfaces shall be impervious to moisture.

(b) At least one toilet, lavatory, and bathing facility shall be provided for each fifteen clients or fraction of this number.

(5) Ventilation.

(a) Lodging units shall have natural or mechanical ventilation capable of preventing objectionable odors and excessive condensation.

(b) Bedrooms shall have a window or opening to the outdoors which can be locked or secured from the inside.

(c) In shelter homes all bathrooms, toilet rooms, laundry rooms, and janitor closets containing wet mops and brushes shall be provided with natural or mechanical ventilation capable of preventing objectionable odors and condensation.

(6) Heating.

(a) Rooms used by clients shall be provided with a safe and adequate source of heat, capable of maintaining the room at a healthful temperature during the time of occupancy.

(b) Gas-fired or oil-fired space heaters and water heaters shall be appropriately vented to the outside.

(7) Lighting. All areas should be appropriately lighted when in use.

(8) Food service. Food and beverages prepared by and for clients shall be prepared, served, and stored in a safe and sanitary manner. The following are required:

(a) A sink for dishwashing;

(b) A refrigerator or other storage equipment capable of maintaining a temperature of forty-five degrees Fahrenheit or lower;

(c) A range, stove, or hot plate;

(d) Covered garbage container;

(e) Eating and cooking utensils which are clean and in good repair;

(f) Impervious to moisture, cleanable, counter surfaces;

(g) Home-canned, low-acid foods (e.g., meats and vegetables) shall not be served to clients in residence;

(h) In shelter homes, when food is served to the clients, the staff shall prepare it in compliance with chapter 248-84 WAC, Food service sanitation.

(9) Insect and rodent control. Preventive measures shall be taken to control insect and rodent infestation.

(10) Sewage and liquid waste. Sewage and liquid waste shall be discharged into a public sewer system or into an independent sewage system approved by the local health authority or department.

(11) Pets. Pets shall be prohibited from the kitchen during food preparation.

(12) Bedding. Bedding shall be kept clean and in good repair.

(a) Clients shall be provided with bed linen, towels, and washcloths. After use by a client, bed linen, washcloths, towels, etc., shall be laundered prior to use by

another client. If a sleeping bag is used, a liner is required unless the bag is cleaned between use by different clients.

(b) Washcloths, towels, and bed linen used by the same client for more than one day shall be changed as needed and minimally one time each week.

(13) Laundry.

(a) Means shall be provided for laundering of bed linen, towels, washcloths, and personal clothing of clients in residence.

(b) All laundry shall be handled and stored in a sanitary manner.

(14) Housekeeping, sanitation, and safety.

(a) Containers of chemical cleaning agents and other toxic materials shall be labeled and bear the instructions and precautions for use as described by the manufacturer.

(b) Containers of toxic agents shall be stored and secured in places out of reach of children and to prevent contamination of food stuff, clothing, and bedding.

(c) Wastebaskets shall be incombustible.

(d) Appropriate diaper changing areas shall be established and procedures developed for proper handling and storage of diapers.

(e) All medications shall be inaccessible to children.

(f) First-aid supplies including, at least, a department approved first-aid manual, band-aids, gauze (squares and rolls), adhesive tape, and syrup of ipecac shall be available.

(15) Physical hazards.

(a) Safe and adequate guard and handrails shall be provided for stairways, porches, and balconies used by clients when necessary.

(b) Swimming pools, wading pools, bathtubs and bathing beaches shall be maintained in the manner which does not present a health hazard, safety problem, or nuisance.

(c) Firearms shall be kept in locked storage, accessible only to authorized persons.

(16) Bedrooms in shelter homes.

(a) Bedrooms shall have a clear, average ceiling height of not less than seven feet six inches and a minimum of fifty square feet of usable floor area per bed.

(b) Floor area where the ceiling height is less than five feet shall not be considered as usable floor area.

(17) Building safety.

(a) There shall be a method for securing all windows, doors, and other building accesses to prevent the entry of intruders.

(b) There shall be provision for staff entry to any area occupied by clients should an emergency arise.

(c) All refrigerators and freezers accessible to children shall be secured in such a manner as to prevent children from climbing in and becoming trapped.

(18) Inspections, investigations, and certifications.

(a) Upon receipt of a complaint, the department shall notify the domestic violence service and shall make an investigation.

(b) There shall be an on-site inspection of each domestic violence service biennially to measure compliance with standards contained in this chapter.

(c) Safe homes and shelter homes shall document services provided to clients in residence.

(d) If a lodging unit is occupied at the time of an inspection or investigation, the domestic violence service shall give the client an opportunity to leave the unit.

(e) When there is evidence a safe home, shelter home, or domestic violence service is out of compliance with the standards as specified in this chapter, the department shall provide written notice to the domestic violence service specifying deficiencies. The deficiencies shall be corrected in accordance with the plan of correction approved by the department.

(f) The department may deny, revoke, or suspend the approval and funding of a domestic violence service in which a safe home, shelter home, or the service itself is out of compliance with this chapter.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-020 ((SHELTER)) DOMESTIC VIOLENCE SERVICES—GENERAL. (1) ((During)) The ((first forty-eight hours that a victim is in a shelter, the shelter)) domestic violence service shall provide food and beverage necessary and appropriate for the basic sustenance of the resident ((victim(s). The food and beverage provided to resident victims shall be prepared and stored in a sanitary manner)) clients, unless other resources are available.

(2) ((Shelters)) The domestic violence service shall provide resident ((victims)) clients with access to adequate and basic clothing. Clothing provided for ((resident victims)) clients by the domestic violence service shall have been ((washed or)) cleaned and stored in a sanitary manner prior to disbursement.

(3) Bed and bedding shall be provided to resident ((victims when not supplied by other means)) clients.

(4) ((Shelter services)) The domestic violence service shall provide:

(a) ((Locks and/or alarms on windows, doors and other building access to prevent entry by intruders)) Twenty-four-hour access to advocacy-based counseling.

(b) ((Twenty-four hour staffing of shelters and/or on-call telephone or beeper service through the shelter)) A supportive environment offering safety and an opportunity for clients to examine events leading to the need for domestic violence services.

(c) A referral to other appropriate services ((and/or shelter)) or domestic violence agencies when:

(i) Shelter((s)) homes or safe homes are occupied at capacity.

(ii) Inappropriate referral has been made to a ((shelter)) domestic violence service.

(iii) The ((victim)) client has ((a compound or a multiplicity of)) problems requiring services of another ((agency(s)) agency or agencies prior to offering ((shelter)) domestic violence services.

(d) A telephone for contacting emergency services.

(5) ((There shall be sufficient numbers of advocates to staff shelter services twenty-four hours per day, seven days per week.

(6) Shelter services shall establish standards for advocacy to include:

(a) Availability of twenty-four hour per day, seven day per week advocacy to victims residing in shelters.

(b) A supportive environment that offers safety and an opportunity for victim(s) to examine events which lead to the need for shelter services.

(7) Shelter)) Domestic violence services ((that receive moneys for counseling)) shall establish standards for counseling ((to include)) which meet or exceed the following:

(a) ((Provision of at least one qualified family violence counselor on staff or under contract with the shelter service)) All advocate counselors shall have a minimum of twenty hours of basic training covering:

(i) Theory and implementation of advocacy-based counseling,

(ii) The history of domestic violence,

(iii) Legal, medical, and social service advocacy,

(iv) Referrals and shelter transfers,

(v) Procedures and policies,

(vi) Confidentiality and ethics, and

(vii) Advocacy in diverse communities.

(b) Advocate counselors shall be skilled in the areas of client safety assessment and planning, problem-solving, and crisis intervention.

(c) Advocate counselors with less than one year counseling experience with a domestic violence service shall be supervised by another advocate counselor. The supervising counselor shall have:

(i) Two years' counseling experience with a domestic violence service, and

(ii) Fifty hours of training on domestic violence issues and counseling.

((b) Counseling which may be contracted and shall include one or more of the following:

(i) Individual counseling and/or treatment.

(ii) Group, couple or family counseling and/or treatment.

(8) Shelter services receiving moneys for counseling shall provide:

(a) Appropriate)) (d) Advocate counselors shall attend a minimum of thirty hours of continuing education per year. At least fifteen hours of the continuing education must include training on advocacy-based counseling.

(e) Provision of private areas for counseling ((and/or treatment)).

((b)) (f) Assistance with child care ((in a supportive environment)) during counseling sessions.

((c) Limitation of numbers during any group treatment or counseling session so that the group does not exceed fifteen persons.

(9) Shelter services shall make available to its staff and to the department upon request, the following:

(a)) (g) A minimum ratio of one group leader to eight group participants.

(h) Structured activities for children in shelter residence.

(6) Domestic violence services shall document the provision of shelter and counseling services.

(7) Domestic violence services shall have written personnel policies addressing:

((f)) (a) Nondiscrimination relating to staff.

~~((ii)) (b) Recruitment, hiring, periodic performance evaluation, promotion, and termination of staff.~~

~~((iii) Staff) (c) Job descriptions ((and responsibilities)) for all staff positions including volunteers.~~

~~((iv)) (d) Health requirements ((and records for staff which shall include minimally the following:~~

~~(A) Each staff person beginning work with a shelter or shelter service, shall have or provide documented evidence of a tuberculin skin test by the Mantoux method unless medically contraindicated. When the skin test is negative (less than ten millimeters of induration), no further testing shall be required. A positive test shall consist of ten millimeters or more of induration read at forty-eight to seventy-two hours. Positive reactors shall have a chest x-ray within ninety days of the first day of employment. Health records including skin test results, x-rays, or exemptions to such shall be maintained in the facility.~~

~~Exceptions:~~

~~Those with positive tests, as defined above, shall have a biannual screening in the form of a chest x-ray. Those with positive tests whose chest x-ray shows no sign of active disease at least two years after the first documented positive skin test shall be exempted from further annual testing.~~

~~Those with positive skin test who have completed the recommended course of preventive or curative treatment, as determined by the local health officer, shall be exempted from further testing.~~

~~(B)) including that staff persons with a communicable disease in an infectious stage shall not work with ((victims)) clients.~~

~~(8) Domestic violence services shall have written program policies to include:~~

~~(a) Clients in immediate danger or at risk will receive first priority for shelter.~~

~~(b) ((Policies on)) Nondiscrimination ((related)) relating to services and clients.~~

~~(c) ((Program policies shall include and address:)) Encouraging clients, with the financial means to do so, to reimburse for services provided.~~

~~(d) Availability of services regardless of ability to pay.~~

~~((i)) (e) A ((system of)) procedure for referrals to available community services ((as well as)) resources ((and procedures for securing or facilitating the use of these services)), (e.g., medical, community services offices, bilingual or bicultural agencies, pastoral care, legal consultation).~~

~~((ii)) (f) Client access to ((her/his)) his or her files.~~

~~((iii)) (g) Confidentiality of client records ((and counseling case work)).~~

~~((iv)) (h) Description of ((shelter)) services provided by the domestic violence service.~~

~~((d) Administrative policies addressing:))~~

~~(i) ((Organizational charts and/or communication and policy making procedures.~~

~~(ii) If the shelter service is a subprogram of a larger administration organization, the philosophy of the larger organization must be congruent with that of the shelter service or allow the shelter service to have autonomous~~

~~decision making policies in order to maintain a supportive environment for staff and victims of domestic violence.~~

~~((iii)) Notification to resident clients of times the shelter is staffed and whom to call in emergencies or for assistance if no staff is present.~~

~~(9) Domestic violence services shall have written administrative policies including:~~

~~(a) Organizational lines of authority (e.g., bylaws). There shall be one designated staff member responsible for certifying compliance with this chapter.~~

~~(b) Emergency procedures including fire, disaster, first aid, medical, and ((other emergency procedures)) police intervention.~~

~~((iv)) (c) Working agreements ((involving)) between the domestic violence service and safe homes, shelters ((homes and)), contracted services ((for counseling or other)), and child protective services of the department, if applicable.~~

~~((v) Financial and budget) (d) Appropriate accounting procedures.~~

~~((vi)) (e) Policies of cooperation with other ((shelter)) domestic violence services in the immediate geographic area and throughout the state of Washington.~~

~~((vii)) (f) Reporting of child abuse ((in conjunction and agreement with child protective services of the department.~~

~~(e) Evidence and certification of compliance with WAC 248-554-015 shall be provided by shelter services on forms furnished by the department.~~

~~(10) There shall be an on-site evaluation of each shelter service biennially to measure compliance with standards contained in this chapter) as legally mandated.~~

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 1467, filed 12/21/79)

WAC 248-554-030 EXEMPTIONS, SEPARABILITY, AND APPEAL. (1) Parts of regulations as stipulated in this chapter may be waived upon written application to the department ((provided)) and the department's determination that the following criteria are met:

(a) ((A thorough investigation by)) The ((department to establish that such)) waiver ((may be made in an individual case without placing)) will not place the client's safety or health ((of residents within a specific shelter)) in jeopardy, and that the domestic violence service is unable to meet the requirements without the waiver, or that the absence of such a waiver will have a detrimental effect on the provision of services.

(b) Substitution of procedures, materials, or equipment from those specified in this chapter have been demonstrated to be at least equivalent to those prescribed.

(2) If any of these regulations or their application ((to any person)) is held invalid, the remainder of the regulations or ((the)) application of the provision ((to other persons or circumstances)) is not affected.

(3) The department is not obligated to disburse funds to ((shelter)) domestic violence services complying with the ((minimum)) standards as stipulated in this chapter.

(4) Appeal procedures shall be in accordance with chapter 34.04 RCW.

WSR 86-18-066
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
(Transportation Commission)
 [Filed September 3, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Washington State Transportation Commission, Room 1D2, Transportation Building, Olympia, Washington 98504, intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules relating to the movement of mobile homes, WAC 468-38-120;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Thursday, October 16, 1986, in the County Administration Building, 1st Floor, 3000 Rockefeller, Everett, WA 98201, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 46.44.090.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 46.44.170.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 16, 1986.

Dated: September 3, 1986
 By: Lue Clarkson
 Administrator

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title: Amendment of WAC 468-38-120.

Summary of Reasons: To amend the regulations relating to the dimensions of mobile homes.

Statement of Reasons: To amend the regulations to allow the movement of park model recreational vehicles under the mobile home regulations.

For Further Information: Mr. Don Ernst, State Maintenance Engineer, Room 1C9, Transportation Building, Phone 753-6014, Olympia, Washington, is responsible for the drafting and implementation of the rule.

Proponent of the Rule: Washington State Department of Transportation and the Washington Manufactured Housing Association.

Opponent of the Rule: Unknown.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 51, Resolution No. 254, filed 10/24/85)

WAC 468-38-120 **OVERSIZE MOBILE HOME TRANSPORT REGULATIONS.** (1) The purpose of this section is to supplement the provisions of chapter 468-38 WAC as they relate to the movement of mobile homes. Where conflicts with other sections of this chapter occur, the following rules apply.

(2) Definitions:

(a) "Mobile home" means all trailers of the semitrailer type with hitch ball coupler designed as structures for human habitation which may have been subsequently adapted to other uses, which are capable of being towed upon the public highways and are more than (~~forty-five~~) thirty-six feet in length (~~or~~) and more than eight and one-half feet in width.

(b) "Modular homes and sectional buildings" means any factory-built housing designed for human habitation which does not contain a permanent frame and must be mounted on a permanent foundation. Modular homes or sectional buildings with their own attached running gear which can be towed are considered to be mobile homes for purposes of this regulation. Modular homes or sectional buildings moved on legally registered trailers are subject to the provisions of chapter 46.44 RCW and the provisions of this chapter of the Washington Administrative Code regulating the movement of overlegal loads.

(c) Oversize permits may be issued to transporters, dealers or owners who shall assume full responsibility while operating under a permit. Operators of tow vehicles and others assisting in the transport must function as agents or employees of the permittee.

(d) A "unit" is a complete or irreducible part of an oversize mobile home, together with its tow vehicle.

(3) Oversize limits: The following regulations apply to mobile homes of semi-trailer design whose width exceeds eight and one-half feet but does not exceed fourteen feet and whose length exceeds (~~forty-five~~) thirty-six feet but in combination with a tow vehicle does not exceed eighty-five feet.

(4) Oversize mobile home permits may be issued as follows:

(a) Annual permits may be issued only to permittees who are qualified as dealers or manufacturers as provided in chapter 46.70 RCW or to transporters licensed as provided in chapter 46.76 RCW.

Annual permits shall apply only to transport of mobile homes four-teen feet or less in height, above level ground, while being transported.

(b) Monthly permits may be issued to dealers, manufacturers, and transporters under the same conditions as annual permits except that fourteen foot height limitations may be waived.

(c) Single trip permits may be issued to dealers, transporters and owners for a specific combination of tow vehicle and mobile home to travel from a point of origin to a prescribed destination.

(5) The permittee must have insurance in effect while operating under the permit in the minimum amounts of (~~\$100,000~~) one hundred thousand dollars - (~~\$300,000~~) three hundred thousand dollars public liability and (~~\$50,000~~) fifty thousand dollars property damage. Pilot car operators shall meet the insurance requirements of RCW 46.44.180.

(6) If an accident occurs while transporting a mobile home under permit, the permittee shall immediately notify the nearest state patrol office if the damage is greater than two hundred and fifty dollars to the mobile home or greater than one hundred dollars to other vehicles or structures. Permission to continue the movement must be obtained from the state patrol.

(7) Dealers selling (~~(+2)~~) twelve to (~~(+4)~~) fourteen foot wide mobile homes must advise the prospective purchaser in writing that not all state highways are approved for the transport of (~~(+2)~~) twelve to (~~(+4)~~) fourteen foot wide mobile homes.

(8) Permits issued in accordance with the Uniform Mobile and Modular Home Transportation Regulations of WASHTO will be subject to those regulations and will be honored by the state of Washington if issued by other states.

(9) Mobile homes:

(a) Overall dimensions shall not exceed those stated in the permit except for minor protrusions not to exceed (~~(2)~~) two inches, such as door and window hardware. Eaves will be included in the measurement of maximum width. All dimensions shall be reduced to the practical minimum. Mobile homes having a single eave overhang along their length will be transported to allow for safe passing distances.

(b) The complete system of the mobile home, including running gear assembly, shall comply with the rules and regulations adopted by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (24 CFR 280 (1976) and as thereafter amended). Tires shall comply with applicable Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, Title 49, chapter 111. Those mobile homes not certified as qualifying to the minimum H.U.D. specifications shall have brakes on at least two axles and on four wheels. Units of sixty feet or more in length shall have at least three full axles, except that (~~(+2)~~) twelve-foot wide mobile homes manufactured prior to November 1, 1970, may be moved with a minimum of two axles. The brakes shall be under the control of the driver from the cab of the towing vehicle, and shall be adequate to control the mobile home and its load. They shall be so designed and connected that they shall automatically apply in case of accidental breakaway from the towing vehicle. A wet-cell or approved battery with a full charged rating of (~~(+2)~~) twelve volts will be installed in the mobile home to actuate electric brakes in the event of a breakaway. The minimum track width between two wheels on the same axle shall be eight

feet. Track width shall be measured from the outer edges of the road bearing tread of tires on a single axle. Tires shall have no signs of separation or excessive aging and shall be inflated to the maximum recommended tire pressure and have tread depth no less than 3/32nd inch in any part of tire contacting the road. Recapped or retreaded tires are not allowed. Minimum combined load rating of mobile home tires must be in excess of their in-transit load. Axles and wheels must be properly aligned to minimize wear and overheating of tires.

(c) The open side of half sections of mobile homes shall be covered in such a way as to prevent billowing of the covering material.

(d) Furnishings or loose objects within the mobile home shall be secured in positions to achieve proper weight and balance.

(10) Tow vehicles:

(a) Tow vehicles shall comply with the following minimum requirements:

Mobile Home Width to be Towed	Tire Width	Drive Axle Tire Rating	Gross Curb Weight	(1) Weight	Rear Axle Rating
Over 8 1/2' to 10'	7.00"	6 ply	(2)	6,000#	(2)
Over 10' to 12'	8.00"	8 ply	35,000(3)	8,000#	15,000#
Over 12' to 14'	8.25"	10 ply	35,000#	9,000#	15,000#

- (1) Includes fuel and accessories prior to hook-up with mobile home.
- (2) Not required.
- (3) May be waived for older vehicles.

(b) Conventional or cab-forward configuration shall have a minimum wheelbase of ~~((+20))~~ one hundred twenty inches. Cab-over-engine tow vehicles shall have a minimum wheelbase of ~~((89))~~ eighty-nine inches. Tow vehicles shall have a minimum 4-speed transmission. Power shall be sufficient to meet the requirements listed.

(c) Electrical brake controls, wiring and connections to mobile home brake systems will be capable of producing rated voltage and amperage at the mobile home brake magnets in accordance with the mobile home brake manufacturer's specifications.

(11) Signs and flags: In addition to the requirements of WAC 468-38-190, the OVERSIZE LOAD sign will be attached horizontally on the rear of the trailer home with the bottom edge between five and seven feet above the road surface. Sign material shall be impervious to moisture, clean and mounted with adequate supporting anchorage to provide legibility at all times.

(12) Lights: In addition to provisions of WAC 468-38-170, ~~((6))~~ six-inch diameter flashing amber lights with a minimum of ~~((35))~~ thirty-five candle power shall be mounted on the upper outer edges of the rear of the trailing unit. They shall be operated with a flashing cycle of ~~((60-120))~~ sixty to one hundred twenty times per minute during transit. Wiring and connections shall be in good working order.

(13) Travel speeds for mobile homes shall be as set forth in WAC 468-38-340.

(14) Mobile homes traveling in rural areas shall maintain adequate spacing of at least one-half mile between any two mobile home units. All units shall maintain a minimum distance of from ~~((400))~~ four hundred to ~~((500))~~ five hundred feet behind any truck, truck-tractor or trailer which could impair the visibility of an overtaking vehicle.

(15) The mobile home unit shall be operated in the right lane except when passing. On two-lane highways, units shall not pass other vehicles except when required to pass a vehicle being operated at a speed so slow as to hinder the safe flow of traffic.

(16)(a) A decal issued by the county treasurer shall be displayed on any mobile or modular home being transported on public highways in this state. The decal is not required if one of the following conditions is met:

- (i) When a mobile home is to enter the state;
- (ii) When a mobile home is being moved from the manufacturer or distributor to a retail sales outlet;
- (iii) When a mobile home is being moved from the manufacturer or distributor to a purchaser's designated location; or
- (iv) When a mobile home is being moved between retail sales outlets.

(b) The county treasurer's decal shall be displayed on the rear of the mobile home while in transport. It shall be issued at the same time as the tax certificate for mobile home movement. If the tax certification is for a double-wide mobile home, two mobile home movement decals shall be issued.

(c) The decal shall meet the following requirements:

- (i) It shall be at least ~~((8-1/2))~~ eight and one-half inches square.
- (ii) It shall be printed on Appleton Radiant Florescent Bristol (weight .010) or paper of comparable quality.

(iii) It shall be of fluorescent orange color.

(iv) It shall show the make, model and serial number of the mobile home, the date issued, the name of the transporter, the transporter's WUTC permit number if required, the department of transportation special motor vehicle permit number, and the name of the county issuing the decal.

(v) It shall display in readily legible script the expiration date of the decal, which shall be not more than fifteen days after the date the decal is issued.

(d) Mobile home movement decals may not be transferred.

WSR 86-18-067

EMERGENCY RULES

**DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
(Transportation Commission)**

[Order 57, Resolution No. 277—Filed September 3, 1986]

Be it resolved by the Washington State Transportation Commission, acting at Olympia, Washington, that it does adopt the annexed rules relating to the movement of mobile homes, WAC 468-38-120.

We, the Washington State Transportation Commission, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is that park trailers are currently not classified as mobile homes and cannot legally be moved as mobile homes.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Washington State Transportation Commission as authorized in RCW 46.44.090.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW), and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED August 21, 1986.

By Vaughn Hubbard
Chairman

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 51, Resolution No. 254, filed 10/24/85)

WAC 468-38-120 OVERSIZE MOBILE HOME TRANSPORT REGULATIONS. (1) *The purpose of this section is to supplement the provisions of chapter 468-38 WAC as they relate to the movement of mobile homes. Where conflicts with other sections of this chapter occur, the following rules apply.*

(2) *Definitions:*

(a) "Mobile home" means all trailers of the semitrailer type with hitch ball coupler designed as structures for human habitation which may have been subsequently adapted to other uses, which are capable of being towed upon the public highways and are more than ~~((forty= five))~~ thirty-six feet in length ~~((or))~~ and more than eight and one-half feet in width.

(b) "Modular homes and sectional buildings" means any factory-built housing designed for human habitation which does not contain a permanent frame and must be mounted on a permanent foundation. Modular homes or sectional buildings with their own attached running gear which can be towed are considered to be mobile homes for purposes of this regulation. Modular homes or sectional buildings moved on legally registered trailers are subject to the provisions of chapter 46.44 RCW and the provisions of this chapter of the Washington Administrative Code regulating the movement of overlegal loads.

(c) Oversize permits may be issued to transporters, dealers or owners who shall assume full responsibility while operating under a permit. Operators of tow vehicles and others assisting in the transport must function as agents or employees of the permittee.

(d) A "unit" is a complete or irreducible part of an oversize mobile home, together with its tow vehicle.

(3) Oversize limits: The following regulations apply to mobile homes of semi-trailer design whose width exceeds eight and one-half feet but does not exceed fourteen feet and whose length exceeds (~~forty-five~~) thirty-six feet but in combination with a tow vehicle does not exceed eighty-five feet.

(4) Oversize mobile home permits may be issued as follows:

(a) Annual permits may be issued only to permittees who are qualified as dealers or manufacturers as provided in chapter 46.70 RCW or to transporters licensed as provided in chapter 46.76 RCW.

Annual permits shall apply only to transport of mobile homes fourteen feet or less in height, above level ground, while being transported.

(b) Monthly permits may be issued to dealers, manufacturers, and transporters under the same conditions as annual permits except that fourteen foot height limitations may be waived.

(c) Single trip permits may be issued to dealers, transporters and owners for a specific combination of tow vehicle and mobile home to travel from a point of origin to a prescribed destination.

(5) The permittee must have insurance in effect while operating under the permit in the minimum amounts of (~~\$100,000~~) one hundred thousand dollars - (~~\$300,000~~) three hundred thousand dollars public liability and (~~\$50,000~~) fifty thousand dollars property damage. Pilot car operators shall meet the insurance requirements of RCW 46.44.180.

(6) If an accident occurs while transporting a mobile home under permit, the permittee shall immediately notify the nearest state patrol office if the damage is greater than two hundred and fifty dollars to the mobile home or greater than one hundred dollars to other vehicles or structures. Permission to continue the movement must be obtained from the state patrol.

(7) Dealers selling ((+2)) twelve to ((+4)) fourteen foot wide mobile homes must advise the prospective purchaser in writing that not all state highways are approved for the transport of ((+2)) twelve to ((+4)) fourteen foot wide mobile homes.

(8) Permits issued in accordance with the Uniform Mobile and Modular Home Transportation Regulations

of WASHTO will be subject to those regulations and will be honored by the state of Washington if issued by other states.

(9) Mobile homes:

(a) Overall dimensions shall not exceed those stated in the permit except for minor protrusions not to exceed ((2)) two inches, such as door and window hardware. Eaves will be included in the measurement of maximum width. All dimensions shall be reduced to the practical minimum. Mobile homes having a single eave overhang along their length will be transported to allow for safe passing distances.

(b) The complete system of the mobile home, including running gear assembly, shall comply with the rules and regulations adopted by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (24 CFR 280 (1976) and as thereafter amended). Tires shall comply with applicable Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations, Title 49, chapter 111. Those mobile homes not certified as qualifying to the minimum H.U.D. specifications shall have brakes on at least two axles and on four wheels. Units of sixty feet or more in length shall have at least three full axles, except that ((+2)) twelve-foot wide mobile homes manufactured prior to November 1, 1970, may be moved with a minimum of two axles. The brakes shall be under the control of the driver from the cab of the towing vehicle, and shall be adequate to control the mobile home and its load. They shall be so designed and connected that they shall automatically apply in case of accidental breakaway from the towing vehicle. A wet-cell or approved battery with a full charged rating of ((+2)) twelve volts will be installed in the mobile home to actuate electric brakes in the event of a breakaway. The minimum track width between two wheels on the same axle shall be eight feet. Track width shall be measured from the outer edges of the road bearing tread of tires on a single axle. Tires shall have no signs of separation or excessive aging and shall be inflated to the maximum recommended tire pressure and have tread depth no less than 3/32nd inch in any part of tire contacting the road. Recapped or retreaded tires are not allowed. Minimum combined load rating of mobile home tires must be in excess of their in-transit load. Axles and wheels must be properly aligned to minimize wear and overheating of tires.

(c) The open side of half sections of mobile homes shall be covered in such a way as to prevent billowing of the covering material.

(d) Furnishings or loose objects within the mobile home shall be secured in positions to achieve proper weight and balance.

(10) Tow vehicles:

(a) Tow vehicles shall comply with the following minimum requirements:

Mobile Home Width to be Towed	Drive Axle Tire Width	Drive Axle Tire Rating	Gross Curb Weight	(1) Rear Axle Weight	Rear Axle Rating
Over 8 1/2 to 10'	7.00"	6 ply	(2)	6,000#	(2)
Over 10' to 12'	8.00"	8 ply	35,000(3)	8,000#	15,000#
Over 12' to 14'	8.25"	10 ply	35,000#	9,000#	15,000#

(1) Includes fuel and accessories prior to hook-up with mobile home.
(2) Not required.

(3) May be waived for older vehicles.

(b) Conventional or cab-forward configuration shall have a minimum wheelbase of ~~((+20))~~ one hundred twenty inches. Cab-over engine tow vehicles shall have a minimum wheelbase of ~~((89))~~ eighty-nine inches. Tow vehicles shall have a minimum 4-speed transmission. Power shall be sufficient to meet the requirements listed.

(c) Electrical brake controls, wiring and connections to mobile home brake systems will be capable of producing rated voltage and amperage at the mobile home brake magnets in accordance with the mobile home brake manufacturer's specifications.

(11) Signs and flags: In addition to the requirements of WAC 468-38-190, the OVERSIZE LOAD sign will be attached horizontally on the rear of the trailer home with the bottom edge between five and seven feet above the road surface. Sign material shall be impervious to moisture, clean and mounted with adequate supporting anchorage to provide legibility at all times.

(12) Lights: In addition to provisions of WAC 468-38-170, ~~((6))~~ six-inch diameter flashing amber lights with a minimum of ~~((35))~~ thirty-five candle power shall be mounted on the upper outer edges of the rear of the trailing unit. They shall be operated with a flashing cycle of ~~((60-120))~~ sixty to one hundred twenty times per minute during transit. Wiring and connections shall be in good working order.

(13) Travel speeds for mobile homes shall be as set forth in WAC 468-38-340.

(14) Mobile homes traveling in rural areas shall maintain adequate spacing of at least one-half mile between any two mobile home units. All units shall maintain a minimum distance of from ~~((400))~~ four hundred to ~~((500))~~ five hundred feet behind any truck, truck-tractor or trailer which could impair the visibility of an overtaking vehicle.

(15) The mobile home unit shall be operated in the right lane except when passing. On two-lane highways, units shall not pass other vehicles except when required to pass a vehicle being operated at a speed so slow as to hinder the safe flow of traffic.

(16)(a) A decal issued by the county treasurer shall be displayed on any mobile or modular home being transported on public highways in this state. The decal is not required if one of the following conditions is met:

- (i) When a mobile home is to enter the state;
- (ii) When a mobile home is being moved from the manufacturer or distributor to a retail sales outlet;
- (iii) When a mobile home is being moved from the manufacturer or distributor to a purchaser's designated location; or
- (iv) When a mobile home is being moved between retail sales outlets.

(b) The county treasurer's decal shall be displayed on the rear of the mobile home while in transport. It shall be issued at the same time as the tax certificate for mobile home movement. If the tax certification is for a double-wide mobile home, two mobile home movement decals shall be issued.

(c) The decal shall meet the following requirements:

- (i) It shall be at least ~~((8-1/2))~~ eight and one-half inches square.

(ii) It shall be printed on Appleton Radiant Florescent Bristol (weight .010) or paper of comparable quality.

(iii) It shall be of fluorescent orange color.

(iv) It shall show the make, model and serial number of the mobile home, the date issued, the name of the transporter, the transporter's WUTC permit number if required, the department of transportation special motor vehicle permit number, and the name of the county issuing the decal.

(v) It shall display in readily legible script the expiration date of the decal, which shall be not more than fifteen days after the date the decal is issued.

(d) Mobile home movement decals may not be transferred.

WSR 86-18-068

PROPOSED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

[Filed September 3, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Revenue intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning:

Amd	WAC 458-20-122	Sales of feed, seed, fertilizer and spray materials.
Amd	WAC 458-20-157	Producers of poultry and hatching eggs.
Amd	WAC 458-20-210	Sales of agricultural products by persons producing the same.
Amd	WAC 458-20-244	Food products.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on October 17, 1986.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 82.32.300.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 82.08.0293, 82.12.0193 [82.12.0293], 82.08.0296 and 82.12.0296.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 17, 1986.

Dated: September 3, 1986

By: Matthew J. Coyle
Acting Director

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title: WAC 458-20-122 Sales of feed, seed, fertilizer and spray materials.

Description of Purpose: To implement chapter 265, Laws of 1986, now codified in RCW 82.02.0296 [82.08.0296] and 82.12.0296, which provides retail sales tax and use tax exemptions for animal feed at public livestock markets. To simplify language and reorganize provisions already contained in this rule, and to reformat the rule under the uniform numbering and lettering identification system being used for all revenue rules.

Statutory Authority: RCW 82.32.300.

Specific Statute(s) Rule is Intended to Implement: RCW 82.08.0296 and 82.12.0296.

Reasons Supporting Proposed Action: These are ministerial amendments to the rule, simply to incorporate

express statutory tax exemptions and to do other, non-substantive housekeeping. The amendments do not change any substantive application or administration of the tax law or rule. Therefore, the rule is being amended without public hearing.

Title: WAC 458-20-157 Producers of poultry and hatching eggs.

Description of Purpose: To implement chapter 265, Laws of 1986, now codified in RCW 82.02.0296 [82.08.0296] and 82.12.0296, which provides retail sales tax and use tax exemptions for animal feed at public livestock markets. To simplify language and reorganize provisions already contained in this rule, and to reformat the rule under the uniform numbering and lettering identification system being used for all revenue rules.

Statutory Authority: RCW 82.32.300.

Specific Statute(s) Rule is Intended to Implement: RCW 82.08.0296 and 82.12.0296.

Reasons Supporting Proposed Action: These are ministerial amendments to the rule, simply to incorporate express statutory tax exemptions and to do other, non-substantive housekeeping. The amendments do not change any substantive application or administration of the tax law or rule. Therefore, the rule is being amended without public hearing.

Title: WAC 458-20-210 Sales of agricultural products by persons producing the same.

Description of Purpose: To implement chapter 265, Laws of 1986, now codified in RCW 82.02.0296 [82.08.0296] and 82.12.0296, which provides retail sales tax and use tax exemptions for animal feed at public livestock markets. To simplify language and reorganize provisions already contained in this rule, and to reformat the rule under the uniform numbering and lettering identification system being used for all revenue rules.

Statutory Authority: RCW 82.32.300.

Specific Statute(s) Rule is Intended to Implement: RCW 82.08.0296 and 82.12.0296.

Reasons Supporting Proposed Action: These are ministerial amendments to the rule, simply to incorporate express statutory tax exemptions and to do other, non-substantive housekeeping. The amendments do not change any substantive application or administration of the tax law or rule. Therefore, the rule is being amended without public hearing.

Title: WAC 458-20-244 Food products.

Description of Purpose: To implement chapter 182, Laws of 1986, which amends RCW 82.08.0293 and 82.12.0293 by adding exemptions from the retail sales tax and use tax for livestock sold and used for personal consumption as food. To simplify existing rule language and include references to other related information sources for persons engaged in selling food. To reformat the rule under the uniform numbering and lettering identification system being used for all revenue rules.

Statutory Authority: RCW 82.32.300.

Specific Statute(s) Rule is Intended to Implement: RCW 82.08.0293 and 82.12.0193 [82.12.0293].

Reasons Supporting Proposed Action: The ministerial amendments to this rule simply incorporate new statutory exemptions and accomplish other housekeeping of a

nonsubstantive nature. The rule needed to cross-reference taxpayers to sources of additional helpful information provided through excise tax bulletins and to be reformatted for better identification of its parts. The amendments do not result in any substantive change in the administration of tax law, and are being adopted without a public hearing.

Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Edward L. Faker, 415 General Administration Building, Olympia, WA 98504, phone 753-5579; Implementation: Garry G. Fujita, 415 General Administration Building, Olympia, WA 98504, phone 753-5544; and Enforcement: Department of Revenue, 415 General Administration Building, Olympia, WA 98504, phone 753-5540.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order ET 86-7, filed 4/17/86)

WAC 458-20-122 SALES OF FEED, SEED, FERTILIZER AND SPRAY MATERIALS. (1) DEFINITIONS. As used in this ruling:

(a) The word "feed" means a substance used as food for animals, birds, fish, or insects, and includes whole and processed grains or mixtures thereof, hay and forages or meals made therefrom, mill feeds and feeding concentrates, stock salt, hay salt, bone meal, cod liver oil, double purpose limestone grit, oyster shell and other similar substances used to sustain or improve livestock or poultry. The word does not include substances which do not contribute directly to a resulting agricultural product, such as peat moss or litter, nor does it include hormones or products which are used as medicines rather than as food.

(b) The word "seed" means propagative portions of plants, commonly used for seeding or planting whether true seeds, bulbs, plants, seedlike fruits, seedlings or tubers.

(c) The word "fertilizer" means a substance which increases the productivity of the soil by adding plant foods or nutrients which improve and stimulate plant growth.

(d) The term "spray materials" means materials in liquid, powder or gaseous form used by agricultural producers as described in RCW 82.04.330 for the purpose of controlling or destroying insects, parasites, vermin, animals, fungi, weeds, pests or plants of a similar nature, deleterious to the growth or conservation of horticultural plants, animals, or products derived therefrom. It includes pesticides as defined in RCW 15.58.030(1). It does not include mechanical devices for the elimination of pests nor does it include materials used for spraying forest trees by commercial timber producers.

(e) The word "farmers" as used in this rule means any persons engaged in the business of growing or producing for sale at wholesale upon their own lands, or upon lands in which they have a present right of possession, any agricultural product whatsoever, including milk, eggs, wool, fur, meat, honey, or other substances obtained from animals, birds, or insects. "Farmers" does not mean persons selling such products at retail, persons using such products as ingredients in a manufacturing process, or persons growing or producing such products for their own consumption. It does not mean any person dealing in livestock as an operator of a stockyard, slaughter house, or packing house; nor does it mean any person who is an "extractor" within the meaning of WAC 458-20-135.

(2) BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX. Persons engaged in the business of selling feed, seed, fertilizer or spray materials are taxable under either the retailing or wholesaling classification on gross proceeds of sales. Sales of feed, seed, fertilizer, and spray materials to farmers as defined herein are taxable under the wholesaling—other classification: PROVIDED, That wholesale sales of certain unprocessed grain and legumes may be taxable at a lower rate under the wholesaling wheat, oats, corn, barley, dry peas, dry beans, lentils, triticale classification (see WAC 458-20-161), even though the sale of such unprocessed grains or legumes is to a farmer for use as feed. Sales of feed, seed, fertilizer, and spray materials to consumers other than farmers are taxable under the retailing classification. Sales of feed for use in the cultivating or raising for sale of fish are taxable under the retailing classification.

(3) Persons engaged in the business of spraying crops for hire are taxable under the service and other business activities classification on the gross income therefrom.

((RETAIL SALES TAX

The retail sales tax does not apply upon the sale of feed, seed, fertilizer, and spray materials to farmers as defined herein:

The retail sales tax applies upon the sale of all such articles to consumers other than farmers:

The retail sales tax also applies upon sales of spray materials to persons engaged in the business of spraying crops for hire, unless purchased by such persons for the purpose of resale to others for a price separate and apart from the charge made for the actual spreading of the spray:

The retail sales tax does not apply upon sales of any such articles sold to persons for the purpose of producing for sale any agricultural product whatsoever, including substances obtained from animals, birds or insects:

Sales of feed to persons for use in the cultivating or raising for sale of fish entirely within confined rearing areas or the person's own land or on land in which the person has a present right of possession are expressly exempt of retail sales tax:

Sales of feed are taxable retail sales when sold to a riding club or race track operator, or for the purpose of feeding pets or work animals; or of producing poultry or eggs for home consumption. Likewise, sales of seed, fertilizer and spray materials are taxable retail sales when sold to persons for the growing or improving of lawns or home gardens, or for any use other than for resale or for commercial production of agricultural products:)) (4) RETAIL SALES TAX. The retail sales tax applies to sales of feed, seed, fertilizer, and spray materials to consumers other than "farmers" as defined herein, except as explained below.

(5) The tax applies upon sales of spray materials to persons who spray agricultural crops and other real property for hire, unless purchased for resale to others for a charge separate and apart from charges for the actual spreading of the spray materials.

(6) The sales tax also applies to sales of feed to riding clubs, race track operators, or for feeding pets, work animals, or for raising poultry, eggs, or other products for personal consumption. Also, the tax applies to sales of seed, fertilizer, and spray materials to persons for use on lawns, gardens, or any other personal use other than resale or the commercial production of agricultural products.

(7) EXEMPTIONS. The sales tax does not apply to sales of feed, seed, fertilizer, and spray materials to farmers, as defined herein (RCW 82.04.050).

(8) The tax does not apply to sales of feed to persons for use in cultivating or raising fish for sale, entirely within confined rearing areas on the persons own land or on land in which the person has a present right of possession (RCW 82.08.0294).

(9) The tax does not apply to sales of feed for feeding livestock at public livestock markets (RCW 82.08.0296).

(10) The burden of proving that a sale of any of said articles was not a sale at retail is upon the seller, and all sales will be deemed retail sales unless the seller shall take from the purchaser, whether a registered dealer or a farmer, a resale certificate in accordance with WAC 458-20-102.

((Revised June 1, 1970:)) (11) USE TAX. The use tax does not apply upon the use of feed, seed, fertilizer, and spray materials in this state under such circumstances that the sale of such things is exempt of sales tax as explained earlier herein. In all other cases the use tax applies upon the first use by a consumer of such things if retail sales tax has not been paid upon their acquisition.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order ET 78-4, filed 6/27/78)

WAC 458-20-157 PRODUCERS OF POULTRY AND HATCHING EGGS. (1) BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX. Persons engaged in the production and sale of hatching eggs or poultry for use in the production for sale of poultry or poultry products are not subject to the business and occupation tax upon the gross proceeds from such sales (RCW 82.04.410). Persons engaged in the production and sale for resale of hatching eggs or poultry are also exempt from the business and occupation tax in respect to such sales (RCW 82.04.330). The business and occupation tax is applicable to all sales of poultry or poultry products by persons other than the producer thereof.

(2) RETAIL SALES TAX. The retail sales tax is not applicable to sales of poultry for use in the production for sale of poultry or poultry products (RCW 82.08.030(16)).

(3) SALES OF EQUIPMENT AND FEED. Sales of incubators, brooders, and other equipment or supplies to hatcheries or producers of poultry

or poultry products are sales for use or consumption upon which the retail sales tax must be collected by the seller. Sales of poultry feed for use by the purchaser in producing poultry and poultry products are not subject to the retail sales tax. (See also WAC 458-20-122.)

((Revised April 28, 1978:)) (4) Also, the retail sales tax does not apply to sales of feed for feeding poultry at a public livestock market.

(5) USE TAX. The use tax applies to all tangible personal property used as consumers by persons engaged in the production and sale of hatching eggs or poultry under conditions where retail sales tax has not been paid thereon, except poultry feed used by such poultry producers or used to feed poultry at public livestock markets.

Effective July 1, 1978.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order ET 86-3, filed 3/6/86)

WAC 458-20-210 SALES OF AGRICULTURAL PRODUCTS BY PERSONS PRODUCING THE SAME. (1) The term "agricultural products" as used herein means any agricultural or horticultural produce or crop, including any animal, bird, fish, or insect, or the milk, eggs, wool, fur, meat, honey, or other substance obtained therefrom: PROVIDED, That "fish" as used herein means fish which are cultivated and raised entirely within confined rearing areas on land owned by the person so raising the same or on land in which the person has a present right of possession.

(2) Persons engaging in the business of making retail sales of agricultural products produced by them are required to apply for and obtain a certificate of registration. The certificate shall remain valid as long as the person remains in business.

(3) BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX. Persons making wholesale sales of agricultural products produced by them upon land owned by or leased to them are not subject to the business and occupation tax. This exemption does not extend to sales of manufactured or extracted products (see WAC 458-20-135 and 458-20-136).

(4) Retail sales of agricultural products by persons producing the same are subject to tax under the retailing classification of the business and occupation tax. Thus, tax is due by any such person who holds himself out to the public as a seller by:

((+)) (a) Conducting a roadside stand or a stand displaying agricultural products for sale at retail;

((2)) (b) Posting signs on his premises, or through other forms of advertising soliciting sales at retail;

((3)) (c) Operating a regular delivery route from which agricultural products are sold from door to door; or

((4)) (d) Maintaining an established place of business for the purpose of making retail sales of agricultural products.

(5) Persons selling agricultural products not produced by them, should obtain information from the department of revenue with respect to their tax liability.

(6) RETAIL SALES TAX. Persons selling agricultural products produced by them are required to collect the retail sales tax upon all retail sales made by them, except sales of food products exempt under WAC 458-20-244. The sales tax exemption for food products also applies to sales of livestock sold for personal consumption as food.

(7) The retail sales tax applies to all sales of tangible personal property to persons for use as consumers in producing agricultural products, except for certain expressly tax exempt items (see WAC 458-20-122 and 458-20-210).

(8) USE TAX. The use tax applies upon the value of all tangible personal property used as consumers by producers of agricultural products where the retail sales tax has not been paid, except for those items which are expressly exempt of retail sales tax.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order ET 85-8, filed 12/31/85)

WAC 458-20-244 FOOD PRODUCTS. (1) RCW 82.08.0293 and 82.12.0293 exempt certain food products for human consumption away from the retailer's premises from retail sales tax and use tax. There is no food products exemption for business and occupation tax. The effective date of these exemptions is July 1, 1983. The word "tax" as used hereafter in this ((rule)) section means retail sales tax. "Food products" include generally those products normally ingested by humans for nourishment((-but)). The term also includes livestock sold for personal consumption as food. The term excludes seeds, seedlings, trees, and the like, for home gardens, as well as breeding stock of animals, birds, insects, and other animate creatures.

(2) The law exempts most, but not all, food products from tax, but even the food products qualified for exemption are made subject to tax by the law if any one of the following circumstances is present:

(a) The food products are furnished, prepared, or served for consumption at tables, chairs, or counters or from trays, glasses, dishes, or other tableware whether provided by the seller or by a person with whom the retailer contracts to furnish, prepare, or serve food products to others, except for food products furnished as meals (i) under a state administered nutrition program for the aged as provided for in the Older Americans Act (PL 95-478 Title III) and RCW 74.38.040(6) or (ii) which are provided to senior citizens, disabled persons, or low-income persons by a not-for-profit organization organized under chapter 24.03 or 24.12 RCW;

OR,

(b) The food products are ordinarily sold for immediate consumption on or near a location at which parking facilities are provided primarily for the use of patrons in consuming the products purchased at the location. Where such facilities are provided the tax applies even if the food products are sold on a "take out" or "to go" order and it is immaterial that the products are actually packaged or wrapped and that they are in fact taken from the premises of the retailer;

OR,

(c) The food products are sold for consumption within a place (except national or state parks or monuments), the entrance to which is subject to an admission charge. But, even if the admission-charged place is a national or state park or monument such that the admission charge does not negate the exemption, the tax will apply if either circumstances (a) or (b) (~~above~~) of this subsection are present.

(3) VENDORS WHO ARE REQUIRED TO COLLECT TAX.

~~((+))~~ (a) Sales of food products are subject to tax when sold by cafes, caterers, restaurants, pizza parlors, food drive-ins, and businesses which are operated in such a way as to invite or permit consumption of the food at or near the premises where the food is sold. This circumstance is presumed to occur where customers are provided facilities for immediate consumption of food sold, such as tables, chairs, or counters; trays, glasses, dishes, or tableware (whether reusable or not); or a nearby parking area available for immediate use of customers in consuming the food. It is the intent of the law that tax be charged by retailers who sell food products ready for consumption at or near the premises of the vendor by furnishing cups, spoons, straws, or the like to facilitate immediate consumption. If such facilities are provided the tax applies even though the food is sold, packaged, or wrapped "to go" and even if the food is in fact removed from the premises of the retailer and is consumed elsewhere. The test is not where the food is actually consumed but whether the customer is provided any of the described facilities for consumption of the food. In the case of vending machine operators, the sale of food products is subject to tax. The selling price of food products sold by vending machine operators is fifty-seven percent of the gross receipts, except for hot prepared food products for which the selling price is one hundred percent of the gross receipts. Vending machine operators are not required to collect the tax from buyers or to separately state the tax.

~~((+))~~ (b) Sales by theaters, fair grounds concessions, athletic arena concessions, and any other businesses selling food products within a place to which an admission price is charged are taxable. The only exceptions as to admission-charged areas are national or state parks or monuments, but even sales of food products within such state or national areas are taxable if customers are provided facilities for consumption as described in ~~((paragraph (+)))~~ (a) of this subsection.

(4) EXEMPT AND TAXABLE SALES ~~((BY GROCERS))~~. The following are lists of exempt and taxable items normally sold by grocery stores, supermarkets, and similar businesses. The examples are meant to be illustrative and are not all inclusive. The exempt products listed are exempt when sold for off premises consumption but are taxable if sold for immediate consumption at the seller's premises as described ~~((in paragraph (+) above))~~ earlier.

EXEMPT IF CONSUMPTION FACILITIES NOT PROVIDED

Baby foods	Marshmallows
Bakery products	Mayonnaise
Baking soda	Meat, meat products
Bouillon cubes	Milk, milk products
Candy	Mustard
Cereal products	Noncarbonated soft drinks
Chocolate	Nuts

Cocoa	Oleomargarine
Coffee and coffee substitutes	Olives, olive oil
Condiments	Peanut butter
Crackers	Popcorn
*Diet food	Popsicles
Eggs, egg products	Potato chips
Extracts and flavoring for food	Powdered drink mixes
Fish, fish products	Sandwich spreads
Flour	Sauces
Food coloring	Sherbet
Frozen foods	Shortening
Fruit, fruit products	Soup
Gelatin	Sugar, sugar products, sugar substitutes
*Health foods	Syrups
Honey	Tea
Ice cream, toppings	Vegetables, vegetable products
Jam, jelly, jello	Yeast

The products listed as taxable are subject to tax however sold or prepared.

SPECIFIC CLASSES OF ITEMS TAXABLE IN ALL CASES

Alcoholic beverages	First aid products
Aspirin	Ice, bottled Water (mineral or otherwise)
Beer or wine making supplies	Mouthwashes
Calcium tablets	Nonedible cake decorations
Carbonated beverages	Nonprescription medicines
Chewing tobacco	Patent medicines
Cod liver oil	Pet food and supplies
Cough medicines (liquid or lozenge)	Seeds and plants for gardens
*Dietary supplements or adjuncts	Tonics, vitamins
	Toothpaste

* NOTE: Sales of dietary supplements which are subject to regulation by the United States Federal Drug Administration are subject to tax. Regulated dietary supplements are those preparations which provide fifty percent or more of the United States Recommended Daily Allowance (U.S. RDA) of essential vitamins and minerals per serving. Health foods or dietary preparations containing less than fifty percent of U.S. RDAs per serving may be sold tax exempt as food and FDA regulations (21 CFR, chapter 1, Part 80) adopted October 12, 1976, effective January 1, 1978, prohibit any claim that such preparations are "dietary supplements." Dietary supplements do not include any food in its raw or natural state, which means that nothing has been done to the product, other than superficial treatment (such as washing its surface), to change the product physically or chemically before marketing. Dietary adjuncts are vitamin/mineral preparations taken to meet special vitamin or mineral needs occasioned by drug therapy. Dietary adjuncts are not tax exempt food products. For more information concerning sales of dietary supplements, see Excise Tax Bulletin 514.08.244.

(5) Retailers of food products are required to keep adequate records to demonstrate that any sales claimed tax exempt ~~((in fact))~~ actually qualify for exemption under this rule and the law.

(6) COMBINATION BUSINESS. Persons operating a combination of two businesses at one location, one of which provides facilities for consumption on the premises (see ~~((paragraph (+)))~~ subsection (3) of this section, "Vendors who are required to collect tax"), such as a lunch counter along with a grocery store or a cafe along with a bakery, are required to keep their accounting records and sales receipts segregated between the two businesses. If the two businesses are commingled in accounting, all sales will be deemed subject to tax.

(7) COMBINATION PACKAGES. When a package consists of both food and nonfood products, such as a holiday or picnic basket containing beer and pretzels, cups or glasses containing food items, or carbonated beverages along with cheese and crackers, the food portion may be tax exempt if its price is stated separately; if the price is a lump sum, the tax applies to the entire price.

(8) However, promotional give-aways of nonfood items to enhance food sales, such as coffee sold in a decorative apothecary container or cheese sold in a serving dish are not taxable and are not deemed combination packages where it is clear that the container or dish is simply a gift furnished as a sales inducement for the food. In the same way, promotional give-aways of food items as an inducement for sales of nonfood items are not exempt (e.g., the sale of fancy crystal ware containing candy or nuts is fully subject to sales tax).

(9) COMMISSARIES OR GROCERY SHOPS IN INSTITUTIONS OR OTHER RESTRICTED (NOT OPEN TO THE PUBLIC) AREAS. Food products sold by commissaries which restrict sales generally to residents, inmates, or a

similarly limited group of customers are tax exempt if the food products are for consumption away from the general area reserved for merchandizing such products.

(10) OTHER FOOD VENDORS. Special provisions govern certain food vendors, as follows:

~~((+))~~ (a) Restaurants and transportation companies (e.g., air, rail, water), and businesses furnishing meals to employees, see WAC 458-20-119.

~~((+))~~ (b) Hotels, motels, boarding or rooming houses, resorts, and trailer camps, see WAC 458-20-166.

~~((+))~~ (c) Religious, charitable, benevolent, and nonprofit service organizations, see WAC 458-20-169.

~~((+))~~ (11) Certain persons, groups, or institutions purchase food products for purposes of serving meals to individuals and historically have been required to pay sales tax as consumers on such purchases because of a unique relationship between the food purchases and the nature of the services rendered by such groups. Food sales taxed in this way were the following:

(a) Furnishing of meals by hospitals, rest homes, sanitariums, and similar institutions to patients as a part of the service rendered in the conduct of such institutions.

(b) Serving of meals to members by fraternities, sororities, and other similar groups who reside in one place and jointly share the expenses of the household including expenses of meals provided by them.

(c) Providing of meals by public schools, high schools, colleges, universities, or private schools operating lunch rooms, cafeterias, or dining rooms for the exclusive purpose of providing students and faculty with meals as a part of the educational program.

(d) Providing of meals by guest ranches or summer camps which, in addition to supplying meals and lodging, offer special recreation facilities and instruction in sports, boating, riding, outdoor living, etc., and which make an unsegregated charge for meals, lodging, and services, and report such charges under the service classification as provided by WAC 458-20-166.

(12) Since purchase of food products in any of these four situations has been subject to sales tax in the past, the food products exemption applies to these purchases of food products for human consumption. However, sales of meals by such groups in circumstances other than furnishing them in connection with services in the four situations described above are governed by WAC 458-20-119. Further, when such groups do not provide their own meals, but the meals are purchased from caterers or concessionaires, the caterers or concessionaires are making retail sales subject to the tax.

(13) SPECIAL FOOD SALES SITUATIONS. For unique situations involving food sales for home or office delivery, sales from vending vans, certain combination businesses, and food sales at shopping malls, see Excise Tax Bulletin 528.08.244.

(14) USE TAX. All of the foregoing provisions of this rule dealing with sales tax are equally applicable with respect to the use tax of chapter 82.12 RCW. Effective July 1, 1983.

WSR 86-18-069

ADOPTED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE

[Order 86-16—Filed September 3, 1986]

I, Matthew J. Coyle, acting director of the Department of Revenue, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to:

Amd	WAC 458-20-179	Public utility tax.
Amd	WAC 458-20-189	Sales to and by the state of Washington, counties, cities, school districts and other municipal subdivisions.
Amd	WAC 458-20-224	Service and other business activities.
New	WAC 458-20-251	Sewerage collection business.

This action is taken pursuant to Notice No. WSR 86-15-081 filed with the code reviser on July 23, 1986. These rules shall take effect thirty days after they are filed with the code reviser pursuant to RCW 34.04.040(2).

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Revenue as authorized in RCW 82.32.300.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED September 3, 1986.

By Matthew J. Coyle
Acting Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-6, filed 1/1/85)

WAC 458-20-179 PUBLIC UTILITY TAX. (1) Introduction. Persons engaged in certain public service businesses are taxable under the public utility tax, and are exempt from tax under the business and occupation tax with respect to such businesses. However, many persons taxable under the public utility tax are also engaged in some other business which is taxable under the business and occupation tax. For example, a light and power company engaged in operating a plant or system for distribution of electrical energy for sale, may also be engaged in selling at retail various electrical appliances. Such a company would be taxable under the public utility tax with respect to its last distribution of electric energy, and also taxable under the business and occupation tax with respect to its sale of electrical appliances.

(2) Persons who are taxable under the public utility tax, which is applied to gross income, are those engaged in the following businesses:

Railroad, express, railroad car, water distribution, sewerage collection, refuse collection, light and power, telegraph, gas distribution, urban transportation and common carrier vessels under 65 feet in length, motor transportation, tugboat businesses, and all public service businesses other than those heretofore mentioned.

(3) The rates of tax for each business activity are imposed under RCW 82.16.020 and set forth on appropriate lines of the combined excise tax return forms.

~~((The terms "sewerage collection" and "refuse collection" business include all activities engaged in relating to the collection, transfer, treatment, and ultimate disposition of sewage and refuse, including all operations incidental thereto. These terms are broadly construed to include the operations of all persons who render direct and/or indirect services in the process of gathering and disposing of sewage and/or refuse, whether such persons are acting as prime contractors, subcontractors, or independent service providers.~~

~~The term "sewerage" means waste material deposited into and carried off by sewers and sewer drains. The term "sewerage collection" does not include the activity of pumping or cleaning septic tanks or renting, removing, and/or cleaning portable toilets.~~

~~The term "refuse" means garbage, trash, rubbish, or other materials discarded as worthless. The term "refuse collection" does not include the activity of collecting recyclable materials or salvaging other materials which contain valuable, recoverable ingredients, e.g., battery cores, used clothing, etc. Nor does this term include the~~

~~removal, disposal, or treatment of hazardous or toxic waste, e.g., cleaning up oil or chemical spills, nuclear waste management, etc.))~~

(4) The term "public service businesses" includes any of the businesses defined in RCW 82.16.010 (1), (2), (3), (4), (5), (6), (7), (8), (9), (10), and (12) or any business subject to control by the state, or having the powers of eminent domain and the duties incident thereto, or any business declared by the legislature to be of a public service nature, irrespective of whether eminent domain powers are had or state control is exercised. It includes, among others, without limiting the scope thereof: Airplane transportation, boom, dock, ferry, log patrol, pipe line, ~~((warehouse;))~~ toll bridge, toll logging road, water transportation and wharf businesses.

(5) The term "subject to control by the state" means control by the utilities and transportation commission or any other state department required by law to exercise control of business of a public service nature as to rates charged or services rendered. However, businesses may be taxed under the public utility tax as public service businesses whether or not they are or have been regulated by the state.

(6) The term "gross income" means "the value proceeding or accruing from the performance of the particular public service or transportation businesses involved, including operations incidental thereto, but without any deduction on account of the cost of the commodity furnished or sold, the cost of materials used, labor costs, interest, discount, delivery costs, taxes, or any other expense whatsoever paid or accrued and without any deduction on account of losses." The term "gross income" of a light and power business means those amounts or value accruing to a taxpayer from the "last distribution" of electrical energy which is a taxable event within this state. RCW 82.16.010(13).

(7) LIGHT AND POWER BUSINESS - SPECIAL PROVISIONS . RCW 82.16.010(5) defines "light and power business" to mean the business of operating a plant or system for the generation, production, or distribution of electrical energy for hire or sale. It is the intent of the law that, except as provided below, all electrical energy generated, or produced, or distributed within this state shall be subject to the uniform tax rate for light and power business, but only at the time of its "last distribution" within this state.

(8) The term "last distribution" means the final transmission or transfer of electrical energy before it is consumed in this state or before it is transmitted or transferred for sale to any point outside of this state. Thus, the taxable last distribution of electrical energy consumed within this state is the transmission or transfer of such energy to the consumer. The taxable last distribution of electrical energy for sale outside of this state is the transmission or transfer of such energy to the transmission system from which it will be directly further transmitted or transferred to points outside this state whether under any wheeling arrangement or through the distributor's own transmission system or the transmission system of any out-of-state person. When a light and power business within this state delivers electric energy to an entity outside of this state in consideration of such

entity's agreement to deliver electric energy to such business for consumption within this state, the taxable last distribution of such electrical energy is the transmission or transfer of energy to such business' consumers in this state.

(9) An "exchange" of electrical energy or the rights thereto is not the last distribution of such energy. An exchange is a transaction involving a delivery or transfer of energy or the rights thereto by one party to another for which the second party agrees, subject to the terms and conditions of the agreement, to deliver electrical energy at the same or another time. Examples of nontaxable exchange transactions include, but are not limited to, the following:

~~((+))~~ (a) The residential exchange of electric power entered into between a light and power business and the administrator of the Bonneville Power Administration pursuant to the Pacific Northwest Electric Power Planning and Conservation Act, P.L. 96-501, Sec. 5(c), 16 U.S.C. 839(c) (Supp. 1982);

~~((2))~~ (b) The exchange of electric power for electric power between one light and power business and another light and power business;

~~((3))~~ (c) The transmission or transfer of electric power by one light and power business to another light and power business pursuant to the agreement for coordination of operations among power systems of the Pacific Northwest executed as of September 15, 1964;

~~((4))~~ (d) The Bonneville Power Administration's acquisition of electric power for resale to its Washington customers in the light and power business.

(10) Any consideration received in addition to or in excess of exchange power constitutes taxable consideration.

(11) The taxpayer liable for the payment of public utility tax under the light and power business classification is the "person" (as defined by RCW 82.04.030) who last distributes electrical energy within this state as explained above. Electrical energy generated or transmitted by the United States Army Corps of Engineers, United States Bureau of Reclamation, or the Bonneville Power Administration is not subject to this tax unless and until it is transferred by such federal entity to another person engaged in the light and power business within this state and then only upon the last distribution of such energy by such light and power business.

(12) For purposes of measuring the public utility tax liability, the "amount or value derived from the last distribution of electrical energy" (RCW 82.16.010(13) definition of "gross income") is the total consideration in terms of money or other value, however designated, received by or accruing to the taxpayer: PROVIDED, That the tax measure is the cost of production but not to exceed the fair market value of the electrical energy at the time it is generated in this state for any of the following: (a) For electrical energy generated in this state and transmitted or transferred by the person who generated the same to points outside this state without prior sale; and (b) for electrical energy sold pursuant to an agreement which requires the purchaser to pay certain costs of the generating facility without regard to the amount of electrical energy produced by such facility.

(13) In distinguishing gross income taxable under the public utility tax from gross income taxable under the business and occupation tax, the department of revenue will be guided by the uniform system of accounts established for the specific type of utility concerned. However, because of differences in the uniform systems of accounts established for various types of utility businesses, such guides will not be deemed controlling for the purposes of classifying revenue under the Revenue Act.

(14) VOLUME EXEMPTION. Persons subject to the public utility tax are exempt from the payment of this tax for any reporting period in which taxable income reported under the combined total of all public utility tax classifications does not equal or exceed the minimum taxable amount for the reporting periods assigned to such persons according to the following schedule:

Monthly reporting basis	\$500 per month
Quarterly reporting basis	\$1500 per quarter
Annual reporting basis	\$6000 per annum

(15) DEDUCTIONS. Amounts derived from the following sources do not constitute taxable income in computing tax under the public utility tax:

~~((1))~~ (a) Amounts derived by municipally owned or operated public services businesses directly from taxes levied for the support thereof, but not including service charges which are spread on the property tax rolls and collected as taxes.

~~((2))~~ (b) Amounts derived by persons engaged in the water distribution, or gas distribution business, from the sale of commodities to persons in the same public service business for resale as such within this state.

~~((3))~~ (c) Amounts actually paid by a taxpayer to another person taxable under chapter 82.16 RCW as the latter's portion of the consideration due for services jointly furnished by both. This includes the amount paid to a ferry company for the transportation of a vehicle and its contents (but not amounts paid to state owned or operated ferries) when such vehicle is carrying freight or passengers for hire and is being operated by a person engaged in the business of urban transportation or motor transportation. It does not include amounts paid for the privilege of moving such vehicles over toll bridges. ~~((Also, for purposes of this deduction, all services rendered in connection with the collection, transfer, treatment, and disposal of sewage or refuse are deemed to be jointly rendered by service providers. (The effect of this deduction is to prevent the pyramiding or compounding of the public utility tax.)~~

~~((4))~~ (d) Amounts derived from the distribution of water through an irrigation system, solely for irrigation purposes.

~~((5))~~ (e) Amounts derived from the transportation of commodities from points of origin in this state to final destination outside this state, or from points of origin outside this state to final destination in this state with respect to which the carrier grants to the shipper the privilege of stopping the shipment in transit at some point in this state for the purpose of storing, manufacturing, milling, or other processing, and thereafter forwards the same commodity, or its equivalent, in the same or converted form, under a through freight rate

from point of origin to final destination; and amounts derived from the transportation of commodities from points of origin in the state to an export elevator, wharf, dock or shipside on tidewater or navigable tributaries thereto from which such commodities are forwarded, without intervening transportation, by vessel, in their original form, to interstate or foreign destination: PROVIDED, That no deduction will be allowed when the point of origin and the point of delivery to such export elevator, wharf, dock, or shipside are located within the corporate limits of the same city or town.

~~((6))~~ (f) Amounts or value paid or contributed to any county, city, town, political subdivision, or municipal or quasi municipal corporation of the state of Washington representing payments of special assessments or installments thereof and interests and penalties thereon, charges in lieu of assessments, or any other charges, payments or contributions representing a share of the cost of capital facilities constructed or to be constructed or for the retirement of obligations and payment of interest thereon issued for capital purposes. The business and occupation tax is likewise inapplicable to such amounts. Service charges shall not be included in this exemption even though used wholly or in part for capital purposes.

~~((7))~~ (g) Amounts derived from the distribution of water by a nonprofit water association which are used for capital improvements by that association.

~~((8))~~ (h) Amounts received by cities, counties, towns, or municipal corporations as payment of a share of the cost of capital facilities, but excluding charges for utility services which may be used for capital purposes.

~~((9))~~ (i) Amounts received for providing commuter share riding or ride sharing for the elderly and the handicapped in accordance with RCW 46.74.010.

~~((10))~~ (j) Amounts expended to improve consumers' efficiency of energy end use or to otherwise reduce the use of electrical energy or gas by the consumer. (For details see WAC 458-20-17901.)

~~((11))~~ (k) Amounts equal to the cost of production at the plant for consumption in this state of:

~~((a))~~ (i) Electrical energy produced from cogeneration as defined in RCW 82.35.020; and

~~((b))~~ (ii) Electrical energy or gas produced from renewable energy resources (e.g., solar, wind, hydro, geothermal, wood, wastes, and end-use waste heat. (For details see WAC 458-20-17901.)

(16) Income derived from any of the foregoing sources is to be included within the reported gross income, and the applicable deductions may be taken in computing tax liability.

(17) Contributions in aid of construction not falling within item "6" above are subject to public utility tax, except that amounts received for line extensions, connection fees, and other charges for services rendered prior to the receipt of utility services by the customer against whom the charges are made are subject to business and occupation tax under the service and other activities classification rather than the public utility tax.

(18) In addition to the foregoing deductions there also may be deducted from the reported gross income (if included therein), the following:

(a) The amount of cash discount actually taken by the purchaser or customer.

(b) The amount of credit losses actually sustained.

(c) Amounts received from insurance companies in payment of losses.

(d) Amounts received from individuals and others in payment of damages caused by them to the utility's plant or equipment.

((f)) (19) For specific rules pertaining to the classifications of "urban transportation" and "motor transportation," see WAC 458-20-180(~~(; and of "warehouses," see WAC 458-20-182.))~~).

(20) NOTICE—REFUSE AND SEWERAGE COLLECTION BUSINESSES. The specific provisions of this section, respecting refuse and sewerage collection businesses have been repealed, retroactively to July 1, 1985. The new express provisions for taxability of such businesses from July 1, 1985, forward are now set forth in WAC 458-20-250 (Refuse collection business) and WAC 458-20-251 (Sewerage collection business).

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 85-6, filed 11/1/85)

WAC 458-20-189 SALES TO AND BY THE STATE OF WASHINGTON, COUNTIES, CITIES, SCHOOL DISTRICTS AND OTHER MUNICIPAL SUBDIVISIONS. (1) BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX. No deduction is allowed a seller in computing tax under the provisions of the business and occupation tax with respect to sales to the state of Washington, its departments and institutions or to counties, cities, school districts, or other municipal subdivisions thereof.

(2) The state of Washington, its departments and institutions, as distinct from its corporate agencies or instrumentalities, are not subject to the provisions of the business and occupation tax. Counties, cities, and other municipal subdivisions are not subject to the business and occupation tax upon amounts derived from license and permit fees, inspection fees, fees for copies of public records, reports and studies, processing fees involving fingerprinting and environmental impact statements, and taxes, fines or penalties, and interest thereon.

(3) Counties, cities and other municipal subdivisions are taxable with respect to amounts derived, however designated, from any "utility or enterprise activity" for which a specific charge is made.

(4) UTILITY ACTIVITIES. "Utility activities," which are taxable under the public utility tax, include water and electrical energy distribution, public transportation services, and sewer collection services(~~(, solid waste treatment, and refuse collection services)~~). (See WAC 458-20-179.)

(5) ENTERPRISE ACTIVITY. An "enterprise activity," for the purposes of this rule, is an activity financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises. The term includes activities which are generally in competition with private business enterprises and are over fifty percent funded by user fees. The term does not include activities which are exclusively governmental.

(6) Amounts derived from enterprise activities consisting of or from admission fees to special events, user

fees (lockers, checkrooms), moorage fees (less than thirty days), cemetery and crematory fees, the granting of media broadcasting rights, and the granting of a license to use real property are taxable under the service and other activities classification of the business and occupation tax.

(7) Amounts derived from enterprise activities consisting of or from fees for participation in amusement or recreation (pay for play), user fees for off-street parking and garages, and charges for sale and rental of tangible personal property are taxable under the retailing classification of the business and occupation tax.

(8) Under RCW 82.04.419, amounts derived from an activity which is not a "utility or enterprise activity" are tax exempt. Such tax exempt amounts include admission fees other than to special events, fees for on-street metered parking and parking permits, instruction fees, health program fees, athletic team registration fees, and interagency and intergovernmental charges for services rendered.

(9) All counties, cities and other municipal subdivisions engaging in utility or enterprise activities and all corporate agencies or instrumentalities of the state of Washington engaging in business activities are subject to tax as follows:

((+)) (a) Extracting or manufacturing – taxable upon the value of products manufactured or extracted.

((+)) (b) Retailing or wholesaling – taxable upon gross proceeds of sales.

((+)) (c) Persons taxable under either the retailing or wholesaling classifications are not taxable under either extracting or manufacturing in respect to sales of articles extracted or manufactured by them in this state.

((+)) (d) Service and other business activities – taxable under the service and other business activities classification upon the gross income derived from services rendered by them.

((+)) (e) Public utility activities – taxable upon the gross income of the business (see WAC 458-20-179 and 458-20-17901).

(10) Counties and cities are not subject to the business and occupation tax on the cost of labor and service in the mining, sorting, crushing, screening, washing, hauling and stockpiling of sand, gravel and rock taken from a pit or quarry owned by or leased to the county or city when these materials are sold at cost to another county or city for use on public roads. (See also WAC 458-20-171.)

(11) For operation of hospitals by the state or its political subdivisions see WAC 458-20-168 and 458-20-188.

(12) The business and occupation tax does not apply to the value of materials printed solely for their own use by school districts, educational service districts, counties, cities, towns, libraries, or library districts.

(13) RETAIL SALES TAX. The retail sales tax applies to all retail sales made to the state of Washington, its departments and institutions and to counties, cities, school districts and all other municipal subdivisions of the state. The retail sales tax does not apply to sales to city or county housing authorities which were created under the provisions of the Washington housing authorities law,

chapter 35.82 RCW. An exemption is also allowed municipal corporations, the state and all political subdivisions thereof for that portion of the selling price of contracts for watershed protection or flood control which is reimbursed by the United States government according to the provisions of the Watershed Protection and Flood Prevention Act, Public Law 566, as amended. The retail sales tax does not apply to sales of the entire operating property of a publicly or privately owned public utility, or of a complete operating integral section thereof, to the state or a political subdivision thereof for use in conducting any public utility enterprise except a tugboat business (RCW 82.08.0256).

(14) Where tangible personal property or taxable services are purchased by the state of Washington, its departments or institutions for the purpose of resale to any other department or institution of the state of Washington, or for the purpose of consuming the property purchased in manufacturing or producing for use or for resale to any other department or institution of the state of Washington a new article of which such property is an ingredient or component part, the transaction is deemed a purchase at retail and the retail sales tax must be paid by the state of Washington to its vendors. So-called sales between a department or institution of the state of Washington and any other such department or institution constitute interdepartmental charges (see WAC 458-20-201) and the retail sales tax is not applicable.

(15) The state of Washington, its departments and institutions and all counties, cities, and other municipal subdivisions are required to collect the retail sales tax on all retail sales of tangible personal property or services classified as retail sales, including sales of equipment or other capital assets. The retail sales tax is not applicable to charges for the production, searching, or copying of public records or documents by such public agencies charged with the responsibility to keep and provide such information. However, the tax does apply to charges for the sale of books, rules, regulations, and other materials sold from an inventory of such things, even though the charge is required by law or covers only the costs of production and distribution of such materials. The retail sales tax is not applicable to the cost of labor and services in the mining, sorting, crushing, screening, washing, hauling and stockpiling of sand, gravel and rock taken from a pit or quarry owned by or leased to the county or city when these materials are sold at cost to another county or city for use on public roads. (See also WAC 458-20-171.)

(16) The sales tax does not apply to sales to the state or a local governmental unit thereof of ferry vessels, component parts thereof, nor labor and services in respect to construction or improvement of such vessels.

(17) USE TAX. The state of Washington, its departments and institutions and all counties, cities, school districts, and other municipal subdivisions are required to report the use tax upon the use of all tangible personal property purchased or acquired under conditions whereby the Washington retail sales tax has not been paid.

(18) Counties and cities are not subject to use tax upon the cost of labor and services in the mining, sorting, crushing, screening, washing, hauling, and stockpiling of sand, gravel, and rock taken from a pit or quarry owned or leased to a county or city when the materials are for use on public roads.

(19) The use tax does not apply to the use of ferry vessels or component parts thereof by the state or local governmental units.

(20) PUBLIC UTILITY TAX. No deduction in computing tax liability under the provisions of the public utility tax is allowed to any person or firm by reason of the fact that sales are to the state of Washington or any of its municipal subdivisions.

(21) Counties, cities and other municipal subdivisions of the state operating public utilities or public service businesses are subject to the provisions of the public utility tax.

(22) Neither the public utility tax nor the business tax apply to amounts or value paid or contributed to any county, city, town, political subdivision, or municipal or quasi municipal corporation of the state of Washington representing payments of special assessments or installments thereof and interests and penalties thereon, charges in lieu of assessments, or any other charges, payments or contributions representing a share of the cost of capital facilities constructed or to be constructed or for the retirement of obligations and payment of interest thereon issued for capital purposes. Service charges shall not be included in this exemption even though used wholly or in part for capital purposes (see WAC 458-20-179).

(23) Where there is doubt as to the tax consequences applicable to any activity or transaction, the question should be submitted to the department of revenue for determination.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order ET 83-6, filed 8/23/83)

WAC 458-20-224 SERVICE AND OTHER BUSINESS ACTIVITIES. (1) Chapter 82.04 RCW imposes a tax upon every person for the privilege of engaging in business in this state. Persons engaged in the certain specifically named business activities are subject to a tax rate set out in the statute which is measured by value of products, gross sales or gross income, e.g.: Extracting, manufacturing, retailing, wholesaling, printing and publishing, and building and repairing of publicly owned streets and roads.

(2) Persons engaged in any business activity, other than or in addition to those for which a specific rate is provided in the statute, are taxable under a classification known as service and other business activities, and so designated upon return forms. In general, it includes persons rendering professional or personal services to persons (as distinguished from services rendered to personal property of persons) such as accountants, aerial surveyors and map makers, agents, ambulances, appraisers, architects, assayers, attorneys, automobile brokers, barbers, baseball clubs, beauty shop owners, brokers, chemists, chiropractors, collection agents, community

television antenna owners, court reporters, dentists, detectives, employment agents, engineers, financiers, funeral directors, ~~((garbage)) refuse collectors~~, hospital owners, janitors, kennel operators, laboratory operators, landscape architects, lawyers, loan agents, music teachers, oculists, orchestra or band leaders contracting to provide musical services, osteopathic physicians, physicians, real estate agents, school bus operators, school operators, sewer services other than collection, stenographers, warehouse operators who are not subject to ~~((public utility tax)) other specific statutory tax classifications~~, teachers, theater operators, undertakers, veterinarians, and numerous other persons.

(3) It does not include persons engaged in the business of cleaning, repairing, improving, etc., the personal property of others, such as automobile, house, jewelry, radio, refrigerator and machinery repairmen, laundry or dry cleaners. Also, it does not include certain personal and professional services specifically included within the definition of the term "sale at retail" in RCW 82.04.050, such as amusement and recreation businesses of a participatory nature (see WAC 458-20-183); abstract, title insurance and escrow businesses, credit bureau businesses and automobile parking and storage garage businesses. Furthermore, it does not include persons who render services to others in the capacity of employees as distinguished from independent contractors. (See WAC 458-20-105.)

(4) BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX. Persons engaged in any business activity, other than or in addition to those for which a specific rate is provided in chapter 82.04 RCW, are taxable under the service and other business activities classification upon gross income from such business.

(5) Persons engaged in a public service business taxable under chapter 82.16 RCW (see WAC 458-20-179) are exempt from business tax under chapter 82.04 RCW with respect to such businesses.

(6) RETAIL SALES TAX. The retail sales tax applies upon all sales of tangible personal property made to persons for use or consumption in performing a business activity which is taxable under the service and other business activities classification of chapter 82.04 RCW.

NEW SECTION

WAC 458-20-251 SEWERAGE COLLECTION BUSINESS (1) INTRODUCTION. Under the provisions of chapter 471, Laws of 1985, the "sewerage collection business" was reclassified for tax purposes from the Service classification of business and occupation tax to the Public Service Business - Sewer Collection classification of public utility tax. To implement this change in law the department of revenue amended and adopted WAC 458-20-179, on November 1, 1985, which subjected gross receipts from all sewerage services to the higher rated public utility tax classification, as of the effective date of chapter 471, Laws of 1985, July 1, 1985.

(2) The department has determined that, within the intent of the law, only the portion of gross receipts from customer billings attributable to the "collection" portion

of services rendered should be taxed under the public utility tax classification. Thus, this section now supersedes and effectively repeals the specific provisions of WAC 458-20-179 pertaining to sewerage collection businesses. The provisions of this new section have retroactive effect from July 1, 1985 forward.

(3) DEFINITIONS. for purposes of this section the following terms will apply.

(a) "Sewerage collection business" means the activity of receiving sewage deposited into and carried off by a system of sewers, drains, and pipes to a common point, or points, for disposal or for transfer to treatment for disposal, but does not include such transfer, treatment, or disposal of sewage.

(i) This term does not include the activity of receiving, collecting, or disposing of toxic or hazardous waste materials regardless of the system employed for collection of such substances.

(b) "Sewage" means the waste matter carried off by sewer drains and pipes.

(c) "Gross receipts" of the sewerage collection business means only that portion of income from customer billings which is allocable to the collection of sewage by a sewerage collection business as defined herein.

(i) "Gross receipts," as defined here, is the public utility tax measure. It does not include any charges of any kind attributable to sewerage services other than collection.

(ii) The term does not include late charges or penalties which may be imposed for non-timely payment by customers.

(d) "Person" has the meaning given in RCW 82.04.030 or any later, superseding section.

(4) Persons engaged in the sewerage collection business may also be engaged in related business activities involving the interception, transfer, storage, treatment, and/or disposal of sewage, or any of these activities. If so, such persons are engaged in both public utility taxable activities (sewerage collection) and business and occupation taxable activities (other sewer services). See RCW 82.16.060 and RCW 82.04.310.

(5) PUBLIC UTILITY TAX. Persons engaged in the sewerage collection business, as defined herein, are subject to the public utility tax under the classification, sewer collection, measured by "gross receipts" of the collection business as explicitly defined herein, at the currently prescribed rate. (See RCW 82.16.020 (1)(a)).

(6) In order to determine the "gross receipts" of the collection business there are two alternative methods.

(a) If customer billings are itemized to show the actual charge for sewage "collection," that amount is the "gross receipts" tax measure; PROVIDED, that such amount shall not be less than the actual cost of providing the collection service.

(b) If collection services are provided jointly with other, related sewer services provided by the sewerage collection business or any other person, and the actual charge for sewerage "collection" is not itemized on customer billings, a simple cost-of-doing-business formula must be used to derive the "gross receipts," public utility tax measure.

(i) The totality of all business costs incurred in rendering all sewer services, including collection, is to be divided into the costs of providing sewerage collection services. The resulting percentage is to be multiplied by gross income from customer billings (all sewerage related charges). The result is the "gross receipts" public utility tax measure from engaging in the sewerage collection business.

(ii) The formula looks like this:

Sewage collection costs (Annualized)	=	___%	x	gross billings	=	Public Utility Tax Measure
Total sewer service costs (Annualized)						

(iii) All costs of operation of the sewer services business must be included in the denominator, including but not limited to capitalized equipment, labor, direct and indirect overhead, and administration.

(iv) The standard cost accounting records of the sewerage collection business will be used for this purpose.

(v) For the purpose of annualizing its costs, the sewerage collection business may use the previous calendar year costs or its budget allocations for the current tax year. In either case, however, it must make an end of year adjustment to its reporting based upon actual costs incurred during the current year.

(7) BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX. Persons engaged in providing other sewer services, in addition to or separate from the "sewerage collection business" as defined herein, are subject to the business and occupation tax under the classification, service and other business activities. The measure of this tax is the gross income derived from such other services. It does not include any amount reported for public utility tax under the sewer collection classification.

(8) The service business and occupation tax on sewer services is not intended to have a pyramiding effect. RCW 82.04.432 thus provides a deduction from the tax measure for amounts paid by municipal sewerage utilities and other public corporations to any other municipal corporation or governmental agency for sewage interception, treatment, or disposal. This deduction results in each one of several sewer service providers being taxable only on the amounts actually received and retained by them as their respective share of gross customer billings for the totality of all services.

(9) Under the law, depending upon the arrangement for providing the totality of all sewer services, it may be that a person will report tax under both the public utility tax (on collection services income) and business and occupation tax (on other related services income), as appropriate, upon respective portions of that person's retained share of income from customer billings.

(10) The "sewerage collection business" and many other sewer services are "enterprise activities" as defined in WAC 458-20-189, when funded over fifty percent by user fees. Thus, the amounts derived from these business activities are not exempt of tax even though they may be provided and charged for by governmental entities. (See RCW 82.04.419).

(11) Persons engaged in providing sewer services other than sewerage collection, such as the transfer, storage,

treatment, and/or disposal of sewage, may be entitled to certain express deductions or exemptions from business and occupation tax for specific reasons unrelated to the nature of their sewer service activities. (See RCW 82.04.419 and RCW 82.04.4291.) These deductions and exemptions are not available for "sewerage collection businesses" upon their income subject to public utility tax.

(12) RETAIL SALES TAX. Persons engaged in the "sewerage collection business" and/or engaged in providing other related sewer services are themselves the consumers of all tangible personal property purchased for their own use in conducting such activities, other than items held for resale in the ordinary course of business. Retail sales tax must be paid to materials suppliers and providers of all such tangible consumables. (See RCW 82.04.050.)

(13) USE TAX. The use tax is due upon all tangible personal property used as consumers by "sewerage collection businesses" and sewer service providers, upon which the retail sales tax has not been paid. (See RCW 82.12.020.)

(14) RETROACTIVITY - PROCEDURES FOR REFUND. Because of the provisions of WAC 458-20-179 relating to sewer services, which were effective from July 1, 1985 and have been retroactively repealed, some persons providing sewer services after that date may have overreported their tax liability. Any such persons who reported and paid public utility tax measured by gross customer billings income or measured by income allocable to the transfer, treatment, and/or disposal of sewage are entitled to a refund or credit. Such refunds or credits will be in the amount of the difference between the public utility tax rate (.03852) and the Service business tax rate (.015) on the income reported. The refund or credit may be obtained by timely providing amended copies of past reporting documents to the Taxpayer Accounts Administration Section of the Department of Revenue, Olympia, Washington. (See RCW 82.32.170.) Similarly, persons who have discontinued reporting tax liability on income from any sewer services, on or after July 1, 1985, will have additional tax liability to report.

Reviser's note: The typographical errors in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

WSR 86-18-070

PROPOSED RULES

DEPARTMENT OF LABOR AND INDUSTRIES

[Filed September 3, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Labor and Industries intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning chapter 296-63 WAC, worker right to know fee assessment, is being established to implement Substitute Senate Bill 4676, chapter 310, Laws of 1986. These rules describe the fee assessment required under the Worker and Community Right to Know Act for specific industries and size of employment. The specific

industries are identified according to RCW 49.70.170 including limitations, penalties, and appeal procedures.

New	WAC 296-63-001	Purpose and scope.
New	WAC 296-63-003	Definitions.
New	WAC 296-63-005	Selected industries.
New	WAC 296-63-007	Fee assessment.
New	WAC 296-63-009	Exemption requests.
New	WAC 296-63-011	Fraudulent exemption requests.
New	WAC 296-63-013	Appeals.
New	WAC 296-63-015	Fee assessment not received;

that the agency will at 9:30 a.m., Tuesday, October 7, 1986, in the Auditorium, General Administration Building, West Capitol Campus, Olympia, Washington, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on November 6, 1986.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 49.70.170(2) and 49.70.200.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is Substitute Senate Bill 4676, chapter 310, Laws of 1986, and RCW 49.70.170.

Dated: September 3, 1986

By: Richard A. Davis
Director

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Title and Number of Rule Section(s) or Chapter(s): Chapter 296-63 WAC, Worker right to know fee assessment.

Statutory Authority: RCW 49.70.170(2) and 49.70.200.

Specific Statute that Rules are Intended to Implement: Substitute Senate Bill 4676, chapter 310, Laws of 1986, and RCW 49.70.170.

Summary of Rules: Chapter 296-63 WAC is being established to implement Substitute Senate Bill 4676, chapter 310, Laws of 1986. These rules describe the fee assessment required under the Worker and Community Right to Know Act for specific industries and size of employment. The specific industries are identified according to RCW 49.70.170 including limitations, penalties, and appeal procedures.

Description of the Purpose of the Rule(s): To establish a fee assessment under the Worker and Community Right to Know Act.

Reasons Supporting the Proposed Rule(s): To collect revenue in support of a statewide right to know program implementing chapter 49.70 RCW; and to comply with legislative mandate in Substitute Senate Bill 4676 which passed the 1986 session.

Agency Personnel Responsible for Drafting: Ray V. Wax, Safety Regulations Program Supervisor, Department of Labor and Industries, Division of Industrial Safety and Health, 805 Plum Street S.E., Olympia, Washington 98504, (206) 753-6381; Implementation: G. David Hutchins, Assistant Director, Department of Labor and Industries, Division of Industrial Safety and Health, 805 Plum Street S.E., Olympia, Washington 98504, (206) 753-6500; and Enforcement: Same as above.

Name of Person or Organization, Whether Private, Public or Governmental that is Proposing the Rule(s): Department of Labor and Industries.

Agency Comments or Recommendations, if any, Regarding Statutory Language, Implementation, Enforcement and Fiscal Matters Pertaining to the Rule(s): None.

Any Other Information that may be of Assistance in Identifying the Rule or its Purpose: None.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: The Regulatory Fairness Act, chapter 19.85 RCW, was enacted by the legislature in 1982 to reduce the imposition of proportionately higher burdens on small business caused by the promulgation of agency rules. The criteria used to determine the requirement for a small business economic impact statement in the adoption of any rule is a determination that there will be an economic impact on more than twenty percent of all industries, or more than ten percent of any one industry. Following a positive determination, the agency is required to lessen the impact statement in accordance with RCW 19.85.040.

These rules implement Substitute Senate Bill 4676, chapter 310, Laws of 1986. Economic impact of these rules was addressed by the legislature which specifically reduced the impact on small business. Only employers reporting 10,400 or more worker hours within specific industries during 1985 will be assessed a fee. This action has reduced the number of employers affected to less than 10 percent of all employers in Washington. The fee collected will be \$2.50 per affected employee equivalent and therefore the economic burdens are not disproportionate since program fees collected increase for larger firms versus smaller.

Chapter 296-63 WAC
Right to Know Fee Assessment

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-63-001 PURPOSE AND SCOPE. This chapter establishes a fee assessment under the Worker and Community Right to Know Act in accordance with RCW 49.70.170.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-63-003 DEFINITIONS. Unless the context clearly requires otherwise, the definitions of this section shall apply throughout this chapter.

- (1) "Department" means the Department of Labor and Industries.
- (2) "Director" means the Director of the Department of Labor and Industries or his/her designee.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-63-005 SELECTED INDUSTRIES. Fees shall only be assessed to employers engaged in business operations having a standard industrial classification, as designated in the standard industrial classification manual prepared by the federal office of management and budget, within the following major groups:

- (1) Numbers 01 through 08 (agriculture and forestry industries).
- (2) Numbers 10 through 14 (mining industries).
- (3) Numbers 15 through 17 (construction industries).
- (4) Numbers 20 through 39 (manufacturing industries).
- (5) Numbers 41, 42, and 44 through 49 (transportation, communications, electric, gas, and sanitary services).
- (6) Number 75 (automotive repair services, and garages).
- (7) Number 76 (miscellaneous repair services).
- (8) Number 80 (health services).
- (9) Number 82 (educational services).

Reviser's note: Errors of punctuation or spelling in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-63-007 FEE ASSESSMENT. (1) The department shall assess an annual fee to each employer in the selected industries identified in WAC 296-63-003.

(2) The fee shall only be assessed to employers who reported ten thousand four hundred or more worker hours to the department.

(3) The 1987 fee assessment shall be based on reported worker hours for calendar year 1986.

(4) One full-time equivalent employee is equal to two thousand eighty worker hours.

(5) The fee assessment shall be two dollars and fifty cents for each full time equivalent employee. Any fraction of a full-time equivalent employee shall be counted as one full-time equivalent employee.

(6) The annual fee shall not exceed fifty thousand dollars for an individual employer.

(7) All fees collected by the department shall be deposited in the Worker and Community Right to Know Fund.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-63-009 EXEMPTION REQUESTS. (1) Employers who do not have hazardous chemicals at their workplace may submit a written request for exemption to the department. Submission of an exemption request does not relieve an employer of his/her obligation to pay the fee assessment until such time as the request is approved. Employers granted exemptions will be removed from the listing of employers to be assessed a fee beginning with the first billing following the date the exemption request is approved.

(2) Retroactive exemption requests shall not be granted.

(3) Exemptions shall only be considered for an employer's entire workplace consisting of all activities reported to the department under the same industrial insurance firm number.

(4) Each request for exemption must contain the following information:

(a) Firm name and industrial insurance identification number;

(b) Complete mailing address;

(c) Complete location (such as street) address;

(d) A certified statement in the form required by RCW 9A.72.085 that a hazardous chemical survey of the employer's premises has been completed by a qualified person, the identity and qualifications of the person completing the survey, and that no hazardous chemicals as defined by WAC 296-62-054 through 296-62-05427 are present at the workplace.

(5) The department may schedule an on-site inspection to determine the validity of the exemption request.

(6) The employer shall provide to the department within five working days of receiving a request from the department, any additional information identified by the department as necessary for evaluating the exemption request.

(7) Exemption requests shall be mailed to:

Right to Know Program
Department of Labor and Industries, HC-489
805 Plum Street S.E.
Olympia, Washington 98504

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-63-011 FRAUDULENT EXEMPTION REQUESTS. (1) The department may assess a civil penalty against any employer who submits a fraudulent exemption request. Such penalty assessment shall be consistent with RCW 49.17.180(1), and shall not exceed fifty-thousand dollars.

(2) In addition, the director may cause a record of such fraudulent exemptions submission to be referred to the prosecuting attorney of the county wherein such submission occurred.

Reviser's note: Errors of punctuation or spelling in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-63-013 APPEALS. An employer may appeal the fee assessment or penalties in accordance with RCW 49.70.170(4).

NEW SECTION

WAC 296-63-015 FEE ASSESSMENT NOT RECEIVED. When fee assessments are not received by the department, penalties shall be assessed to the delinquent employer in accordance with Chapter 49.70 RCW and Chapter 310, Laws of 1986, Section 2.

Reviser's note: Errors of punctuation or spelling in the above section occurred in the copy filed by the agency and appear herein pursuant to the requirements of RCW 34.08.040.

WSR 86-18-071 PROPOSED RULES BOARD OF PHARMACY [Filed September 3, 1986]

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Washington State Board of Pharmacy intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning:

New WAC 360-20-210 Unsealed hard gelatin capsule restrictions (restricts the sale of nonprescription drug products in unsealed two piece hard gelatin capsules).

Rep WAC 360-20-200 Hard gelatin capsule restrictions;

that the agency will at 9:30 a.m., Tuesday, October 7, 1986, in the Providence Hall, 500 17th Avenue, Seattle, WA, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place immediately following the hearing.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 18.64.005(11).

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is RCW 18.64.005(11).

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 7, 1986.

Dated: September 3, 1986

By: Donald H. Williams
Executive Secretary

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

Name of Agency: Washington State Board of Pharmacy.

Rule Title, Summary and Purpose: WAC 360-20-210 Unsealed hard gelatin capsule restrictions, restricts the sale of nonprescription drugs in unsealed, two piece hard gelatin capsules.

Statutory Authority: RCW 18.64.005(11).

Reason Proposed: In consideration of the recent discovery of the death of two persons as the result of cyanide placed in unsealed two piece hard gelatin capsules coupled with the discovery of other similarly tampered drug capsules; the Washington State Board of Pharmacy has determined that additional tamper resistant packaging requirements are necessary for the protection of the public and to further reduce the possibility of tampering with two piece unsealed hard gelatin capsules.

Responsible Departmental Personnel: The board and the executive secretary of the board have responsibility for drafting, implementing and enforcing these rules. The executive secretary is Donald H. Williams, 319 East

7th Avenue, W.E.A. Building, FF-21, Olympia, Washington 98504, phone (206) 753-6834.

Proponents: Washington State Board of Pharmacy.

Small Business Economic Impact Statement: Not required since these rules do not impact small business as that term was defined by RCW 43.31.920.

NEW SECTION

WAC 360-20-210 UNSEALED HARD GELATIN CAPSULE RESTRICTIONS. (1) No pharmacy or shopkeeper may sell in the state of Washington any nonprescription drug which is manufactured in unsealed, two piece, hard gelatin capsules unless:

- (a) The drug product is restricted to sale only by prescription; or
 - (b) The drug product is marketed:
 - (i) in packaging utilizing a minimum of two FDA approved tamper evident packaging features;
 - (ii) the manufacturer uses consistent tamper evident features within each product line;
 - (iii) the manufacturer places on its principal display panel each product's tamper evident features or places an alerting statement regarding the package location of those features; and,
 - (iv) the package contains a color depiction of the drug product.
- (2) For the purpose of this regulation the following features will not be considered as acceptable tamper evident features: glued carton flaps, cellophane wrappers with overlapping end flaps, or cellulose wet shrink seals.

(3) A tamper evident package must have an indicator or a barrier to entry which if breached or missing can reasonably be expected to provide evidence to consumers that tampering has occurred.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is hereby repealed:

WAC 360-20-200 HARD GELATIN CAPSULE RESTRICTIONS

WSR 86-18-072
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF LICENSING
 [Order PM 613—Filed September 3, 1986]

I, Theresa Anna Aragon, director of the state of Washington Department of Licensing, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to passing grades on all examinations, amending WAC 308-20-171.

I, Theresa Anna Aragon, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is the need to allow qualified persons to be licensed as cosmetology instructors warrants immediate revision of the passing grade.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 18.16.090 and 18.16.020(11) and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 18.16.030(2) which directs that the director of the Department of Licensing has authority to implement the provisions of chapter 18.16 RCW.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.
 APPROVED AND ADOPTED September 3, 1986.

By Theresa Anna Aragon
 Director

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order PL 502, filed 12/13/84)

WAC 308-20-171 **PASSING GRADES ON ALL EXAMINATIONS.** *Passing grades are based on the standard of 100 percent and are determined by the cosmetology/barber/manicurist advisory board.*

~~((Effective August 1, 1984, t))~~ *The passing grade on the barber, manicurist, and chemical services examinations is 76 percent. An applicant who receives a passing score of not less than 76 percent shall be entitled to a license.*

Applicants for a barber license will be required to obtain a passing grade on the barber examination.

Applicants for a manicurist license will be required to obtain a passing grade on the manicurist examination.

Applicants for a cosmetology license will be required to obtain a passing grade on the barber examination, the manicurist examination and the chemical services examination. No one will be licensed to perform chemical services until successfully passing all three examinations.

If a cosmetology applicant passes the barber examination, a barber license will be issued upon request.

If a cosmetology applicant passes the manicurist examination, a manicurist license will be issued upon request. There will be no refund of fees for separate licenses issued. If both barber and manicurist licenses are requested, an additional fee for a manicurist license will be required.

Applicants for cosmetology instructor license will be required to obtain a ~~((90 percent grade))~~ scaled score of eighty on the instructor's examination.

The instructor's examination will cover lesson planning and teaching techniques. ~~((The examination will consist of 200 questions with 45 percent of the questions to be on lesson planning.))~~

WSR 86-18-073
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
 [Order 86-13—Filed September 3, 1986]

I, Chuck Clarke, deputy director of the Department of Community Development, do promulgate and adopt at the Ninth and Columbia Building, Mailstop GH-51, Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to chapter 365-170 WAC, early childhood education and assistance program:

New	WAC 365-170-010	Authority.
New	WAC 365-170-020	Purpose.
New	WAC 365-170-030	Definitions.
New	WAC 365-170-040	Contractor funding.
New	WAC 365-170-050	Applicant eligibility criteria.

New	WAC 365-170-060	Application process.
New	WAC 365-170-070	Award of contracts.
New	WAC 365-170-080	Client eligibility criteria.
New	WAC 365-170-090	Program design.

I, Chuck Clarke, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is during the initial process of filing the WAC for the early childhood education and assistance program, the Attorney General's Office went through a change in assignment for Department of Community Development's representative attorney. Therefore, the WAC document filing was delayed.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated under the general rule-making authority of the Department of Community Development as authorized in RCW 43.63A.060 and chapter 34.04 RCW.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED September 3, 1986.

By Chuck Clarke
Deputy Director

**Chapter 365-170 WAC
STATE FUNDING FOR LOCAL EARLY CHILD-
HOOD EDUCATION AND ASSISTANCE PRO-
GRAMS**

WAC

365-170-010	Authority.
365-170-020	Purpose.
365-170-030	Definitions.
365-170-040	Contractor funding.
365-170-050	Eligibility criteria for applicants.
365-170-060	Application process.
365-170-070	Award of contracts.
365-170-080	Eligibility criteria for clients.
365-170-090	Program design.

NEW SECTION

WAC 365-170-010 AUTHORITY. These rules are adopted under the authority of RCW 43.63A.060 which provides that the director shall make such rules and regulations and do all other things necessary and proper to carry out the purposes of chapter 43.63A RCW. RCW 43.63A.065(2) provides that among its functions and responsibilities the department shall administer state and federal grants and programs which are assigned to the department by the governor or the legislature. The program which these rules are designed to implement is found in chapter 418, Laws of 1985.

NEW SECTION

WAC 365-170-020 PURPOSE. The purpose of this chapter is to set forth the conditions and procedures under which state funding will be made available to assist local early childhood education and assistance programs.

NEW SECTION

WAC 365-170-030 DEFINITIONS. (1) "Applicant" means a public or private nonsectarian organization which applies for state early childhood education and assistance program assistance.

(2) "At risk" means children residing in low income families who are by virtue of their socio-economic status at risk of failure in the common school system.

(3) "Contract year" means the period July 1 through June 30 in which the program must operate.

(4) "Department" means the department of community development.

(5) "Direct service" means any educational, health or social service for children which is designed to meet the program standards.

(6) "Director" means the director of the department of community development.

(7) "Early childhood education and assistance program" means the state-wide administrative activities carried out within the department of community development to allocate, award, and monitor state funds appropriated to assist local early childhood education and assistance programs.

(8) "Family" means all persons living in the same household who are (a) supported by the income of the parent(s) or guardian(s) of the child enrolling in the early childhood education and assistance program, and (b) related to the parent(s) or guardian(s) by blood, marriage, or adoption.

(9) "Contractor" means an applicant which has been awarded state funds under the early childhood education and assistance program, and which has entered into a contract with the department of community development to provide an early childhood education and assistance program. Contractors may be local public or private organizations which are nonsectarian in their delivery of services.

(10) "Like educational services" means programs funded by other sources that provide children with a learning environment and a varied experience which helps them develop socially, intellectually, physically, and emotionally in a developmentally appropriate manner toward an overall goal of social and educational competence.

(11) "Low income" means a family whose total income before taxes for the twelve months prior to the enrollment of their child in the early childhood education and assistance program is equal to, or less than, federally established poverty guidelines as defined by the office of management and budget.

(12) "Nonsectarian" means that no aspect of early childhood education and assistance services will include any religious orientation.

NEW SECTION

WAC 365-170-040 CONTRACTOR FUNDING. The legislature determines the amount of funding available to award state-wide to early childhood education and assistance programs.

(1) Five percent of the total funds shall be used by the department for staff development funds for local programs, longitudinal studies of participants and control groups, and unique costs associated with the start up of new programs.

(2) Five percent of the total funds shall be used by the department to administer, provide technical assistance, and monitor the local early childhood education and assistance programs.

(3) Up to sixty percent of the remaining funds shall be made available to successfully competitive programs in counties where twenty percent or fewer of the children found eligible to receive program services are being served.

(4) At least forty percent of the funds shall be made available to successfully competitive programs in counties where more than twenty percent of the eligible children are being served.

NEW SECTION

WAC 365-170-050 ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR APPLICANTS. (1) Public or private nonsectarian organizations are eligible to apply for funding as an early childhood education and assistance program.

(2) Organizations along the Washington border in Idaho and Oregon who propose to serve children in Washington state are eligible to apply for funding.

(3) A consortium of organizations are eligible to apply.

(4) Organizations must have established appropriate internal fiscal controls and fund accounting procedures to assure the proper disbursement of, and accounting for, all funds provided.

(5) Using a form provided by the department, organizations must obtain acknowledgement of their application from local school districts within the proposed service area.

(6) Programs shall neither deny service to, nor otherwise discriminate in the delivery of services against, any person who otherwise meets the eligibility criteria for the program on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, age, national origin, citizenship, ancestry, physical or mental handicap or because such person is a recipient of federal, state, or local public assistance.

NEW SECTION

WAC 365-170-060 APPLICATION PROCESS. (1) Funds shall be awarded on a competitive basis.

(2) An applicant must make formal response using forms issued and procedures established by the department.

(3) A rating team composed of persons with program and fiscal management experience will review and rank the proposals.

(4) The department shall have the final discretion to award funds.

(5) The department shall notify successful applicants and shall provide to each of them a contract for signature. This contract must be signed by an official with authority to bind the applicant and must be returned to the department prior to the award of any funds under this program.

NEW SECTION

WAC 365-170-070 AWARD OF CONTRACTS. (1) Awards shall not exceed a level of two thousand seven hundred dollars per child enrolled in the program.

(2) Department funds may not supplant other existing funding sources.

(3) Administrative costs under this program are limited to fifteen percent of the total award.

NEW SECTION

WAC 365-170-080 ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR CLIENTS. (1) A child must be four years old by August 31 of the contract year.

(2) A child must be a member of a household with income at or below the federally established poverty level for the twelve months preceding enrollment.

(3) A child may not otherwise be a participant in a federal or state program providing like educational services.

(4) As many as ten percent of the available funded enrollment slots may be filled by at risk children who are eligible under the OSPI WAC criteria for developmentally handicapped and who are enrolled in other state or federal programs.

(5) Participants in the early childhood education and assistance program will not be charged fees for any services provided.

NEW SECTION

WAC 365-170-090 PROGRAM DESIGN. Standards for program design are based on a model of comprehensive services to participating children. These include educational services, health services (including medical, dental, nutrition, and mental health), and social services to families. Parents shall be given the opportunity to be involved in every aspect of the planning and implementation of services. Specific program requirements are contained in the program standards publication available from the department.

WSR 86-18-074**EMERGENCY RULES****DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES**

[Order 86-93—Filed September 3, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to personal use rules.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that

observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is this regulation conforms Washington rules with the recommendations of the Columbia River Compact Commission.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and 75.08.090 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED September 3, 1986.

By Raymond M. Ryan
for William R. Wilkerson
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-56-19000E SALTWATER SEASONS AND BAG LIMITS. *Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 220-56-190, effective immediately until further notice, it is unlawful to fish for or possess salmon taken for personal use from all Puget Sound waters west of the mouth of the Sekiu River, waters west of the Bonilla-Tatoosh Line, Pacific Ocean waters, or waters west of the Buoy 10 Line, except Bag Limit F while fishing on the river side from the north jetty at the mouth of the Columbia River, it is unlawful to fish from a boat, and barbed hooks are allowed.*

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-57-16000E COLUMBIA RIVER. *Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 220-57-160,*

(1) *Effective immediately until 11:59 p.m. September 6, 1986, it is unlawful to fish for or possess salmon taken for personal use in the Buoy 10 fishery, except Bag Limit F while fishing from the bank, it is unlawful to fish from a boat.*

(2) *Effective 12:01 a.m. September 7 until further notice, Bag Limit F in the Buoy 10 fishery; barbed hooks are allowed.*

REPEALER

The following sections of the Washington Administrative Code are repealed:

WAC 220-56-19000D SALTWATER SEASONS AND BAG LIMITS. (86-83)

WAC 220-57-16000D COLUMBIA RIVER. (86-89)

WSR 86-18-075
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
[Order 86-94—Filed September 3, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to personal use rules.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is harvestable numbers of salmon are available.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED September 3, 1986.

By Raymond M. Ryan
for William R. Wilkerson
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-57-27000Q HOH RIVER. *Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 220-57-270, effective immediately until November 30, 1986:*

(1) *Bag Limit A: Downstream from the mouth of Willoughby Creek to the Highway 101 Bridge.*

(2) *Special Bag Limit of 6 salmon not less than 10 inches in length, not more than two of which may be coho salmon greater than 20 inches in length and not more than four of which may be a combination of coho salmon greater than 20 inches in length and chinook salmon greater than 24 inches in length: Downstream from the Highway 101 Bridge.*

WSR 86-18-076
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
[Order 86-95—Filed September 3, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to commercial fishing regulations.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity

to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is harvestable numbers of fish are available, and this rule is adopted at the recommendation of the Columbia River Compact Commission.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED September 3, 1986.

By Raymond M. Ryan
for William R. Wilkerson
Director

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-32-05100Y SEASONS—SALMON.

(1) Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 220-32-051 and WAC 220-32-052, it is unlawful for a person to take or possess salmon taken for commercial purposes from Columbia River Salmon Management and Catch Reporting Areas 1F, 1G or 1H, except:

(a) that those individuals possessing treaty fishing rights under the Yakima, Warm Springs, Umatilla and Nez Perce treaties may fish from:

Immediately to 6:00 p.m. September 5, 1986.

(b) The net length shall not exceed 400 feet.

(2) Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 220-32-058, the closed area at the mouth of:

(a) Hood River is those waters along the Oregon side of the Columbia River and extends to mid-stream at right angles to the thread of the Columbia River between approximately 0.8 miles downriver from the west bank at the end of the breakwall at the west end of the port of Hood River to 1/2 mile upriver from the east bank.

(b) Herman Creek is those waters upstream from a line between deadline markers near the mouth. One marker is located on the east bank piling and the other is located on the west bank to the north of the boat ramp.

(c) Deschutes River is those waters of the Columbia River extending to midstream at right angles to the thread of the Columbia River between points one-half mile upstream from the eastern shoreline to one mile downstream from the western shoreline.

(d) Umatilla River is those waters of the Columbia River extending to midstream at right angles to the thread of the Columbia River between points one-half mile upstream from the eastern shoreline to one mile downstream from the western shoreline.

(e) Big White Salmon River is those waters of the Columbia River extending to midstream at right angles to the thread of the Columbia River between points one-half mile upstream from the eastern shoreline to one mile downstream from the western shoreline.

(f) Spring Creek is those waters of the Columbia River extending to midstream at right angles to the thread

of the Columbia River between points one-half mile upstream from the eastern shoreline to one and one-half mile downstream from the western shoreline.

(g) Wind River is those waters of the Columbia River extending to midstream at right angles to the thread of the Columbia River between points one-half mile upstream from the eastern shoreline to one and one-half mile downstream from the western shoreline.

(h) Klickitat River is those waters of the Columbia River extending to midstream at right angles to the thread of the Columbia River between points one-half mile upstream from the eastern shoreline to one and one-half mile downstream from the western shoreline.

(i) Little White Salmon River is those waters of the Columbia River extending to midstream at right angles to the thread of the Columbia River between points one-half mile upstream from the eastern shoreline to three-quarters mile downstream from the western shoreline.

(3) Notwithstanding the provisions of WAC 220-22-010, during the open periods in subsection (1):

(a) Area 1F (Bonnevillie Pool) shall include those waters of the Columbia River upstream from the Bridge of the Gods, and downstream from the west end of the 3 mile rapids.

(b) Area 1G shall include those waters of the Columbia River upstream from a line drawn between a point one mile above the fishway exit on the Washington shore and a point one mile above the fishway exit on the Oregon shore, and downstream from Preacher's Eddy light below John Day Dam.

(c) Area 1H shall include those waters of the Columbia River upstream from a fishing boundary marker approximately one-half mile above the John Day River, Oregon, to a fishing boundary marker on the Washington shore and downstream from a line at a right angle across the thread of the river one mile downstream from McNary Dam.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed:

WAC 220-32-05100X SEASONS—SALMON.
(86-81)

WSR 86-18-077
EMERGENCY RULES
DEPARTMENT OF FISHERIES
[Order 86-96—Filed September 3, 1986]

I, William R. Wilkerson, director of the Department of Fisheries, do promulgate and adopt at Olympia, Washington, the annexed rules relating to commercial fishing regulations.

I, William R. Wilkerson, find that an emergency exists and that this order is necessary for the preservation of the public health, safety, or general welfare and that observance of the requirements of notice and opportunity to present views on the proposed action would be contrary to public interest. A statement of the facts constituting the emergency is the 24 hour per day gillnet

schedule and purse seine in Area 7B is required to avoid wastage of chinook salmon in the final week of chinook management. The openings in Areas 12 and 12B provide opportunity to harvest remaining non-Indian allocations.

These rules are therefore adopted as emergency rules to take effect upon filing with the code reviser.

This rule is promulgated pursuant to RCW 75.08.080 and is intended to administratively implement that statute.

The undersigned hereby declares that the agency has complied with the provisions of the Open Public Meetings Act (chapter 42.30 RCW), the Administrative Procedure Act (chapter 34.04 RCW) and the State Register Act (chapter 34.08 RCW) in the adoption of these rules.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED September 3, 1986.

By Raymond M. Ryan
for William R. Wilkerson
Director

13E, 13F, 13G, 13H, 13I, 13J, and 13K and
all freshwater areas - Closed.

REPEALER

The following section of the Washington Administrative Code is repealed effective immediately.

WAC 220-47-708 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY ORDER NO. 86-92

WSR 86-18-078
PROPOSED RULES
DEPARTMENT OF
SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES
(Public Assistance)
[Filed September 3, 1986]

NEW SECTION

WAC 220-47-709 PUGET SOUND ALL-CITIZEN COMMERCIAL SALMON FISHERY. Notwithstanding the provisions of Chapter 220-47 WAC, effective immediately until further notice, it is unlawful to take, fish for, or possess salmon for commercial purposes taken from the following Puget Sound Salmon Management and Catch Reporting Areas except in accordance with the following restrictions:

Areas 4B, 5, 6C - Under control of Pacific Salmon Commission. Drift gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open.

Areas 6, 6A, 7, 7A - Under control of Pacific Salmon Commission. Gill net gear restricted to 6-inch maximum mesh when open.

*Area 7B - Closed except gill nets using 5-inch minimum mesh may fish continuously until further notice, and purse seines from 12:01 PM to 9:00 PM September 4 and from 5:00 AM to 9:00 PM September 5 and 6. Fishery exclusion zones applicable to Area 7B commercial fisheries are described in WAC 220-47-307.

Areas 12 and 12B - Closed except gill nets using 7-inch minimum mesh may fish from 6:00 PM to 9:00 AM nightly, through the morning of September 4 and purse seines using the 5-inch strip may fish from 5:00 AM to 9:00 PM daily through September 4. That portion of Area 12 east of a line from Lone Rock to the navigational marker off the north of Big Beef Creek thence, southerly to the tip of the outermost northern headland of Little Beef Creek remains closed to fishing. Additional fishing exclusion zones applicable to the Area 12B fishery are described in WAC 220-47-307.

Areas 6B, 6D, 7C, 7D, 7E, 8, 8A, 8D, 9, 9A, 10, 10A, 10C, 10D, 10E, 10F, 10G, 11, 11A, 12A, 12C, 12D, 13, 13A, 13C, 13D,

Notice is hereby given in accordance with the provisions of RCW 34.04.025, that the Department of Social and Health Services intends to adopt, amend, or repeal rules concerning Payment—Hospital inpatient services, amending WAC 388-87-070.

It is the intention of the secretary to adopt these rules on an emergency basis on October 1, 1986;

that the agency will at 10:00 a.m., Wednesday, October 8, 1986, in the Auditorium, OB-2, Olympia, conduct a public hearing on the proposed rules.

The formal decision regarding adoption, amendment, or repeal of the rules will take place on October 9, 1986.

The authority under which these rules are proposed is RCW 74.08.090.

The specific statute these rules are intended to implement is chapter 74.09 RCW.

Interested persons may submit data, views, or arguments to this agency in writing to be received by this agency before October 8, 1986.

Correspondence concerning this notice and proposed rules attached should be addressed to:

Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel
Department of Social and Health Services
Mailstop OB 14
Olympia, WA 98504

Interpreters for people with hearing impairments and brailled or taped information for people with visual impairments can be provided. Please contact Administrative Regulations Section, State Office Building #2, 12th and Franklin, Olympia, WA, phone (206) 753-7015 by September 24, 1986. The meeting site is in a location which is barrier free.

Dated: September 3, 1986

By: Lee D. Bomberger, Acting Director
Division of Administration and Personnel

STATEMENT OF PURPOSE

This statement is filed pursuant to RCW 34.04.045.

Re: Amending WAC 388-87-070.

Purpose of the Rule Change: Reimbursement rates for hospital inpatient services will be changed from the diagnosis related group (DRG) based system to the ratio

of Hospital Commission approved operating expense to total rate setting revenue (OE/TRSR). The OE/TRSR system was used prior to January 1, 1985.

Reason for the Change: The division is taken precautionary action to control the expenditure of state of funds. There is a possibility that the court may order the department to reimburse hospitals at pre-February 1, 1986, DRG rates. If this happens, effective October 1, 1986, it will increase state fund expenditures by \$15.2 million for this biennium. By changing reimbursement rates back to OE/TRSR, effective October 1, 1986, there will be an increase in state fund expenditures of only \$9.1 million over present rates. This change will result in a savings of \$6.1 million in state funds. The OE/TRSR rates have been accepted in past.

Statutory Authority: RCW 74.08.090.

Summary: Effective October 1, 1986, reimbursement for hospital inpatient services will be based on the ratio of Hospital Commission approved operating expense to total rate setting revenue.

Person Responsible for Drafting, Implementation and Enforcement of the Rule: Jim Sparks, Program Manager, Division of Medical Assistance, mailstop HB-41, phone 753-7316.

Rules are proposed by DSHS.

These rules are not necessary as a result of federal or state law change.

No economic impact statement is required under the Regulatory Fairness Act.

AMENDATORY SECTION (Amending Order 2307, filed 11/15/85)

WAC 388-87-070 PAYMENT—HOSPITAL INPATIENT SERVICES. (1) The department will pay hospital costs of eligible persons who are patients in general hospitals when such hospitals meet the criteria as defined in RCW 70.41.020.

Recipients must have been approved as financially and medically eligible for hospitalization. They are:

- (a) Categorically needy recipients;
- (b) Limited casualty program recipients;
 - (i) Medically needy recipients;
 - (ii) Medically indigent recipients;
- (c) Recipients of continuing general assistance.

(2) ~~((Except for excluded services, payment for hospital inpatient services is determined according to a diagnosis related group based pricing system. Payment amounts are based upon historical average costs per discharge, adjusted for case mix and indexed to the payment period. Payment for cases meeting the criteria of cost outlier is at eighty percent of the rates determined according to the method in subsection (4)(a) of this section.~~

~~(3) Certain services are excluded from the diagnosis related group based pricing system. These exclusions include:~~

- ~~(a) Rehabilitation, pain treatment, psychiatric, alcoholism treatment and detoxification, and long term hospital level care services;~~
- ~~(b) Services provided to patients occupying beds utilized by the Fred Hutchinson Cancer Research Center bone marrow transplant program;~~
- ~~(c) Services at children's hospitals.~~

~~(4) Payment for excluded services is determined as follows:~~

~~(a)) Reimbursable cost of ~~((excluded))~~ hospital inpatient services ~~((in subsection (3)(a) and (b) of this section))~~ is determined by multiplying charges in allowable revenue codes by the ratio of hospital commission approved operating expenses to total rate setting revenue.~~

~~((b) Payment rates for children's hospitals are determined by computing the ratio of indexed historical hospital commission approved operating expenses to total rate setting revenue. This ratio is multiplied times allowable charges.~~

~~(5)) (3) For all administrative days, days of hospitalization in which medical necessity is below that appropriate for acute hospital care, the departments maximum reimbursement level will be the adjusted state-wide average per diem rate for skilled nursing facilities.~~

~~((6)) (4) For dates of admission beginning October 1, 1985, payment rates established in accordance with subsection((s)) (2)((-4) and (5)) of this section are reduced for services provided to persons eligible for the medically indigent component of the limited casualty program and recipients of general assistance-unemployable. Hospitals are grouped according to the percentage of total rate setting revenue comprising medical assistance, medicare, bad debt, charity, and other contractual adjustments and rates are reduced according to the following table.~~

Hospital Group	Percent Medicare, Medicaid, Bad Debt, Charity and other Contractual Adjustments of Total Rate Setting Revenue	Percentage Reduction in Payment Rate
1	60.00 or more*	20.0
2	50.00 - 59.99	40.0
3	less than 50.00	60.0

*Plus psychiatric hospitals

~~((7)) (5) Payment rates or amounts to hospitals established by this section will be adjusted as necessary to remove the impacts of ownership changes and revaluation of assets, including recapture of depreciation as necessary, in accordance with section 2314 of Public Law 98-369 and related federal regulations, guidelines, instructions, and state plan requirements.~~

Table of WAC Sections Affected

KEY TO TABLE

Symbols:

- AMD = Amendment of existing section
- NEW = New section not previously codified
- OBJEC = Notice of objection by Joint Administrative Rules Review Committee
- RE-AD = Re-adoption of existing section
- REP = Repeal of existing section
- REAFF = Order assuming and reaffirming rules
- REMOV = Removal of rule pursuant to RCW 34.04.050(5)
- RESCIND = Rescind previous emergency rule
- REVIEW = Review of previously adopted rule
- STMT = Statement regarding previously adopted rule

Suffixes:

- P = Proposed action
- C = Continuance of previous proposal
- E = Emergency action
- W = Withdrawal of proposed action
- No suffix means permanent action

This table covers the current calendar year through this issue of the Register and should be used to locate rules amended, adopted, or repealed subsequent to the publication date of the latest WAC or Supplement.

WAC # shows the section number under which an agency rule is or will be codified in the Washington Administrative Code.

WSR # shows the issue of the Washington State Register where the document may be found; the last three digits show the sequence of the document within the issue.

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
4-25-140	AMD-E	86-16-056	16-316-525	AMD-P	86-09-090	16-400-210	AMD-E	86-06-038
16-59-030	AMD-E	86-09-001	16-316-525	AMD	86-13-014	16-400-210	AMD	86-08-081
16-86-092	AMD-E	86-04-050	16-316-800	AMD-P	86-09-090	16-403-141	NEW-P	86-10-057
16-86-092	AMD-P	86-04-051	16-316-800	AMD	86-13-014	16-403-141	NEW	86-14-026
16-86-092	AMD	86-08-055	16-316-810	AMD-P	86-09-090	16-403-160	AMD-P	86-10-057
16-108-010	AMD	86-04-027	16-316-810	AMD	86-13-014	16-403-160	AMD	86-14-026
16-125-200	NEW-P	86-13-051	16-316-820	AMD-P	86-09-090	16-403-225	AMD-P	86-08-080
16-125-200	NEW	86-17-014	16-316-820	AMD	86-13-014	16-403-225	AMD	86-10-045
16-125-210	NEW-P	86-13-051	16-316-830	AMD-P	86-09-090	16-425-001	REP-P	86-04-070
16-125-210	NEW	86-17-014	16-316-830	AMD	86-13-014	16-425-001	REP	86-08-078
16-129-050	NEW-P	86-17-078	16-316-832	NEW-P	86-09-090	16-425-010	REP-P	86-04-070
16-154-010	NEW-P	86-13-050	16-316-832	NEW	86-13-014	16-425-010	REP	86-08-078
16-154-010	NEW-C	86-16-033	16-316-850	NEW-P	86-09-090	16-425-015	REP-P	86-04-070
16-154-010	NEW-C	86-17-031	16-316-850	NEW	86-13-014	16-425-015	REP	86-08-078
16-154-010	NEW	86-18-040	16-316-860	NEW-P	86-09-090	16-462-001	REP-P	86-04-070
16-154-020	NEW-P	86-13-050	16-316-860	NEW	86-13-014	16-462-001	REP	86-08-078
16-154-020	NEW-C	86-16-033	16-316-870	NEW-P	86-09-090	16-462-010	AMD-P	86-04-070
16-154-020	NEW-C	86-17-031	16-316-870	NEW	86-13-014	16-462-010	AMD	86-08-078
16-154-020	NEW	86-18-040	16-316-880	NEW-P	86-09-090	16-462-015	AMD-P	86-04-070
16-154-030	NEW-P	86-13-050	16-316-880	NEW	86-13-014	16-462-015	AMD	86-08-078
16-154-030	NEW-C	86-16-033	16-324	AMD-C	86-14-096	16-462-020	AMD-P	86-04-070
16-154-030	NEW-C	86-17-031	16-324-375	AMD-P	86-11-063	16-462-020	AMD	86-08-078
16-212-030	AMD-E	86-14-083	16-324-375	AMD	86-15-045	16-462-025	AMD-P	86-04-070
16-212-060	AMD-E	86-14-083	16-324-390	AMD-P	86-11-063	16-462-025	AMD	86-08-078
16-212-070	AMD-E	86-14-083	16-324-390	AMD	86-15-045	16-462-030	AMD-P	86-04-070
16-212-082	AMD-E	86-14-083	16-324-400	AMD-P	86-11-063	16-462-030	AMD	86-08-078
16-213-210	AMD-P	86-16-066	16-324-400	AMD	86-15-045	16-462-035	AMD-P	86-04-070
16-213-240	NEW-P	86-16-066	16-324-430	AMD-P	86-11-063	16-462-035	AMD	86-08-078
16-213-240	NEW-E	86-17-030	16-324-430	AMD	86-15-045	16-462-050	NEW-P	86-04-070
16-213-250	NEW-P	86-16-066	16-324-445	AMD-P	86-11-063	16-462-050	NEW	86-08-078
16-213-250	NEW-E	86-17-030	16-324-445	AMD	86-15-045	16-462-055	NEW-P	86-04-070
16-218-010	AMD-P	86-14-098	16-324-510	AMD-P	86-11-063	16-462-055	NEW	86-08-078
16-218-010	AMD	86-17-032	16-324-510	AMD	86-15-045	16-470-010	AMD-P	86-03-075
16-218-010	AMD-E	86-17-033	16-324-510	AMD	86-15-045	16-470-010	AMD	86-07-020
16-218-02001	AMD-P	86-14-098	16-324-520	AMD-P	86-11-063	16-470-010	AMD	86-07-020
16-218-02001	AMD	86-17-032	16-324-520	AMD	86-15-045	16-470-020	AMD-P	86-03-075
16-218-02001	AMD-E	86-17-033	16-324-530	AMD-P	86-11-063	16-470-020	AMD	86-07-020
16-230-079	NEW-E	86-13-032	16-324-530	AMD	86-15-045	16-470-100	AMD-P	86-03-075
16-304-110	AMD-P	86-09-090	16-324-540	AMD-P	86-11-063	16-470-100	AMD	86-07-020
16-304-110	AMD	86-13-014	16-324-540	AMD	86-15-045	16-470-200	AMD-P	86-03-075
16-304-130	AMD-P	86-09-090	16-400-010	AMD-P	86-04-029	16-470-200	AMD	86-07-020
16-304-130	AMD	86-13-014	16-400-010	AMD-E	86-06-038	16-470-240	NEW-E	86-08-009
16-316-183	NEW-P	86-09-090	16-400-010	AMD	86-08-081	16-470-240	NEW-P	86-10-048
16-316-183	NEW	86-13-014	16-400-040	AMD-P	86-04-029	16-470-240	NEW	86-14-097
16-316-350	AMD-P	86-09-090	16-400-040	AMD-E	86-06-038	16-470-300	AMD-P	86-03-075
16-316-350	AMD	86-13-014	16-400-040	AMD	86-08-081	16-470-300	AMD	86-07-020
16-316-355	AMD-P	86-09-090	16-400-050	AMD-P	86-04-029	16-488	AMD-C	86-17-049
16-316-355	AMD	86-13-014	16-400-050	AMD-E	86-06-038	16-488-001	REP-P	86-14-023
16-316-370	AMD-P	86-09-090	16-400-050	AMD	86-08-081	16-488-002	NEW-P	86-14-023
16-316-370	AMD	86-13-014	16-400-100	AMD-P	86-04-029	16-488-005	REP-P	86-14-023
16-316-445	AMD-P	86-09-090	16-400-100	AMD-E	86-06-038	16-488-006	NEW-P	86-14-023
16-316-445	AMD	86-13-014	16-400-100	AMD	86-08-081	16-488-010	AMD-P	86-14-023
			16-400-210	AMD-P	86-04-029	16-488-015	AMD-P	86-14-023

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
16-488-020	REP-P	86-14-023	25-42-130	NEW-P	86-09-038	51-12-102	AMD	86-11-013
16-488-025	AMD-P	86-14-023	25-42-130	NEW	86-13-002	51-12-102	AMD-P	86-16-071
16-488-030	AMD-P	86-14-023	25-48-010	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-201	AMD-P	86-16-071
16-488-035	REP-P	86-14-023	25-48-010	NEW	86-13-001	51-12-304	AMD-P	86-16-071
16-488-040	REP-P	86-14-023	25-48-020	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-402	AMD-P	86-16-071
16-488-990	NEW-P	86-14-023	25-48-020	NEW	86-13-001	51-12-404	AMD-P	86-06-058
16-488-995	NEW-P	86-14-023	25-48-030	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-404	AMD-E	86-06-059
16-524-040	AMD-P	86-06-045	25-48-030	NEW	86-13-001	51-12-404	AMD	86-11-013
16-524-040	AMD	86-13-057	25-48-040	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-411	AMD-P	86-06-058
16-536-040	AMD-P	86-09-079	25-48-040	NEW	86-13-001	51-12-411	AMD-E	86-06-059
16-536-040	AMD-E	86-15-001	25-48-050	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-411	AMD	86-11-013
16-536-040	AMD	86-15-002	25-48-050	NEW	86-13-001	51-12-426	AMD-P	86-06-058
16-560-06001	AMD-P	86-07-051	25-48-060	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-426	AMD-E	86-06-059
16-560-06001	AMD	86-14-066	25-48-060	NEW	86-13-001	51-12-426	AMD	86-11-013
16-561-010	AMD-P	86-06-046	25-48-070	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-426	AMD-P	86-16-071
16-561-010	AMD	86-13-012	25-48-070	NEW	86-13-001	51-12-601	AMD-P	86-06-058
16-561-020	AMD-P	86-06-046	25-48-080	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-601	AMD-E	86-06-059
16-561-020	AMD	86-13-012	25-48-080	NEW	86-13-001	51-12-601	AMD	86-11-013
16-561-040	AMD-P	86-06-046	25-48-090	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-601	AMD-P	86-16-071
16-561-040	AMD	86-13-012	25-48-090	NEW	86-13-001	51-12-602	AMD-P	86-06-058
16-561-041	AMD-P	86-06-046	25-48-100	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-602	AMD-E	86-06-059
16-561-041	AMD	86-13-012	25-48-100	NEW	86-13-001	51-12-602	AMD	86-11-013
16-570-010	NEW-P	86-12-065	25-48-105	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-608	AMD-P	86-06-058
16-570-010	NEW-E	86-12-066	25-48-105	NEW	86-13-001	51-12-608	AMD-E	86-06-059
16-570-010	NEW-C	86-15-063	25-48-110	NEW-P	86-09-039	51-12-608	AMD	86-11-013
16-570-010	NEW	86-16-023	25-48-110	NEW	86-13-001	67-35-150	AMD-P	86-04-063
16-570-020	NEW-P	86-12-065	25-48-120	NEW-P	86-09-039	67-35-150	AMD	86-08-010
16-570-020	NEW-E	86-12-066	25-48-120	NEW	86-13-001	67-35-230	AMD-P	86-04-063
16-570-020	NEW-C	86-15-063	25-48-130	NEW-P	86-09-039	67-35-230	AMD	86-08-010
16-570-020	NEW	86-16-023	25-48-130	NEW	86-13-001	82-50-021	AMD-P	86-14-065
16-570-030	NEW-P	86-12-065	25-48-140	NEW-P	86-09-039	82-50-021	AMD	86-17-001
16-570-030	NEW-E	86-12-066	25-48-140	NEW	86-13-001	82-60-010	NEW-E	86-16-018
16-570-030	NEW-C	86-15-063	30-01-010	NEW	86-08-072	82-60-020	NEW-E	86-16-018
16-570-030	NEW	86-16-023	30-01-020	NEW	86-08-072	82-60-030	NEW-E	86-16-018
16-570-040	NEW-E	86-16-017	30-01-030	NEW	86-08-072	98-20-020	NEW-P	86-12-068
16-654-050	NEW	86-04-026	30-01-040	NEW	86-08-072	98-20-020	NEW-C	86-15-036
16-654-060	NEW	86-04-026	30-01-050	NEW	86-08-072	98-20-020	NEW	86-17-063
16-750-010	AMD-P	86-04-062	30-01-060	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-010	REP-E	86-14-013
16-750-010	AMD	86-07-024	30-04-010	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-010	AMD-P	86-16-084
16-752-001	NEW-E	86-15-054	30-04-020	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-020	REP-E	86-14-013
16-752-001	NEW-P	86-16-073	30-04-030	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-020	AMD-P	86-16-084
16-752-005	NEW-E	86-15-054	30-04-040	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-030	REP-E	86-14-013
16-752-005	NEW-P	86-16-073	30-04-050	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-030	AMD-P	86-16-084
16-752-010	NEW-E	86-15-054	30-04-060	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-040	REP-E	86-14-013
16-752-010	NEW-P	86-16-073	30-04-070	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-040	AMD-P	86-16-084
24-12-010	AMD-E	86-18-033	30-04-080	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-050	REP-E	86-14-013
24-12-010	AMD-P	86-18-034	30-04-090	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-050	AMD-P	86-16-084
25-24-010	AMD-E	86-08-082	30-04-100	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-052	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-24-020	AMD-E	86-08-082	30-04-110	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-060	REP-E	86-14-013
25-24-040	AMD-E	86-08-082	30-04-120	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-060	AMD-P	86-16-084
25-24-050	AMD-E	86-08-082	30-08-010	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-070	REP-E	86-14-013
25-24-060	AMD-E	86-08-082	30-08-020	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-070	AMD-P	86-16-084
25-24-070	AMD-E	86-08-082	30-08-030	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-075	REP-E	86-14-013
25-42-010	NEW-P	86-09-038	30-08-040	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-075	AMD-P	86-16-084
25-42-010	NEW	86-13-002	30-08-050	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-080	REP-E	86-14-013
25-42-020	NEW-P	86-09-038	30-08-060	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-080	AMD-P	86-16-084
25-42-020	NEW	86-13-002	30-08-070	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-085	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-030	NEW-P	86-09-038	30-12-010	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-090	REP-E	86-14-013
25-42-030	NEW	86-13-002	30-12-020	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-100	REP-E	86-14-013
25-42-040	NEW-P	86-09-038	30-12-030	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1100	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-040	NEW	86-13-002	30-12-040	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1200	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-050	NEW-P	86-09-038	30-12-050	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1300	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-050	NEW	86-13-002	30-12-060	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1400	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-060	NEW-P	86-09-038	30-12-070	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1500	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-060	NEW	86-13-002	30-12-080	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1525	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-070	NEW-P	86-09-038	30-12-090	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1550	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-070	NEW	86-13-002	30-12-100	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1600	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-080	NEW-P	86-09-038	30-12-110	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1700	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-080	NEW	86-13-002	30-12-120	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1900	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-090	NEW-P	86-09-038	30-12-130	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1910	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-090	NEW	86-13-002	30-12-140	NEW	86-08-072	100-100-1989	NEW-P	86-16-084
25-42-100	NEW-P	86-09-038	30-12-150	NEW	86-08-072	100-101-010	NEW-E	86-14-013
25-42-100	NEW	86-13-002	30-12-160	NEW	86-08-072	100-101-020	NEW-E	86-14-013
25-42-110	NEW-P	86-09-038	30-12-170	NEW	86-08-072	100-101-030	NEW-E	86-14-013
25-42-110	NEW	86-13-002	51-10	AMD-P	86-14-094	100-101-040	NEW-E	86-14-013
25-42-120	NEW-P	86-09-038	51-12-102	AMD-P	86-06-058	100-101-050	NEW-E	86-14-013
25-42-120	NEW	86-13-002	51-12-102	AMD-E	86-06-059	100-101-052	NEW-E	86-14-013

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
100-101-060	NEW-E 86-14-013	132J-136-040	REP-P 86-06-044	132K-995-990	AMD 86-15-020
100-101-070	NEW-E 86-14-013	132J-136-050	REP-P 86-06-044	132Q-01-005	NEW 86-04-010
100-101-075	NEW-E 86-14-013	132K-04-001	AMD-P 86-11-047	132Q-01-010	NEW 86-04-010
100-101-080	NEW-E 86-14-013	132K-04-001	AMD 86-15-020	132Q-01-020	NEW 86-04-010
100-101-085	NEW-E 86-14-013	132K-04-050	AMD-P 86-11-047	132Q-01-030	NEW 86-04-010
100-101-1989	NEW-E 86-14-013	132K-04-050	AMD 86-15-020	132Q-01-040	NEW 86-04-010
100-101-900	NEW-E 86-14-013	132K-04-080	AMD-P 86-11-047	132Q-01-050	NEW 86-04-010
113-12-075	NEW-P 86-07-057	132K-04-080	AMD 86-15-020	132S-30-011	AMD-P 86-10-033
113-12-075	NEW 86-10-039	132K-04-110	AMD-P 86-11-047	132S-30-011	AMD-P 86-16-001
113-12-080	AMD-P 86-07-057	132K-04-110	AMD 86-15-020	132S-30-011	AMD 86-16-010
113-12-080	AMD 86-10-039	132K-04-130	AMD-P 86-11-047	132S-30-042	AMD-P 86-10-033
114-12-115	NEW-P 86-03-082	132K-04-130	AMD 86-15-020	132S-30-042	AMD 86-16-010
114-12-115	NEW 86-06-043	132K-12-180	AMD-P 86-11-047	132S-30-044	REP-P 86-10-033
114-12-155	NEW-P 86-03-082	132K-12-180	AMD 86-15-020	132S-30-044	REP 86-16-010
114-12-155	NEW 86-06-043	132K-12-242	AMD-P 86-11-047	132S-30-046	REP-P 86-10-033
114-12-155	REVIEW 86-14-107	132K-12-242	AMD 86-15-020	132S-30-046	REP 86-16-010
114-12-165	NEW-P 86-03-082	132K-16-010	AMD-P 86-11-047	132S-30-048	REP-P 86-10-033
114-12-165	NEW 86-06-043	132K-16-010	AMD 86-15-020	132S-30-048	REP 86-16-010
114-12-165	REVIEW 86-14-107	132K-16-040	AMD-P 86-11-047	132S-30-064	AMD-P 86-10-033
118-06-010	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-16-040	AMD 86-15-020	132S-30-064	AMD 86-16-010
118-06-020	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-16-060	AMD-P 86-11-047	132S-30-082	AMD-P 86-10-033
118-06-030	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-16-060	AMD 86-15-020	132S-30-082	AMD 86-16-010
118-06-040	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-16-070	AMD-P 86-11-047	132S-30-084	AMD-P 86-10-033
118-06-050	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-16-070	AMD 86-15-020	132S-30-084	AMD 86-16-010
118-06-060	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-20-010	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-60-010	NEW-P 86-17-097
118-06-070	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-20-010	AMD 86-15-020	136-60-020	NEW-P 86-17-097
118-06-080	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-20-020	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-60-030	NEW-P 86-17-097
118-07-010	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-20-020	AMD 86-15-020	136-60-040	NEW-P 86-17-097
118-07-020	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-20-070	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-60-050	NEW-P 86-17-097
118-07-030	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-20-070	AMD 86-15-020	136-60-060	NEW-P 86-17-097
118-07-040	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-20-080	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-130-030	AMD 86-06-005
118-07-050	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-20-080	AMD 86-15-020	136-130-050	AMD 86-06-005
118-07-060	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-116-010	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-130-050	AMD-P 86-17-097
118-08-010	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-116-010	AMD 86-15-020	136-130-070	AMD 86-06-005
118-08-020	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-116-025	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-150-010	AMD 86-06-005
118-08-030	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-116-025	AMD 86-15-020	136-150-020	AMD 86-06-005
118-08-040	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-116-065	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-150-024	NEW 86-06-005
118-08-050	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-116-065	AMD 86-15-020	136-150-040	AMD 86-06-005
118-08-060	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-116-135	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-160-060	AMD 86-06-005
118-08-070	REP-P 86-06-037	132K-116-135	AMD 86-15-020	136-160-060	AMD-P 86-17-097
118-30-010	NEW-P 86-06-037	132K-116-140	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-180-025	AMD-P 86-17-097
118-30-010	NEW 86-15-068	132K-116-140	AMD 86-15-020	136-200-040	AMD-P 86-17-097
118-30-020	NEW-P 86-06-037	132K-120	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-220-020	AMD-P 86-17-097
118-30-020	NEW 86-15-068	132K-120	AMD 86-15-020	136-220-030	AMD-P 86-17-097
118-30-030	NEW-P 86-06-037	132K-120-010	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-230-010	NEW-P 86-17-097
118-30-030	NEW 86-15-068	132K-120-010	AMD 86-15-020	136-230-020	NEW-P 86-17-097
118-30-040	NEW-P 86-06-037	132K-120-015	AMD-P 86-11-047	136-230-030	NEW-P 86-17-097
118-30-040	NEW 86-15-068	132K-120-015	AMD 86-15-020	137-08-060	AMD-P 86-07-066
118-30-050	NEW-P 86-06-037	132K-120-020	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-08-060	AMD 86-10-010
118-30-050	NEW 86-15-068	132K-120-020	AMD 86-15-020	137-08-070	AMD-P 86-07-066
118-30-060	NEW-P 86-06-037	132K-120-025	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-08-070	AMD 86-10-010
118-30-060	NEW 86-15-068	132K-120-025	AMD 86-15-020	137-08-140	AMD-P 86-07-066
118-30-070	NEW-P 86-06-037	132K-120-045	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-08-140	AMD 86-10-010
118-30-070	NEW 86-15-068	132K-120-045	AMD 86-15-020	137-48-040	AMD-P 86-18-032
118-30-080	NEW-P 86-06-037	132K-120-065	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-54-030	AMD-P 86-04-015
118-30-080	NEW 86-15-068	132K-120-065	AMD 86-15-020	137-54-030	AMD 86-07-034
130-20-010	NEW-E 86-16-034	132K-120-085	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-56-010	AMD 86-06-012
130-20-020	NEW-E 86-16-034	132K-120-085	AMD 86-15-020	137-56-015	NEW-E 86-03-058
130-20-030	NEW-E 86-16-034	132K-122-010	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-56-015	NEW-P 86-03-059
130-20-040	NEW-E 86-16-034	132K-122-010	AMD 86-15-020	137-56-015	NEW 86-06-039
130-20-050	NEW-E 86-16-034	132K-122-020	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-56-095	NEW 86-06-012
131-08-010	NEW 86-05-004	132K-122-020	AMD 86-15-020	137-56-100	AMD 86-06-012
131-16-011	AMD-P 86-16-063	132K-122-030	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-56-110	NEW 86-06-012
131-32-030	NEW-E 86-11-059	132K-122-030	AMD 86-15-020	137-56-160	AMD 86-06-012
131-32-030	NEW-P 86-12-056	132K-122-040	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-56-170	AMD 86-06-012
131-32-035	NEW-E 86-11-059	132K-122-040	AMD 86-15-020	137-56-180	AMD 86-06-012
131-32-035	NEW-P 86-12-056	132K-122-080	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-56-190	AMD 86-06-012
131-32-040	NEW-E 86-11-059	132K-122-080	AMD 86-15-020	137-56-200	AMD 86-06-012
131-32-040	NEW-P 86-12-056	132K-122-100	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-56-210	AMD 86-06-012
132H-120-060	REP-P 86-13-047	132K-122-100	AMD 86-15-020	137-56-220	AMD 86-06-012
132H-120-062	NEW-P 86-13-047	132K-122-120	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-56-230	AMD 86-06-012
132H-160-550	NEW-E 86-09-045	132K-122-120	AMD 86-15-020	137-56-240	AMD 86-06-012
132H-160-550	NEW-P 86-09-046	132K-122-130	AMD-P 86-11-047	137-56-250	AMD 86-06-012
132H-160-550	NEW 86-18-038	132K-122-130	AMD 86-15-020	137-56-280	NEW 86-06-012
132J-136-020	REP-P 86-06-044	132K-276-040	AMD-P 86-11-047	139-01-100	NEW-P 86-15-072
132J-136-025	REP-P 86-06-044	132K-276-040	AMD 86-15-020	139-01-110	NEW-P 86-15-072
132J-136-030	REP-P 86-06-044	132K-995-990	AMD-P 86-11-047	139-01-210	NEW-P 86-15-072

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
139-01-310	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-260	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-150	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-01-320	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-270	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-150	AMD 86-12-011
139-01-330	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-280	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-180	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-01-410	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-290	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-180	AMD 86-12-011
139-01-415	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-300	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19	AMD-C 86-08-098
139-01-420	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-310	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-020	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-01-425	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-320	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-020	AMD 86-12-011
139-01-430	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-330	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-044	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-01-435	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-340	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-044	AMD 86-12-011
139-01-440	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-350	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-050	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-01-445	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-360	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-050	AMD 86-12-011
139-01-450	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-370	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-060	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-01-455	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-380	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-060	AMD 86-12-011
139-01-460	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-500	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-061	NEW-P 86-05-052
139-01-465	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-520	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-061	NEW 86-12-011
139-01-470	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-530	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-062	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-01-475	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-540	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-062	AMD 86-12-011
139-01-510	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-550	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-064	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-01-515	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-560	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-064	AMD 86-12-011
139-01-520	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-570	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-130	AMD 86-04-040
139-01-525	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-600	AMD-E 86-14-014	173-19-130	AMD-P 86-06-060
139-01-530	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-600	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-130	AMD-C 86-11-003
139-01-535	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-08-601	NEW-E 86-14-014	173-19-130	AMD 86-12-069
139-01-540	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-10-210	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-1404	AMD-P 86-11-066
139-01-545	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-10-220	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-1404	AMD 86-16-003
139-01-550	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-10-230	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-220	AMD-P 86-07-068
139-01-555	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-10-235	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-220	AMD-C 86-11-032
139-01-560	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-10-240	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-220	AMD 86-12-071
139-01-565	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-10-310	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-2512	AMD-P 86-06-061
139-01-570	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-10-320	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-2512	AMD-C 86-11-002
139-01-575	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-10-410	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-2512	AMD 86-12-070
139-01-610	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-10-420	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-2519	AMD-P 86-16-075
139-01-615	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-10-510	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-2521	AMD-P 86-17-068
139-01-620	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-10-520	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-3210	AMD-P 86-14-110
139-01-625	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-14-010	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-3210	AMD-C 86-17-069
139-01-630	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-15-110	NEW-P 86-15-072	173-19-330	AMD-P 86-11-068
139-01-710	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-16-010	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-330	AMD-C 86-16-002
139-01-715	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-18-010	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-330	AMD-C 86-17-071
139-01-720	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-20-020	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-330	AMD 86-18-052
139-01-725	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-22-010	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-3514	AMD-P 86-11-067
139-01-730	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-22-020	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-3514	AMD 86-16-004
139-01-735	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-28-010	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-3701	AMD-C 86-06-057
139-01-810	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-32-010	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-3701	AMD 86-07-049
139-01-820	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-36-020	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-380	AMD-P 86-08-100
139-04-010	REP-P 86-15-072	139-36-030	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-380	AMD 86-12-072
139-04-020	REP-P 86-15-072	139-36-031	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-390	AMD-P 86-14-111
139-05-200	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-36-032	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-390	AMD-C 86-17-070
139-05-210	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-36-033	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-3903	AMD-P 86-06-061
139-05-220	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-36-040	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-3903	AMD-C 86-11-002
139-05-230	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-36-041	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-3903	AMD 86-12-070
139-05-240	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-36-050	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-430	AMD-C 86-06-057
139-05-250	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-36-051	REP-P 86-15-072	173-19-430	AMD 86-07-049
139-05-910	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-36-060	REP-P 86-15-072	173-22	AMD-C 86-08-098
139-05-915	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-36-061	REP-P 86-15-072	173-22-030	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-05-920	NEW-P 86-15-072	139-40-010	REP-P 86-15-072	173-22-030	AMD 86-12-011
139-08-005	REP-P 86-15-072	139-50-010	REP-P 86-15-072	173-22-040	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-08-040	REP-P 86-15-072	139-50-020	REP-P 86-15-072	173-22-040	AMD 86-12-011
139-08-050	REP-P 86-15-072	139-50-030	REP-P 86-15-072	173-22-050	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-08-070	REP-P 86-15-072	154-12-050	AMD-E 86-13-005	173-22-050	AMD 86-12-011
139-08-080	REP-P 86-15-072	154-12-050	AMD-P 86-13-024	173-22-052	NEW-P 86-05-052
139-08-090	REP-P 86-15-072	154-12-050	AMD 86-16-025	173-22-052	NEW 86-12-011
139-08-100	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14	AMD-C 86-08-098	173-22-055	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-08-110	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-030	AMD-P 86-05-052	173-22-055	AMD 86-12-011
139-08-120	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-030	AMD 86-12-011	173-22-060	AMD-P 86-05-052
139-08-130	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-040	AMD-P 86-05-052	173-22-060	AMD 86-12-011
139-08-140	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-040	AMD 86-12-011	173-22-0602	NEW-P 86-05-052
139-08-150	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-055	NEW-P 86-05-052	173-22-0602	NEW 86-12-011
139-08-160	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-055	NEW 86-12-011	173-22-0604	NEW-P 86-05-052
139-08-170	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-060	AMD-P 86-05-052	173-22-0604	NEW 86-12-011
139-08-180	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-064	AMD-P 86-05-052	173-22-0606	NEW-P 86-05-052
139-08-190	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-064	AMD 86-12-011	173-22-0606	NEW 86-12-011
139-08-200	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-090	AMD-P 86-05-052	173-22-0608	NEW-P 86-05-052
139-08-210	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-090	AMD 86-12-011	173-22-0608	NEW 86-12-011
139-08-220	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-130	AMD-P 86-05-052	173-22-0610	NEW-P 86-05-052
139-08-230	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-130	AMD 86-12-011	173-22-0610	NEW 86-12-011
139-08-240	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-140	AMD-P 86-05-052	173-22-0612	NEW-P 86-05-052
139-08-250	REP-P 86-15-072	173-14-140	AMD 86-12-011	173-22-0612	NEW 86-12-011

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
173-303-160	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-303-9904	AMD	86-12-057	173-555-040	AMD-W	86-18-051
173-303-160	AMD	86-12-057	173-303-9905	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-555-060	AMD-P	86-10-062
173-303-161	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-303-9905	AMD	86-12-057	173-555-060	AMD-W	86-12-048
173-303-161	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-010	NEW-E	86-09-017	173-555-060	AMD-P	86-13-066
173-303-170	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-325-010	NEW-P	86-10-043	173-555-060	AMD-W	86-18-051
173-303-170	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-010	NEW-C	86-11-069	173-555-065	NEW-P	86-10-062
173-303-180	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-325-010	NEW-E	86-15-007	173-555-065	NEW-W	86-12-048
173-303-180	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-010	NEW	86-15-008	173-555-065	NEW-P	86-13-066
173-303-200	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-325-020	NEW-E	86-09-017	173-555-065	NEW-W	86-18-051
173-303-200	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-020	NEW-P	86-10-043	173-555-070	AMD-P	86-10-062
173-303-201	NEW-P	86-07-069	173-325-020	NEW-C	86-11-069	173-555-070	AMD-W	86-12-048
173-303-201	NEW	86-12-057	173-325-020	NEW-E	86-15-007	173-555-070	AMD-P	86-13-066
173-303-210	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-325-020	NEW	86-15-008	173-555-070	AMD-W	86-18-051
173-303-210	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-030	NEW-E	86-09-017	173-555-080	NEW-P	86-10-062
173-303-220	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-325-030	NEW-P	86-10-043	173-555-080	NEW-W	86-12-048
173-303-220	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-030	NEW-C	86-11-069	173-555-080	NEW-P	86-13-066
173-303-230	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-325-030	NEW-E	86-15-007	173-555-080	NEW-W	86-18-051
173-303-230	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-030	NEW	86-15-008	173-591-010	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-240	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-325-040	NEW-E	86-09-017	173-591-010	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-240	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-040	NEW-P	86-10-043	173-591-020	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-280	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-325-040	NEW-C	86-11-069	173-591-020	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-280	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-040	NEW-E	86-15-007	173-591-030	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-360	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-325-040	NEW	86-15-008	173-591-030	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-360	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-050	NEW-E	86-09-017	173-591-040	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-380	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-325-050	NEW-P	86-10-043	173-591-040	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-380	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-050	NEW-C	86-11-069	173-591-050	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-390	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-325-050	NEW-E	86-15-007	173-591-050	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-390	AMD	86-12-057	173-325-050	NEW	86-15-008	173-591-060	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-395	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-480-010	NEW-P	86-04-092	173-591-060	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-395	AMD	86-12-057	173-480-010	NEW-C	86-07-067	173-591-070	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-400	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-480-010	NEW	86-10-053	173-591-070	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-400	AMD	86-12-057	173-480-020	NEW-P	86-04-092	173-591-080	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-500	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-480-020	NEW-C	86-07-067	173-591-080	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-500	AMD	86-12-057	173-480-020	NEW	86-10-053	173-591-090	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-505	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-480-030	NEW-P	86-04-092	173-591-090	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-505	AMD	86-12-057	173-480-030	NEW-C	86-07-067	173-591-100	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-510	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-480-030	NEW	86-10-053	173-591-100	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-510	AMD	86-12-057	173-480-040	NEW-P	86-04-092	173-591-110	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-515	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-480-040	NEW-C	86-07-067	173-591-110	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-515	AMD	86-12-057	173-480-040	NEW	86-10-053	173-591-120	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-520	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-480-050	NEW-P	86-04-092	173-591-120	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-520	AMD	86-12-057	173-480-050	NEW-C	86-07-067	173-591-130	NEW-P	86-10-071
173-303-525	NEW-P	86-07-069	173-480-050	NEW	86-10-053	173-591-130	NEW	86-15-029
173-303-525	NEW	86-12-057	173-480-060	NEW-P	86-04-092	173-592-010	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-600	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-480-060	NEW-C	86-07-067	173-592-010	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-600	AMD	86-12-057	173-480-060	NEW	86-10-053	173-592-020	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-630	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-480-070	NEW-P	86-04-092	173-592-020	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-630	AMD	86-12-057	173-480-070	NEW-C	86-07-067	173-592-030	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-640	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-480-070	NEW	86-10-053	173-592-030	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-640	AMD	86-12-057	173-480-080	NEW-P	86-04-092	173-592-040	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-650	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-480-080	NEW-C	86-07-067	173-592-040	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-650	AMD	86-12-057	173-480-080	NEW	86-10-053	173-592-050	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-655	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-516-010	NEW-W	86-05-019	173-592-050	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-655	AMD	86-12-057	173-516-020	NEW-W	86-05-019	173-592-060	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-660	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-516-030	NEW-W	86-05-019	173-592-060	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-660	AMD	86-12-057	173-516-040	NEW-W	86-05-019	173-592-070	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-665	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-516-050	NEW-W	86-05-019	173-592-070	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-665	AMD	86-12-057	173-516-060	NEW-W	86-05-019	173-592-080	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-670	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-516-070	NEW-W	86-05-019	173-592-080	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-670	AMD	86-12-057	173-516-080	NEW-W	86-05-019	173-592-090	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-802	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-516-090	NEW-W	86-05-019	173-592-090	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-802	AMD	86-12-057	173-516-100	NEW-W	86-05-019	173-592-100	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-804	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-555-015	NEW-P	86-10-062	173-592-100	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-804	AMD	86-12-057	173-555-015	NEW-W	86-12-048	173-592-110	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-805	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-555-015	NEW-P	86-13-066	173-592-110	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-805	AMD	86-12-057	173-555-015	NEW-W	86-18-051	173-592-120	NEW-P	86-10-072
173-303-806	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-555-020	AMD-P	86-10-062	173-592-120	NEW	86-15-030
173-303-806	AMD	86-12-057	173-555-020	AMD-W	86-12-048	180-16-200	AMD-P	86-17-085
173-303-910	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-555-020	AMD-P	86-13-066	180-16-205	AMD-P	86-17-085
173-303-910	AMD	86-12-057	173-555-030	AMD-W	86-18-051	180-16-220	AMD-P	86-09-095
173-303-960	NEW-P	86-07-069	173-555-030	AMD-P	86-10-062	180-16-220	AMD	86-13-015
173-303-960	NEW	86-12-057	173-555-030	AMD-W	86-12-048	180-16-220	AMD-P	86-17-084
173-303-9902	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-555-030	AMD-P	86-13-066	180-16-221	NEW-P	86-09-095
173-303-9902	AMD	86-12-057	173-555-030	AMD-W	86-18-051	180-16-221	NEW	86-13-015
173-303-9903	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-555-040	AMD-P	86-10-062	180-16-222	NEW-P	86-09-095
173-303-9903	AMD	86-12-057	173-555-040	AMD-W	86-12-048	180-16-222	NEW	86-13-015
173-303-9904	AMD-P	86-07-069	173-555-040	AMD-P	86-13-066	180-16-223	NEW-P	86-09-095

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
180-16-223	NEW	86-13-015	180-85-025	NEW	86-13-018	192-28-120	AMD-P	86-14-095
180-16-224	NEW-P	86-09-095	180-85-030	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-28-120	AMD	86-17-023
180-16-224	NEW	86-13-015	180-85-030	NEW	86-13-018	192-28-125	AMD-P	86-14-095
180-16-225	AMD-P	86-09-095	180-85-035	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-28-125	AMD	86-17-023
180-16-225	AMD	86-13-015	180-85-035	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-010	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-16-226	NEW	86-13-015	180-85-040	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-010	NEW	86-08-073
180-16-231	NEW-P	86-09-095	180-85-040	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-020	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-16-231	NEW	86-13-015	180-85-045	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-020	NEW	86-08-073
180-16-236	NEW-P	86-09-095	180-85-045	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-030	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-16-236	NEW	86-13-015	180-85-045	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-030	NEW	86-08-073
180-16-236	NEW-P	86-09-095	180-85-075	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-030	NEW	86-08-073
180-16-236	NEW	86-13-015	180-85-075	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-040	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-25-043	NEW	86-04-065	180-85-075	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-040	NEW	86-08-073
180-25-050	AMD	86-04-066	180-85-080	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-050	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-26-057	NEW	86-04-065	180-85-080	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-050	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-27-105	AMD	86-04-067	180-85-100	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-050	NEW	86-08-073
180-29-1075	NEW	86-04-065	180-85-100	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-060	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-40-300	AMD-E	86-15-058	180-85-105	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-060	NEW	86-08-073
180-40-300	AMD-P	86-17-083	180-85-105	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-070	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-51-005	AMD-P	86-17-081	180-85-110	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-070	NEW	86-08-073
180-53-005	AMD-P	86-17-082	180-85-110	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-080	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-75	AMD-P	86-09-096	180-85-115	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-080	NEW	86-08-073
180-75	AMD	86-13-016	180-85-115	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-090	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-75-003	NEW-P	86-09-096	180-85-120	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-090	NEW	86-08-073
180-75-003	NEW	86-13-016	180-85-120	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-100	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-75-017	NEW-P	86-09-096	180-85-130	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-100	NEW	86-08-073
180-75-017	NEW	86-13-016	180-85-130	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-110	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-75-020	AMD-P	86-09-096	180-85-135	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-40-110	NEW	86-08-073
180-75-020	AMD	86-13-016	180-85-135	NEW	86-13-018	192-40-120	NEW-P	86-05-022
180-75-025	AMD-P	86-09-096	180-85-200	NEW-P	86-09-098	204-41-010	NEW-P	86-17-072
180-75-025	AMD	86-13-016	180-85-200	NEW	86-13-018	204-41-020	NEW-P	86-17-072
180-75-027	NEW-P	86-09-096	180-85-205	NEW-P	86-09-098	204-41-030	NEW-P	86-17-072
180-75-027	NEW	86-13-016	180-85-205	NEW	86-13-018	204-41-040	NEW-P	86-17-072
180-75-030	AMD-P	86-09-096	180-85-210	NEW-P	86-09-098	204-41-050	NEW-P	86-17-072
180-75-030	AMD	86-13-016	180-85-210	NEW	86-13-018	204-41-060	NEW-P	86-17-072
180-75-033	NEW-P	86-09-096	180-85-215	NEW-P	86-09-098	204-41-070	NEW-P	86-17-072
180-75-033	NEW	86-13-016	180-85-215	NEW	86-13-018	210-01-010	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-75-035	AMD-P	86-09-096	180-85-220	NEW-P	86-09-098	210-01-010	NEW	86-14-002
180-75-035	AMD	86-13-016	180-85-220	NEW	86-13-018	210-01-020	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-75-040	AMD-P	86-09-096	180-85-225	NEW-P	86-09-098	210-01-020	NEW	86-14-002
180-75-040	AMD	86-13-016	180-85-225	NEW	86-13-018	210-01-030	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-75-045	AMD-P	86-09-096	182-08-120	AMD-P	86-13-044	210-01-030	NEW	86-14-002
180-75-045	AMD	86-13-016	182-08-120	AMD-E	86-13-045	210-01-040	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-75-055	AMD-P	86-09-096	182-08-120	AMD	86-16-061	210-01-040	NEW	86-14-002
180-75-055	AMD	86-13-016	182-08-160	AMD-P	86-13-044	210-01-050	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-75-087	NEW-P	86-09-096	182-08-160	AMD-E	86-13-045	210-01-050	NEW	86-14-002
180-75-087	NEW	86-13-016	182-08-160	AMD	86-16-061	210-01-060	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-75-090	AMD-P	86-09-096	182-08-170	AMD-P	86-13-044	210-01-060	NEW	86-14-002
180-75-090	AMD	86-13-016	182-08-170	AMD-E	86-13-045	210-01-070	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-79-013	AMD-P	86-05-046	182-08-170	AMD	86-16-061	210-01-070	NEW	86-14-002
180-79-013	AMD	86-09-011	182-08-220	NEW-P	86-13-044	210-01-080	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-79-013	AMD-P	86-09-097	182-08-220	NEW-E	86-13-045	210-01-080	NEW	86-14-002
180-79-013	AMD	86-13-017	182-08-220	NEW	86-16-061	210-01-090	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-79-065	AMD-P	86-09-097	182-12-115	AMD-P	86-13-043	210-01-090	NEW	86-14-002
180-79-065	AMD	86-13-017	182-12-115	AMD-E	86-16-062	210-01-100	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-79-075	AMD-P	86-09-097	182-12-115	AMD-P	86-17-025	210-01-100	NEW	86-14-002
180-79-075	AMD	86-13-017	182-12-122	AMD-P	86-13-044	210-01-110	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-79-080	NEW-P	86-09-097	182-12-122	AMD-E	86-13-045	210-01-110	NEW	86-14-002
180-79-080	NEW	86-13-017	182-12-122	AMD	86-16-061	210-01-120	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-79-086	NEW-P	86-09-097	182-12-126	NEW-P	86-13-044	210-01-120	NEW	86-14-002
180-79-086	NEW	86-13-017	182-12-126	NEW-E	86-13-045	210-01-130	NEW-P	86-10-056
180-79-100	AMD-P	86-09-097	182-12-126	NEW	86-16-061	210-01-130	NEW	86-14-002
180-79-100	AMD	86-13-017	182-12-160	AMD-C	86-05-020	212-32-005	AMD-P	86-08-063
180-79-115	AMD-P	86-09-097	182-12-160	AMD	86-06-003	212-32-005	AMD	86-12-062
180-79-115	AMD	86-13-017	182-12-210	NEW-P	86-13-044	212-32-015	AMD-P	86-08-063
180-79-125	AMD-P	86-09-097	182-12-210	NEW-E	86-13-045	212-32-015	AMD	86-12-062
180-79-125	AMD	86-13-017	182-12-210	NEW	86-16-061	212-32-035	AMD-P	86-08-063
180-79-230	AMD-P	86-09-097	182-12-220	NEW-P	86-13-044	212-32-035	AMD	86-12-062
180-79-231	NEW-P	86-09-097	182-12-220	NEW-E	86-13-045	212-32-040	AMD-P	86-08-063
180-79-233	NEW-P	86-09-097	182-12-220	NEW	86-16-061	212-32-040	AMD	86-12-062
180-85-005	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-12-025	AMD-P	86-11-044	212-32-045	AMD-P	86-08-063
180-85-005	NEW	86-13-018	192-12-025	AMD	86-14-031	212-32-045	AMD	86-12-062
180-85-010	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-12-134	REP-P	86-14-095	212-32-050	AMD-P	86-08-063
180-85-010	NEW	86-13-018	192-28-105	AMD-P	86-14-095	212-32-050	AMD	86-12-062
180-85-015	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-28-105	AMD	86-17-023	212-32-070	AMD-P	86-08-063
180-85-015	NEW	86-13-018	192-28-110	AMD-P	86-14-095	212-32-070	AMD	86-12-062
180-85-020	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-28-110	AMD	86-17-023	212-32-075	AMD-P	86-08-063
180-85-020	NEW	86-13-018	192-28-115	AMD-P	86-14-095	212-32-075	AMD	86-12-062
180-85-025	NEW-P	86-09-098	192-28-115	AMD	86-17-023	212-32-080	AMD-P	86-08-063

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
212-32-080	AMD	86-12-062	212-52-095	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-05500P	REP-E	86-12-055
212-32-085	AMD-P	86-08-063	212-52-095	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-05500R	NEW-E	86-12-055
212-32-085	AMD	86-12-062	212-52-100	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-05500R	REP-E	86-17-060
212-32-095	AMD-P	86-08-063	212-52-100	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-05500S	NEW-E	86-17-060
212-32-095	AMD	86-12-062	212-52-105	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-05900I	NEW-E	86-09-015
212-32-100	AMD-P	86-08-063	212-52-105	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-05900J	NEW-E	86-10-005
212-32-100	AMD	86-12-062	212-52-112	NEW-P	86-08-064	220-36-020	AMD-P	86-10-075
212-32-110	NEW-P	86-08-063	212-52-112	NEW	86-11-038	220-36-020	AMD	86-15-016
212-32-110	NEW	86-12-062	212-52-115	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-36-021	AMD-P	86-10-075
212-32-115	NEW-P	86-08-063	212-52-115	AMD	86-11-038	220-36-021	AMD	86-15-016
212-32-115	NEW	86-12-062	212-52-120	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-36-02100Y	NEW-E	86-14-084
212-32-120	NEW-P	86-08-063	212-52-120	AMD	86-11-038	220-36-022	AMD-P	86-10-075
212-32-120	NEW	86-12-062	212-52-99001	NEW-P	86-08-064	220-36-022	AMD	86-15-016
212-32-125	NEW-P	86-08-063	212-52-99001	NEW	86-11-038	220-36-024	AMD-P	86-10-075
212-32-125	NEW	86-12-062	212-52-99002	NEW-P	86-08-064	220-36-024	AMD	86-15-016
212-32-130	NEW-P	86-08-063	212-52-99002	NEW	86-11-038	220-36-025	AMD-P	86-10-075
212-32-130	NEW	86-12-062	220-12-02000A	NEW-E	86-16-014	220-36-025	AMD	86-15-016
212-32-135	NEW-P	86-08-063	220-16-315	AMD-P	86-08-103	220-36-02500S	NEW-E	86-11-073
212-32-135	NEW	86-12-062	220-16-315	AMD-C	86-13-037	220-36-02500S	REP-E	86-13-013
212-32-140	NEW-P	86-08-063	220-16-315	AMD	86-13-038	220-36-02500T	NEW-E	86-12-007
212-32-140	NEW	86-12-062	220-16-385	NEW-P	86-16-021	220-36-02500T	REP-E	86-12-033
212-32-145	NEW-P	86-08-063	220-22-020	AMD-P	86-10-075	220-36-02500U	NEW-E	86-12-033
212-32-145	NEW	86-12-062	220-22-510	NEW-P	86-15-086	220-36-02500U	REP-E	86-12-073
212-32-150	NEW-P	86-08-063	220-22-51000A	NEW-E	86-10-027	220-36-02500V	NEW-E	86-12-073
212-32-150	NEW	86-12-062	220-24-02000J	NEW-E	86-10-007	220-36-02500V	REP-E	86-14-009
212-32-155	NEW-P	86-08-063	220-24-02000J	REP-E	86-10-015	220-36-02500W	NEW-E	86-14-009
212-32-155	NEW	86-12-062	220-24-02000K	NEW-E	86-10-015	220-36-02500W	REP-E	86-14-057
212-32-160	NEW-P	86-08-063	220-24-02000K	REP-E	86-11-016	220-36-02500X	NEW-E	86-14-057
212-32-160	NEW	86-12-062	220-24-02000L	NEW-E	86-11-016	220-40-020	AMD-P	86-10-075
212-52-001	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-24-02000L	REP-E	86-11-043	220-40-020	AMD	86-15-016
212-52-001	AMD	86-11-038	220-24-02000M	NEW-E	86-11-043	220-40-021	AMD-P	86-10-075
212-52-002	NEW-P	86-08-064	220-24-02000M	REP-E	86-12-012	220-40-021	AMD	86-15-016
212-52-002	NEW	86-11-038	220-24-02000N	NEW-E	86-12-012	220-40-02100G	NEW-E	86-14-084
212-52-005	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-24-02000N	REP-E	86-12-032	220-40-022	AMD-P	86-10-075
212-52-005	AMD	86-11-038	220-24-02000O	NEW-E	86-12-032	220-40-022	AMD	86-15-016
212-52-012	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-24-02000P	NEW-E	86-16-036	220-40-024	AMD-P	86-10-075
212-52-012	AMD	86-11-038	220-24-02000P	REP-E	86-16-074	220-40-024	AMD	86-15-016
212-52-016	NEW-P	86-08-064	220-24-02000Q	NEW-E	86-16-074	220-44-050	AMD-P	86-09-004
212-52-016	NEW	86-11-038	220-24-02000Q	REP-E	86-16-083	220-44-050	AMD	86-12-027
212-52-018	NEW-P	86-08-064	220-24-02000R	NEW-E	86-16-083	220-44-05000W	NEW-E	86-08-104
212-52-018	NEW	86-11-038	220-28-01000A	NEW-E	86-17-008	220-44-05000X	NEW-E	86-18-007
212-52-020	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-28-601	NEW-E	86-15-017	220-44-05000Y	REP-E	86-18-008
212-52-020	AMD	86-11-038	220-28-601	REP-E	86-15-055	220-47-262	NEW-E	86-18-008
212-52-025	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-28-602	NEW-E	86-15-055	220-47-262	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-025	AMD	86-11-038	220-28-602	REP-E	86-16-015	220-47-262	AMD-C	86-13-037
212-52-027	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-28-603	NEW-E	86-16-015	220-47-262	AMD	86-13-038
212-52-027	AMD	86-11-038	220-28-603	REP-E	86-16-032	220-47-301	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-028	NEW-P	86-08-064	220-28-604	NEW-E	86-16-032	220-47-301	AMD-C	86-13-037
212-52-028	NEW	86-11-038	220-28-604	REP-E	86-16-050	220-47-301	AMD	86-13-038
212-52-030	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-28-605	NEW-E	86-16-050	220-47-307	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-030	AMD	86-11-038	220-28-605	REP-E	86-17-011	220-47-307	AMD-C	86-13-037
212-52-037	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-28-606	NEW-E	86-17-011	220-47-311	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-037	AMD	86-11-038	220-28-606	REP-E	86-17-042	220-47-311	AMD-C	86-13-037
212-52-040	REP-P	86-08-064	220-28-607	NEW-E	86-17-042	220-47-311	AMD	86-13-038
212-52-040	REP	86-11-038	220-28-607	REP-E	86-18-047	220-47-312	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-041	NEW-P	86-08-064	220-28-608	NEW-E	86-18-047	220-47-312	AMD-C	86-13-037
212-52-041	NEW	86-11-038	220-32-02000A	NEW-E	86-07-035	220-47-312	AMD	86-13-038
212-52-045	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-02000B	NEW-E	86-14-012	220-47-313	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-045	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-021	AMD-P	86-05-040	220-47-313	AMD-C	86-13-037
212-52-050	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-021	AMD	86-08-039	220-47-313	AMD	86-13-038
212-52-050	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-02200P	NEW-E	86-04-017	220-47-401	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-055	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-02200Q	NEW-E	86-16-005	220-47-401	AMD-C	86-13-037
212-52-055	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-02200Q	REP-E	86-16-031	220-47-401	AMD	86-13-038
212-52-060	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-02200R	NEW-E	86-06-013	220-47-402	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-060	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-03000Y	NEW-E	86-14-012	220-47-402	AMD-C	86-13-037
212-52-065	REP-P	86-08-064	220-32-03000Z	NEW-E	86-12-013	220-47-402	AMD	86-13-038
212-52-065	REP	86-11-038	220-32-04100I	NEW-E	86-05-040	220-47-403	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-070	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-042	REP-P	86-08-039	220-47-403	AMD-C	86-13-037
212-52-070	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-042	REP	86-14-012	220-47-403	AMD	86-13-038
212-52-075	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-05100W	NEW-E	86-17-043	220-47-411	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-075	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-05100W	REP-E	86-17-043	220-47-411	AMD-C	86-13-037
212-52-080	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-05100X	NEW-E	86-17-043	220-47-411	AMD	86-13-038
212-52-080	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-05100X	REP-E	86-18-076	220-47-412	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-085	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-05100Y	NEW-E	86-18-076	220-47-412	AMD-C	86-13-037
212-52-085	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-05500Q	NEW-E	86-11-050	220-47-412	AMD	86-13-038
212-52-090	AMD-P	86-08-064	220-32-05500Q	REP-E	86-12-014	220-47-413	AMD-P	86-08-103
212-52-090	AMD	86-11-038	220-32-05500P	NEW-E	86-12-014	220-47-413	AMD-C	86-13-037

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
220-47-413	AMD	86-13-038	220-56-24000C	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57-290	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-47-414	AMD-P	86-08-103	220-56-295	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-290	AMD	86-09-020
220-47-414	AMD-C	86-13-037	220-56-295	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-29000H	NEW-E	86-11-017
220-47-414	AMD	86-13-038	220-56-29500B	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57-31500E	NEW-E	86-09-018
220-47-701	NEW-E	86-16-016	220-56-29500B	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57-31500E	REP-E	86-14-024
220-47-701	REP-E	86-16-051	220-56-305	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-319	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-47-702	NEW-E	86-16-051	220-56-305	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-319	AMD	86-09-020
220-47-702	REP-E	86-17-010	220-56-30500B	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57-31900B	NEW-E	86-08-065
220-47-703	NEW-E	86-17-010	220-56-30500B	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57-31900B	REP-E	86-14-024
220-47-703	REP-E	86-17-041	220-56-310	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-335	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-47-704	REP-E	86-17-041	220-56-310	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-335	AMD	86-09-020
220-47-704	REP-E	86-18-013	220-56-31000G	NEW-E	86-16-014	220-57-350	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-47-705	NEW-E	86-18-013	220-56-312	NEW-C	86-03-089	220-57-350	AMD	86-09-020
220-47-705	REP-E	86-18-021	220-56-312	NEW	86-09-020	220-57-38500I	NEW-E	86-11-051
220-47-706	NEW-E	86-18-021	220-56-31200A	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57-38500I	REP-E	86-14-024
220-47-706	REP-E	86-18-046	220-56-31200A	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57-38500J	NEW-E	86-15-056
220-47-707	NEW-E	86-18-046	220-56-325	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-42500H	NEW-E	86-14-058
220-47-707	REP-E	86-18-062	220-56-325	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-435	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-47-708	NEW-E	86-18-062	220-56-32500H	NEW-E	86-11-042	220-57-435	AMD	86-09-020
220-47-708	REP-E	86-18-077	220-56-330	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-450	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-47-709	NEW-E	86-18-077	220-56-330	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-450	AMD	86-09-020
220-48-01500T	NEW-E	86-03-044	220-56-335	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-455	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-48-01500T	REP-E	86-05-012	220-56-335	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-455	AMD	86-09-020
220-48-01500U	NEW-E	86-05-012	220-56-340	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-46000P	NEW-E	86-11-051
220-48-01500U	REP-E	86-06-025	220-56-340	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-46000P	REP-E	86-13-013
220-48-01500V	NEW-E	86-06-025	220-56-350	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-46000Q	NEW-E	86-13-013
220-49-02000S	NEW-E	86-09-042	220-56-350	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-49700B	NEW-E	86-12-074
220-52-010	AMD-P	86-15-086	220-56-35000B	NEW-E	86-06-026	220-57-50500K	NEW-E	86-10-028
220-52-03000C	NEW-E	86-09-010	220-56-36000L	NEW-E	86-05-024	220-57-51500A	NEW-E	86-09-018
220-52-05300Q	NEW-E	86-11-042	220-56-365	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-51500A	REP-E	86-14-024
220-52-060	AMD-P	86-15-086	220-56-365	AMD	86-09-020	220-57A-001	NEW-C	86-03-089
220-52-069	AMD-P	86-05-002	220-56-380	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57A-001	NEW	86-09-020
220-52-069	AMD	86-08-056	220-56-380	AMD	86-09-020	220-57A-00100C	NEW-E	86-08-065
220-52-073	AMD-P	86-16-021	220-56-382	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57A-00100C	REP-E	86-14-024
220-52-07300E	NEW-E	86-10-026	220-56-382	AMD	86-09-020	220-57A-012	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-52-074	AMD-P	86-16-021	220-56-38200A	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57A-012	AMD	86-09-020
220-52-07500A	NEW-E	86-16-014	220-56-38200A	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57A-015	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-100	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-56-400	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57A-015	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-100	AMD	86-09-020	220-56-400	AMD	86-09-020	220-57A-017	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-10000B	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-56-40000B	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57A-017	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-10000B	REP-E	86-14-024	220-56-40000B	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57A-035	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-12000A	NEW-E	86-16-006	220-57-001	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57A-035	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-150	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-001	AMD	86-09-020	220-57A-037	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-150	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-13000I	NEW-E	86-15-056	220-57A-037	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-15000A	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57-13500H	NEW-E	86-15-056	220-57A-040	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-15000A	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57-138	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57A-040	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-16000Z	NEW-E	86-08-047	220-57-138	AMD	86-09-020	220-57A-045	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-16000Z	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57-140	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57A-045	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-180	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-140	AMD	86-09-020	220-57A-080	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-180	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-15500F	NEW-E	86-13-013	220-57A-080	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-18000S	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57-160	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57A-110	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-18000S	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57-160	AMD	86-09-020	220-57A-110	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-18000T	NEW-E	86-06-031	220-57-16000A	NEW-E	86-16-022	220-57A-112	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-190	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-16000B	NEW-E	86-17-028	220-57A-112	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-190	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-16000B	REP-E	86-17-044	220-57A-120	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-19000A	NEW-E	86-14-024	220-57-16000C	NEW-E	86-17-044	220-57A-120	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-19000A	REP-E	86-17-009	220-57-16000C	REP-E	86-18-045	220-57A-140	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-19000B	NEW-E	86-17-009	220-57-16000D	NEW-E	86-18-045	220-57A-140	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-19000B	REP-E	86-17-029	220-57-16000D	REP-E	86-18-074	220-57A-152	AMD-C	86-03-089
220-56-19000C	NEW-E	86-17-029	220-57-16000E	NEW-E	86-18-074	220-57A-152	AMD	86-09-020
220-56-19000C	REP-E	86-17-051	220-57-16000Z	NEW-E	86-14-011	220-57A-183	NEW-C	86-03-089
220-56-19000D	NEW-E	86-17-051	220-57-16000Z	REP-E	86-16-022	220-57A-183	NEW	86-09-020
220-56-19000D	REP-E	86-18-074	220-57-175	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57A-18300A	NEW-E	86-16-022
220-56-19000E	NEW-E	86-18-074	220-57-175	AMD	86-09-020	220-57A-185	AMD-P	86-05-039
220-56-19000Z	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57-17500P	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57A-185	AMD	86-08-040
220-56-19000Z	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57-17500P	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57A-190	AMD-P	86-05-039
220-56-195	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-200	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57A-190	AMD	86-08-040
220-56-195	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-200	AMD	86-09-020	220-69-220	AMD-P	86-15-086
220-56-19500D	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57-220	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-69-234	AMD-P	86-15-086
220-56-19500D	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57-220	AMD	86-09-020	220-69-23402	AMD-P	86-15-086
220-56-205	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-235	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-69-23402A	NEW-E	86-10-027
220-56-205	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-235	AMD	86-09-020	220-69-235	REP-P	86-15-086
220-56-20500A	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57-24200A	NEW-E	86-13-039	220-69-23501	REP-P	86-15-086
220-56-20500A	REP-E	86-14-024	220-57-260	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-69-240	AMD-P	86-15-086
220-56-240	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-57-260	AMD	86-09-020	220-69-241	AMD-P	86-15-086
220-56-240	AMD	86-09-020	220-57-270	AMD-C	86-03-089	220-69-242	AMD-P	86-15-086
220-56-24000C	NEW-E	86-08-065	220-57-27000Q	NEW-E	86-18-075	220-69-243	NEW-P	86-15-086

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
220-69-250	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-20-010	AMD	86-09-036	232-16-670	REP	86-18-010
220-69-254	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-20-064	AMD-P	86-07-043	232-28-108	REP-P	86-12-054
220-69-25402	REP-P	86-15-086	230-20-064	AMD-C	86-13-054	232-28-108	REP	86-16-028
220-69-255	REP-P	86-15-086	230-20-064	AMD-C	86-17-055	232-28-109	NEW-P	86-12-054
220-69-25501	REP-P	86-15-086	230-20-100	AMD-P	86-05-044	232-28-109	NEW	86-16-028
220-69-260	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-20-100	AMD	86-09-036	232-28-210	REP-P	86-09-084
220-69-26000A	NEW-E	86-08-024	230-20-240	AMD-P	86-05-044	232-28-210	REP	86-16-020
220-69-26000B	NEW-E	86-14-028	230-20-240	AMD	86-09-036	232-28-211	NEW-P	86-05-050
220-69-262	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-20-246	AMD-P	86-05-044	232-28-211	NEW-W	86-06-027
220-69-264	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-20-246	AMD	86-09-036	232-28-212	NEW-P	86-09-084
220-69-26401	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-30-050	AMD	86-07-037	232-28-212	NEW	86-16-020
220-69-26402	REP-P	86-15-086	230-40-010	AMD-P	86-15-059	232-28-212	NEW-E	86-16-027
220-69-265	REP-P	86-15-086	230-40-055	AMD-P	86-11-005	232-28-21201	NEW-P	86-17-095
220-69-26501	REP-P	86-15-086	230-40-055	AMD-C	86-15-026	232-28-409	REP-P	86-14-106
220-69-272	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-40-055	AMD	86-17-057	232-28-409	REP	86-18-020
220-69-273	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-40-070	AMD-P	86-09-040	232-28-410	NEW-P	86-14-106
220-69-274	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-40-070	AMD	86-13-055	232-28-410	NEW	86-18-020
220-69-280	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-40-120	AMD-P	86-11-005	232-28-508	REP-P	86-12-053
220-69-300	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-40-120	AMD	86-15-025	232-28-508	REP	86-18-019
220-76-010	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-40-310	AMD-P	86-09-040	232-28-509	NEW-P	86-12-053
220-76-01000A	NEW-E	86-10-027	230-40-310	AMD	86-13-055	232-28-509	NEW	86-18-019
220-76-015	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-40-400	AMD-P	86-11-005	232-28-61423	NEW-E	86-05-051
220-76-01500A	NEW-E	86-10-027	230-46-010	AMD-P	86-03-035	232-28-615	REP-P	86-14-102
220-76-016	REP-P	86-15-086	230-46-010	AMD	86-08-007	232-28-61502	NEW-E	86-03-002
220-76-020	AMD-P	86-15-086	230-46-020	AMD-P	86-03-035	232-28-61506	NEW-E	86-03-018
220-76-02000A	NEW-E	86-10-027	230-46-020	AMD	86-08-007	232-28-61507	NEW-E	86-07-030
220-76-025	REP-P	86-15-086	230-46-030	REP-P	86-03-035	232-28-61508	NEW-E	86-06-029
222-34-010	AMD-P	86-17-079	230-46-030	REP	86-07-044	232-28-61508	NEW-E	86-12-047
222-34-022	AMD-P	86-17-079	230-46-040	REP-P	86-03-035	232-28-61508	NEW-E	86-18-044
222-34-030	AMD-P	86-17-079	230-46-040	REP	86-07-044	232-28-61509	NEW-E	86-08-060
222-34-050	AMD-P	86-17-079	230-46-050	REP-P	86-03-035	232-28-61510	NEW-E	86-08-061
230-02-020	AMD-P	86-11-005	230-46-050	REP	86-07-044	232-28-61511	NEW-E	86-09-071
230-02-020	AMD	86-15-025	230-46-060	REP-P	86-03-035	232-28-61511	NEW-P	86-09-083
230-02-110	AMD-P	86-15-027	230-46-060	REP	86-07-044	232-28-61511	NEW	86-12-046
230-02-120	AMD-P	86-15-027	230-46-100	NEW-P	86-05-045	232-28-61511	REP-P	86-17-053
230-02-125	NEW-P	86-15-027	230-46-100	NEW-P	86-06-001	232-28-61512	NEW-E	86-13-041
230-02-130	AMD-P	86-15-027	230-46-100	NEW-C	86-11-004	232-28-61513	NEW-E	86-16-029
230-02-135	NEW-P	86-15-027	230-46-100	NEW-C	86-13-054	232-28-61514	NEW-E	86-18-061
230-02-270	AMD-P	86-15-027	230-46-110	NEW-P	86-05-045	232-28-61515	NEW-E	86-16-030
230-02-350	AMD-P	86-11-005	230-46-110	NEW-P	86-07-036	232-28-616	NEW-P	86-14-102
230-02-350	AMD-C	86-15-026	230-46-110	NEW-C	86-11-004	232-28-707	REP	86-06-028
230-02-350	AMD-P	86-15-027	230-46-110	NEW-C	86-13-054	232-28-708	NEW	86-06-028
230-02-350	AMD	86-17-057	230-46-120	NEW-P	86-05-045	232-28-807	REP-P	86-05-048
230-02-360	NEW-P	86-15-027	230-46-120	NEW-C	86-11-004	232-28-807	REP	86-12-045
230-02-370	NEW-P	86-15-027	230-46-140	NEW-P	86-05-045	232-28-808	NEW-P	86-05-048
230-02-380	NEW-P	86-15-027	230-46-140	NEW-C	86-11-004	232-28-808	NEW	86-12-045
230-04-060	AMD-P	86-09-040	230-46-140	NEW-C	86-13-054	240-10-010	AMD-P	86-05-023
230-04-060	AMD-P	86-13-053	232-12-001	AMD-P	86-14-102	240-10-010	AMD	86-08-070
230-04-060	AMD	86-17-057	232-12-001	AMD-P	86-17-053	240-10-030	AMD-P	86-05-023
230-04-201	AMD-P	86-07-043	232-12-04506	NEW-E	86-03-017	240-10-030	AMD	86-08-070
230-04-201	AMD-P	86-09-040	232-12-04507	NEW-E	86-04-021	240-10-040	AMD-P	86-05-023
230-04-201	AMD-C	86-13-054	232-12-091	AMD-P	86-05-047	240-10-040	AMD	86-08-070
230-04-201	AMD	86-13-055	232-12-091	AMD	86-09-023	240-10-055	NEW-P	86-05-023
230-04-201	AMD-C	86-17-055	232-12-167	REP-P	86-14-102	240-10-055	NEW	86-08-070
230-04-900	NEW-P	86-09-040	232-12-167	REP-P	86-17-053	248-14-235	AMD-P	86-16-039
230-04-900	NEW	86-13-055	232-12-168	NEW-P	86-14-102	248-14-240	AMD-P	86-16-039
230-08-010	AMD	86-07-037	232-12-168	NEW-P	86-17-053	248-16-900	AMD-P	86-03-070
230-08-010	AMD-P	86-15-027	232-12-189	AMD	86-03-054	248-16-900	AMD	86-08-002
230-08-080	AMD-P	86-05-044	232-12-241	AMD	86-03-055	248-16-999	AMD-P	86-03-070
230-08-080	AMD	86-09-036	232-12-241	AMD-P	86-14-103	248-16-999	AMD	86-08-002
230-08-100	AMD-P	86-09-040	232-12-241	AMD-W	86-16-035	248-18-001	AMD-P	86-03-070
230-08-100	AMD-P	86-10-042	232-12-241	AMD-P	86-17-052	248-18-001	AMD	86-08-002
230-08-100	AMD	86-13-055	232-12-292	NEW-P	86-17-096	248-18-010	AMD-P	86-03-070
230-08-100	REP-P	86-15-027	232-12-804	AMD	86-03-052	248-18-010	AMD	86-08-002
230-08-130	AMD-P	86-15-027	232-12-806	REP	86-03-053	248-18-040	AMD-P	86-05-005
230-08-160	AMD-P	86-15-027	232-12-807	NEW	86-03-053	248-18-040	AMD	86-08-086
230-08-165	NEW-P	86-11-005	232-12-809	AMD-P	86-05-049	248-18-245	AMD-P	86-03-070
230-08-165	NEW-C	86-15-026	232-12-809	AMD	86-09-024	248-18-245	AMD	86-08-002
230-08-165	NEW-C	86-17-054	232-16-289	REP-P	86-14-105	248-18-515	AMD-P	86-03-070
230-12-040	AMD-P	86-09-040	232-16-289	REP	86-18-010	248-18-515	AMD	86-08-002
230-12-040	AMD	86-13-055	232-16-380	AMD-P	86-14-104	248-18-718	AMD-P	86-03-070
230-12-240	NEW-P	86-13-053	232-16-380	AMD-W	86-17-004	248-18-718	AMD	86-08-002
230-12-310	AMD-P	86-09-040	232-16-630	REP-P	86-14-105	248-18-999	AMD-P	86-03-070
230-12-310	AMD-P	86-13-053	232-16-630	REP	86-18-010	248-18-999	AMD	86-08-002
230-12-310	AMD-P	86-14-076	232-16-650	REP-P	86-14-105	248-19-200	REP	86-06-030
230-12-310	AMD-P	86-17-056	232-16-650	REP	86-18-010	248-19-210	AMD	86-06-030
230-20-010	AMD-P	86-05-044	232-16-670	REP-P	86-14-105	248-19-220	AMD	86-06-030

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
248-19-230	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-010	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-240	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-010	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-260	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-020	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-270	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-020	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-280	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-030	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-290	REP	86-06-030	250-61-030	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-295	NEW	86-06-030	250-61-040	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-300	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-040	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-310	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-050	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-320	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-050	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-325	REP	86-06-030	250-61-060	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-326	NEW	86-06-030	250-61-060	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-327	NEW	86-06-030	250-61-070	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-330	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-070	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-340	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-080	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-350	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-080	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-373	AMD-P	86-09-049	250-61-090	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-373	AMD	86-12-044	250-61-090	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-400	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-100	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-403	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-100	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-405	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-110	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-410	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-110	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-415	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-120	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-420	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-120	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-430	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-130	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-440	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-130	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-450	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-140	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-460	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-140	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-470	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-150	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-19-475	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-150	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-19-480	AMD	86-06-030	250-61-160	NEW-P	86-13-067
248-21-002	AMD-P	86-03-070	250-61-160	NEW-E	86-18-017
248-21-002	AMD	86-08-002	251-01-005	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-29-001	AMD	86-04-031	251-01-005	NEW	86-09-078
248-29-010	AMD	86-04-031	251-01-010	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-29-020	AMD	86-04-031	251-01-010	NEW	86-09-078
248-29-030	AMD	86-04-031	251-01-015	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-29-040	AMD	86-04-031	251-01-015	NEW	86-09-078
248-29-050	AMD	86-04-031	251-01-020	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-29-060	AMD	86-04-031	251-01-020	NEW	86-09-078
248-29-070	AMD	86-04-031	251-01-025	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-29-080	AMD	86-04-031	251-01-025	NEW	86-09-078
248-29-090	AMD	86-04-031	251-01-030	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-40-040	AMD-P	86-10-074	251-01-030	NEW	86-09-078
248-40-040	AMD	86-14-008	251-01-035	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-40-050	AMD-P	86-10-074	251-01-035	NEW	86-09-078
248-40-050	AMD	86-14-008	251-01-040	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-100-175	REP	86-05-013	251-01-040	NEW	86-09-078
248-140-010	AMD-P	86-03-070	251-01-045	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-140-010	AMD	86-08-002	251-01-045	NEW	86-09-078
248-140-140	AMD-P	86-03-070	251-01-050	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-140-140	AMD	86-08-002	251-01-050	NEW	86-09-078
248-140-150	AMD-P	86-03-070	251-01-055	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-140-150	AMD	86-08-002	251-01-055	NEW	86-09-078
248-140-220	AMD-P	86-03-070	251-01-060	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-140-220	AMD	86-08-002	251-01-060	NEW	86-09-078
248-554-001	AMD-P	86-18-064	251-01-065	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-554-001	AMD-E	86-18-065	251-01-065	NEW	86-09-078
248-554-005	AMD-P	86-18-064	251-01-070	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-554-005	AMD-E	86-18-065	251-01-070	NEW	86-09-078
248-554-010	AMD-P	86-18-064	251-01-075	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-554-010	AMD-E	86-18-065	251-01-075	NEW	86-09-078
248-554-015	AMD-P	86-18-064	251-01-080	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-554-015	AMD-E	86-18-065	251-01-080	NEW	86-09-078
248-554-018	NEW-P	86-18-064	251-01-085	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-554-018	NEW-E	86-18-065	251-01-085	NEW	86-09-078
248-554-020	AMD-P	86-18-064	251-01-100	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-554-020	AMD-E	86-18-065	251-01-100	NEW	86-09-078
248-554-030	AMD-P	86-18-064	251-01-105	NEW-P	86-06-052
248-554-030	AMD-E	86-18-065	251-01-105	NEW	86-09-078
250-20-021	AMD-P	86-09-033	251-01-110	NEW-P	86-06-052
250-20-021	AMD-E	86-09-034	251-01-110	NEW	86-09-078
250-20-021	AMD	86-12-077	251-01-115	NEW-P	86-06-052
250-40-050	AMD-E	86-04-038	251-01-115	NEW	86-09-078
250-40-050	AMD-E	86-07-041	251-01-120	NEW-P	86-06-052
250-40-050	AMD-P	86-07-042	251-01-120	NEW	86-09-078
250-40-050	AMD	86-10-014	251-01-125	NEW-P	86-06-052
251-01-125	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-130	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-130	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-135	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-135	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-140	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-140	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-145	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-145	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-150	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-150	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-155	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-155	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-160	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-160	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-165	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-165	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-170	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-170	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-175	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-175	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-180	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-180	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-185	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-185	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-190	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-190	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-195	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-195	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-200	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-200	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-205	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-205	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-210	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-210	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-215	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-215	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-220	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-220	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-225	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-225	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-230	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-230	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-235	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-235	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-240	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-240	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-245	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-245	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-250	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-250	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-255	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-255	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-260	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-260	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-265	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-265	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-270	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-270	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-275	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-275	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-280	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-280	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-285	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-285	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-290	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-290	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-295	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-295	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-300	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-300	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-305	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-305	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-310	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-310	NEW	86-09-078			
251-01-315	NEW-P	86-06-052			
251-01-315	NEW	86-09-078			

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
251-01-320	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-10-115	NEW-W	86-08-091
251-01-320	NEW	86-09-078	251-10-120	AMD-W	86-08-091
251-01-325	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-050	AMD-P	86-04-077
251-01-325	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-050	AMD-P	86-04-078
251-01-330	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-050	AMD-C	86-08-038
251-01-330	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-050	AMD	86-09-076
251-01-335	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-060	AMD-P	86-04-078
251-01-335	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-060	AMD-C	86-08-038
251-01-340	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-060	AMD	86-09-076
251-01-340	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-080	AMD-W	86-08-091
251-01-345	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-080	AMD-P	86-10-064
251-01-345	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-080	AMD-P	86-10-065
251-01-350	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-080	AMD	86-14-042
251-01-350	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-082	NEW-W	86-08-091
251-01-355	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-082	NEW-P	86-10-064
251-01-355	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-082	NEW	86-14-042
251-01-360	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-083	NEW-W	86-08-091
251-01-360	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-083	NEW-P	86-10-064
251-01-365	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-083	NEW	86-14-042
251-01-365	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-084	NEW-W	86-08-091
251-01-370	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-084	NEW-P	86-10-065
251-01-370	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-085	NEW-W	86-08-091
251-01-375	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-085	NEW-P	86-10-064
251-01-375	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-085	NEW	86-14-042
251-01-380	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-086	NEW-W	86-08-091
251-01-380	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-086	NEW-P	86-10-064
251-01-385	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-086	NEW	86-14-042
251-01-385	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-087	NEW-W	86-08-091
251-01-390	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-087	NEW-P	86-10-064
251-01-390	NEW	86-09-078	251-14-087	NEW	86-14-042
251-01-395	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-14-090	AMD-W	86-08-091
251-01-395	NEW	86-09-078	251-18-035	AMD	86-06-034
251-01-400	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-18-041	AMD	86-03-081
251-01-400	NEW	86-09-078	251-18-060	AMD	86-06-034
251-01-405	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-18-180	AMD	86-03-081
251-01-405	NEW	86-09-078	251-18-240	AMD	86-06-034
251-01-410	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-18-250	REP	86-06-034
251-01-410	NEW	86-09-078	251-18-390	REP	86-06-034
251-01-415	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-22-040	AMD-P	86-04-079
251-01-415	NEW	86-09-078	251-22-040	AMD	86-08-037
251-01-420	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-22-240	AMD-P	86-15-028
251-01-420	NEW	86-09-078	251-23-010	NEW	86-06-034
251-01-425	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-23-020	NEW	86-06-034
251-01-425	NEW	86-09-078	251-23-030	NEW	86-06-034
251-01-430	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-23-040	NEW	86-06-034
251-01-430	NEW	86-09-078	251-23-050	NEW	86-06-034
251-01-435	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-23-060	NEW	86-06-034
251-01-435	NEW	86-09-078	251-25-010	NEW-P	86-10-066
251-01-440	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-25-010	NEW-E	86-12-037
251-01-440	NEW	86-09-078	251-25-010	NEW	86-14-041
251-01-445	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-25-020	NEW-P	86-10-066
251-01-445	NEW	86-09-078	251-25-020	NEW-E	86-12-037
251-01-450	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-25-020	NEW	86-14-041
251-01-450	NEW	86-09-078	251-25-030	NEW-P	86-10-066
251-01-455	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-25-030	NEW-E	86-12-037
251-01-455	NEW	86-09-078	251-25-030	NEW	86-14-041
251-01-460	NEW-P	86-06-052	251-25-040	NEW-P	86-10-066
251-01-460	NEW	86-09-078	251-25-040	NEW-E	86-12-037
251-04-020	AMD	86-03-081	251-25-040	NEW	86-14-041
251-04-020	AMD-P	86-04-076	251-25-050	NEW-P	86-10-066
251-04-020	AMD	86-06-034	251-25-050	NEW-E	86-12-037
251-04-020	REP-P	86-06-052	251-25-050	NEW	86-14-041
251-04-020	REP	86-09-078	254-20-010	NEW-P	86-17-090
251-04-050	AMD-P	86-06-052	254-20-010	NEW-E	86-17-091
251-04-050	AMD	86-09-077	254-20-020	NEW-P	86-17-090
251-09-020	AMD-W	86-08-091	254-20-020	NEW-E	86-17-091
251-09-030	AMD-W	86-08-091	254-20-030	NEW-P	86-17-090
251-09-030	AMD-P	86-08-102	254-20-030	NEW-E	86-17-091
251-09-030	AMD	86-12-006	254-20-040	NEW-P	86-17-090
251-10-025	AMD-P	86-10-066	254-20-040	NEW-E	86-17-091
251-10-025	AMD-E	86-12-037	254-20-050	NEW-P	86-17-090
251-10-025	AMD	86-14-041	254-20-050	NEW-E	86-17-091
251-10-105	NEW	86-06-033	254-20-060	NEW-P	86-17-090
251-10-110	AMD-C	86-04-011	254-20-060	NEW-E	86-17-091
251-10-110	AMD	86-06-033	254-20-070	NEW-P	86-17-090
251-10-110	AMD-W	86-08-091	254-20-070	NEW-E	86-17-091
251-10-111	NEW	86-06-033	254-20-080	NEW-P	86-17-090
254-20-080	NEW-E	86-17-091			
254-20-090	NEW-P	86-17-090			
254-20-090	NEW-E	86-17-091			
254-20-100	NEW-P	86-17-090			
254-20-100	NEW-E	86-17-091			
254-20-110	NEW-P	86-17-090			
254-20-110	NEW-E	86-17-091			
254-20-120	NEW-P	86-17-090			
254-20-120	NEW-E	86-17-091			
260-12-160	AMD-P	86-04-042			
260-13-010	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-010	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-020	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-020	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-020	AMD-P	86-15-082			
260-13-030	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-030	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-040	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-050	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-050	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-060	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-060	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-070	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-070	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-080	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-080	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-090	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-090	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-100	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-100	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-110	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-110	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-120	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-120	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-130	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-140	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-150	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-160	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-160	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-160	AMD-P	86-15-082			
260-13-170	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-170	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-180	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-180	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-190	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-190	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-190	AMD-P	86-15-082			
260-13-200	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-200	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-210	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-210	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-220	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-220	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-230	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-230	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-240	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-240	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-250	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-250	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-260	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-260	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-270	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-270	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-280	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-280	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-290	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-290	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-300	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-300	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-310	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-310	NEW	86-13-056			
260-13-320	NEW-P	86-09-092			
260-13-320	NEW	86-13-056			

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
260-13-330	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-20-090	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-16-030	AMD-E	86-14-072
260-13-330	NEW	86-13-056	261-20-090	AMD	86-11-041	275-16-030	AMD	86-17-075
260-13-330	AMD-P	86-15-082	261-40-135	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-26-020	AMD-E	86-04-074
260-13-340	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-135	AMD	86-11-041	275-26-020	AMD-P	86-04-075
260-13-340	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-140	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-26-020	AMD	86-08-003
260-13-350	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-140	AMD	86-11-041	275-27	AMD-E	86-14-046
260-13-350	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-145	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-27	AMD-P	86-14-060
260-13-360	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-145	AMD	86-11-041	275-27	AMD	86-18-049
260-13-360	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-150	AMD-P	86-10-060	275-27-050	AMD-E	86-14-046
260-13-370	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-150	AMD	86-15-018	275-27-050	AMD-P	86-14-060
260-13-370	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-170	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-27-050	AMD	86-18-049
260-13-380	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-170	AMD	86-11-041	275-27-060	AMD-E	86-14-046
260-13-380	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-200	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-27-060	AMD-P	86-14-060
260-13-390	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-200	AMD	86-11-041	275-27-060	AMD	86-18-049
260-13-390	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-200	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-27-060	REP-E	86-14-046
260-13-400	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-201	AMD-C	86-11-040	275-27-210	REP-P	86-14-060
260-13-400	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-201	AMD	86-13-052	275-27-210	REP	86-18-049
260-13-410	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-220	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-27-220	NEW-E	86-14-046
260-13-410	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-220	AMD	86-11-041	275-27-220	NEW-P	86-14-060
260-13-420	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-250	NEW-P	86-08-077	275-27-220	NEW	86-18-049
260-13-420	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-250	NEW	86-11-041	275-27-230	AMD-E	86-14-046
260-13-430	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-315	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-27-230	AMD-P	86-14-060
260-13-430	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-315	AMD	86-11-041	275-27-230	AMD	86-18-049
260-13-440	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-400	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-27-400	AMD-E	86-14-046
260-13-440	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-400	AMD	86-11-041	275-27-400	AMD-P	86-14-060
260-13-450	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-405	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-27-400	AMD	86-18-049
260-13-450	NEW	86-13-056	261-40-405	AMD	86-11-041	275-27-500	AMD-E	86-14-046
260-13-460	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-410	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-27-500	AMD-P	86-14-060
260-13-460	NEW-P	86-15-086	261-40-410	AMD	86-11-041	275-27-500	AMD	86-18-049
260-13-470	NEW-P	86-09-092	261-40-435	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-38-555	AMD-P	86-14-059
260-13-470	NEW-P	86-15-086	261-40-435	AMD	86-11-041	275-38-555	AMD-E	86-14-073
260-13-480	NEW-P	86-15-086	261-40-470	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-38-555	AMD	86-18-002
260-13-490	NEW-P	86-15-086	261-40-470	AMD	86-11-041	275-38-860	AMD-P	86-14-059
260-13-500	NEW-P	86-15-086	261-40-480	AMD-P	86-08-077	275-38-860	AMD-E	86-14-073
260-16-040	AMD-P	86-04-042	261-40-480	AMD	86-11-041	275-38-860	AMD	86-18-002
260-16-040	AMD-P	86-15-082	261-40-485	AMD-P	86-08-077	284-19-200	AMD-P	86-17-067
260-16-050	NEW-P	86-04-042	261-40-485	AMD	86-11-041	284-20-100	NEW-P	86-15-085
260-16-050	NEW-P	86-15-082	261-40-490	AMD-P	86-08-077	284-20-100	NEW-C	86-18-042
260-16-060	NEW-P	86-15-082	261-40-490	AMD	86-11-041	284-24-060	AMD-P	86-15-085
260-16-070	NEW-P	86-15-082	261-50-030	AMD-P	86-10-046	284-24-060	AMD-C	86-18-042
260-16-080	NEW-P	86-15-082	261-50-030	AMD	86-14-081	284-24-080	AMD-P	86-15-085
260-36-020	AMD-P	86-04-042	261-50-040	AMD-P	86-10-046	284-24-080	AMD-C	86-18-042
260-36-020	AMD-E	86-05-017	261-50-040	AMD	86-14-081	284-53-010	NEW-P	86-14-112
260-36-020	AMD	86-09-072	261-50-045	AMD-P	86-10-046	284-53-010	NEW	86-18-027
260-36-030	AMD-P	86-04-042	261-50-045	AMD	86-14-081	284-78-010	NEW-E	86-14-069
260-36-030	AMD-E	86-05-017	261-50-090	AMD-P	86-10-046	284-78-010	NEW-P	86-15-062
260-36-030	AMD	86-09-072	261-50-090	AMD	86-14-081	284-78-010	NEW	86-18-043
260-36-040	AMD-P	86-04-042	263-12-007	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-020	NEW-E	86-14-069
260-36-040	AMD-E	86-05-017	263-12-015	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-020	NEW-P	86-15-062
260-36-040	AMD	86-09-072	263-12-016	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-020	NEW	86-18-043
260-36-080	AMD-P	86-04-042	263-12-017	NEW	86-03-021	284-78-030	NEW-E	86-14-069
260-36-080	AMD-E	86-05-017	263-12-018	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-030	NEW-P	86-15-062
260-36-080	AMD	86-09-072	263-12-019	NEW	86-03-021	284-78-030	NEW	86-18-043
260-40-100	AMD-P	86-04-042	263-12-050	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-040	NEW-E	86-14-069
260-40-100	AMD-E	86-05-017	263-12-056	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-040	NEW-P	86-15-062
260-40-100	AMD	86-09-072	263-12-060	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-040	NEW	86-18-043
260-48-035	NEW-P	86-04-042	263-12-098	NEW-C	86-03-023	284-78-050	NEW-E	86-14-069
260-48-035	NEW-E	86-05-017	263-12-098	NEW-W	86-05-007	284-78-050	NEW-P	86-15-062
260-48-035	NEW	86-09-072	263-12-125	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-050	NEW	86-18-043
260-70-010	AMD-P	86-04-042	263-12-145	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-060	NEW-E	86-14-069
260-70-010	AMD	86-09-072	263-12-145	AMD-E	86-03-022	284-78-060	NEW-P	86-15-062
260-72-010	AMD-P	86-15-082	263-12-150	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-060	NEW	86-18-043
261-02-050	NEW-P	86-08-077	263-12-150	AMD-E	86-03-022	284-78-070	NEW-E	86-14-069
261-02-050	NEW	86-11-041	263-12-170	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-070	NEW-P	86-15-062
261-02-060	NEW-P	86-08-077	263-12-180	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-070	NEW	86-18-043
261-02-060	NEW	86-11-041	263-12-190	AMD	86-03-021	284-78-080	NEW-E	86-14-069
261-10-080	AMD-P	86-08-077	263-16-005	REP	86-03-021	284-78-080	NEW-P	86-15-062
261-10-080	AMD	86-11-041	263-16-010	REP	86-03-021	284-78-080	NEW	86-18-043
261-12-090	NEW-P	86-08-077	263-16-020	REP	86-03-021	284-78-090	NEW-E	86-14-069
261-12-090	NEW	86-11-041	263-16-030	REP	86-03-021	284-78-090	NEW-P	86-15-062
261-14-090	NEW-P	86-08-077	263-16-040	REP	86-03-021	284-78-090	NEW	86-18-043
261-14-090	NEW	86-11-041	263-16-050	REP	86-03-021	284-78-100	NEW-E	86-14-069
261-20-040	AMD-P	86-08-077	263-16-060	REP	86-03-021	284-78-100	NEW-P	86-15-062
261-20-040	AMD	86-11-041	263-16-070	REP	86-03-021	284-78-100	NEW	86-18-043
261-20-045	AMD-P	86-08-077	263-16-080	REP	86-03-021	284-78-110	NEW-E	86-14-069
261-20-045	AMD-C	86-11-040	263-16-090	REP	86-03-021	284-78-110	NEW-P	86-15-062
261-20-045	AMD	86-13-052	275-16-030	AMD-P	86-14-010	284-78-110	NEW	86-18-043

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
284-78-120	NEW-E	86-14-069	296-15-100	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-911	AMD	86-06-018
284-78-120	NEW-P	86-15-062	296-15-110	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-911	AMD-E	86-07-011
284-78-120	NEW	86-18-043	296-15-110	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-914	AMD	86-06-018
284-78-130	NEW-E	86-14-069	296-15-120	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-914	AMD-E	86-07-011
284-78-130	NEW-P	86-15-062	296-15-120	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-916	AMD	86-06-018
284-78-130	NEW	86-18-043	296-15-135	NEW-P	86-09-094	296-17-916	AMD-E	86-07-011
284-78-140	NEW-E	86-14-069	296-15-135	NEW	86-14-079	296-17-917	AMD	86-06-018
284-78-140	NEW-P	86-15-062	296-15-150	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-917	AMD-E	86-07-011
284-78-140	NEW	86-18-043	296-15-150	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-919	AMD	86-06-018
284-78-150	NEW-E	86-14-069	296-15-160	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-919	AMD-E	86-07-011
284-78-150	NEW-P	86-15-062	296-15-160	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-91901	AMD	86-06-018
284-78-150	NEW	86-18-043	296-15-180	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-91901	AMD-E	86-07-011
284-78-160	NEW-E	86-14-069	296-15-180	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-91901	AMD-P	86-11-074
284-78-160	NEW-P	86-15-062	296-15-200	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-91901	AMD	86-17-002
284-78-160	NEW	86-18-043	296-15-200	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-91902	AMD	86-06-018
284-78-170	NEW-E	86-14-069	296-15-21002	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-91902	AMD-E	86-07-011
284-78-170	NEW-P	86-15-062	296-15-21002	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-91902	AMD-P	86-11-074
284-78-170	NEW	86-18-043	296-15-21003	REP-P	86-14-004	296-17-91902	AMD	86-17-002
284-78-180	NEW-E	86-14-069	296-15-21003	REP-E	86-14-080	296-17-91902	NEW	86-06-018
284-78-180	NEW-P	86-15-062	296-15-21003	REP	86-18-037	296-17-91903	NEW-E	86-07-011
284-78-180	NEW	86-18-043	296-15-240	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-91903	AMD-P	86-11-074
284-90-010	NEW-P	86-17-076	296-15-240	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-91903	AMD	86-17-002
284-90-020	NEW-P	86-17-076	296-15-255	NEW-P	86-14-004	296-17-91904	NEW	86-06-018
284-90-030	NEW-P	86-17-076	296-15-255	NEW-E	86-14-080	296-17-91904	NEW-E	86-07-011
286-16-080	AMD-E	86-08-074	296-15-255	NEW	86-18-037	296-17-91904	AMD-P	86-11-074
289-02-020	AMD-P	86-14-021	296-15-260	AMD-P	86-14-004	296-17-91904	AMD	86-17-002
289-10-310	AMD-P	86-14-021	296-15-260	AMD-E	86-14-080	296-17-91905	NEW	86-06-018
289-10-320	REP-P	86-14-021	296-15-260	AMD	86-18-037	296-17-91905	NEW-E	86-07-011
289-10-330	REP-P	86-14-021	296-17	AMD-C	86-03-062	296-17-91905	AMD-P	86-11-074
289-10-520	AMD-P	86-14-021	296-17-310	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-17-91905	AMD	86-17-002
289-10-530	AMD-P	86-14-021	296-17-310	AMD	86-12-041	296-17-920	AMD-P	86-08-083
289-12-030	AMD-P	86-14-021	296-17-320	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-17-920	AMD	86-12-041
289-12-045	NEW-P	86-14-021	296-17-320	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-010	AMD-C	86-03-050
289-15-225	AMD-P	86-05-038	296-17-420	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-010	AMD-C	86-04-036
289-15-225	AMD	86-09-070	296-17-420	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-010	AMD	86-06-032
289-15-225	AMD-P	86-14-022	296-17-505	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-010	AMD-P	86-15-011
289-26-300	AMD-P	86-14-021	296-17-505	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-01002	AMD-P	86-15-011
296-14	AMD-E	86-13-025	296-17-520	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-015	AMD-C	86-03-050
296-14	AMD-P	86-13-026	296-17-520	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-015	AMD-C	86-04-036
296-14	AMD	86-18-036	296-17-52103	NEW-P	86-08-083	296-20-015	AMD	86-06-032
296-14-100	NEW-E	86-13-025	296-17-52103	NEW	86-12-041	296-20-015	AMD-P	86-15-011
296-14-100	NEW-P	86-13-026	296-17-52104	NEW-P	86-08-083	296-20-020	AMD-C	86-03-050
296-14-100	NEW	86-18-036	296-17-52104	NEW	86-12-041	296-20-020	AMD-C	86-04-036
296-14-150	NEW-E	86-13-025	296-17-536	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-020	AMD	86-06-032
296-14-150	NEW-P	86-13-026	296-17-536	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-02001	AMD-C	86-03-050
296-14-150	NEW	86-18-036	296-17-53805	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-02001	AMD-C	86-04-036
296-14-200	NEW-E	86-13-025	296-17-53805	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-02005	NEW-P	86-15-011
296-14-200	NEW-P	86-13-026	296-17-555	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-02010	NEW-P	86-15-011
296-14-200	NEW	86-18-036	296-17-555	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-02015	NEW-P	86-15-011
296-15-010	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-632	REP-P	86-08-083	296-20-023	NEW-C	86-03-050
296-15-010	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-632	REP	86-12-041	296-20-023	NEW-C	86-04-036
296-15-020	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-64902	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-023	NEW	86-06-032
296-15-020	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-64902	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-025	AMD-C	86-03-050
296-15-023	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-659	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-025	AMD-C	86-04-036
296-15-023	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-659	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-025	AMD	86-06-032
296-15-025	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-677	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-030	AMD-C	86-03-050
296-15-025	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-677	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-030	AMD-C	86-04-036
296-15-030	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-693	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-030	AMD	86-06-032
296-15-030	AMD-P	86-14-004	296-17-693	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-03001	AMD-C	86-03-050
296-15-030	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-694	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-03001	AMD-C	86-04-036
296-15-030	AMD-E	86-14-080	296-17-694	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-03001	AMD	86-06-032
296-15-060	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-708	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-03001	AMD-P	86-15-011
296-15-060	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-708	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-03002	AMD-C	86-03-050
296-15-065	NEW-P	86-14-004	296-17-710	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-03002	AMD-C	86-04-036
296-15-065	NEW-E	86-14-080	296-17-710	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-03002	AMD	86-06-032
296-15-070	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-761	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-03003	AMD-C	86-03-050
296-15-070	AMD-P	86-14-004	296-17-761	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-03003	AMD-C	86-04-036
296-15-070	AMD-E	86-14-080	296-17-850	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-03003	AMD	86-06-032
296-15-070	AMD	86-18-037	296-17-850	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-03005	NEW-P	86-13-034
296-15-072	NEW-P	86-14-004	296-17-875	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-03005	NEW-E	86-13-035
296-15-072	NEW-E	86-14-080	296-17-875	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-03005	NEW-E	86-18-024
296-15-072	NEW	86-18-037	296-17-885	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-03005	NEW	86-18-025
296-15-080	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-885	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-035	AMD-C	86-03-050
296-15-080	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-895	AMD-P	86-08-083	296-20-035	AMD-C	86-04-036
296-15-090	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-895	AMD	86-12-041	296-20-035	AMD	86-06-032
296-15-090	AMD	86-14-079	296-17-904	AMD	86-06-018	296-20-045	AMD-C	86-03-050
296-15-100	AMD-P	86-09-094	296-17-904	AMD-E	86-07-011	296-20-045	AMD-C	86-04-036

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
296-20-051	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-21-070	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-051	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-051	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-21-070	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-051	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-051	AMD 86-06-032	296-21-070	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-053	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-06101	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-21-075	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-053	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-06101	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-21-075	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-053	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-06101	AMD 86-06-032	296-21-075	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-061	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-065	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-21-080	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-061	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-065	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-21-080	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-061	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-065	AMD 86-06-032	296-21-080	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-063	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-071	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-21-085	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-063	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-071	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-21-085	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-063	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-071	AMD 86-06-032	296-21-085	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-067	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-075	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-21-086	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-067	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-075	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-21-086	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-067	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-075	AMD 86-06-032	296-21-086	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-071	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-075	AMD-P 86-15-011	296-21-090	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-071	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-100	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-21-090	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-071	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-100	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-21-090	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-073	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-100	AMD 86-06-032	296-21-095	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-073	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-110	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-21-095	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-073	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-110	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-21-095	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-079	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-110	AMD 86-06-032	296-21-125	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-079	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-1102	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-21-125	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-079	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-1102	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-21-125	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-082	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-1102	AMD 86-06-032	296-21-128	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-082	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-1103	AMD-P 86-15-011	296-21-128	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-082	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-121	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-21-128	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-087	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-121	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-010	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-087	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-121	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-010	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-087	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-125	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-010	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-091	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-125	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-010	AMD-P 86-15-011	296-22-091	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-125	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-017	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-091	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-125	AMD-P 86-15-011	296-22-017	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-095	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-170	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-017	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-095	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-170	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-020	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-095	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-170	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-020	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-100	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-17001	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-020	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-100	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-17001	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-021	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-100	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-17001	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-021	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-105	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-20-17002	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-021	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-105	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-20-17002	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-022	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-105	AMD 86-06-032
296-20-17002	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-022	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-110	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-21-011	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-022	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-110	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-21-011	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-023	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-110	AMD 86-06-032
296-21-011	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-023	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-115	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-21-013	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-023	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-115	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-21-013	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-024	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-115	AMD 86-06-032
296-21-013	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-024	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-116	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-21-027	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-024	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-116	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-21-027	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-025	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-116	AMD 86-06-032
296-21-027	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-025	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-120	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-21-030	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-025	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-120	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-21-030	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-026	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-120	AMD 86-06-032
296-21-030	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-026	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-125	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-21-040	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-026	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-125	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-21-040	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-027	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-125	AMD 86-06-032
296-21-040	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-027	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-132	NEW-C 86-03-050
296-21-045	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-027	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-132	NEW-C 86-04-036
296-21-045	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-031	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-132	NEW 86-06-032
296-21-045	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-031	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-135	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-21-046	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-031	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-135	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-21-046	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-036	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-135	AMD 86-06-032
296-21-046	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-036	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-140	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-21-050	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-036	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-140	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-21-050	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-037	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-140	AMD 86-06-032
296-21-050	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-037	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-141	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-21-0501	AMD-P 86-15-011	296-22-037	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-141	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-21-0502	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-039	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-141	AMD 86-06-032
296-21-0502	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-039	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-145	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-21-0502	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-039	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-145	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-21-0502	AMD-P 86-15-011	296-22-040	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-145	AMD 86-06-032
296-21-062	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-040	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-146	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-21-062	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-040	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-146	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-21-062	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-042	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-146	AMD 86-06-032
296-21-066	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-042	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-147	AMD-C 86-03-050
296-21-066	AMD-C 86-04-036	296-22-042	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-147	AMD-C 86-04-036
296-21-066	AMD 86-06-032	296-22-051	AMD-C 86-03-050	296-22-147	AMD 86-06-032

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
296-23-224	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-50016	NEW-C	86-03-050	296-44-02301	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-224	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-50016	NEW-C	86-04-036	296-44-02301	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-224	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-50016	NEW	86-06-032	296-44-02305	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-228	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-710	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-44-02305	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-228	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-710	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-44-02309	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-228	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-710	AMD	86-06-032	296-44-02309	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-232	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-720	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-44-02315	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-232	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-720	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-44-02315	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-232	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-720	AMD	86-06-032	296-44-02319	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-300	AMD-P	86-15-011	296-23-725	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-44-02319	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-301	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-725	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-44-02323	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-301	AMD	86-04-035	296-23-725	AMD	86-06-032	296-44-02323	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-301	AMD-P	86-15-011	296-23-900	AMD-P	86-15-011	296-44-02329	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-356	AMD-P	86-15-011	296-23-910	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-44-02329	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-421	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-910	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-44-02335	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-421	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-910	AMD	86-06-032	296-44-02335	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-421	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-910	AMD-P	86-15-011	296-44-02349	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-430	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-940	REP-C	86-03-050	296-44-02349	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-430	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-940	REP-C	86-04-036	296-44-028	REP-P	86-11-072
296-23-430	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-940	REP	86-06-032	296-44-028	REP	86-16-007
296-23-440	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-9401	REP-C	86-03-050	296-44-031	REP-P	86-11-072
296-23-440	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-9401	REP-C	86-04-036	296-44-031	REP	86-16-007
296-23-440	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-9401	REP	86-06-032	296-44-034	REP-P	86-11-072
296-23-450	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-9402	REP-C	86-03-050	296-44-034	REP	86-16-007
296-23-450	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-9402	REP-C	86-04-036	296-44-035	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-450	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-9402	REP	86-06-032	296-44-035	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-460	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-9403	REP-C	86-03-050	296-44-03505	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-460	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-9403	REP-C	86-04-036	296-44-03505	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-460	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-9403	REP	86-06-032	296-44-03509	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-470	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-9409	REP-C	86-03-050	296-44-03509	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-470	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-9409	REP-C	86-04-036	296-44-037	REP-P	86-11-072
296-23-470	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-9409	REP	86-06-032	296-44-037	REP	86-16-007
296-23-480	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-9410	REP-C	86-03-050	296-44-040	REP-P	86-11-072
296-23-480	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-9410	REP-C	86-04-036	296-44-040	REP	86-16-007
296-23-480	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-9410	REP	86-06-032	296-44-041	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-485	NEW-C	86-03-050	296-23-950	NEW-C	86-03-050	296-44-041	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-485	NEW-C	86-04-036	296-23-950	NEW-C	86-04-036	296-44-04105	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-485	NEW	86-06-032	296-23-950	NEW	86-06-032	296-44-04105	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-490	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-960	NEW-C	86-03-050	296-44-04109	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-490	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-960	NEW-C	86-04-036	296-44-04109	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-490	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-960	NEW	86-06-032	296-44-04125	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-495	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-960	AMD-P	86-15-011	296-44-04125	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-495	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-970	NEW-C	86-03-050	296-44-04129	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-495	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-970	NEW-C	86-04-036	296-44-04129	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50001	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-970	NEW	86-06-032	296-44-04135	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-50001	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-980	NEW-C	86-03-050	296-44-04135	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50001	AMD	86-06-032	296-23-980	NEW-C	86-04-036	296-44-043	REP-P	86-11-072
296-23-50002	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-23-980	NEW	86-06-032	296-44-043	REP	86-16-007
296-23-50002	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-23-980	AMD-P	86-15-011	296-44-046	REP-P	86-11-072
296-23-50002	AMD	86-06-032	296-24-21705	AMD	86-03-064	296-44-046	REP	86-16-007
296-23-50003	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-24-21707	AMD	86-03-064	296-44-049	REP-P	86-11-072
296-23-50003	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-24-21711	AMD	86-03-064	296-44-049	REP	86-16-007
296-23-50003	AMD	86-06-032	296-27-090	AMD	86-03-064	296-44-051	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-50004	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-27-15501	NEW	86-03-064	296-44-051	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50004	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-27-15503	NEW	86-03-064	296-44-05105	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-50004	AMD	86-06-032	296-27-15505	NEW	86-03-064	296-44-05105	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50005	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-27-16009	AMD	86-03-064	296-44-05109	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-50005	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-44-005	AMD-P	86-11-072	296-44-05109	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50005	AMD	86-06-032	296-44-005	AMD	86-16-007	296-44-05115	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-50006	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-44-011	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-05115	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50006	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-44-011	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-05119	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-50006	AMD	86-06-032	296-44-013	AMD-P	86-11-072	296-44-05119	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50008	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-44-013	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-05125	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-50008	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-44-013	AMD	86-16-007	296-44-05125	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50008	AMD	86-06-032	296-44-015	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-05129	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-50009	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-44-015	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-05129	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50009	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-44-016	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-05131	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-50009	AMD	86-06-032	296-44-016	AMD-P	86-11-072	296-44-05131	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50012	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-44-016	AMD	86-16-007	296-44-05135	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-50012	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-44-017	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-05135	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50012	AMD	86-06-032	296-44-017	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-05141	NEW-P	86-11-072
296-23-50013	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-44-019	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-05141	NEW	86-16-007
296-23-50013	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-44-019	REP	86-16-007	296-44-052	REP-P	86-11-072
296-23-50013	AMD	86-06-032	296-44-022	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-052	REP	86-16-007
296-23-50014	AMD-C	86-03-050	296-44-022	REP	86-16-007	296-44-055	REP-P	86-11-072
296-23-50014	AMD-C	86-04-036	296-44-023	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-055	REP	86-16-007
296-23-50014	AMD	86-06-032	296-44-023	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-058	REP-P	86-11-072

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
296-44-223	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-295	REP 86-16-007	296-44-349	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-223	REP 86-16-007	296-44-29501	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-349	REP 86-16-007
296-44-226	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-29501	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-350	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-226	REP 86-16-007	296-44-29509	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-350	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-229	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-29509	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-35009	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-229	REP 86-16-007	296-44-29515	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-35009	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-232	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-29515	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-35021	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-232	REP 86-16-007	296-44-29523	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-35021	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-235	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-29523	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-352	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-235	REP 86-16-007	296-44-29529	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-352	REP 86-16-007
296-44-238	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-29529	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-355	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-238	REP 86-16-007	296-44-29539	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-355	REP 86-16-007
296-44-241	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-29539	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-358	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-241	REP 86-16-007	296-44-29541	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-358	REP 86-16-007
296-44-242	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-29541	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-361	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-242	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-29551	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-361	REP 86-16-007
296-44-24205	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-29551	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-364	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-24205	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-29563	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-364	REP 86-16-007
296-44-24213	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-29563	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-365	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-24213	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-29572	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-365	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-24221	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-29572	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-36518	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-24221	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-298	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-36518	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-24233	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-298	REP 86-16-007	296-44-36527	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-24233	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-301	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-36527	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-244	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-301	REP 86-16-007	296-44-36539	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-244	REP 86-16-007	296-44-304	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-36539	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-247	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-304	REP 86-16-007	296-44-36551	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-247	REP 86-16-007	296-44-307	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-36551	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-250	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-307	REP 86-16-007	296-44-36563	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-250	REP 86-16-007	296-44-310	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-36563	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-253	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-310	REP 86-16-007	296-44-36575	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-253	REP 86-16-007	296-44-313	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-36575	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-256	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-313	REP 86-16-007	296-44-367	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-256	REP 86-16-007	296-44-316	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-367	REP 86-16-007
296-44-259	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-316	REP 86-16-007	296-44-373	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-259	REP 86-16-007	296-44-317	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-373	REP 86-16-007
296-44-262	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-317	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-376	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-262	REP 86-16-007	296-44-31709	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-376	REP 86-16-007
296-44-263	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-31709	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-379	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-263	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-31719	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-379	REP 86-16-007
296-44-26309	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-31719	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-382	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-26309	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-31729	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-382	REP 86-16-007
296-44-26321	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-31729	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-385	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-26321	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-31738	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-385	REP 86-16-007
296-44-26333	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-31738	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-386	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-26333	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-31749	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-386	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-265	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-31749	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-38609	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-265	REP 86-16-007	296-44-31757	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-38609	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-268	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-31757	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-38628	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-268	REP 86-16-007	296-44-31765	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-38628	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-271	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-31765	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-38641	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-271	REP 86-16-007	296-44-31772	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-38641	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-274	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-31772	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-38653	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-274	REP 86-16-007	296-44-31783	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-38653	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-277	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-31783	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-388	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-277	REP 86-16-007	296-44-31792	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-388	REP 86-16-007
296-44-278	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-31792	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-391	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-278	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-319	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-391	REP 86-16-007
296-44-27809	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-319	REP 86-16-007	296-44-394	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-27809	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-322	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-394	REP 86-16-007
296-44-27821	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-322	REP 86-16-007	296-44-397	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-27821	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-325	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-397	REP 86-16-007
296-44-27833	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-325	REP 86-16-007	296-44-398	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-27833	NEW 86-16-007	296-44-328	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-398	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-27847	NEW-P 86-11-072	296-44-328	REP 86-16-007	296-44-39809	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-280	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-331	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-39809	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-280	REP 86-16-007	296-44-331	REP 86-16-007	296-44-39823	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-283	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-334	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-39823	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-283	REP 86-16-007	296-44-334	REP 86-16-007	296-44-39842	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-286	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-337	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-39842	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-286	REP 86-16-007	296-44-337	REP 86-16-007	296-44-39855	NEW-P 86-11-072
296-44-289	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-340	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-39855	NEW 86-16-007
296-44-289	REP 86-16-007	296-44-340	REP 86-16-007	296-44-400	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-292	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-343	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-400	REP 86-16-007
296-44-292	REP 86-16-007	296-44-343	REP 86-16-007	296-44-403	REP-P 86-11-072
296-44-295	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-346	REP-P 86-11-072	296-44-403	REP 86-16-007
		296-44-346	REP 86-16-007	296-44-406	REP-P 86-11-072

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
296-44-406	REP	86-16-007	296-44-454	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-541	REP	86-16-007
296-44-409	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-454	REP	86-16-007	296-44-544	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-409	REP	86-16-007	296-44-457	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-544	REP	86-16-007
296-44-412	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-457	REP	86-16-007	296-44-547	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-412	REP	86-16-007	296-44-460	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-547	REP	86-16-007
296-44-413	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-460	REP	86-16-007	296-44-550	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-413	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-463	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-550	REP	86-16-007
296-44-41309	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-463	REP	86-16-007	296-44-553	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-41309	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-466	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-553	REP	86-16-007
296-44-41321	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-466	REP	86-16-007	296-44-556	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-41321	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-467	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-556	REP	86-16-007
296-44-41333	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-467	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-559	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-41333	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-46709	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-559	REP	86-16-007
296-44-41341	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-46709	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-562	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-41341	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-46733	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-562	REP	86-16-007
296-44-41359	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-46733	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-565	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-41359	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-46739	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-565	REP	86-16-007
296-44-415	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-46739	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-568	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-415	REP	86-16-007	296-44-46747	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-568	REP	86-16-007
296-44-418	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-46747	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-571	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-418	REP	86-16-007	296-44-46755	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-571	REP	86-16-007
296-44-421	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-46755	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-574	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-421	REP	86-16-007	296-44-46761	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-574	REP	86-16-007
296-44-424	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-46761	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-577	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-424	REP	86-16-007	296-44-469	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-577	REP	86-16-007
296-44-425	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-469	REP	86-16-007	296-44-580	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-425	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-472	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-580	REP	86-16-007
296-44-42509	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-472	REP	86-16-007	296-44-583	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-42509	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-478	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-583	REP	86-16-007
296-44-42521	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-478	REP	86-16-007	296-44-586	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-42521	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-481	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-586	REP	86-16-007
296-44-42533	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-481	REP	86-16-007	296-44-589	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-42533	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-484	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-589	REP	86-16-007
296-44-42541	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-484	REP	86-16-007	296-44-592	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-42541	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-487	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-592	REP	86-16-007
296-44-42559	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-487	REP	86-16-007	296-44-595	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-42559	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-490	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-595	REP	86-16-007
296-44-427	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-490	REP	86-16-007	296-44-598	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-427	REP	86-16-007	296-44-491	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-598	REP	86-16-007
296-44-430	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-491	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-601	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-430	REP	86-16-007	296-44-49109	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-601	REP	86-16-007
296-44-433	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-49109	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-604	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-433	REP	86-16-007	296-44-49121	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-604	REP	86-16-007
296-44-436	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-49121	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-607	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-436	REP	86-16-007	296-44-493	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-607	REP	86-16-007
296-44-439	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-493	REP	86-16-007	296-44-610	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-439	REP	86-16-007	296-44-496	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-610	REP	86-16-007
296-44-440	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-496	REP	86-16-007	296-44-613	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-440	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-499	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-613	REP	86-16-007
296-44-44009	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-499	REP	86-16-007	296-44-616	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-44009	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-502	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-616	REP	86-16-007
296-44-44021	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-502	REP	86-16-007	296-44-619	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-44021	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-505	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-619	REP	86-16-007
296-44-44033	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-505	REP	86-16-007	296-44-622	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-44033	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-508	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-622	REP	86-16-007
296-44-44047	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-508	REP	86-16-007	296-44-625	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-44047	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-511	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-625	REP	86-16-007
296-44-442	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-511	REP	86-16-007	296-44-628	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-442	REP	86-16-007	296-44-514	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-628	REP	86-16-007
296-44-445	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-514	REP	86-16-007	296-44-631	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-445	REP	86-16-007	296-44-517	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-631	REP	86-16-007
296-44-448	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-517	REP	86-16-007	296-44-634	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-448	REP	86-16-007	296-44-520	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-634	REP	86-16-007
296-44-451	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-520	REP	86-16-007	296-44-637	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-451	REP	86-16-007	296-44-523	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-637	REP	86-16-007
296-44-452	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-523	REP	86-16-007	296-44-640	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-452	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-526	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-640	REP	86-16-007
296-44-45209	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-526	REP	86-16-007	296-44-643	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-45209	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-529	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-643	REP	86-16-007
296-44-45219	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-529	REP	86-16-007	296-44-646	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-45219	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-532	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-646	REP	86-16-007
296-44-45231	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-532	REP	86-16-007	296-44-649	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-45231	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-535	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-649	REP	86-16-007
296-44-45243	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-535	REP	86-16-007	296-44-652	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-45243	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-538	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-652	REP	86-16-007
296-44-45257	NEW-P	86-11-072	296-44-538	REP	86-16-007	296-44-655	REP-P	86-11-072
296-44-45257	NEW	86-16-007	296-44-541	REP-P	86-11-072	296-44-655	REP	86-16-007

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
296-44-658	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-360	AMD-P	86-14-077	296-52-230	REP	86-10-044
296-44-658	REP	86-16-007	296-46-360	AMD-E	86-14-078	296-52-260	REP-P	86-05-026
296-44-661	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-360	AMD	86-18-041	296-52-260	REP	86-10-044
296-44-661	REP	86-16-007	296-46-600	NEW-P	86-14-077	296-52-270	REP-P	86-05-026
296-44-664	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-600	NEW-E	86-14-078	296-52-270	REP	86-10-044
296-44-664	REP	86-16-007	296-46-600	NEW	86-18-041	296-52-330	REP-P	86-05-026
296-44-667	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-680	NEW-P	86-14-077	296-52-330	REP	86-10-044
296-44-667	REP	86-16-007	296-46-680	NEW-E	86-14-078	296-52-350	REP-P	86-05-026
296-44-670	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-680	NEW	86-18-041	296-52-350	REP	86-10-044
296-44-670	REP	86-16-007	296-46-915	NEW-P	86-14-077	296-52-360	REP-P	86-05-026
296-44-673	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-915	NEW-E	86-14-078	296-52-360	REP	86-10-044
296-44-673	REP	86-16-007	296-46-915	NEW	86-18-041	296-52-370	REP-P	86-05-026
296-44-676	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-920	NEW-P	86-14-077	296-52-370	REP	86-10-044
296-44-676	REP	86-16-007	296-46-920	NEW-E	86-14-078	296-52-380	REP-P	86-05-026
296-44-679	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-920	NEW	86-18-041	296-52-380	REP	86-10-044
296-44-679	REP	86-16-007	296-46-930	NEW-P	86-14-077	296-52-390	REP-P	86-05-026
296-44-682	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-930	NEW-E	86-14-078	296-52-390	REP	86-10-044
296-44-682	REP	86-16-007	296-46-930	NEW	86-18-041	296-52-400	REP-P	86-05-026
296-44-685	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-940	NEW-P	86-14-077	296-52-400	REP	86-10-044
296-44-685	REP	86-16-007	296-46-940	NEW-E	86-14-078	296-52-401	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-688	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-940	NEW	86-18-041	296-52-401	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-688	REP	86-16-007	296-46-950	NEW-P	86-14-077	296-52-405	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-691	REP-P	86-11-072	296-46-950	NEW-E	86-14-078	296-52-405	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-691	REP	86-16-007	296-46-950	NEW	86-18-041	296-52-409	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-694	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-010	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-409	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-694	REP	86-16-007	296-52-010	REP	86-10-044	296-52-413	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-697	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-012	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-413	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-697	REP	86-16-007	296-52-012	REP	86-10-044	296-52-417	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-700	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-020	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-417	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-700	REP	86-16-007	296-52-020	REP	86-10-044	296-52-421	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-703	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-025	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-421	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-703	REP	86-16-007	296-52-025	REP	86-10-044	296-52-425	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-706	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-027	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-425	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-706	REP	86-16-007	296-52-027	REP	86-10-044	296-52-429	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-709	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-030	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-429	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-709	REP	86-16-007	296-52-030	REP	86-10-044	296-52-433	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-712	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-040	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-433	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-712	REP	86-16-007	296-52-040	REP	86-10-044	296-52-437	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-715	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-043	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-437	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-715	REP	86-16-007	296-52-043	REP	86-10-044	296-52-441	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-718	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-050	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-441	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-718	REP	86-16-007	296-52-050	REP	86-10-044	296-52-445	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-721	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-060	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-445	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-721	REP	86-16-007	296-52-060	REP	86-10-044	296-52-449	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-724	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-080	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-449	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-724	REP	86-16-007	296-52-080	REP	86-10-044	296-52-453	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-727	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-090	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-453	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-727	REP	86-16-007	296-52-090	REP	86-10-044	296-52-457	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-730	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-095	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-457	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-730	REP	86-16-007	296-52-095	REP	86-10-044	296-52-461	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-733	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-100	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-461	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-733	REP	86-16-007	296-52-100	REP	86-10-044	296-52-465	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-736	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-110	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-465	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-736	REP	86-16-007	296-52-110	REP	86-10-044	296-52-469	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-739	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-120	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-469	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-739	REP	86-16-007	296-52-120	REP	86-10-044	296-52-473	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-742	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-140	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-473	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-742	REP	86-16-007	296-52-140	REP	86-10-044	296-52-477	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-745	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-150	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-477	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-745	REP	86-16-007	296-52-150	REP	86-10-044	296-52-481	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-748	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-160	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-481	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-748	REP	86-16-007	296-52-160	REP	86-10-044	296-52-485	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-751	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-165	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-485	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-751	REP	86-16-007	296-52-165	REP	86-10-044	296-52-489	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-754	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-167	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-489	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-754	REP	86-16-007	296-52-167	REP	86-10-044	296-52-493	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-757	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-170	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-493	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-757	REP	86-16-007	296-52-170	REP	86-10-044	296-52-497	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-760	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-180	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-497	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-760	REP	86-16-007	296-52-180	REP	86-10-044	296-52-501	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-763	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-190	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-501	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-763	REP	86-16-007	296-52-190	REP	86-10-044	296-52-505	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-44-766	REP-P	86-11-072	296-52-200	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-505	NEW	86-10-044
296-44-766	REP	86-16-007	296-52-200	REP	86-10-044	296-52-509	NEW-P	86-05-026
296-46-348	NEW-P	86-14-077	296-52-220	REP-P	86-05-026	296-52-509	NEW	86-10-044
296-46-348	NEW-E	86-14-078	296-52-220	REP	86-10-044	296-56-60001	AMD	86-03-064
296-46-348	NEW	86-18-041	296-52-230	REP-P	86-05-026	296-56-60003	AMD	86-03-064

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
296-56-60005	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60193	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-14533	AMD	86-16-009
296-56-60007	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60195	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-14543	NEW-P	86-11-071
296-56-60009	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60199	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-14543	NEW	86-16-009
296-56-60011	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60201	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-20009	AMD-P	86-11-071
296-56-60017	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60205	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-20009	AMD	86-16-009
296-56-60019	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60207	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-20011	AMD-P	86-11-071
296-56-60023	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60209	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-20011	AMD	86-16-009
296-56-60025	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60211	AMD	86-03-064	296-63-001	NEW-P	86-18-070
296-56-60027	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60215	AMD	86-03-064	296-63-003	NEW-P	86-18-070
296-56-60029	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60217	AMD	86-03-064	296-63-005	NEW-P	86-18-070
296-56-60031	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60219	AMD	86-03-064	296-63-007	NEW-P	86-18-070
296-56-60037	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60221	AMD	86-03-064	296-63-009	NEW-P	86-18-070
296-56-60039	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60223	AMD	86-03-064	296-63-011	NEW-P	86-18-070
296-56-60041	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60229	AMD	86-03-064	296-63-013	NEW-P	86-18-070
296-56-60043	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60231	AMD	86-03-064	296-63-015	NEW-P	86-18-070
296-56-60049	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60233	AMD	86-03-064	296-64-400	REP-P	86-06-051
296-56-60051	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60235	AMD	86-03-064	296-64-400	REP	86-12-004
296-56-60053	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60237	AMD	86-03-064	296-64-405	REP-P	86-06-051
296-56-60055	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60239	AMD	86-03-064	296-64-405	REP	86-12-004
296-56-60057	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60241	AMD	86-03-064	296-64-410	REP-P	86-06-051
296-56-60059	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60243	AMD	86-03-064	296-64-410	REP	86-12-004
296-56-60060	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60245	AMD	86-03-064	296-64-415	REP-P	86-06-051
296-56-60062	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60249	AMD	86-03-064	296-64-415	REP	86-12-004
296-56-60065	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60251	AMD	86-03-064	296-64-420	REP-P	86-06-051
296-56-60067	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-60253	AMD	86-03-064	296-64-420	REP	86-12-004
296-56-60069	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-990	REP	86-03-064	296-64-425	REP-P	86-06-051
296-56-60073	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-99001	REP	86-03-064	296-64-425	REP	86-12-004
296-56-60075	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-99002	AMD	86-03-064	296-81-007	AMD	86-03-024
296-56-60077	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-99003	AMD	86-03-064	296-81-010	AMD	86-03-024
296-56-60079	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-99004	REP	86-03-064	296-81-260	AMD	86-03-024
296-56-60081	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-99005	REP	86-03-064	296-83-010	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60083	AMD	86-03-064	296-56-99006	REP	86-03-064	296-83-015	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60085	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05403	AMD-P	86-06-051	296-83-020	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60087	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05403	AMD-C	86-10-001	296-83-025	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60089	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05403	AMD-C	86-10-035	296-83-030	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60091	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05403	AMD	86-12-004	296-83-035	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60093	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05405	AMD-P	86-06-051	296-83-040	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60095	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05405	AMD-C	86-10-001	296-83-045	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60097	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05405	AMD-C	86-10-035	296-83-050	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60098	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05405	AMD	86-12-004	296-83-055	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60101	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05407	AMD-P	86-06-051	296-83-060	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60103	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05407	AMD-C	86-10-001	296-83-065	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60107	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05407	AMD-C	86-10-035	296-83-070	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60109	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05407	AMD	86-12-004	296-83-075	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60110	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05413	AMD-P	86-06-051	296-83-080	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60111	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05413	AMD-C	86-10-001	296-83-085	REP	86-03-025
296-56-60113	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05413	AMD-C	86-10-035	296-86-020	AMD	86-03-026
296-56-60115	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05413	AMD	86-12-004	296-86-030	AMD	86-03-026
296-56-60117	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05415	AMD-P	86-06-051	296-86-060	AMD	86-03-026
296-56-60119	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05415	AMD-C	86-10-001	296-86-070	AMD	86-03-026
296-56-60121	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05415	AMD-C	86-10-035	296-86-075	AMD	86-03-026
296-56-60122	NEW	86-03-064	296-62-05415	AMD	86-12-004	296-87-001	NEW	86-03-033
296-56-60123	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05417	AMD-P	86-06-051	296-87-020	AMD	86-03-033
296-56-60125	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05417	AMD-C	86-10-001	296-87-040	AMD	86-03-033
296-56-60127	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05417	AMD-C	86-10-035	296-87-060	AMD	86-03-033
296-56-60129	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05417	AMD	86-12-004	296-87-080	AMD	86-03-033
296-56-60131	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05425	AMD-P	86-06-051	296-87-120	AMD	86-03-033
296-56-60133	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05425	AMD-C	86-10-001	296-88-001	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60135	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05425	AMD-C	86-10-035	296-88-010	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60139	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05425	AMD	86-12-004	296-88-020	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60141	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05427	NEW-P	86-06-051	296-88-030	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60143	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05427	NEW-C	86-10-001	296-88-040	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60145	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05427	NEW-C	86-10-035	296-88-050	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60147	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-05427	NEW	86-12-004	296-88-060	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60151	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07306	AMD-P	86-11-071	296-88-070	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60153	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07306	AMD	86-16-009	296-88-080	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60155	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07329	AMD-P	86-11-071	296-88-090	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60157	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07329	AMD	86-16-009	296-88-100	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60159	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07341	AMD-P	86-11-071	296-88-110	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60161	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07341	AMD	86-16-009	296-88-120	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60167	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07345	AMD-P	86-11-071	296-88-130	REP	86-03-027
296-56-60169	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07345	AMD	86-16-009	296-90-010	REP	86-03-028
296-56-60171	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07353	AMD-P	86-11-071	296-90-020	REP	86-03-028
296-56-60180	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07353	AMD	86-16-009	296-90-030	REP	86-03-028
296-56-60183	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07515	AMD-P	86-11-071	296-90-040	REP	86-03-028
296-56-60189	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-07515	AMD	86-16-009	296-90-050	REP	86-03-028
296-56-60191	AMD	86-03-064	296-62-14533	AMD-P	86-11-071	296-90-060	REP	86-03-028

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
296-90-070	REP	86-03-028	296-127-320	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-350	REP-P	86-05-027
296-90-080	REP	86-03-028	296-132-005	REP-P	86-05-027	296-132-350	REP	86-08-015
296-90-090	REP	86-03-028	296-132-005	REP	86-08-015	296-132-360	REP-P	86-05-027
296-92-010	REP	86-03-029	296-132-010	REP-P	86-05-027	296-132-360	REP	86-08-015
296-92-020	REP	86-03-029	296-132-010	REP	86-08-015	296-132-370	REP-P	86-05-027
296-92-030	REP	86-03-029	296-132-015	REP-P	86-05-027	296-132-370	REP	86-08-015
296-92-040	REP	86-03-029	296-132-015	REP	86-08-015	296-132-380	REP-P	86-05-027
296-92-050	REP	86-03-029	296-132-015	REP-P	86-05-027	296-132-380	REP	86-08-015
296-92-060	REP	86-03-029	296-132-050	REP	86-08-015	296-150A-300	AMD-E	86-08-071
296-92-070	REP	86-03-029	296-132-055	REP-P	86-05-027	296-150A-300	AMD-P	86-14-033
296-92-080	REP	86-03-029	296-132-055	REP	86-08-015	296-150A-300	AMD-E	86-14-037
296-92-090	REP	86-03-029	296-132-060	REP-P	86-05-027	296-150B-015	AMD-P	86-14-036
296-92-100	REP	86-03-029	296-132-060	REP	86-08-015	296-150B-015	AMD-E	86-14-040
296-92-110	REP	86-03-029	296-132-065	REP-P	86-05-027	296-150B-300	AMD-P	86-14-036
296-93-010	AMD	86-03-030	296-132-065	REP	86-08-015	296-150B-300	AMD-E	86-14-040
296-93-050	AMD	86-03-030	296-132-100	REP-P	86-05-027	296-150B-305	AMD-P	86-14-036
296-93-060	REP	86-03-030	296-132-100	REP	86-08-015	296-150B-305	AMD-E	86-14-040
296-93-070	AMD	86-03-030	296-132-105	REP-P	86-05-027	296-150B-307	NEW-P	86-14-036
296-93-110	REP	86-03-030	296-132-105	REP	86-08-015	296-150B-307	NEW-E	86-14-040
296-93-120	AMD	86-03-030	296-132-110	REP-P	86-05-027	296-150B-508	NEW-P	86-14-036
296-93-130	REP	86-03-030	296-132-110	REP	86-08-015	296-150B-508	NEW-E	86-14-040
296-93-170	AMD	86-03-030	296-132-115	REP-P	86-05-027	296-150B-550	AMD-P	86-14-036
296-93-180	REP	86-03-030	296-132-115	REP	86-08-015	296-150B-550	AMD-E	86-14-040
296-93-200	AMD	86-03-030	296-132-120	REP-P	86-05-027	296-150B-553	AMD-P	86-14-036
296-93-210	AMD	86-03-030	296-132-120	REP	86-08-015	296-150B-553	AMD-E	86-14-040
296-93-220	AMD	86-03-030	296-132-125	REP-P	86-05-027	296-150B-797	AMD-P	86-14-036
296-93-230	AMD	86-03-030	296-132-125	REP	86-08-015	296-150B-797	AMD-E	86-14-040
296-94-010	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-130	REP-P	86-05-027	296-150B-800	AMD-P	86-14-036
296-94-020	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-130	REP	86-08-015	296-150B-800	AMD-E	86-14-040
296-94-030	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-135	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-003	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-94-040	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-135	REP	86-08-015	296-155-003	AMD	86-03-074
296-94-050	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-140	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-005	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-94-060	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-140	REP	86-08-015	296-155-005	AMD	86-03-074
296-94-070	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-145	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-009	NEW-C	86-03-073
296-94-080	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-145	REP	86-08-015	296-155-009	NEW	86-03-074
296-94-090	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-150	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-010	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-94-100	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-150	REP	86-08-015	296-155-010	AMD	86-03-074
296-94-110	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-151	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-012	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-94-120	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-151	REP	86-08-015	296-155-012	AMD	86-03-074
296-94-130	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-152	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-020	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-94-140	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-152	REP	86-08-015	296-155-020	AMD	86-03-074
296-94-150	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-155	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-035	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-94-160	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-155	REP	86-08-015	296-155-035	AMD	86-03-074
296-94-170	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-160	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-100	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-94-180	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-160	REP	86-08-015	296-155-100	AMD	86-03-074
296-94-190	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-200	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-110	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-94-200	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-200	REP	86-08-015	296-155-110	AMD	86-03-074
296-94-210	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-205	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-120	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-94-220	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-205	REP	86-08-015	296-155-120	AMD	86-03-074
296-94-230	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-210	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-125	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-94-240	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-210	REP	86-08-015	296-155-125	AMD	86-03-074
296-94-250	NEW	86-03-032	296-132-215	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-130	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-100-001	NEW	86-03-031	296-132-215	REP	86-08-015	296-155-130	AMD	86-03-074
296-100-050	NEW	86-03-031	296-132-220	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-140	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-100-060	NEW	86-03-031	296-132-220	REP	86-08-015	296-155-140	AMD	86-03-074
296-104-210	AMD-P	86-04-060	296-132-225	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-155	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-104-210	AMD	86-07-064	296-132-225	REP	86-08-015	296-155-155	AMD	86-03-074
296-104-500	AMD	86-04-059	296-132-226	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-160	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-104-501	NEW	86-04-059	296-132-226	REP	86-08-015	296-155-160	AMD	86-03-074
296-104-515	AMD	86-04-059	296-132-250	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-165	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-116-080	AMD	86-07-010	296-132-250	REP	86-08-015	296-155-165	AMD	86-03-074
296-116-300	AMD-E	86-15-021	296-132-255	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-200	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-116-300	AMD-P	86-15-047	296-132-255	REP	86-08-015	296-155-200	AMD	86-03-074
296-127-010	AMD	86-03-063	296-132-260	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-201	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-127-020	AMD	86-03-063	296-132-260	REP	86-08-015	296-155-201	AMD	86-03-074
296-127-130	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-265	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-203	NEW-C	86-03-073
296-127-140	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-265	REP	86-08-015	296-155-203	NEW	86-03-074
296-127-150	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-301	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-20301	NEW-C	86-03-073
296-127-160	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-301	REP	86-08-015	296-155-20301	NEW	86-03-074
296-127-170	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-302	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-20303	NEW-C	86-03-073
296-127-180	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-302	REP	86-08-015	296-155-20305	NEW-C	86-03-073
296-127-190	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-306	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-20307	NEW-C	86-03-073
296-127-200	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-306	REP	86-08-015	296-155-20307	NEW	86-03-074
296-127-210	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-311	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-205	AMD-C	86-03-073
296-127-220	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-311	REP	86-08-015	296-155-205	AMD	86-03-074
296-127-300	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-316	REP-P	86-05-027	296-155-211	NEW-C	86-03-073
296-127-310	NEW	86-03-063	296-132-316	REP	86-08-015	296-155-211	NEW	86-03-074

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
296-200-340	NEW-E	86-14-039	296-403-010	NEW	86-12-019	308-29-080	NEW-P	86-10-002
296-200-350	NEW-P	86-14-035	296-403-020	NEW-P	86-07-055	308-29-080	NEW	86-14-051
296-200-350	NEW-E	86-14-039	296-403-020	NEW-E	86-12-018	308-31-010	AMD-P	86-18-054
296-200-360	NEW-P	86-14-035	296-403-020	NEW	86-12-019	308-31-030	AMD-E	86-15-043
296-200-360	NEW-E	86-14-039	296-403-030	NEW-P	86-07-055	308-31-030	AMD-P	86-18-054
296-200-370	NEW-P	86-14-035	296-403-030	NEW-E	86-12-018	308-31-550	AMD-P	86-18-054
296-200-370	NEW-E	86-14-039	296-403-030	NEW	86-12-019	308-40-102	AMD-P	86-04-089
296-200-380	NEW-P	86-14-035	296-403-040	NEW-P	86-07-055	308-40-102	AMD	86-08-046
296-200-380	NEW-E	86-14-039	296-403-040	NEW-E	86-12-018	308-42-045	AMD-P	86-16-076
296-200-390	NEW-P	86-14-035	296-403-040	NEW	86-12-019	308-42-060	AMD-P	86-16-076
296-200-390	NEW-E	86-14-039	296-403-050	NEW-P	86-07-055	308-48-010	AMD-P	86-09-006
296-200-400	NEW-P	86-14-035	296-403-050	NEW-E	86-12-018	308-48-010	AMD	86-15-022
296-200-400	NEW-E	86-14-039	296-403-050	NEW	86-12-019	308-48-060	AMD-P	86-09-006
296-350-050	AMD-P	86-11-070	296-403-060	NEW-P	86-07-055	308-48-060	AMD	86-15-022
296-350-050	AMD	86-16-008	296-403-060	NEW-E	86-12-018	308-48-120	REP-P	86-09-006
296-350-080	AMD-P	86-11-070	296-403-060	NEW	86-12-019	308-48-120	REP	86-15-022
296-350-080	AMD	86-16-008	296-403-070	NEW-P	86-07-055	308-48-130	REP-P	86-09-006
296-350-300	NEW	86-06-002	296-403-070	NEW-E	86-12-018	308-48-130	REP	86-15-022
296-350-400	AMD	86-03-064	296-403-070	NEW	86-12-019	308-48-140	AMD-P	86-09-006
296-400-005	NEW-P	86-14-034	304-12-025	AMD-P	86-09-091	308-48-140	AMD	86-15-022
296-400-005	NEW-E	86-14-038	304-12-025	AMD	86-12-067	308-48-150	AMD-P	86-09-006
296-400-030	AMD-P	86-14-034	304-12-040	NEW-P	86-09-091	308-48-150	AMD	86-15-022
296-400-030	AMD-E	86-14-038	304-12-040	NEW	86-12-067	308-48-160	AMD-P	86-09-006
296-400-035	NEW-P	86-14-034	304-12-045	NEW-P	86-09-091	308-48-160	AMD	86-15-022
296-400-035	NEW-E	86-14-038	304-12-045	NEW	86-12-067	308-48-165	AMD-P	86-09-006
296-400-045	AMD-P	86-14-034	304-12-145	NEW-P	86-09-091	308-48-165	AMD	86-15-022
296-400-045	AMD-E	86-14-038	304-12-145	NEW	86-12-067	308-48-790	NEW	86-05-031
296-400-050	AMD-P	86-14-034	304-12-290	AMD-P	86-09-091	308-50-230	REP-P	86-05-034
296-400-050	AMD-E	86-14-038	304-12-290	AMD	86-12-067	308-50-230	REP	86-09-064
296-400-070	NEW-P	86-14-034	304-12-350	AMD-P	86-09-091	308-50-330	AMD-P	86-05-034
296-400-070	NEW-E	86-14-038	304-12-350	AMD	86-12-067	308-50-330	AMD	86-09-064
296-400-100	NEW-P	86-14-034	304-25-030	AMD-P	86-03-048	308-50-420	NEW-P	86-05-034
296-400-100	NEW-E	86-14-038	304-25-030	AMD	86-08-042	308-50-420	NEW	86-09-064
296-400-110	NEW-P	86-14-034	304-25-560	AMD-P	86-03-048	308-50-430	NEW-P	86-05-034
296-400-110	NEW-E	86-14-038	304-25-560	AMD	86-08-042	308-50-430	NEW	86-09-064
296-400-120	NEW-P	86-14-034	308-04-010	AMD-P	86-04-090	308-52-135	AMD-P	86-08-093
296-400-120	NEW-E	86-14-038	308-04-010	AMD	86-08-069	308-52-135	AMD	86-12-031
296-400-130	NEW-P	86-14-034	308-11-030	AMD-P	86-17-094	308-52-139	AMD-P	86-08-093
296-400-130	NEW-E	86-14-038	308-11-035	NEW-P	86-17-094	308-52-139	AMD	86-12-031
296-400-140	NEW-P	86-14-034	308-11-040	REP-P	86-17-094	308-52-140	AMD-P	86-08-093
296-400-140	NEW-E	86-14-038	308-11-050	REP-E	86-14-086	308-52-140	AMD	86-12-031
296-401-030	AMD-P	86-14-077	308-11-050	AMD-P	86-17-094	308-52-140	AMD-P	86-13-069
296-401-030	AMD-E	86-14-078	308-11-060	AMD-P	86-17-094	308-52-140	AMD	86-16-054
296-401-030	AMD	86-18-041	308-11-080	REP-P	86-17-094	308-52-141	AMD-P	86-08-093
296-401-060	AMD-P	86-14-077	308-11-130	NEW-E	86-14-017	308-52-141	AMD	86-12-031
296-401-060	AMD-E	86-14-078	308-11-140	NEW-E	86-14-086	308-52-142	REP-P	86-08-093
296-401-060	AMD	86-18-041	308-12-050	AMD	86-04-088	308-52-142	REP	86-12-031
296-401-080	AMD-P	86-14-077	308-12-081	AMD	86-04-088	308-52-143	REP-P	86-08-093
296-401-080	AMD-E	86-14-078	308-12-135	NEW-P	86-06-053	308-52-143	REP	86-12-031
296-401-080	AMD	86-18-041	308-12-140	NEW	86-04-088	308-52-145	REP-P	86-08-093
296-401-090	AMD-P	86-14-077	308-12-145	NEW	86-04-088	308-52-145	REP	86-12-031
296-401-090	AMD-E	86-14-078	308-12-150	NEW	86-04-088	308-52-146	NEW-P	86-08-093
296-401-090	AMD	86-18-041	308-12-312	AMD-E	86-04-086	308-52-270	AMD	86-03-056
296-401-100	AMD-P	86-14-077	308-12-312	AMD-E	86-10-037	308-52-502	AMD-P	86-13-069
296-401-100	AMD-E	86-14-078	308-13-015	AMD-P	86-07-058	308-52-502	AMD	86-16-054
296-401-100	AMD	86-18-041	308-13-015	AMD	86-16-013	308-52-515	NEW-P	86-13-069
296-401-120	AMD-P	86-14-077	308-13-040	AMD-P	86-07-058	308-52-515	NEW	86-16-054
296-401-120	AMD-E	86-14-078	308-13-040	AMD	86-16-013	308-53-010	AMD-P	86-07-059
296-401-120	AMD	86-18-041	308-13-041	NEW-P	86-07-058	308-53-070	AMD-P	86-07-059
296-401-160	AMD-P	86-14-077	308-13-041	NEW	86-16-013	308-53-070	AMD	86-13-009
296-401-160	AMD-E	86-14-078	308-13-042	NEW-P	86-07-058	308-53-075	NEW-P	86-08-092
296-401-160	AMD	86-18-041	308-13-042	NEW	86-16-013	308-53-075	NEW	86-13-008
296-401-165	AMD-P	86-14-077	308-20-171	AMD-P	86-18-055	308-53-080	REP-P	86-08-092
296-401-165	AMD-E	86-14-078	308-20-171	AMD-E	86-18-072	308-53-080	REP	86-13-008
296-401-165	AMD	86-18-041	308-25-010	AMD-P	86-05-032	308-53-084	NEW-P	86-08-092
296-401-168	NEW-P	86-14-077	308-25-015	NEW-P	86-05-032	308-53-084	NEW	86-13-008
296-401-168	NEW-E	86-14-078	308-25-015	NEW	86-09-014	308-53-085	AMD-P	86-08-092
296-401-168	NEW	86-18-041	308-25-025	REP-P	86-05-032	308-53-085	AMD	86-13-008
296-401-170	AMD-P	86-14-077	308-25-025	REP	86-09-014	308-53-100	REP-P	86-08-092
296-401-170	AMD-E	86-14-078	308-25-030	REP-P	86-05-032	308-53-105	NEW-P	86-08-092
296-401-170	AMD	86-18-041	308-25-030	REP	86-09-014	308-53-125	AMD-P	86-08-092
296-401-175	AMD-E	86-10-017	308-25-035	NEW-P	86-05-032	308-53-212	NEW-P	86-08-092
296-401-175	AMD-P	86-14-077	308-25-035	NEW	86-09-014	308-53-212	NEW	86-13-008
296-401-175	AMD-E	86-14-078	308-29-060	AMD-P	86-10-002	308-53-265	NEW-P	86-08-092
296-401-175	AMD	86-18-041	308-29-060	AMD	86-14-051	308-53-265	NEW	86-13-008
296-403-010	NEW-P	86-07-055	308-29-070	NEW-P	86-10-002	308-61-010	AMD	86-03-011
296-403-010	NEW-E	86-12-018	308-29-070	NEW	86-14-051	308-61-025	AMD	86-03-011

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
308-61-026	NEW	86-03-011	308-93-079	NEW	86-10-068	308-96A-265	REP	86-10-040
308-61-027	REP	86-03-011	308-93-240	REP-E	86-15-069	308-96A-270	REP-P	86-03-010
308-61-030	AMD	86-03-011	308-93-240	REP-P	86-15-070	308-96A-270	REP	86-10-040
308-61-040	AMD	86-03-011	308-93-310	REP-E	86-15-069	308-96A-275	AMD-P	86-03-010
308-61-050	AMD	86-03-011	308-93-310	REP-P	86-15-070	308-96A-275	AMD	86-10-040
308-61-100	REP	86-03-011	308-96A-005	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-96A-280	REP-P	86-03-010
308-61-105	NEW	86-03-011	308-96A-005	AMD	86-10-040	308-96A-280	REP	86-10-040
308-61-108	NEW	86-03-011	308-96A-010	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-96A-285	REP-P	86-03-010
308-61-110	REP	86-03-011	308-96A-010	AMD	86-10-040	308-96A-285	REP	86-10-040
308-61-115	NEW	86-03-011	308-96A-015	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-96A-290	REP-P	86-03-010
308-61-120	REP	86-03-011	308-96A-015	AMD	86-10-040	308-96A-290	REP	86-10-040
308-61-125	NEW	86-03-011	308-96A-020	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-96A-295	AMD-P	86-03-010
308-61-130	REP	86-03-011	308-96A-020	AMD	86-10-040	308-96A-295	AMD	86-10-040
308-61-135	NEW	86-03-011	308-96A-020	REP-E	86-15-069	308-96A-300	AMD-P	86-03-010
308-61-140	REP	86-03-011	308-96A-020	REP-P	86-15-070	308-96A-300	AMD	86-10-040
308-61-145	NEW	86-03-011	308-96A-030	REP-P	86-03-010	308-96A-305	REP-P	86-03-010
308-61-150	REP	86-03-011	308-96A-030	REP	86-10-040	308-96A-305	REP	86-10-040
308-61-155	REP	86-03-011	308-96A-035	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-99-020	AMD-E	86-09-013
308-61-158	NEW	86-03-011	308-96A-035	AMD	86-10-040	308-99-020	AMD-P	86-09-100
308-61-160	REP	86-03-011	308-96A-040	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-99-020	AMD	86-14-016
308-61-165	REP	86-03-011	308-96A-040	AMD	86-10-040	308-99-021	NEW-E	86-09-013
308-61-168	NEW	86-03-011	308-96A-050	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-99-021	NEW-P	86-09-100
308-61-170	REP	86-03-011	308-96A-050	AMD	86-10-040	308-99-021	NEW	86-14-016
308-61-175	NEW	86-03-011	308-96A-055	REP-P	86-03-010	308-102-090	AMD-P	86-03-083
308-61-180	REP	86-03-011	308-96A-055	REP	86-10-040	308-102-090	AMD	86-07-018
308-61-185	NEW	86-03-011	308-96A-060	REP-P	86-03-010	308-102-100	AMD-P	86-03-083
308-61-190	NEW	86-03-011	308-96A-060	REP	86-10-040	308-102-100	AMD	86-07-018
308-61-205	NEW	86-08-028	308-96A-075	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-102-190	AMD-P	86-03-083
308-61-220	AMD-E	86-16-053	308-96A-075	AMD	86-10-040	308-102-190	AMD	86-07-018
308-61-220	AMD-P	86-16-077	308-96A-100	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-102-200	AMD-P	86-03-083
308-61-305	NEW	86-08-028	308-96A-100	AMD	86-10-040	308-102-200	AMD	86-07-018
308-61-400	AMD	86-08-028	308-96A-105	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-102-265	NEW-P	86-03-083
308-61-405	NEW	86-08-028	308-96A-105	AMD	86-10-040	308-102-265	NEW	86-07-018
308-61-420	AMD-E	86-16-053	308-96A-115	REP-P	86-03-010	308-104-012	NEW-P	86-03-083
308-61-420	AMD-P	86-16-077	308-96A-115	REP	86-10-040	308-104-012	NEW	86-07-018
308-66-110	AMD-E	86-16-026	308-96A-120	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-104-056	AMD-P	86-03-083
308-66-110	AMD-P	86-16-052	308-96A-120	AMD	86-10-040	308-104-056	AMD	86-07-018
308-66-120	AMD-E	86-16-026	308-96A-125	REP-P	86-03-010	308-104-058	REP-P	86-03-083
308-66-120	AMD-P	86-16-052	308-96A-125	REP	86-10-040	308-104-058	REP	86-07-018
308-66-130	REP-E	86-16-026	308-96A-130	REP-P	86-03-010	308-104-080	AMD-P	86-03-083
308-66-130	REP-P	86-16-052	308-96A-130	REP	86-10-040	308-104-080	AMD	86-07-018
308-66-135	NEW	86-08-028	308-96A-135	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-104-090	AMD-P	86-03-083
308-66-140	AMD-E	86-16-026	308-96A-135	AMD	86-10-040	308-104-090	AMD	86-07-018
308-66-140	AMD-P	86-16-052	308-96A-140	REP-P	86-03-010	308-104-100	AMD-P	86-03-083
308-66-145	NEW-E	86-16-026	308-96A-140	REP	86-10-040	308-104-100	AMD	86-07-018
308-66-145	NEW-P	86-16-052	308-96A-145	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-104-105	NEW-P	86-03-083
308-66-155	AMD-E	86-16-026	308-96A-145	AMD	86-10-040	308-104-105	NEW-E	86-03-084
308-66-155	AMD-P	86-16-052	308-96A-155	REP-P	86-03-010	308-104-105	NEW	86-07-018
308-66-157	NEW-E	86-16-026	308-96A-155	REP	86-10-040	308-104-130	AMD-P	86-03-083
308-66-157	NEW-P	86-16-052	308-96A-160	REP-P	86-03-010	308-104-130	AMD	86-07-018
308-66-160	AMD-E	86-16-053	308-96A-160	REP	86-10-040	308-104-135	NEW-P	86-03-083
308-66-160	AMD-P	86-16-077	308-96A-165	REP-P	86-03-010	308-104-135	NEW	86-07-018
308-66-170	AMD-E	86-16-026	308-96A-165	REP	86-10-040	308-104-160	AMD-P	86-03-083
308-66-170	AMD-P	86-16-052	308-96A-170	REP-P	86-03-010	308-104-160	AMD	86-07-018
308-66-180	AMD-E	86-16-026	308-96A-170	REP	86-10-040	308-115-130	AMD-P	86-11-036
308-66-180	AMD-P	86-16-052	308-96A-200	REP-P	86-03-010	308-115-130	AMD	86-16-012
308-66-210	AMD-E	86-16-026	308-96A-200	REP	86-10-040	308-115-180	AMD-P	86-11-036
308-66-210	AMD-P	86-16-052	308-96A-205	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-115-180	AMD	86-16-012
308-66-225	NEW-E	86-16-026	308-96A-205	AMD	86-10-040	308-117-025	AMD-P	86-14-085
308-66-225	NEW-P	86-16-052	308-96A-210	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-117-025	AMD	86-18-031
308-66-230	AMD-E	86-16-026	308-96A-210	AMD	86-10-040	308-117-100	AMD-P	86-14-085
308-66-230	AMD-P	86-16-052	308-96A-215	REP-P	86-03-010	308-117-100	AMD	86-18-031
308-79-050	NEW-E	86-03-071	308-96A-215	REP	86-10-040	308-122-001	NEW-P	86-09-012
308-79-050	NEW-P	86-06-042	308-96A-220	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-122-001	NEW-C	86-13-058
308-79-050	NEW	86-10-003	308-96A-220	AMD	86-10-040	308-122-060	NEW	86-04-087
308-80-015	NEW	86-08-028	308-96A-225	REP-P	86-03-010	308-122-215	AMD	86-04-087
308-93-010	AMD-P	86-07-060	308-96A-225	REP	86-10-040	308-122-500	AMD	86-04-087
308-93-010	AMD	86-10-068	308-96A-230	REP-P	86-03-010	308-122-505	AMD	86-04-087
308-93-072	NEW-P	86-07-060	308-96A-230	REP	86-10-040	308-122-525	AMD	86-04-087
308-93-072	NEW	86-10-068	308-96A-235	REP-P	86-03-010	308-122-630	NEW	86-04-087
308-93-073	NEW-P	86-07-060	308-96A-235	REP	86-10-040	308-122-640	AMD	86-04-087
308-93-073	NEW	86-10-068	308-96A-240	REP-P	86-03-010	308-122-670	NEW	86-04-087
308-93-074	NEW-P	86-07-060	308-96A-240	REP	86-10-040	308-124A-430	NEW-P	86-04-091
308-93-074	NEW	86-10-068	308-96A-260	AMD-P	86-03-010	308-124A-430	NEW	86-11-011
308-93-078	NEW-P	86-07-060	308-96A-260	AMD	86-08-028	308-124A-440	NEW-P	86-04-091
308-93-078	NEW	86-10-068	308-96A-260	AMD	86-10-040	308-124A-440	NEW	86-11-011
308-93-079	NEW-P	86-07-060	308-96A-265	REP-P	86-03-010	308-124A-450	NEW-P	86-04-091

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
308-124A-450	NEW	86-11-011	308-300-310	NEW-P	86-11-062	315-04-190	AMD-E	86-07-029
308-124A-455	NEW-E	86-11-010	308-300-310	NEW-E	86-12-016	315-04-190	AMD-P	86-08-059
308-124C-020	AMD	86-06-011	308-300-310	NEW	86-15-037	315-04-190	AMD	86-12-001
308-124D-040	NEW-P	86-16-068	314-12-030	AMD-P	86-04-033	315-04-230	NEW-E	86-11-039
308-124H-035	NEW-P	86-04-091	314-12-030	AMD	86-07-012	315-04-230	NEW-E	86-17-015
308-124H-035	NEW	86-11-011	314-12-090	AMD-P	86-09-085	315-04-230	NEW-P	86-17-093
308-124H-036	NEW-P	86-04-091	314-12-090	AMD	86-12-021	315-06-120	AMD-E	86-17-015
308-124H-036	NEW	86-11-011	314-12-140	AMD	86-04-003	315-06-120	AMD-P	86-17-093
308-124H-037	NEW-P	86-04-091	314-12-140	AMD-P	86-06-021	315-06-125	NEW-E	86-17-015
308-124H-037	NEW-P	86-11-061	314-12-140	AMD	86-09-019	315-06-125	NEW-P	86-17-093
308-124H-037	NEW	86-16-055	314-16-025	NEW-P	86-07-047	315-10-060	AMD-P	86-08-079
308-124H-040	AMD-P	86-04-091	314-16-025	NEW	86-09-074	315-10-060	AMD	86-12-002
308-124H-040	AMD	86-06-011	314-16-040	AMD-P	86-04-082	315-11-190	NEW-E	86-03-003
308-124H-040	AMD	86-11-011	314-16-040	AMD	86-07-015	315-11-190	NEW-P	86-03-079
308-124H-043	NEW	86-06-011	314-16-075	AMD-P	86-11-046	315-11-190	NEW	86-07-028
308-124H-045	AMD	86-06-011	314-16-075	AMD-P	86-15-039	315-11-191	NEW-E	86-03-003
308-128F-030	REP-E	86-11-018	314-16-075	AMD	86-18-018	315-11-191	NEW-P	86-03-079
308-128F-030	REP-E	86-18-030	314-16-100	REP-P	86-04-049	315-11-191	NEW-E	86-03-080
308-128F-050	AMD-E	86-11-018	314-16-100	REP	86-07-014	315-11-191	NEW	86-07-028
308-128F-050	AMD-E	86-18-030	314-16-115	NEW-E	86-09-027	315-11-192	NEW-E	86-03-003
308-151-110	NEW-P	86-05-033	314-16-115	NEW-P	86-09-086	315-11-192	NEW-P	86-03-079
308-151-110	NEW	86-08-068	314-16-115	NEW	86-12-022	315-11-192	NEW	86-07-028
308-153	AMD-P	86-10-067	314-16-180	AMD-P	86-12-009	315-11-200	NEW-E	86-07-029
308-153	AMD	86-13-070	314-16-180	AMD	86-15-042	315-11-200	NEW-P	86-08-059
308-153-010	AMD-P	86-10-067	314-16-196	AMD-P	86-13-059	315-11-200	NEW	86-12-001
308-153-010	AMD	86-13-070	314-16-196	AMD	86-15-066	315-11-201	NEW-E	86-07-029
308-153-020	AMD-P	86-10-067	314-18-040	AMD-P	86-07-046	315-11-201	NEW-P	86-08-059
308-153-020	AMD	86-13-070	314-18-040	AMD	86-09-075	315-11-201	NEW	86-12-001
308-153-030	AMD-P	86-10-067	314-20-100	AMD-P	86-04-084	315-11-202	NEW-E	86-07-029
308-153-030	AMD	86-13-070	314-20-100	AMD-C	86-07-021	315-11-202	NEW-P	86-08-059
308-153-040	REP-P	86-10-067	314-20-100	AMD-C	86-14-100	315-11-202	NEW	86-12-001
308-153-040	REP	86-13-070	314-20-100	AMD	86-16-060	315-11-210	NEW-P	86-08-079
308-153-045	NEW-P	86-10-067	314-20-105	AMD-P	86-04-084	315-11-210	NEW	86-12-002
308-153-045	NEW	86-13-070	314-20-105	AMD-C	86-07-021	315-11-211	NEW-P	86-08-079
308-154-070	REP-P	86-10-067	314-20-105	AMD-C	86-14-100	315-11-211	NEW	86-12-002
308-154-070	REP	86-13-070	314-20-105	AMD	86-16-060	315-11-212	NEW-P	86-08-079
308-156-075	NEW-P	86-05-033	314-24-070	AMD-P	86-08-095	315-11-212	NEW	86-12-002
308-156-075	NEW	86-08-068	314-24-070	AMD	86-11-014	315-11-220	NEW-E	86-17-015
308-171-001	AMD-P	86-06-054	314-24-080	AMD-P	86-04-083	315-11-220	NEW-P	86-17-093
308-171-001	AMD	86-10-004	314-24-080	AMD	86-07-022	315-11-221	NEW-E	86-17-015
308-171-001	AMD-P	86-14-018	314-24-100	AMD-P	86-08-095	315-11-221	NEW-P	86-17-093
308-171-001	AMD	86-17-064	314-24-100	AMD	86-11-014	315-11-222	NEW-E	86-17-015
308-171-045	NEW-P	86-16-069	314-24-160	AMD-E	86-09-028	315-11-222	NEW-P	86-17-093
308-171-100	AMD-P	86-06-054	314-24-160	AMD-P	86-09-087	315-12-030	AMD-P	86-17-093
308-171-100	AMD	86-10-004	314-24-160	AMD	86-12-023	315-20-090	AMD-E	86-17-015
308-171-103	AMD-P	86-06-054	314-24-190	AMD-P	86-04-084	315-20-090	AMD-P	86-17-093
308-171-103	AMD	86-10-004	314-24-190	AMD-C	86-07-021	315-32-040	AMD-P	86-03-079
308-171-103	AMD-P	86-14-018	314-24-190	AMD-C	86-14-100	315-32-040	AMD	86-07-039
308-171-103	AMD	86-17-064	314-24-190	AMD	86-16-060	315-32-040	AMD-P	86-08-079
308-171-104	NEW-P	86-06-054	314-24-200	AMD-P	86-04-084	315-32-040	AMD-E	86-11-039
308-171-104	NEW	86-10-004	314-24-200	AMD-C	86-07-021	315-32-040	AMD	86-12-002
308-171-104	AMD-P	86-14-018	314-24-200	AMD-C	86-14-100	322-12-010	AMD-E	86-10-073
308-171-104	AMD	86-17-064	314-24-200	AMD	86-16-060	322-12-010	AMD-E	86-17-007
308-171-200	AMD-P	86-06-054	314-28-010	AMD-P	86-04-083	326-02-030	AMD-P	86-14-101
308-171-200	AMD	86-10-004	314-28-010	AMD	86-07-022	326-02-030	AMD	86-17-018
308-171-200	AMD-P	86-14-018	314-37-020	NEW-P	86-04-048	326-08-095	NEW-P	86-14-101
308-171-200	AMD	86-17-064	314-37-020	NEW	86-07-023	326-08-095	NEW	86-17-018
308-171-300	AMD-P	86-14-018	314-40-040	AMD-P	86-04-034	326-20-110	AMD-P	86-14-101
308-171-300	AMD	86-17-064	314-40-040	AMD	86-07-013	326-20-110	AMD	86-17-018
308-171-301	AMD-P	86-14-018	314-52-005	AMD-P	86-12-010	326-20-171	NEW-P	86-14-101
308-171-301	AMD	86-17-064	314-52-005	AMD-E	86-15-013	326-20-171	NEW	86-17-018
308-171-302	NEW-P	86-14-018	314-52-005	AMD	86-15-041	326-20-172	NEW-P	86-14-101
308-171-302	NEW	86-17-064	314-52-020	AMD-P	86-04-001	326-20-172	NEW	86-17-018
308-180-100	NEW-P	86-07-061	314-52-020	AMD-E	86-04-002	326-20-220	AMD-P	86-14-101
308-180-100	NEW	86-10-038	314-52-020	AMD	86-07-019	326-20-220	AMD	86-17-018
308-180-120	NEW-P	86-07-061	314-52-070	AMD-P	86-12-010	326-30-038	NEW-E	86-13-046
308-180-120	NEW	86-10-038	314-52-070	AMD	86-15-041	326-30-038	NEW-P	86-14-101
308-250-010	NEW-P	86-07-062	314-52-113	AMD-P	86-12-010	326-30-038	NEW	86-17-018
308-250-010	NEW	86-10-036	314-52-113	AMD-C	86-15-040	332-12-210	AMD-P	86-04-081
308-250-020	NEW-P	86-07-062	314-52-113	AMD-W	86-16-059	332-12-210	AMD	86-07-027
308-250-020	NEW	86-10-036	314-52-113	AMD-P	86-16-065	332-12-260	AMD-P	86-04-081
308-250-030	NEW-P	86-07-062	314-52-114	AMD-P	86-04-084	332-12-260	AMD	86-07-027
308-250-030	NEW	86-10-036	314-52-114	AMD-C	86-07-021	332-12-262	NEW-P	86-04-081
308-250-040	NEW-P	86-07-062	314-52-114	AMD-C	86-14-100	332-12-262	NEW	86-07-027
308-250-040	NEW	86-10-036	314-52-114	AMD	86-16-060	332-12-310	AMD-P	86-04-081
308-250-050	NEW-P	86-07-062	314-64-080	AMD-P	86-08-096	332-12-310	AMD	86-07-027
308-250-050	NEW	86-10-036	314-64-080	AMD	86-11-015	332-12-360	AMD-P	86-04-081

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
332-12-360	AMD	86-07-027	356-05-010	AMD-P	86-06-056	356-14-031	NEW-P	86-10-070
332-12-390	AMD-P	86-04-081	356-05-010	AMD-C	86-09-054	356-14-031	NEW	86-14-071
332-12-390	AMD	86-07-027	356-05-010	AMD-E	86-09-056	356-14-035	NEW-P	86-10-070
332-16	AMD-C	86-12-017	356-05-010	AMD	86-12-025	356-14-035	NEW	86-14-071
332-16-270	AMD-E	86-09-068	356-05-013	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-14-040	REP-P	86-10-070
332-16-270	AMD-P	86-09-080	356-05-157	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-14-040	REP	86-14-071
332-16-270	AMD	86-14-015	356-05-165	AMD-P	86-06-056	356-14-045	NEW-P	86-10-070
332-16-280	REP-E	86-09-068	356-05-165	AMD-C	86-09-054	356-14-045	NEW	86-14-071
332-16-280	REP-P	86-09-080	356-05-165	AMD-E	86-09-056	356-14-050	REP-P	86-10-070
332-16-280	REP	86-14-015	356-05-165	AMD	86-12-025	356-14-050	REP	86-14-071
332-26-010	NEW-E	86-15-053	356-05-190	REP-P	86-06-056	356-14-050	NEW-P	86-10-070
332-26-020	NEW-E	86-15-031	356-05-190	REP-C	86-09-054	356-14-075	AMD-P	86-10-070
332-26-020	AMD-E	86-15-053	356-05-190	REP-E	86-09-056	356-14-075	AMD-C	86-13-048
332-26-040	NEW-E	86-15-031	356-05-190	REP	86-12-025	356-14-075	AMD-C	86-15-019
332-26-050	NEW-E	86-15-031	356-05-210	AMD-P	86-06-056	356-14-075	AMD	86-17-038
332-26-060	NEW-E	86-15-031	356-05-210	AMD-C	86-09-054	356-14-240	AMD-P	86-06-056
332-26-060	AMD-E	86-15-053	356-05-210	AMD-E	86-09-056	356-14-240	AMD-C	86-09-054
332-26-080	NEW-E	86-09-041	356-05-210	AMD	86-12-025	356-14-240	AMD-E	86-09-056
332-26-080	REP-E	86-10-011	356-05-231	NEW-P	86-08-089	356-14-240	AMD	86-12-025
332-26-080a	NEW-E	86-10-011	356-05-231	NEW-E	86-09-057	356-14-250	AMD-P	86-06-056
332-26-081	NEW-E	86-13-021	356-05-231	NEW	86-12-025	356-14-250	AMD-C	86-09-054
332-26-082	NEW-E	86-14-070	356-05-233	NEW-P	86-06-056	356-14-250	AMD-E	86-09-056
332-26-083	NEW-E	86-17-005	356-05-233	NEW-C	86-09-054	356-14-250	AMD	86-12-025
332-26-083	REP-E	86-17-020	356-05-233	NEW-E	86-09-056	356-14-265	NEW-P	86-06-056
332-26-083a	NEW-E	86-17-020	356-05-233	NEW	86-12-025	356-14-265	NEW-C	86-09-054
332-26-083a	REP-E	86-17-059	356-05-237	NEW-P	86-08-089	356-14-265	NEW-E	86-09-056
332-26-083b	NEW-E	86-17-059	356-05-237	NEW-E	86-09-057	356-14-265	NEW	86-12-025
332-26-084	NEW-E	86-17-006	356-05-237	NEW	86-12-025	356-14-270	REP-P	86-06-056
332-26-084	REP-E	86-17-019	356-05-315	AMD-P	86-06-056	356-14-270	REP-C	86-09-054
332-26-084a	NEW-E	86-17-019	356-05-315	AMD-C	86-09-054	356-14-270	REP-E	86-09-056
332-26-084a	REP-E	86-17-024	356-05-315	AMD-E	86-09-056	356-14-270	REP	86-12-025
332-26-084b	NEW-E	86-17-024	356-05-315	AMD	86-12-025	356-15-020	AMD-P	86-06-056
332-26-084b	REP-E	86-17-050	356-05-327	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-15-020	AMD-C	86-09-054
332-26-084c	NEW-E	86-17-050	356-05-332	NEW-P	86-06-056	356-15-020	AMD-E	86-09-056
332-26-084c	REP-E	86-18-006	356-05-332	NEW-C	86-09-054	356-15-020	AMD	86-12-025
332-26-084c	REP-E	86-18-011	356-05-332	NEW-E	86-09-056	356-15-030	AMD-P	86-06-056
332-26-085	NEW-E	86-17-092	356-05-332	NEW	86-12-025	356-15-030	AMD-C	86-09-054
332-26-086	NEW-E	86-18-006	356-05-333	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-15-030	AMD-E	86-09-056
332-26-086	AMD-E	86-18-011	356-05-353	NEW-P	86-06-056	356-15-030	AMD	86-12-025
332-26-086	REP-E	86-18-015	356-05-353	NEW-C	86-09-054	356-15-030	AMD-E	86-17-037
332-26-086	REP-E	86-18-016	356-05-353	NEW-E	86-09-056	356-15-030	AMD-P	86-18-048
332-26-086a	NEW-E	86-18-015	356-05-353	NEW	86-12-025	356-15-035	NEW-P	86-06-056
332-26-086a	AMD-E	86-18-016	356-05-390	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-15-035	NEW-C	86-09-054
332-26-086a	REP-E	86-18-050	356-05-397	NEW-P	86-10-070	356-15-035	NEW-E	86-09-056
332-26-086b	NEW-E	86-18-050	356-05-397	NEW-E	86-12-026	356-15-035	NEW	86-12-025
332-26-086b	REP-E	86-18-053	356-05-397	NEW	86-14-071	356-15-040	AMD-P	86-08-089
332-26-086c	NEW-E	86-18-053	356-05-447	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-15-040	AMD-E	86-09-057
332-26-087	NEW-E	86-18-011	356-05-470	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-15-040	AMD	86-12-025
332-26-087	REP-E	86-18-015	356-05-483	NEW-P	86-06-056	356-15-050	AMD-P	86-06-056
332-26-087	REP-E	86-18-016	356-05-483	NEW-C	86-09-054	356-15-050	AMD-C	86-09-054
332-26-087a	NEW-E	86-18-015	356-05-483	NEW-E	86-09-056	356-15-050	AMD-E	86-09-056
332-26-087a	AMD-E	86-18-016	356-05-500	AMD-P	86-18-048	356-15-050	AMD	86-12-025
332-26-087a	REP-E	86-18-050	356-06-001	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-15-060	AMD-E	86-06-016
332-26-087b	NEW-E	86-18-050	356-06-080	AMD-P	86-08-090	356-15-060	AMD	86-06-017
332-26-088	NEW-E	86-18-053	356-06-080	AMD	86-12-036	356-15-060	AMD-P	86-06-056
332-140-300	AMD-E	86-12-008	356-07-040	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-15-060	AMD-C	86-09-054
352-32-010	AMD	86-06-020	356-07-060	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-15-060	AMD-E	86-09-056
352-32-030	AMD	86-06-020	356-09-010	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-15-060	AMD	86-12-025
352-32-040	AMD	86-06-020	356-09-011	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-15-061	AMD-P	86-12-052
352-32-050	AMD	86-06-020	356-09-013	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-15-061	AMD-C	86-15-019
352-32-053	NEW	86-06-020	356-09-030	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-15-061	AMD-C	86-17-036
352-32-056	NEW	86-06-020	356-09-050	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-15-080	AMD-P	86-06-056
352-32-060	AMD-P	86-16-037	356-09-070	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-15-080	AMD-C	86-09-054
352-32-080	AMD	86-06-020	356-09-090	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-15-080	AMD-E	86-09-056
352-32-090	AMD	86-06-020	356-10-060	AMD-P	86-18-048	356-15-080	AMD	86-12-025
352-32-120	AMD	86-06-020	356-14-010	AMD-P	86-10-070	356-15-085	NEW-P	86-08-088
352-32-155	NEW-P	86-08-097	356-14-010	AMD	86-14-071	356-15-085	NEW-E	86-09-057
352-32-155	NEW-E	86-11-052	356-14-015	NEW-P	86-10-070	356-15-085	NEW	86-12-025
352-32-155	NEW	86-11-053	356-14-015	NEW	86-14-071	356-15-090	AMD-P	86-06-056
352-32-157	NEW-P	86-08-097	356-14-020	REP-P	86-10-070	356-15-090	AMD-C	86-09-054
352-32-157	NEW-E	86-11-052	356-14-020	REP	86-14-071	356-15-090	AMD-E	86-09-056
352-32-157	NEW	86-11-053	356-14-021	NEW-P	86-10-070	356-15-090	AMD	86-12-025
352-32-165	AMD-P	86-04-085	356-14-021	NEW	86-14-071	356-15-100	AMD-E	86-06-016
352-32-165	AMD	86-08-014	356-14-026	NEW-P	86-10-070	356-15-100	AMD	86-06-017
352-32-210	AMD	86-06-020	356-14-026	NEW	86-14-071	356-15-100	AMD-P	86-08-089
352-32-210	AMD-P	86-10-058	356-14-030	REP-P	86-10-070	356-15-100	AMD-E	86-09-057
352-32-210	AMD	86-14-025	356-14-030	REP	86-14-071	356-15-100	AMD	86-12-025

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
356-15-110	AMD-P	86-08-089	356-34-250	REP	86-08-035	360-60-060	NEW-P	86-14-109
356-15-110	AMD-E	86-09-057	356-34-260	AMD-P	86-04-044	360-60-070	NEW-P	86-07-063
356-15-110	AMD	86-12-025	356-34-260	AMD	86-08-035	360-60-070	NEW-P	86-14-109
356-15-140	NEW-P	86-12-052	356-34-270	REP-P	86-04-044	360-60-080	NEW-P	86-07-063
356-15-140	NEW-C	86-15-019	356-34-270	REP	86-08-035	360-60-080	NEW-P	86-14-109
356-15-140	NEW-C	86-17-036	356-34-280	REP-P	86-04-044	360-60-090	NEW-P	86-07-063
356-18-010	REP-P	86-06-056	356-34-280	REP	86-08-035	360-60-100	NEW-P	86-07-063
356-18-010	REP-C	86-09-054	356-34-290	REP-P	86-04-044	360-60-110	NEW-P	86-07-063
356-18-010	REP-E	86-09-056	356-34-290	REP	86-08-035	360-60-120	NEW-P	86-07-063
356-18-010	REP	86-12-025	356-34-300	REP-P	86-04-044	360-60-130	NEW-P	86-07-063
356-18-050	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-34-300	REP	86-08-035	365-40-020	AMD-P	86-10-061
356-18-060	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-35-010	AMD-P	86-14-092	365-40-020	AMD	86-18-026
356-18-090	AMD-P	86-08-090	356-39-070	AMD-P	86-14-092	365-40-041	AMD-P	86-10-061
356-18-090	AMD-C	86-11-007	356-46-020	AMD-P	86-14-092	365-40-041	AMD	86-18-026
356-18-090	AMD-C	86-13-048	356-47	AMD-C	86-03-041	365-40-051	AMD-P	86-10-061
356-18-090	AMD-C	86-15-019	356-47	AMD-C	86-06-015	365-40-051	AMD	86-18-026
356-18-090	AMD-C	86-17-035	356-47	AMD-C	86-09-055	365-40-061		86-10-061
356-18-115	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-010	AMD	86-12-035	365-40-071	AMD-P	86-10-061
356-18-116	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-030	AMD	86-12-035	365-40-071	AMD	86-18-026
356-18-120	AMD-P	86-10-070	356-47-040	AMD	86-12-035	365-120-010	NEW	86-03-008
356-18-120	AMD	86-14-071	356-47-045	NEW	86-12-035	365-120-020	NEW	86-03-008
356-18-140	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-046	NEW	86-12-035	365-120-030	NEW	86-03-008
356-18-220	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-046	AMD-E	86-14-082	365-120-030	AMD-E	86-14-089
356-22-010	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-046	AMD-P	86-14-091	365-120-030	AMD-P	86-15-033
356-22-040	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-046	AMD	86-17-039	365-120-040	NEW	86-03-008
356-22-070	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-050	REP	86-12-035	365-120-040	AMD-E	86-14-089
356-22-080	AMD-P	86-04-043	356-47-051	REP	86-12-035	365-120-040	AMD-P	86-15-033
356-22-080	AMD	86-08-035	356-47-052	REP	86-12-035	365-120-050	NEW	86-03-008
356-22-100	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-060	AMD	86-12-035	365-120-050	AMD-E	86-14-089
356-22-180	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-065	NEW	86-12-035	365-120-050	AMD-P	86-15-033
356-22-190	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-070	AMD	86-12-035	365-120-060	NEW	86-03-008
356-26-010	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-080	AMD	86-12-035	365-120-060	AMD-E	86-14-089
356-26-020	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-090	AMD	86-12-035	365-120-060	AMD-P	86-15-033
356-26-040	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-100	AMD	86-12-035	365-130-010	NEW-P	86-04-046
356-26-060	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-110	REP	86-12-035	365-130-010	NEW-E	86-04-047
356-26-060	AMD-P	86-18-048	356-47-120	REP-P	86-06-055	365-130-010	NEW	86-06-024
356-26-070	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-47-120	REP-C	86-09-055	365-130-020	NEW-P	86-04-046
356-26-080	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-48-010	NEW-P	86-10-070	365-130-020	NEW-E	86-04-047
356-26-090	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-48-010	NEW-E	86-11-006	365-130-020	NEW	86-06-024
356-26-130	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-48-010	NEW	86-13-049	365-130-030	NEW-P	86-04-046
356-30-010	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-48-020	NEW-P	86-10-070	365-130-030	NEW-E	86-04-047
356-30-011	NEW-P	86-14-092	356-48-020	NEW-E	86-11-006	365-130-030	NEW	86-06-024
356-30-050	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-48-020	NEW	86-13-049	365-130-040	NEW-P	86-04-046
356-30-075	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-48-030	NEW-P	86-10-070	365-130-040	NEW-E	86-04-047
356-30-300	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-48-030	NEW-E	86-11-006	365-130-040	NEW	86-06-024
356-30-310	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-48-030	NEW	86-13-049	365-130-040	NEW-P	86-04-046
356-30-330	AMD-P	86-08-090	356-48-040	NEW-P	86-10-070	365-130-050	NEW-E	86-04-047
356-30-330	AMD-C	86-11-007	356-48-040	NEW-E	86-11-006	365-130-060	NEW-P	86-04-046
356-30-330	AMD-C	86-13-048	356-48-040	NEW	86-13-049	365-130-060	NEW-E	86-04-047
356-34-010	AMD-P	86-14-092	356-48-050	NEW-P	86-10-070	365-130-060	NEW	86-08-043
356-34-085	REP-P	86-04-044	356-48-050	NEW-E	86-11-006	365-140-010	NEW	86-08-043
356-34-085	REP	86-08-035	356-48-050	NEW	86-13-049	365-140-020	NEW	86-08-043
356-34-090	AMD-P	86-04-044	356-48-060	NEW-P	86-10-070	365-140-030	AMD-E	86-14-088
356-34-090	AMD	86-08-035	356-48-060	NEW-E	86-11-006	365-140-030	AMD-P	86-15-034
356-34-10501	REP-P	86-04-044	356-48-060	NEW	86-13-049	365-140-040	NEW	86-08-043
356-34-10501	REP	86-08-035	360-20-200	NEW-E	86-14-052	365-140-040	AMD-E	86-14-088
356-34-110	AMD-P	86-04-044	360-20-200	NEW-P	86-14-108	365-140-040	AMD-P	86-15-034
356-34-110	AMD	86-08-035	360-20-200	NEW	86-18-023	365-140-050	NEW	86-08-043
356-34-113	AMD-P	86-04-044	360-20-200	REP-P	86-18-071	365-140-050	AMD-E	86-14-088
356-34-113	AMD	86-08-035	360-20-210	NEW-P	86-18-071	365-140-050	AMD-P	86-15-034
356-34-118	AMD-P	86-04-044	360-36-410	AMD-E	86-13-011	365-140-060	NEW	86-08-043
356-34-118	AMD	86-08-035	360-36-410	AMD-P	86-13-068	365-140-060	AMD-E	86-14-088
356-34-120	REP-P	86-04-044	360-36-410	AMD	86-16-057	365-140-060	AMD-P	86-15-034
356-34-120	REP	86-08-035	360-36-420	AMD-E	86-13-011	365-150-010	NEW-P	86-12-078
356-34-140	AMD-P	86-04-044	360-36-420	AMD-P	86-13-068	365-150-010	NEW	86-15-067
356-34-140	AMD	86-08-035	360-36-420	AMD	86-16-057	365-150-020	NEW-P	86-12-078
356-34-150	AMD-P	86-04-044	360-60-010	NEW-P	86-07-063	365-150-020	NEW	86-15-067
356-34-150	AMD	86-08-035	360-60-010	NEW-P	86-14-109	365-150-030	NEW-P	86-12-078
356-34-160	AMD-P	86-04-044	360-60-020	NEW-P	86-07-063	365-150-030	NEW	86-15-067
356-34-160	AMD	86-08-035	360-60-020	NEW-P	86-14-109	365-150-040	NEW-P	86-12-078
356-34-210	AMD-P	86-04-044	360-60-030	NEW-P	86-07-063	365-150-040	NEW	86-15-067
356-34-210	AMD	86-08-035	360-60-030	NEW-P	86-14-109	365-150-050	NEW-P	86-12-078
356-34-220	AMD-P	86-04-044	360-60-040	NEW-P	86-07-063	365-150-050	NEW	86-15-067
356-34-220	AMD	86-08-035	360-60-040	NEW-P	86-14-109	365-150-060	NEW-P	86-12-078
356-34-230	AMD-P	86-04-044	360-60-050	NEW-P	86-07-063	365-150-060	NEW	86-15-067
356-34-230	AMD	86-08-035	360-60-050	NEW-P	86-14-109	365-150-070	NEW-P	86-12-078
356-34-250	REP-P	86-04-044	360-60-060	NEW-P	86-07-063	365-150-070	NEW	86-15-067

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
365-150-080	NEW-P	86-12-078	388-15-551	AMD	86-16-019	388-38-200	AMD-E	86-08-020
365-150-080	NEW	86-15-067	388-15-552	AMD-P	86-10-029	388-38-200	AMD	86-11-060
365-150-090	NEW-P	86-12-078	388-15-552	AMD	86-16-019	388-38-270	AMD-P	86-03-076
365-150-090	NEW	86-15-067	388-15-553	AMD-P	86-10-029	388-38-270	AMD	86-07-002
365-160-010	NEW-E	86-13-062	388-15-553	AMD	86-16-019	388-38-280	AMD-P	86-04-073
365-160-020	NEW-E	86-13-062	388-15-554	AMD-P	86-10-029	388-38-280	AMD	86-08-004
365-160-030	NEW-E	86-13-062	388-15-554	AMD	86-16-019	388-38-280	AMD-P	86-18-056
365-160-040	NEW-E	86-13-062	388-15-555	AMD-P	86-10-029	388-42-040	AMD-P	86-08-057
365-170-010	NEW-E	86-18-073	388-15-555	AMD	86-16-019	388-42-040	AMD	86-11-023
365-170-020	NEW-E	86-18-073	388-15-560	AMD-P	86-10-029	388-44-010	AMD	86-04-014
365-170-030	NEW-E	86-18-073	388-15-560	AMD	86-16-019	388-44-025	REP	86-04-014
365-170-040	NEW-E	86-18-073	388-15-562	AMD-P	86-10-029	388-44-035	AMD	86-04-014
365-170-050	NEW-E	86-18-073	388-15-562	AMD	86-16-019	388-44-110	AMD	86-04-014
365-170-060	NEW-E	86-18-073	388-15-564	AMD-P	86-10-029	388-44-115	AMD	86-04-014
365-170-070	NEW-E	86-18-073	388-15-564	AMD	86-16-019	388-44-125	AMD	86-04-014
365-170-080	NEW-E	86-18-073	388-15-566	AMD-P	86-10-029	388-44-130	REP	86-04-014
365-170-090	NEW-E	86-18-073	388-15-566	AMD	86-16-019	388-44-140	AMD	86-04-014
381	AMD	86-14-032	388-15-568	AMD-P	86-10-029	388-44-145	AMD	86-04-014
383-06	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-568	AMD	86-16-019	388-44-150	AMD	86-04-014
383-06-010	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-600	AMD-P	86-08-053	388-54-601	AMD-P	86-03-006
383-06-020	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-600	AMD-E	86-08-058	388-54-601	AMD	86-08-032
383-06-030	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-600	AMD	86-11-024	388-54-610	AMD-P	86-18-063
383-06-040	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-610	AMD-P	86-08-053	388-54-655	AMD-P	86-03-006
383-06-045	NEW	86-04-039	388-15-610	AMD-E	86-08-058	388-54-655	AMD	86-08-032
383-06-050	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-610	AMD	86-11-024	388-54-670	AMD-E	86-15-012
383-06-060	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-620	AMD-P	86-08-053	388-54-670	AMD-P	86-15-089
383-06-070	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-620	AMD-E	86-08-058	388-54-670	AMD	86-18-060
383-06-080	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-620	AMD	86-11-024	388-54-677	AMD-P	86-05-028
383-06-090	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-630	AMD-P	86-08-053	388-54-677	AMD-E	86-05-030
383-06-100	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-630	AMD-E	86-08-058	388-54-677	AMD	86-08-084
383-06-110	AMD	86-04-039	388-15-630	AMD	86-11-024	388-54-690	AMD-P	86-13-004
383-06-120	AMD	86-04-039	388-24-044	AMD-P	86-12-038	388-54-690	AMD-E	86-17-012
383-06-130	AMD	86-04-039	388-24-044	AMD	86-16-044	388-54-690	AMD	86-17-013
383-06-140	AMD	86-04-039	388-24-065	AMD-P	86-10-031	388-54-720	AMD-P	86-13-004
388-11-030	AMD	86-05-009	388-24-065	AMD-E	86-10-032	388-54-720	AMD-E	86-17-012
388-11-065	AMD	86-05-009	388-24-065	AMD	86-13-064	388-54-720	AMD	86-17-013
388-11-100	AMD	86-05-009	388-28-482	AMD-P	86-04-013	388-54-725	AMD-P	86-13-004
388-11-150	AMD	86-05-009	388-28-482	AMD	86-08-008	388-54-725	AMD-E	86-17-012
388-13-020	AMD	86-05-009	388-29-100	AMD-P	86-13-007	388-54-725	AMD	86-17-013
388-13-070	AMD	86-05-009	388-29-100	AMD	86-16-048	388-54-730	AMD-P	86-16-042
388-14-010	AMD	86-05-009	388-29-295	AMD-E	86-10-024	388-54-730	AMD-E	86-16-043
388-14-020	AMD	86-05-009	388-29-295	AMD-P	86-10-030	388-54-735	AMD-P	86-13-004
388-14-205	AMD	86-05-009	388-29-295	AMD	86-14-061	388-54-735	AMD-E	86-17-012
388-14-270	AMD	86-05-009	388-33-355	AMD-P	86-07-025	388-54-735	AMD	86-17-013
388-14-302	AMD	86-05-009	388-33-355	AMD	86-10-023	388-54-740	AMD-P	86-13-004
388-14-305	AMD	86-05-009	388-33-376	AMD-P	86-07-025	388-54-740	AMD-E	86-17-012
388-14-310	AMD	86-05-009	388-33-376	AMD	86-10-023	388-54-740	AMD	86-17-013
388-14-320	AMD	86-05-009	388-33-576	AMD-P	86-18-057	388-54-750	AMD-P	86-08-019
388-14-325	AMD	86-05-009	388-33-385	AMD-P	86-05-008	388-54-750	AMD-E	86-08-022
388-14-385	AMD	86-05-009	388-33-385	AMD	86-09-081	388-54-750	AMD	86-11-026
388-14-400	NEW	86-05-009	388-37-010	AMD-P	86-08-016	388-54-768	AMD-P	86-15-088
388-14-405	NEW	86-05-009	388-37-010	AMD	86-11-021	388-54-768	AMD	86-18-058
388-14-410	NEW	86-05-009	388-38-010	AMD-P	86-08-018	388-54-850	AMD-P	86-15-090
388-14-415	NEW	86-05-009	388-38-010	AMD-E	86-08-020	388-54-850	AMD	86-18-059
388-15-120	AMD-P	86-16-040	388-38-010	AMD	86-11-060	388-57-120	NEW-P	86-13-063
388-15-140	REP-P	86-10-029	388-38-030	AMD-P	86-08-018	388-57-120	NEW	86-16-047
388-15-140	REP	86-16-019	388-38-030	AMD-E	86-08-020	388-57-121	NEW-P	86-13-063
388-15-145	AMD-P	86-07-053	388-38-030	AMD	86-11-060	388-57-121	NEW	86-16-047
388-15-145	AMD	86-10-021	388-38-040	AMD-P	86-08-018	388-57-122	NEW-P	86-13-063
388-15-170	AMD-E	86-03-077	388-38-040	AMD-E	86-08-020	388-57-122	NEW	86-16-047
388-15-170	AMD	86-03-078	388-38-040	AMD	86-11-060	388-57-123	NEW-P	86-13-063
388-15-170	AMD-P	86-09-032	388-38-045	NEW-P	86-08-018	388-57-123	NEW	86-16-047
388-15-170	AMD-E	86-10-020	388-38-045	NEW-E	86-08-020	388-57-124	NEW-P	86-13-063
388-15-170	AMD	86-12-051	388-38-045	NEW	86-11-060	388-57-124	NEW	86-16-047
388-15-173	REP-E	86-03-077	388-38-110	AMD-P	86-08-018	388-57-125	NEW-P	86-13-063
388-15-173	REP	86-03-078	388-38-110	AMD-E	86-08-020	388-57-125	NEW	86-16-047
388-15-208	AMD-P	86-09-047	388-38-110	AMD	86-11-060	388-70-013	AMD	86-04-030
388-15-208	AMD	86-12-040	388-38-120	AMD-P	86-08-018	388-70-042	AMD	86-04-030
388-15-209	AMD-P	86-09-047	388-38-120	AMD-E	86-08-020	388-70-044	AMD	86-04-030
388-15-209	AMD	86-12-040	388-38-120	AMD	86-11-060	388-70-048	AMD	86-04-030
388-15-212	AMD-P	86-09-047	388-38-150	AMD-P	86-08-018	388-73	AMD-C	86-18-001
388-15-212	AMD	86-12-040	388-38-150	AMD-E	86-08-020	388-73-012	AMD-P	86-12-020
388-15-213	AMD-P	86-05-006	388-38-150	AMD	86-11-060	388-73-014	AMD-P	86-12-020
388-15-213	AMD	86-08-085	388-38-172	AMD-P	86-08-018	388-73-022	AMD-P	86-12-020
388-15-548	NEW-P	86-10-029	388-38-172	AMD-E	86-08-020	388-73-036	AMD-P	86-12-020
388-15-548	NEW	86-16-019	388-38-172	AMD	86-11-060	388-73-048	AMD-P	86-12-020
388-15-551	AMD-P	86-10-029	388-38-200	AMD-P	86-08-018	388-73-054	AMD-P	86-12-020

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #	WAC #		WSR #
388-73-056	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-86-060	REP-E	86-04-007	390-16-033	NEW-P	86-11-049
388-73-062	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-86-060	REP-P	86-04-008	390-16-033	NEW-E	86-12-060
388-73-068	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-86-060	REP	86-09-007	390-16-033	NEW	86-14-056
388-73-069	NEW-P	86-12-020	388-86-095	AMD-P	86-14-067	390-16-036	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-070	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-86-095	AMD-E	86-14-074	390-16-038	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-074	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-86-095	AMD	86-18-003	390-16-039	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-076	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-86-100	AMD	86-03-047	390-16-041	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-100	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-87-070	AMD-P	86-18-078	390-16-041	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-73-102	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-87-110	NEW	86-03-047	390-16-041	AMD	86-08-030
388-73-106	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-92-015	AMD	86-03-045	390-16-050	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-108	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-95-320	AMD-E	86-04-019	390-16-055	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-112	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-95-320	AMD-P	86-04-020	390-16-060	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-114	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-95-320	AMD	86-08-005	390-16-061	REP	86-04-071
388-73-116	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-95-335	AMD-P	86-14-068	390-16-105	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-118	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-95-335	AMD-E	86-14-075	390-16-110	REP	86-04-071
388-73-120	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-95-335	AMD	86-18-005	390-16-111	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-132	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-95-340	AMD-P	86-14-068	390-16-115	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-134	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-95-340	AMD-E	86-14-075	390-16-120	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-136	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-95-340	AMD	86-18-005	390-16-125	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-138	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-122	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-16-150	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-142	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-122	AMD	86-10-055	390-16-155	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-144	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-502	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-16-206	AMD-C	86-04-052
388-73-146	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-502	AMD	86-10-055	390-16-206	AMD-C	86-06-049
388-73-202	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-533	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-16-206	AMD	86-08-030
388-73-208	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-533	AMD	86-10-055	390-16-207	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-212	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-535	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-16-220	REP	86-04-071
388-73-214	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-535	AMD	86-10-055	390-16-221	NEW	86-04-071
388-73-216	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-559	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-16-225	REP	86-04-071
388-73-300	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-559	AMD	86-10-055	390-16-230	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-304	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-565	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-16-306	AMD	86-04-071
388-73-310	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-565	AMD	86-10-055	390-18-040	NEW-P	86-04-053
388-73-402	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-567	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-18-040	NEW-C	86-08-029
388-73-403	NEW-P	86-12-020	388-96-567	AMD	86-10-055	390-18-040	NEW-C	86-10-012
388-73-406	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-585	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-18-040	NEW	86-12-059
388-73-409	NEW-P	86-12-020	388-96-585	AMD	86-10-055	390-20-141	NEW-P	86-06-050
388-73-410	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-722	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-20-141	NEW-C	86-10-013
388-73-414	NEW-P	86-12-020	388-96-722	AMD	86-10-055	390-20-141	NEW-C	86-12-058
388-73-422	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-752	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-20-141	NEW	86-14-056
388-73-424	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-754	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-24-010	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-73-436	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-754	AMD	86-10-055	390-24-010	AMD	86-08-030
388-73-440	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-769	AMD-P	86-07-054	390-24-010	AMD-P	86-15-065
388-73-450	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-96-769	AMD	86-10-055	390-24-020	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-73-702	AMD-P	86-12-020	388-99-010	AMD-E	86-04-019	390-24-020	AMD	86-08-030
388-82-010	AMD-E	86-04-019	388-99-010	AMD-P	86-04-020	390-24-020	AMD-P	86-15-065
388-82-010	AMD-P	86-04-020	388-99-010	AMD	86-08-005	390-24-025	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-82-010	AMD-P	86-08-031	388-99-010	AMD-P	86-08-031	390-24-025	AMD	86-08-030
388-82-010	AMD-E	86-08-033	388-99-010	AMD-E	86-08-033	390-24-025	AMD-P	86-15-065
388-82-010	AMD	86-11-025	388-99-010	AMD	86-11-025	390-24-030	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-82-115	AMD-P	86-08-031	388-99-011	NEW-E	86-17-058	390-24-030	AMD	86-08-030
388-82-115	AMD-E	86-08-033	388-99-011	NEW-P	86-17-074	390-24-032	NEW-P	86-13-006
388-82-115	AMD	86-11-025	388-99-020	AMD-E	86-03-066	390-24-032	NEW-C	86-14-055
388-83-031	NEW-E	86-17-058	388-99-020	AMD-P	86-03-069	390-24-100	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-83-031	NEW-P	86-17-074	388-99-020	AMD	86-07-003	390-24-100	AMD	86-08-030
388-83-130	AMD-P	86-16-081	388-99-030	AMD-P	86-12-042	390-24-105	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-83-130	AMD-E	86-16-082	388-99-030	AMD-E	86-12-043	390-24-105	AMD	86-08-030
388-84-110	AMD-P	86-08-017	388-99-030	AMD	86-17-022	390-24-110	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-84-110	AMD-E	86-08-021	388-99-050	AMD-P	86-12-042	390-24-110	AMD	86-08-030
388-84-110	AMD	86-11-022	388-99-050	AMD-E	86-12-043	390-24-160	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-84-110	AMD-P	86-12-042	388-99-050	AMD	86-17-022	390-24-160	AMD	86-08-030
388-84-110	AMD-E	86-12-043	388-100-005	AMD-E	86-04-007	390-24-200	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-84-110	AMD	86-17-022	388-100-005	AMD-P	86-04-008	390-24-200	AMD	86-08-030
388-85-105	AMD-P	86-16-041	388-100-005	AMD	86-09-007	390-24-205	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-85-105	AMD-E	86-16-046	388-100-010	AMD-P	86-08-031	390-24-205	AMD	86-08-030
388-85-115	AMD-E	86-03-067	388-100-010	AMD-E	86-08-033	390-24-210	AMD-P	86-05-041
388-85-115	AMD-P	86-03-068	388-100-010	AMD	86-11-025	390-24-210	AMD	86-08-030
388-85-115	AMD	86-07-004	389-12-010	AMD-P	86-10-063	390-32-020	AMD-P	86-04-053
388-86-009	NEW	86-03-046	389-12-010	AMD	86-14-005	390-32-020	AMD	86-08-030
388-86-009	NEW-E	86-04-041	389-12-020	AMD-P	86-10-063	390-37-030	AMD	86-04-071
388-86-009	AMD-P	86-13-033	389-12-020	AMD	86-14-005	390-37-060	AMD	86-04-071
388-86-009	AMD	86-16-045	389-12-071	NEW-P	86-10-063	390-37-063	AMD	86-04-071
388-86-009	AMD	86-17-021	389-12-071	NEW	86-14-005	390-37-070	AMD	86-04-071
388-86-00901	NEW-P	86-18-028	389-12-075	NEW-P	86-10-063	390-37-090	AMD	86-04-071
388-86-00901	NEW-E	86-18-029	389-12-075	NEW	86-14-005	390-37-100	AMD	86-04-071
388-86-040	AMD-P	86-07-052	389-12-140	NEW-P	86-10-063	390-37-210	AMD	86-04-071
388-86-040	AMD	86-10-022	389-12-140	NEW	86-14-005	391-45-171	REP-P	86-08-041
388-86-050	AMD-P	86-11-045	390-16-011	AMD	86-04-071	391-45-171	REP	86-11-054
388-86-050	AMD	86-14-099	390-16-031	AMD	86-04-071	392-126-120	AMD-E	86-17-045

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
392-126-120	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-355	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-610	REP-P	86-17-088
392-126-225	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-355	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-615	REP-E	86-17-047
392-126-225	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-360	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-615	REP-P	86-17-088
392-126-230	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-360	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-620	REP-E	86-17-047
392-126-230	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-365	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-620	REP-P	86-17-088
392-126-255	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-365	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-625	REP-E	86-17-047
392-126-255	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-370	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-625	REP-P	86-17-088
392-126-260	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-370	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-630	REP-E	86-17-047
392-126-260	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-371	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-127-630	REP-P	86-17-088
392-126-285	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-371	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-127-635	REP-E	86-17-047
392-126-285	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-375	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-635	REP-P	86-17-088
392-126-290	NEW-E	86-17-045	392-127-375	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-640	REP-E	86-17-047
392-126-290	NEW-P	86-17-087	392-127-380	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-640	REP-P	86-17-088
392-126-291	NEW-E	86-17-045	392-127-380	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-645	AMD-E	86-17-047
392-126-291	NEW-P	86-17-087	392-127-385	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-645	AMD-P	86-17-088
392-126-325	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-385	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-650	AMD-E	86-17-047
392-126-325	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-386	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-127-650	AMD-P	86-17-088
392-126-330	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-386	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-127-651	NEW-E	86-17-047
392-126-330	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-387	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-127-651	NEW-P	86-17-088
392-126-355	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-387	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-127-655	AMD-E	86-17-047
392-126-355	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-390	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-655	AMD-P	86-17-088
392-126-360	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-390	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-660	REP-E	86-17-047
392-126-360	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-395	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-660	REP-P	86-17-088
392-126-385	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-395	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-665	AMD-E	86-17-047
392-126-385	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-396	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-665	AMD-P	86-17-088
392-126-390	NEW-E	86-17-045	392-127-396	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-670	AMD-E	86-17-047
392-126-390	NEW-P	86-17-087	392-127-397	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-127-670	AMD-P	86-17-088
392-126-391	NEW-E	86-17-045	392-127-397	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-127-675	REP-E	86-17-047
392-126-391	NEW-P	86-17-087	392-127-500	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-675	REP-P	86-17-088
392-126-392	NEW-E	86-17-045	392-127-500	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-676	NEW-E	86-17-047
392-126-392	NEW-P	86-17-087	392-127-505	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-676	NEW-P	86-17-088
392-126-700	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-505	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-677	NEW-E	86-17-047
392-126-700	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-510	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-677	NEW-P	86-17-088
392-126-800	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-510	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-678	NEW-E	86-17-047
392-126-800	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-515	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-678	NEW-P	86-17-088
392-126-815	AMD-E	86-17-045	392-127-515	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-679	NEW-E	86-17-047
392-126-815	AMD-P	86-17-087	392-127-520	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-679	NEW-P	86-17-088
392-127	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-520	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-680	NEW-E	86-17-047
392-127	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-525	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-680	NEW-P	86-17-088
392-127-005	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-525	REP-P	86-17-088	392-129-013	AMD-P	86-05-035
392-127-005	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-530	REP-E	86-17-047	392-129-013	AMD	86-08-076
392-127-010	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-530	REP-P	86-17-088	392-129-015	AMD-E	86-15-052
392-127-010	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-535	REP-E	86-17-047	392-140-075	NEW-P	86-05-036
392-127-115	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-127-535	REP-P	86-17-088	392-140-075	NEW-E	86-05-037
392-127-115	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-127-540	REP-E	86-17-047	392-140-075	NEW	86-08-075
392-127-225	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-540	REP-P	86-17-088	392-140-076	NEW-P	86-05-036
392-127-225	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-545	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-140-076	NEW-E	86-05-037
392-127-255	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-545	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-140-076	NEW	86-08-075
392-127-255	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-550	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-140-077	NEW-P	86-05-036
392-127-260	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-550	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-140-077	NEW-E	86-05-037
392-127-260	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-551	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-140-077	NEW	86-08-075
392-127-265	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-551	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-140-078	NEW-P	86-05-036
392-127-265	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-555	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-140-078	NEW-E	86-05-037
392-127-270	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-555	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-140-078	NEW	86-08-075
392-127-270	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-560	REP-E	86-17-047	392-140-079	NEW-P	86-05-036
392-127-271	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-127-560	REP-P	86-17-088	392-140-079	NEW-E	86-05-037
392-127-271	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-127-565	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-140-079	NEW	86-08-075
392-127-275	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-565	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-140-080	NEW-P	86-05-036
392-127-275	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-570	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-140-080	NEW-E	86-05-037
392-127-280	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-570	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-140-080	NEW	86-08-075
392-127-280	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-575	REP-E	86-17-047	392-140-081	NEW-P	86-05-036
392-127-285	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-575	REP-P	86-17-088	392-140-081	NEW-E	86-05-037
392-127-285	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-576	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-140-081	NEW	86-08-075
392-127-286	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-127-576	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-140-082	NEW-P	86-05-036
392-127-286	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-127-577	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-140-082	NEW-E	86-05-037
392-127-287	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-127-577	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-140-082	NEW	86-08-075
392-127-287	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-127-578	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-140-083	NEW-P	86-05-036
392-127-290	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-578	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-140-083	NEW-E	86-05-037
392-127-290	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-579	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-140-083	NEW	86-08-075
392-127-295	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-579	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-140-085	NEW-E	86-17-046
392-127-295	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-580	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-140-085	NEW-P	86-17-089
392-127-296	AMD-E	86-17-047	392-127-580	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-140-086	NEW-E	86-17-046
392-127-296	AMD-P	86-17-088	392-127-600	REP-E	86-17-047	392-140-086	NEW-P	86-17-089
392-127-297	NEW-E	86-17-047	392-127-600	REP-P	86-17-088	392-140-087	NEW-E	86-17-046
392-127-297	NEW-P	86-17-088	392-127-605	REP-E	86-17-047	392-140-087	NEW-P	86-17-089
392-127-325	REP-E	86-17-047	392-127-605	REP-P	86-17-088	392-140-088	NEW-E	86-17-046
392-127-325	REP-P	86-17-088	392-127-610	REP-E	86-17-047	392-140-088	NEW-P	86-17-089

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
392-140-089	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-127	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-04-510	NEW 86-04-054
392-140-089	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-128	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-04-680	NEW 86-04-054
392-140-090	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-128	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-04-902	NEW 86-04-054
392-140-090	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-129	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-04-910	NEW 86-04-054
392-140-091	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-129	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-04-995	NEW 86-04-054
392-140-091	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-130	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-06-010	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-092	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-130	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-06-020	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-092	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-131	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-06-030	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-093	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-131	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-06-050	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-093	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-132	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-06-060	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-094	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-132	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-06-070	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-094	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-133	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-06-090	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-095	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-133	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-06-100	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-095	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-134	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-06-110	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-096	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-134	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-06-120	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-096	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-135	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-06-130	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-097	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-135	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-06-140	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-097	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-136	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-06-150	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-098	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-136	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-06-160	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-098	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-137	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-06-170	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-099	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-137	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-06-180	NEW 86-04-055
392-140-099	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-138	NEW-E 86-17-046	402-10-010	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-100	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-138	NEW-P 86-17-089	402-12-030	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-100	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-139	NEW-E 86-17-046	402-12-050	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-101	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-139	NEW-P 86-17-089	402-12-140	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-101	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-140	NEW-E 86-17-046	402-12-200	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-102	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-140	NEW-P 86-17-089	402-12-210	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-102	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-141	NEW-E 86-17-046	402-19-190	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-103	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-141	NEW-P 86-17-089	402-19-250	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-103	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-142	NEW-E 86-17-046	402-19-300	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-104	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-142	NEW-P 86-17-089	402-19-350	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-104	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-143	NEW-E 86-17-046	402-19-400	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-105	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-143	NEW-P 86-17-089	402-19-530	AMD-E 86-09-025
392-140-105	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-144	NEW-E 86-17-046	402-19-530	AMD-P 86-09-026
392-140-106	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-144	NEW-P 86-17-089	402-19-530	AMD-P 86-11-019
392-140-106	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-140-145	NEW-E 86-17-046	402-19-530	AMD-E 86-11-020
392-140-107	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-140-145	NEW-P 86-17-089	402-19-530	AMD 86-17-027
392-140-107	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-165-500	AMD-P 86-11-027	402-19-540	NEW 86-17-027
392-140-108	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-165-500	AMD 86-15-048	402-19-580	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-108	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-171	AMD-C 86-03-060	402-19-590	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-109	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-171-315	AMD 86-06-007	402-21-050	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-109	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-171-351	AMD 86-06-007	402-22-040	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-110	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-171-358	AMD 86-06-007	402-22-045	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-110	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-171-366	AMD 86-06-007	402-22-065	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-111	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-171-371	AMD 86-06-007	402-22-070	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-111	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-171-512	NEW 86-06-007	402-22-150	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-112	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-171-513	NEW 86-06-007	402-22-200	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-112	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-171-514	NEW 86-06-007	402-22-240	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-113	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-171-516	AMD 86-06-007	402-24-020	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-113	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-171-517	NEW 86-06-007	402-24-040	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-114	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-171-518	NEW 86-06-007	402-24-050	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-114	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-171-519	NEW 86-06-007	402-24-085	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-115	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-171-531	AMD 86-06-007	402-24-090	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-115	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-171-706	AMD 86-06-007	402-24-125	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-116	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-182-005	AMD-P 86-11-028	402-24-135	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-116	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-182-005	AMD 86-15-050	402-24-158	NEW-P 86-17-066
392-140-117	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-182-010	AMD-P 86-11-028	402-24-170	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-117	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-182-010	AMD 86-15-050	402-24-180	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-118	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-196-005	AMD-P 86-11-029	402-24-190	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-118	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-196-005	AMD 86-15-049	402-24-215	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-119	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-196-065	REP-P 86-17-086	402-28-031	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-119	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-210-005	AMD-P 86-11-030	402-28-032	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-120	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-210-005	AMD 86-15-051	402-28-035	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-120	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-210-025	AMD-E 86-07-038	402-28-040	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-121	NEW-E 86-17-046	392-210-025	AMD-P 86-11-030	402-28-091	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-121	NEW-P 86-17-089	392-210-025	AMD 86-15-051	402-28-101	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-122	NEW-E 86-17-046	399-30-040	NEW 86-03-051	402-32-020	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-122	NEW-P 86-17-089	399-30-040	AMD-P 86-14-053	402-32-100	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-123	NEW-E 86-17-046	399-30-040	AMD-E 86-14-054	402-34-140	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-123	NEW-P 86-17-089	399-30-040	AMD 86-18-009	402-34-210	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-124	NEW-E 86-17-046	399-30-060	AMD-P 86-14-053	402-36-070	AMD-P 86-17-066
392-140-124	NEW-P 86-17-089	399-30-060	AMD-E 86-14-054	402-38-010	NEW-P 86-17-066
392-140-125	NEW-E 86-17-046	399-30-060	AMD 86-18-009	402-38-025	NEW-P 86-17-066
392-140-125	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-04-010	NEW 86-04-054	402-38-030	NEW-P 86-17-066
392-140-126	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-04-020	NEW 86-04-054	402-38-040	NEW-P 86-17-066
392-140-126	NEW-P 86-17-089	400-04-040	NEW 86-04-054	402-38-060	NEW-P 86-17-066
392-140-127	NEW-E 86-17-046	400-04-504	NEW 86-04-054	402-38-080	NEW-P 86-17-066

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
402-38-100	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-70-030	AMD-P 86-17-066	446-55-010	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-38-120	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-70-050	AMD-P 86-17-066	446-55-010	NEW 86-08-067
402-38-140	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-70-070	AMD-P 86-17-066	446-55-020	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-38-160	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-70-080	NEW-P 86-17-066	446-55-020	NEW 86-08-067
402-38-180	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-70-090	AMD-P 86-17-066	446-55-030	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-38-200	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-80-010	NEW-P 86-17-066	446-55-030	NEW 86-08-067
402-38-220	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-80-020	NEW-P 86-17-066	446-55-040	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-38-240	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-80-030	NEW-P 86-17-066	446-55-040	NEW 86-08-067
402-38-260	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-80-040	NEW-P 86-17-066	446-55-050	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-38-280	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-80-050	NEW-P 86-17-066	446-55-050	NEW 86-08-067
402-38-300	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-80-060	NEW-P 86-17-066	446-55-060	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-38-320	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-80-070	NEW-P 86-17-066	446-55-060	NEW 86-08-067
402-38-340	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-80-080	NEW-P 86-17-066	446-55-070	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-38-360	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-80-090	NEW-P 86-17-066	446-55-070	NEW 86-08-067
402-38-380	NEW-P 86-17-066	402-80-100	NEW-P 86-17-066	446-55-080	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-38-400	NEW-P 86-17-066	415-02-090	AMD-P 86-04-080	446-55-080	NEW 86-08-067
402-38-420	NEW-P 86-17-066	415-02-090	AMD 86-07-026	446-55-090	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-38-440	NEW-P 86-17-066	415-02-090	AMD-E 86-09-037	446-55-090	NEW 86-08-067
402-38-500	NEW-P 86-17-066	415-02-090	AMD-P 86-09-052	446-55-100	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-44-120	AMD-P 86-17-066	415-02-090	AMD 86-13-022	446-55-100	NEW 86-08-067
402-48-010	AMD-P 86-17-066	415-108-500	NEW-E 86-09-066	446-55-110	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-48-020	AMD-P 86-17-066	415-108-500	NEW-P 86-09-067	446-55-110	NEW 86-08-067
402-48-040	AMD-P 86-17-066	415-108-500	NEW 86-13-023	446-55-120	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-48-070	AMD-P 86-17-066	419-36-090	NEW 86-04-068	446-55-120	NEW 86-08-067
402-48-080	AMD-P 86-17-066	434-57	AMD-P 86-05-053	446-55-130	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-52-050	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57	AMD-E 86-08-044	446-55-130	NEW 86-08-067
402-52-090	NEW-P 86-11-019	434-57	AMD 86-08-045	446-55-140	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-52-090	NEW-E 86-11-020	434-57-010	NEW-P 86-05-053	446-55-140	NEW 86-08-067
402-52-090	NEW-E 86-17-026	434-57-010	NEW-E 86-08-044	446-55-150	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-52-090	NEW 86-17-027	434-57-010	NEW 86-08-045	446-55-150	NEW 86-08-067
402-52-100	AMD-P 86-17-066	434-57-020	NEW-P 86-05-053	446-55-160	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-52-300	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-020	NEW-E 86-08-044	446-55-160	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-010	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-020	NEW 86-08-045	446-55-165	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-020	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-030	AMD-P 86-05-053	446-55-165	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-030	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-030	AMD-E 86-08-044	446-55-170	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-040	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-030	AMD 86-08-045	446-55-170	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-050	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-040	NEW-P 86-05-053	446-55-180	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-060	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-040	NEW-E 86-08-044	446-55-180	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-070	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-040	NEW 86-08-045	446-55-190	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-080	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-050	NEW-P 86-05-053	446-55-190	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-090	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-050	NEW-E 86-08-044	446-55-200	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-100	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-050	NEW 86-08-045	446-55-200	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-110	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-070	NEW-P 86-05-053	446-55-210	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-120	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-070	NEW-E 86-08-044	446-55-210	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-130	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-070	NEW 86-08-045	446-55-220	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-140	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-080	NEW-P 86-05-053	446-55-220	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-150	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-080	NEW-E 86-08-044	446-55-230	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-160	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-080	NEW 86-08-045	446-55-230	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-170	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-090	NEW-P 86-05-053	446-55-240	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-180	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-090	NEW-E 86-08-044	446-55-240	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-190	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-090	NEW 86-08-045	446-55-250	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-200	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-100	NEW-P 86-05-053	446-55-250	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-210	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-100	NEW-E 86-08-044	446-55-260	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-220	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-100	NEW 86-08-045	446-55-260	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-230	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-120	NEW-P 86-05-053	446-55-270	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-240	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-120	NEW-E 86-08-044	446-55-270	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-250	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-120	NEW 86-08-045	446-55-280	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-260	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-130	NEW-P 86-05-053	446-55-280	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-270	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-130	NEW-E 86-08-044	446-60-010	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-280	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-130	NEW 86-08-045	446-60-010	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-290	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-150	NEW-P 86-05-053	446-60-020	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-300	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-150	NEW-E 86-08-044	446-60-020	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-310	NEW-P 86-17-066	434-57-150	NEW 86-08-045	446-60-030	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-320	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-035	AMD-P 86-09-031	446-60-030	NEW 86-08-067
402-61-330	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-035	AMD 86-12-049	446-60-040	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-61-340	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-040	AMD-P 86-09-031	446-60-040	NEW 86-08-067
402-62-010	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-040	AMD 86-12-049	446-60-050	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-62-020	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-050	RE-AD-P 86-04-025	446-60-050	NEW 86-08-067
402-62-030	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-050	RE-AD 86-08-054	446-60-060	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-62-040	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-057	RE-AD-P 86-04-025	446-60-060	NEW 86-08-067
402-62-050	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-057	RE-AD 86-08-054	446-60-070	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-62-060	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-059	NEW-P 86-09-093	446-60-070	NEW 86-08-067
402-62-070	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-059	NEW 86-12-039	446-60-080	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-62-080	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-061	AMD-P 86-14-006	446-60-080	NEW 86-08-067
402-62-090	NEW-P 86-17-066	440-44-061	AMD-E 86-14-007	446-60-090	NEW-P 86-05-015
402-70-010	AMD-P 86-17-066	440-44-061	AMD 86-18-004	446-60-090	NEW 86-08-067
402-70-020	AMD-P 86-17-066	440-44-100	NEW 86-05-029	448-12-020	AMD-P 86-15-073

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #
448-12-020	AMD-E 86-15-074	458-20-187	AMD-P 86-15-080	458-61-290	AMD 86-16-080
448-12-210	AMD 86-05-003	458-20-187	AMD 86-18-022	458-61-320	AMD-P 86-13-010
448-12-210	AMD-P 86-13-027	458-20-189	AMD-P 86-15-081	458-61-320	AMD 86-16-080
448-12-210	AMD-E 86-13-028	458-20-189	AMD 86-18-069	458-61-410	AMD-P 86-13-010
448-12-210	AMD 86-16-058	458-20-193C	AMD-P 86-03-043	458-61-410	AMD 86-16-080
448-12-220	AMD 86-05-003	458-20-193C	AMD 86-07-005	458-61-425	NEW-P 86-13-010
448-12-220	AMD-P 86-13-027	458-20-210	AMD-P 86-03-043	458-61-425	NEW 86-16-080
448-12-220	AMD-E 86-13-028	458-20-210	AMD 86-07-005	458-61-490	REP-P 86-13-010
448-12-220	AMD 86-16-058	458-20-210	AMD-P 86-18-068	458-61-500	AMD-P 86-13-010
448-12-230	AMD 86-05-003	458-20-224	AMD-P 86-15-081	458-61-500	AMD 86-16-080
448-12-230	AMD-P 86-13-027	458-20-224	AMD 86-18-069	458-61-540	AMD-P 86-13-010
448-12-230	AMD-E 86-13-028	458-20-240	AMD-E 86-09-048	458-61-540	AMD 86-16-080
448-12-230	AMD 86-16-058	458-20-240	AMD-P 86-10-050	458-61-545	NEW-P 86-13-010
448-12-240	AMD 86-05-003	458-20-240	AMD-C 86-13-061	458-61-545	NEW 86-16-080
448-12-250	AMD 86-05-003	458-20-240	AMD 86-14-019	458-61-550	AMD-P 86-13-010
448-12-250	AMD-P 86-13-027	458-20-24001	AMD-E 86-10-049	458-61-550	AMD 86-16-080
448-12-250	AMD-E 86-13-028	458-20-24001	AMD-P 86-10-050	458-61-555	NEW-P 86-13-010
448-12-250	AMD 86-16-058	458-20-24001	AMD-C 86-13-061	458-61-555	NEW 86-16-080
448-12-270	AMD 86-05-003	458-20-24001	AMD 86-14-019	458-61-570	AMD-P 86-13-010
448-12-280	AMD 86-05-003	458-20-24002	AMD-E 86-10-049	458-61-580	NEW-P 86-13-010
448-12-300	AMD 86-05-003	458-20-24002	AMD-P 86-10-050	458-61-590	AMD-P 86-13-010
448-12-310	REP 86-05-003	458-20-24002	AMD-C 86-13-061	458-61-590	AMD 86-16-080
448-12-320	AMD 86-05-003	458-20-24002	AMD 86-14-019	458-61-650	AMD-P 86-13-010
448-12-320	AMD-P 86-13-027	458-20-244	AMD-P 86-18-068	458-61-650	AMD 86-16-080
448-12-320	AMD-E 86-13-028	458-20-247	AMD 86-04-024	458-61-670	AMD-P 86-13-010
448-12-320	AMD 86-16-058	458-20-248	NEW-P 86-03-042	458-61-670	AMD 86-16-080
448-12-330	AMD 86-05-003	458-20-248	NEW-P 86-06-048	458-61-700	NEW-P 86-13-010
448-12-340	AMD 86-05-003	458-20-248	NEW 86-09-016	460-10A-160	AMD-P 86-11-034
458-16-150	AMD-P 86-09-003	458-20-249	NEW-P 86-03-042	460-10A-160	AMD 86-15-023
458-16-150	AMD 86-12-034	458-20-249	NEW 86-07-006	460-33A-010	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-16-210	AMD-P 86-09-003	458-20-250	NEW-E 86-12-075	460-33A-010	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-16-210	AMD 86-12-034	458-20-250	NEW-P 86-12-076	460-33A-015	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-16-220	AMD-P 86-09-003	458-20-250	NEW 86-15-064	460-33A-015	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-16-220	AMD 86-12-034	458-20-251	NEW-P 86-15-081	460-33A-016	REP-P 86-17-061
458-16-230	AMD-P 86-09-003	458-20-251	NEW 86-18-069	460-33A-016	REP-E 86-17-062
458-16-230	AMD 86-12-034	458-30-145	AMD-P 86-06-008	460-33A-017	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-16-240	AMD-P 86-09-003	458-30-145	AMD 86-09-088	460-33A-017	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-16-240	AMD 86-12-034	458-40-18700	AMD-P 86-10-054	460-33A-020	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-16-280	AMD-P 86-09-003	458-40-18700	AMD-E 86-14-063	460-33A-020	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-16-280	AMD 86-12-034	458-40-18700	AMD 86-14-064	460-33A-025	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-16-282	AMD-P 86-09-003	458-40-18704	AMD-P 86-10-054	460-33A-025	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-16-282	AMD 86-12-034	458-40-18704	AMD-E 86-14-063	460-33A-030	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-17	AMD-P 86-16-078	458-40-18704	AMD 86-14-064	460-33A-030	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-17-100	REP-P 86-16-078	458-40-18706	AMD-P 86-10-054	460-33A-031	NEW-P 86-17-061
458-17-105	NEW-P 86-16-078	458-40-18706	AMD-E 86-14-063	460-33A-031	NEW-E 86-17-062
458-17-110	NEW-P 86-16-078	458-40-18706	AMD 86-14-064	460-33A-035	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-17-115	NEW-P 86-16-078	458-40-18721	NEW-P 86-10-054	460-33A-035	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-17-120	NEW-P 86-16-078	458-40-18721	NEW-E 86-14-063	460-33A-040	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-101	AMD-P 86-09-059	458-40-18721	NEW 86-14-064	460-33A-040	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-101	AMD 86-12-015	458-40-18722	NEW-P 86-10-054	460-33A-050	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-102	AMD-P 86-03-043	458-40-18722	NEW-E 86-14-063	460-33A-050	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-102	AMD-P 86-06-047	458-40-18722	NEW 86-14-064	460-33A-055	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-102	AMD 86-09-058	458-53-030	AMD-P 86-16-079	460-33A-055	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-107	AMD 86-03-016	458-53-051	AMD-P 86-16-079	460-33A-060	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-113	AMD-P 86-17-077	458-53-110	AMD-P 86-16-079	460-33A-060	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-119	AMD 86-03-016	458-53-130	AMD-P 86-16-079	460-33A-065	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-122	AMD-P 86-03-043	458-53-150	AMD-P 86-16-079	460-33A-065	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-122	AMD-P 86-06-047	458-53-160	AMD-P 86-16-079	460-33A-070	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-122	AMD 86-09-058	458-57-570	AMD-P 86-09-051	460-33A-070	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-122	AMD-P 86-18-068	458-57-570	AMD 86-12-024	460-33A-075	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-132	AMD-P 86-05-043	458-57-610	AMD-P 86-09-051	460-33A-075	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-132	AMD 86-09-002	458-57-610	AMD 86-12-024	460-33A-080	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-134	AMD-P 86-17-077	458-61-030	AMD-P 86-13-010	460-33A-080	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-135	AMD-P 86-03-043	458-61-030	AMD 86-16-080	460-33A-085	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-135	AMD-P 86-06-047	458-61-050	AMD-P 86-13-010	460-33A-085	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-135	AMD 86-09-058	458-61-050	AMD 86-16-080	460-33A-090	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-136	AMD-P 86-17-077	458-61-080	AMD-P 86-13-010	460-33A-090	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-157	AMD-P 86-18-068	458-61-080	AMD 86-16-080	460-33A-100	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-17001	NEW-P 86-07-056	458-61-100	AMD-P 86-13-010	460-33A-100	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-17001	NEW 86-10-016	458-61-100	AMD 86-16-080	460-33A-105	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-175	AMD-P 86-03-043	458-61-150	NEW-P 86-13-010	460-33A-105	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-175	AMD 86-07-005	458-61-150	NEW 86-16-080	460-33A-110	AMD-P 86-17-061
458-20-178	AMD-P 86-16-064	458-61-210	AMD-P 86-13-010	460-33A-110	AMD-E 86-17-062
458-20-179	REVIEW 86-14-020	458-61-210	AMD 86-16-080	460-33A-115	NEW-P 86-17-061
458-20-179	REVIEW 86-14-093	458-61-230	AMD-P 86-13-010	460-33A-115	NEW-E 86-17-062
458-20-179	AMD-P 86-15-081	458-61-230	AMD 86-16-080	460-33A-120	NEW-P 86-17-061
458-20-179	AMD 86-18-069	458-61-290	AMD-P 86-13-010	460-33A-120	NEW-E 86-17-062

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #	WAC #	WSR #			
460-33A-125	NEW-P	86-17-061	478-138-050	AMD-P	86-11-031	490-500-570	AMD	86-12-050
460-33A-125	NEW-E	86-17-062	478-138-050	AMD	86-17-016	490-600-010	REP-P	86-12-064
460-33A-130	NEW-P	86-17-061	478-355-010	NEW-P	86-04-009	490-600-010	REP	86-15-076
460-33A-130	NEW-E	86-17-062	478-355-010	NEW	86-08-027	490-600-010	REP-E	86-15-078
460-44A-200	NEW-P	86-11-034	478-355-020	NEW-P	86-04-009	490-600-020	REP-P	86-12-064
460-44A-200	NEW	86-15-023	478-355-020	NEW	86-08-027	490-600-020	REP	86-15-076
460-44A-500	AMD-P	86-11-035	478-355-030	NEW-P	86-04-009	490-600-020	REP-E	86-15-078
460-44A-500	AMD-E	86-14-087	478-355-030	NEW	86-08-027	490-600-030	REP-P	86-12-064
460-44A-500	AMD	86-15-003	478-355-040	NEW-P	86-04-009	490-600-030	REP	86-15-076
460-44A-501	AMD-P	86-11-035	478-355-040	NEW	86-08-027	490-600-030	REP-E	86-15-078
460-44A-501	AMD-E	86-14-087	478-355-050	NEW-P	86-04-009	490-600-045	REP-P	86-12-064
460-44A-501	AMD	86-15-003	478-355-050	NEW	86-08-027	490-600-045	REP	86-15-076
460-44A-502	AMD-P	86-11-035	478-355-060	NEW-P	86-04-009	490-600-045	REP-E	86-15-078
460-44A-502	AMD-E	86-14-087	478-355-060	NEW	86-08-027	490-600-046	REP-P	86-12-064
460-44A-502	AMD	86-15-003	480-08-250	AMD-P	86-13-019	490-600-046	REP	86-15-076
460-44A-503	AMD-P	86-11-035	480-08-250	AMD-E	86-13-020	490-600-046	REP-E	86-15-078
460-44A-503	AMD-E	86-14-087	480-08-250	AMD-C	86-16-024	490-600-050	REP-P	86-12-064
460-44A-503	AMD	86-15-003	480-08-250	AMD	86-17-003	490-600-050	REP	86-15-076
460-44A-505	NEW-P	86-11-035	480-12-033	AMD-P	86-10-047	490-600-050	REP-E	86-15-078
460-44A-505	NEW-E	86-14-087	480-12-033	AMD	86-14-050	490-600-060	REP-P	86-12-064
460-44A-505	NEW	86-15-003	480-12-050	AMD-P	86-09-069	490-600-060	REP	86-15-076
460-44A-506	AMD-P	86-11-035	480-12-050	AMD	86-12-029	490-600-060	REP-E	86-15-078
460-44A-506	AMD	86-15-003	480-12-180	AMD-P	86-10-047	490-600-061	REP-P	86-12-064
460-46A-020	AMD-P	86-14-045	480-12-180	AMD	86-14-050	490-600-061	REP	86-15-076
460-46A-020	AMD	86-18-012	480-12-195	AMD-P	86-10-047	490-600-061	REP-E	86-15-078
460-46A-090	AMD-P	86-14-045	480-12-195	AMD	86-14-050	490-600-061	REP-P	86-12-064
460-46A-090	AMD	86-18-012	480-12-196	NEW-C	86-03-049	490-600-070	REP	86-15-076
460-46A-115	NEW-P	86-14-045	480-12-196	NEW-W	86-03-085	490-600-070	REP-E	86-15-078
460-46A-115	NEW	86-18-012	480-12-196	RESCIND	86-03-086	490-600-071	REP-P	86-12-064
460-46A-150	AMD-P	86-14-045	480-12-196	NEW-P	86-03-087	490-600-071	REP	86-15-076
460-46A-150	AMD	86-18-012	480-12-196	NEW-E	86-03-088	490-600-071	REP-E	86-15-078
463	AMD-P	86-05-021	480-12-196	NEW	86-08-006	490-600-072	REP-P	86-12-064
468-30-060	AMD-P	86-12-005	480-12-210	AMD-P	86-09-021	490-600-072	REP	86-15-076
468-30-060	AMD-C	86-14-062	480-12-210	AMD-C	86-12-028	490-600-072	REP-E	86-15-078
468-30-060	AMD	86-18-039	480-12-210	AMD-W	86-14-047	490-600-073	REP-P	86-12-064
468-38-120	AMD-P	86-18-066	480-12-285	AMD	86-03-040	490-600-073	REP	86-15-076
468-38-120	AMD-E	86-18-067	480-12-340	AMD-P	86-10-047	490-600-073	REP-E	86-15-078
468-38-430	REP-P	86-17-017	480-12-340	AMD	86-14-050	490-600-075	REP-P	86-12-064
468-70-020	AMD-P	86-04-069	480-80-240	AMD-P	86-10-018	490-600-075	REP	86-15-076
468-70-020	AMD	86-08-023	480-80-240	AMD-E	86-10-019	490-600-075	REP-E	86-15-078
468-70-030	AMD-P	86-04-069	480-80-240	AMD-C	86-13-040	490-600-076	REP-P	86-12-064
468-70-030	AMD	86-08-023	480-80-240	AMD-C	86-14-048	490-600-076	REP	86-15-076
468-70-040	AMD-P	86-04-069	480-80-240	AMD	86-14-113	490-600-076	REP-E	86-15-078
468-70-040	AMD	86-08-023	480-90-032	NEW-C	86-04-023	490-600-077	REP-P	86-12-064
468-70-060	AMD-P	86-04-069	480-90-032	NEW	86-04-072	490-600-077	REP	86-15-076
468-70-060	AMD	86-08-023	480-90-051	AMD-P	86-03-013	490-600-077	REP-E	86-15-078
468-300-010	AMD-E	86-03-001	480-90-051	AMD-E	86-03-039	490-600-080	REP-P	86-12-064
468-300-010	AMD	86-06-010	480-90-051	AMD	86-07-031	490-600-080	REP	86-15-076
468-300-010	AMD-P	86-08-094	480-90-177	NEW-P	86-15-032	490-600-080	REP-E	86-15-078
468-300-020	AMD-E	86-03-001	480-100-032	NEW-C	86-04-023	490-800-010	NEW-P	86-12-063
468-300-020	AMD-E	86-03-061	480-100-032	NEW	86-04-072	490-800-010	NEW	86-15-075
468-300-020	AMD	86-06-010	480-100-051	AMD-P	86-03-012	490-800-010	NEW-E	86-15-077
468-300-030	AMD-E	86-03-001	480-100-051	AMD-E	86-03-038	490-800-020	NEW-P	86-12-063
468-300-030	AMD-E	86-03-061	480-100-051	AMD	86-07-032	490-800-020	NEW	86-15-075
468-300-030	AMD	86-06-010	480-100-207	NEW-P	86-15-032	490-800-020	NEW-E	86-15-077
468-300-040	AMD-E	86-03-001	480-110-032	NEW-C	86-04-023	490-800-030	NEW-P	86-12-063
468-300-040	AMD-E	86-03-061	480-110-032	NEW	86-04-072	490-800-030	NEW	86-15-075
468-300-040	AMD	86-06-010	480-120-021	AMD	86-11-009	490-800-030	NEW-E	86-15-077
468-300-070	AMD-E	86-03-001	480-120-031	AMD-P	86-09-022	490-800-040	NEW-P	86-12-063
468-300-070	AMD-E	86-03-061	480-120-031	AMD-C	86-13-003	490-800-040	NEW	86-15-075
468-300-070	AMD	86-06-010	480-120-031	AMD	86-14-049	490-800-040	NEW-E	86-15-077
468-300-700	AMD-P	86-11-037	480-120-032	NEW-C	86-04-023	490-800-040	AMD-P	86-16-072
468-300-700	AMD	86-16-011	480-120-032	NEW	86-04-072	490-800-050	NEW-P	86-12-063
478-116-080	AMD-P	86-11-031	480-120-033	NEW-C	86-03-037	490-800-050	NEW	86-15-075
478-116-080	AMD	86-17-016	480-120-033	NEW-W	86-07-008	490-800-050	NEW-E	86-15-077
478-116-140	AMD-P	86-11-031	480-120-033	NEW-P	86-09-022	490-800-060	NEW-P	86-12-063
478-116-140	AMD	86-17-016	480-120-033	NEW-C	86-13-003	490-800-060	NEW	86-15-075
478-116-270	AMD-P	86-11-031	480-120-033	NEW	86-14-049	490-800-060	NEW-E	86-15-077
478-116-270	AMD	86-17-016	480-120-057	NEW-C	86-04-022	490-800-070	NEW-P	86-12-063
478-116-570	AMD-P	86-11-031	480-120-057	NEW-P	86-07-009	490-800-070	NEW	86-15-075
478-116-570	AMD	86-17-016	480-120-057	NEW	86-11-009	490-800-070	NEW-E	86-15-077
478-116-582	AMD-P	86-11-031	484-20-068	AMD	86-05-014	490-800-080	NEW-P	86-12-063
478-116-582	AMD	86-17-016	484-20-075	AMD	86-05-014	490-800-080	NEW	86-15-075
478-116-600	AMD-P	86-11-031	490-500-190	AMD	86-05-010	490-800-080	NEW-E	86-15-077
478-116-600	AMD	86-17-016	490-500-560	AMD-P	86-09-053	490-800-090	NEW-P	86-12-063
478-136-015	AMD-P	86-07-007	490-500-560	AMD	86-12-050	490-800-090	NEW	86-15-075
478-136-015	AMD	86-15-038	490-500-570	AMD-P	86-09-053	490-800-090	NEW-E	86-15-077

Table of WAC Sections Affected

WAC #		WSR #
490-800-100	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-100	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-100	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-100	AMD-P	86-16-072
490-800-105	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-105	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-110	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-110	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-110	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-120	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-120	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-120	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-130	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-130	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-130	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-140	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-140	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-140	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-150	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-150	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-150	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-160	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-160	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-160	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-170	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-170	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-170	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-180	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-180	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-180	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-180	AMD-P	86-16-072
490-800-190	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-190	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-190	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-200	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-200	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-200	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-210	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-210	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-210	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-220	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-220	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-220	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-230	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-230	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-230	NEW-E	86-15-077
490-800-240	NEW-P	86-12-063
490-800-240	NEW	86-15-075
490-800-240	NEW-E	86-15-077
504-17-090	AMD-P	86-13-065
504-17-130	AMD-P	86-13-065
504-17-185	AMD-E	86-07-040
504-17-195	NEW-P	86-13-065
504-17-210	REP-P	86-13-065
504-17-215	NEW-P	86-13-065
504-17-220	AMD-P	86-13-065
504-17-230	REP-P	86-13-065
504-17-235	NEW-P	86-13-065
508-14-025	NEW	86-04-058
508-14-030	AMD	86-04-058
508-60-040	AMD-P	86-08-100
508-60-040	AMD-C	86-12-061
508-60-040	AMD-W	86-15-061
516-52-001	AMD	86-03-020
516-52-010	AMD	86-03-020

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

ACCOUNTANCY, BOARD OF		AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.	
Certified public accountants	86-16-056	Seed testing fees, certification, etc.	86-09-090 86-13-014
AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF		Tansy ragwort in hay	86-15-054
Apple maggot	86-03-075 86-07-020	Tree fruit research commission	86-07-051
Apples		AMUSEMENT RIDES	
marketing standards	86-10-057 86-14-026	Regulated	86-07-055
other brands and grades	86-08-080 86-10-045	APPLE ADVERTISING COMMISSION	
Blueberry quarantine	86-14-023 86-17-049	Assessment increase	86-18-033 86-18-034
Brucellosis in cattle	86-04-050 86-04-051 86-08-055	Delinquent assessments	86-01-082
Bulb commission		APPRENTICESHIP AND TRAINING COUNCIL	
assessment increase	86-06-045 86-13-057	Meetings	86-15-010
Chickens		ARCHAEOLOGY AND HISTORIC PRESERVATION, OFFICE OF	
testing of breeding stock	86-09-001	Excavation permits	86-09-039 86-13-001
Commodity inspection standards	86-16-066 86-17-030 86-09-090	Historic preservation grants advisory committee	86-08-082 86-09-038 86-13-002
Diseased material		SEPA	
Dry pea and lentil commission assessments	86-09-079 86-15-001 86-15-002	ARCHITECTS, BOARD OF REGISTRATION FOR	
Eggs		Acceptable work experience	86-04-088
assessment	86-01-075	Building designers	86-01-090 86-06-053
shell egg seal fees	86-04-027	Examinations	
Frozen desserts	86-01-074 86-04-026	candidates	86-01-090 86-04-088 86-01-090 86-04-088
Grain fees	86-14-083	qualifications	86-06-053 86-01-090 86-04-088
Grape stock	86-04-070 86-08-078	Reciprocity	86-01-090 86-04-088
Gypsy moth	86-03-075 86-07-020	Seal	86-04-088
Hay crop infestation, Ellensburg	86-13-032	Work experience	86-01-090 86-04-088
Honey bee tracheal mite	86-03-075 86-07-020 86-08-009 86-10-048 86-14-097	ARTS COMMISSION	
Horticulture inspection fees	86-04-029 86-06-038 86-08-081	Public records	86-01-087
Hop grading	86-14-098 86-17-032 86-17-033	Purpose, goals, organization	86-01-087 86-08-072
Milk		ASIAN AMERICAN AFFAIRS, COMMISSION ON	
bulk milk farm tanks, thermometers	86-13-051 86-17-014	Meetings	86-03-009 86-08-013
Noxious weed control	86-16-073	ATTORNEY GENERAL OPINIONS	
Onion white rot quarantine	86-03-075 86-07-020	County board of equalization, appeal to tax appeals board	86-05-042
Organic labelling	86-13-050 86-16-033 86-17-031 86-18-040	County contract to enforce city regulations	86-02-005 86-15-014
Popcorn	86-17-078	Gambling tax, use of revenue	
Potato seed	86-11-063 86-14-096 86-15-045 86-09-090	Home rule counties	
Rapeseed certification		budget conditions	86-03-072
Rapeseed production and establishment of districts	86-12-065 86-12-066 86-15-063 86-16-017 86-16-023	Liens, labor and landlord liens on crops	86-04-037
Red raspberry commission assessments	86-06-046 86-13-012 86-13-012 86-06-046 86-13-012 86-06-046	Police civil service commission investigations	86-14-029
board		Public hospital district, public rates	86-13-060
definitions		School funds, investment of	86-06-023
voting	86-06-046	Subdivision, boundary line adjustment	86-08-012
		Tax information, private businesses, authority of department of revenue to require	86-11-012
		AVIATION	
		Aircraft registration	86-01-066 86-03-071
		Definitions	
		local service commuter	86-02-057
		BELLEVUE COMMUNITY COLLEGE (District 8)	
		Board meetings	86-02-008
		Liquor implementation	86-01-056
		Student code	86-01-056 86-13-047

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

BELLEVUE COMMUNITY COLLEGE (District 8)—cont.		CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS, BOARD OF —cont.	
Student comprehensive fee	86-09-045	prior approval not required	86-03-082
	86-09-046		86-06-043
	86-18-038		86-14-107
BLIND, DEPARTMENT OF SERVICES FOR THE		CHORE SERVICES	
Business enterprise program	86-04-063	(See SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF)	
	86-08-010	CLARK COMMUNITY COLLEGE (District 14)	
BOARDING HOMES (See SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF)		Meetings	86-02-018
BOILER RULES, BOARD OF		COLLECTION AGENCY BOARD	
Board meetings, who may set	86-01-088	Credit reporting bureau	86-10-002
Construction, new, standards	86-01-088	satisfaction of claim	86-14-051
Definitions		Rate of interest disclosure	86-10-002
child care centers	86-01-088		86-14-051
Inspection of systems	86-01-088	Sale of licensed collection agencies	86-10-002
	86-07-064		86-14-051
Rules, substantive	86-04-059	COLUMBIA BASIN COLLEGE (District 19)	
BRUCELLOSIS (See AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF)		Academic employees	
BUILDING CODE COUNCIL		annual workload standards	86-10-033
Barrier free facilities	86-14-094		86-16-001
Energy code	86-06-058	leaves of absence	86-16-010
	86-06-059		86-10-033
	86-11-013	promotions	86-16-010
	86-16-071		86-10-033
Meetings	86-05-001	salary schedule	86-10-033
	86-12-003		86-16-010
BULB COMMISSION (See AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF)		tenure regulations	86-10-033
CEMETERY BOARD			86-16-010
Definitions		COMMUNITY COLLEGE EDUCATION, BOARD FOR	
control	86-12-068	Interdistrict program arrangements	
	86-15-036	and recruiting	86-11-059
	86-17-063		86-12-056
ownership	86-12-068	Meetings	86-01-037
	86-15-036		86-05-004
	86-17-063	Salary defined, TIAA/CREF	86-16-063
sale	86-12-068	COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF	
	86-15-036	Bonds	
	86-17-063	nonessential function bond state	
CENTENNIAL COMMISSION		ceiling volume cap	86-13-062
Agency administration	86-14-013	CSBG	86-14-090
	86-16-084	Development loan fund committee	
CENTRALIA COLLEGE/SOUTH PUGET SOUND COMMUNITY COLLEGE (District 12)		meetings	86-09-089
Meetings	86-08-050		86-12-079
	86-11-001	procedures	86-12-078
	86-15-044		86-15-067
CENTRAL WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY		Early childhood education and	
Meetings	86-09-062	assistance program	86-18-073
CHILDBIRTH CENTERS		Emergency management (see EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, DEPARTMENT OF)	
Generally	86-01-035	Emergency shelter programs	86-03-008
CHIROPRACTIC DISCIPLINARY BOARD			86-14-089
Health food store ownership	86-07-057	Fire protection policy board meetings	86-15-033
	86-10-039	Food banks	86-04-046
			86-04-047
Vitamins, minerals, and food	86-07-057		86-08-043
supplements	86-10-039	Head start program	86-14-088
CHIROPRACTIC EXAMINERS, BOARD OF			86-15-034
Continuing education	86-03-082	LIHEAP	86-10-061
	86-06-043	Municipal bond issuances	86-18-026
	86-14-107		86-14-090
Examinations		State fire marshal (see FIRE MARSHAL)	86-02-026
appeal procedure	86-03-082	Transient accommodations, fire standards	86-02-027
	86-06-043	Weatherization assistance program	86-06-024
national board partial waiver	86-01-040	state plan hearing	86-02-002

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

CONSERVATION COMMISSION		DEFERRED COMPENSATION, COMMITTEE FOR	
Meetings	86-09-073 86-17-040	Modification of deferral	86-13-005 86-13-024 86-16-025
CONVENTION AND TRADE CENTER		DENTAL EXAMINERS	
Meetings	86-03-014 86-04-064 86-05-018 86-08-062 86-09-044	Examination content	86-04-089 86-08-046
CORRECTIONS, DEPARTMENT OF		DENTAL HYGIENE EXAMINING COMMITTEE	
Definitions	86-02-022 86-02-023 86-06-012	Examination	86-05-032 86-09-014
Disciplinary actions	86-06-012	DEVELOPMENTALLY DISABLED	
Disposition of earnings	86-03-058 86-03-059 86-06-039	Community training program	86-04-074 86-04-075 86-08-003 86-14-046 86-14-060 86-18-049
Facility review committee	86-06-012	Family support services	86-14-060 86-18-049
Mail	86-18-032	Hearings	86-14-046 86-14-060 86-18-049
Notification	86-06-012	Individual service plans	86-14-046 86-14-060 86-18-049
Offender release dates recalculation	86-02-022 86-02-023	Institutions	
Petition for promulgation, amendment or repeal of rule or for declaratory rule	86-02-051	IMR program and reimbursement system	86-01-008 86-14-059 86-14-073 86-18-002
Public records	86-07-066 86-10-010	Notification and consultation	86-14-046 86-14-060 86-18-049
Reimbursable impact/rates, criminal justice costs	86-02-053	Service authorizations	86-14-046 86-14-060 86-18-049
Sale of items, products, services by vocational education students	86-02-052	EASTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY	
Serious infractions	86-06-012	Delegation of appointing authority	86-01-042
Standard rules	86-06-012	Employee financial responsibilities	86-01-042
Superintendent's procedures	86-04-015 86-07-034 86-06-012	ECOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF	
Work release		Air quality	
CORRECTIONS STANDARDS BOARD		ambient air quality standards and emission limits for radionuclides	86-04-092 86-07-067 86-10-053
Day room	86-14-021	sulfur dioxide, Weyerhaeuser company	86-07-050
Living space	86-14-021	Columbia basin project	86-04-058
Maximum capacities	86-02-021 86-05-038 86-09-070 86-14-022 86-14-021	Dangerous wastes	86-07-069 86-12-057 86-08-100 86-12-061 86-15-061
Physical plant standards		Flood control zone permit program	
COUNTY ROAD ADMINISTRATION BOARD		Ground water management areas and programs	86-02-004 86-04-057 86-04-058 86-11-065 86-15-009 86-15-087 86-16-085
County road logs	86-17-097	Hazardous waste management for categories of waste meetings	86-09-099 86-10-052
Functional classification	86-17-097	Instream resources protection program	
Overrun reimbursement	86-17-097	Little Spokane	86-10-062 86-12-048 86-13-066 86-18-051
RAP projects, regional prioritization	86-02-025 86-06-005 86-17-097	Municipal wastewater treatment construction grants	86-15-024
RAP vouchers	86-17-097	Skokomish-Dosewallips	86-01-011 86-05-019
RATA allocation	86-02-025 86-06-005 86-17-097	NPDES	86-01-095
RATA eligibility	86-02-025 86-06-005		
RATA matching requirements	86-17-097		
CRIMINAL JUSTICE TRAINING COMMISSION			
Appeal	86-14-014		
Exemption or variance	86-14-014		
Meetings	86-01-055 86-02-017		
Repeal and adoption of all chapters in Title 139 WAC	86-15-072		
CYANIDE (See PHARMACY, BOARD OF)			
DAY CARE			
Generally	86-01-025		
Insurance joint underwriting association	86-14-069		

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

ECOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

Public water supply
Clark County 86-10-072
86-15-030
Thurston County 86-10-071
86-15-029
86-04-057
Quincy ground water
Radioactive waste
low-level
disposal 86-09-017
86-10-043
86-11-069
86-15-007
86-15-008
86-07-069
86-12-057
Recycled wastes 86-15-005
86-15-083
Referendum 39 86-05-011
86-08-099
SEA workshops and meetings 86-08-098
86-12-011
Shoreline master program 86-02-038
86-06-057
86-07-049
Anacortes 86-04-040
86-06-060
86-11-002
86-12-069
Clallam County 86-05-052
86-06-061
86-11-002
86-12-070
development permits 86-05-052
Edmonds 86-07-068
86-11-032
86-12-071
86-06-061
86-11-002
86-12-070
generally 86-05-052
Grays Harbor County 86-07-068
86-11-032
86-12-071
Kirkland 86-06-061
86-11-002
86-12-070
Pacific County 86-11-068
86-16-002
86-17-071
86-18-052
Redmond 86-16-075
Seattle 86-17-068
Skamania County 86-08-101
86-12-072
Snohomish 86-14-111
86-17-070
Tacoma 86-11-067
86-16-004
Vancouver 86-11-066
86-16-003
Wahkiakum 86-02-038
86-06-057
86-07-049
Winthrop 86-14-110
86-17-069
86-05-052
wetlands
Solid wastes, minimum functional
standards 86-03-034
Used oil 86-07-069
86-12-057
Wastewater discharge
permit fees 86-01-095
86-06-040
86-01-095
state program
Water pollution control facilities
money 86-15-004
86-15-084
86-15-005
86-15-083
referendum 39 86-08-098
86-12-011
Wetlands

EDMONDS COMMUNITY COLLEGE

(District 23)
Meetings 86-01-032
86-05-025
86-07-045
86-09-065
86-11-033
86-13-029
86-14-044

EDUCATION, STATE BOARD OF

Certification
issuance and retention 86-09-097
86-05-046
notice to prospective candidates 86-09-011
86-09-097
professional
continuing education requirements 86-09-098
86-13-018
86-09-096
86-13-016
86-09-097
86-13-017
District authority to proceed 86-01-093
86-04-066
Emergency expulsion 86-15-058
86-17-083
High school graduation requirements 86-17-081
86-17-082
Meetings 86-01-092
86-17-080
Project approval 86-04-065
Project commitment 86-01-094
86-04-060
Public schools, certificated personnel 86-09-095
86-13-015
Student learning objectives 86-17-084
Support level, insurance receipts 86-01-093
86-04-067
86-17-085
Waiver options, state support

EGGS

(See **AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF**)

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT, DEPARTMENT OF

Local emergency management/services
organizations 86-06-037
86-15-068
Local emergency services organizations 86-06-037
Local emergency services plans 86-06-037
Local emergency services program 86-06-037

EMPLOYMENT SECURITY DEPARTMENT

Benefit overpayment 86-14-095
86-17-023
Corporations, corporate officer coverage 86-11-044
86-14-031
Job Training Partnership Act 86-05-022
86-08-073

ENERGY FACILITY SITE EVALUATION COUNCIL

Safety, etc., at sites where construction
has stopped 86-05-021

EQUIPMENT, COMMISSION ON

Seat belts 86-17-072

EVERETT COMMUNITY COLLEGE

(District 5)
Meetings 86-01-031
86-03-036

EXECUTIVE ORDERS

(See **GOVERNOR, OFFICE OF THE**)

FINANCE COMMITTEE

Local government investment pool 86-10-056
86-14-002

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT, OFFICE OF

Paydates 86-14-065
86-17-001
Tax exempt bonds 86-16-018

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in bold type refer to material in this issue)

FIRE MARSHAL		FISHERIES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.	
Nursing homes, fire inspection	86-08-063	purse seine nets	86-08-103
	86-08-064		86-13-037
	86-12-062		86-13-038
Transient accommodations	86-11-038	Willapa Harbor	86-10-075
			86-15-016
FISHERIES, DEPARTMENT OF			86-12-013
<u>Aquaculture</u>		shad	
commercial purchasers and receivers	86-15-086	shellfish	
crawfish	86-15-086	gooseneck barnacles	86-16-014
definition	86-10-027	razor clams	86-09-010
districts	86-10-027	scallops	86-05-002
	86-15-086		86-08-056
production report	86-10-027	sea urchins	86-01-015
	86-15-086		86-10-026
registration	86-10-027		86-16-021
	86-15-086	smelt	
shellfish	86-15-086	lawful gear	86-01-051
<u>Commercial</u>			86-05-040
agency procedures			86-08-039
fish receiving tickets		sturgeon	
accountability	86-02-029	gear, seasons	86-04-017
deadline	86-08-024		86-16-005
distribution	86-14-028		86-16-031
bottomfish	86-02-028	Grays Harbor	86-14-084
	86-03-044	troll fishery	86-10-007
	86-08-104		86-10-015
	86-09-004		86-10-075
	86-12-027	<u>Personal use</u>	
	86-18-007	bag limits	86-08-065
	86-18-008	definitions	86-08-065
herring, etc.	86-09-042		86-14-024
pacific whiting	86-05-012	freshwater hook regulations	86-08-065
	86-06-025	recreation sport fishing	
salmon		1986-1987 season	86-02-061
Chehalis River	86-01-017		86-03-089
Columbia River		Bogachiel River	86-09-020
gill net seasons	86-06-013	Calawah River	86-15-056
	86-14-012	Clearwater River	86-13-013
	86-17-043	Columbia River	86-08-047
	86-18-076		86-14-011
lawful gear	86-07-035		86-14-024
	86-14-012		86-16-022
Yakima, Warm Springs, Umatilla, and Nez Perce	86-14-012		86-17-028
	86-17-043		86-17-044
	86-18-076		86-18-045
	86-10-075		86-18-074
	86-15-016	Cowlitz River	86-08-065
	86-15-055		86-14-024
	86-09-015	Duwamish River	86-16-006
	86-11-016	Entiat River	86-13-039
	86-11-043	Hoh River	86-18-075
	86-12-012	Icicle River	86-11-017
	86-12-032	Klickitat River	86-09-018
	86-16-036		86-14-024
	86-16-074	Lake Wenatchee	86-16-022
	86-16-083	Lakes	86-08-065
	86-01-052	Lewis River	86-08-065
	86-01-053		86-14-024
	86-15-017	Little White Salmon River	86-10-028
	86-16-015	Pacific Ocean	86-14-024
	86-16-016		86-17-009
	86-16-032		86-17-029
	86-16-050		86-17-051
	86-16-051	punch card areas	
	86-17-008	bag limit codes	86-06-031
	86-17-010	Quillayute River	86-11-051
	86-17-011		86-14-024
	86-17-041		86-15-056
	86-17-042	Skagit River	86-14-058
	86-18-013	Soleduck River	86-11-051
	86-18-021		86-13-013
	86-18-046		86-14-024
	86-18-047	Wenatchee River	86-12-074
	86-18-062	Wilderness Lake	86-05-039
	86-18-077		86-08-040

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

FISHERIES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.		FOSTER CARE	
Wind River	86-09-018	Generally	86-01-006
	86-14-024	FUNERAL DIRECTORS AND EMBALMERS,	
Wynoochee Reservoir	86-05-039	BOARD OF	
	86-08-040	Apprentices, credit for prior employment	86-15-022
saltwater seasons and bag limits	86-08-065	Cremation	
	86-14-024	registration fee for endorsement for	
shellfish		crematory operations	86-01-083
abalone	86-08-065		86-05-031
	86-14-024	Definitions	86-09-006
bag limits	86-08-065		86-15-022
	86-14-024	Examination	86-09-006
gooseneck barnacles	86-16-014		86-15-022
hardshell clams	86-06-026	Licenses	
	86-08-065	applicants from other states	86-09-006
oysters	86-08-065		86-15-022
	86-14-024	Training requirements	86-09-006
razor clams	86-05-024		86-15-022
	86-08-065	Unprofessional conduct	
shrimp		concealment of crime	86-09-006
Hood Canal	86-11-042		86-15-022
sturgeon		GAMBLING COMMISSION	
bag limit	86-02-036	Applicants	
Snake River	86-08-065	required information	86-09-040
unlawful acts	86-08-065		86-13-053
	86-14-024		86-13-055
<u>Subsistence/Ceremonial</u>		Bingo	
Chehalis River	86-11-073	conduct of game	86-05-044
	86-12-007		86-09-036
	86-12-033	credit cards	86-01-059
	86-12-073	daily records	86-05-044
	86-13-013		86-09-036
	86-14-009	disclosure of prizes and rules	86-05-044
	86-14-057		86-09-036
Columbia River	86-10-005	equipment	86-05-044
Klickitat River	86-09-015		86-09-036
Wanapum Indians	86-11-050	expenses	86-07-043
	86-12-014		86-13-054
	86-12-055		86-17-055
	86-17-060	fecs	86-07-043
Wind River	86-10-005		86-13-054
Yakima River	86-10-005		86-17-055
		prizes	86-07-043
FOOD STAMPS			86-13-054
Generally	86-01-009		86-17-055
	86-01-078	receipts	86-05-044
Voluntary quit	86-05-028		86-07-043
	86-05-030		86-13-054
			86-17-055
FOREST PRACTICES BOARD		Card rooms	
Meetings	86-06-041	commercial stimulants	86-11-005
	86-10-034		86-13-053
	86-16-070		86-15-026
	86-17-065		86-17-054
Reforestation	86-17-079		86-17-057
		counter checks	86-09-040
FOREST PRODUCTS			86-13-055
Definitions	86-02-045	free coffee	86-09-040
	86-02-046		86-13-055
	86-10-054	games authorized	86-15-059
	86-14-063	hours limited	86-11-005
	86-14-064		86-15-026
Harvester adjustments	86-02-045	monthly records	86-17-054
	86-02-046	tournaments	86-15-027
	86-10-054		86-11-005
	86-14-063	wager limits	86-15-026
	86-14-064		86-17-054
Stumpage value	86-02-045		86-17-057
	86-02-046		86-11-005
	86-10-054		86-15-025
	86-14-063		86-15-026
	86-14-064		86-17-054
Timber quality code numbers	86-02-045		86-15-027
	86-02-046	Definitions	
	86-10-054	Fees	
	86-14-063	optional payment plans	86-09-040
	86-14-064		86-13-055
FORT STEILACOOM COMMUNITY COLLEGE			
(See PIERCE COLLEGE)			

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

GAMBLING COMMISSION—cont.

Licenses	
change of business, notice	86-17-057
civil or criminal actions, report	86-09-040
	86-13-053
	86-13-055
	86-14-076
	86-17-056
political contributions	86-09-040
	86-13-055
	86-15-027
test for optional payment plan for annual licenses	86-09-040
	86-13-055
Meetings	86-11-005
	86-15-025
	86-15-026
	86-17-054
Political contributions	86-09-040
	86-10-042
	86-13-055
	86-15-027
Promotional contests	86-03-035
	86-07-044
	86-08-007
Punchboards/pull tabs	
continuous-play pull tab operation	86-01-058
control of prizes	86-01-058
limitation on pull tab dispensing devices	86-01-058
monthly records	86-07-037
	86-15-027
reports and records	86-07-037
	86-15-027
standards for flares	86-01-058
Raffles	
firearms as prizes authorized	86-09-040
	86-13-055
Valuable consideration	86-07-044
Video and electronic games	86-05-045
	86-06-001
	86-07-036
	86-11-004

GAME COMMISSION/DEPARTMENT

<u>Agency procedures</u>	
bald eagle mediation committee	86-04-012
bald eagle protection rules	86-17-096
commercial buying and processing of anadromous game fish or roe	86-05-047
	86-09-023
definitions	86-17-053
description of organization	86-03-052
dogs, destruction of for attacking deer or elk	86-01-043
	86-03-017
	86-04-021
eastern and western Washington defined	86-05-049
	86-09-024
fishing contests	86-17-053
licenses	
dealer requirements	86-03-055
	86-14-103
	86-16-035
	86-17-052
duplicates	86-03-054
operating procedures	86-03-053
<u>Fishing</u>	
1986 seasons and catch limits	86-14-102
	86-17-053
	86-18-061
1987-88 game fish regulations	86-14-102
Cedar River	86-05-051
Columbia River	86-07-030
	86-08-060
	86-09-071
	86-09-083

GAME COMMISSION/DEPARTMENT—cont.

contests	86-14-102
definitions	86-14-102
Elochoman River	86-02-041
Gadwall Lake	86-16-029
Grays River	86-02-041
Green River	86-16-030
Humptulips River	86-08-061
Lake Sammamish	86-05-051
Lake Washington	86-05-051
Lewis River, North Fork	86-06-029
	86-12-047
	86-18-044
Mill Creek	86-02-042
Newaukum River	86-02-041
Nooksack River	86-05-051
Puyallup River	86-03-018
Rimrock Lake	86-13-041
Salmon Bay	86-05-051
Sammamish River	86-05-051
Shoveler Lake	86-16-029
Skamokawa Creek	86-02-041
Snake River	86-02-042
	86-09-071
	86-09-083
Snohomish River	86-03-002
Snoqualmie River	86-02-040
Touchet River	86-02-042
Walla Walla River	86-02-042
Wenatchee River	86-02-043
wild steelhead release	86-09-071
	86-09-083
	86-12-046
<u>Hunting</u>	
1985 management units and area descriptions	86-09-084
1985 seasons and game bag limits	86-09-084
1985 seasons and rules	86-02-020
1986 management units and area descriptions	86-09-084
	86-16-027
1986 mountain goat, sheep, and moose seasons	86-05-048
	86-12-045
1986 season rules and unit descriptions	86-05-050
	86-06-027
	86-17-095
1986 seasons and game bag limits	86-09-084
	86-16-020
	86-16-027
1986 upland game bird and migratory waterfowl seasons	86-12-054
	86-14-106
	86-16-028
1987 upland game bird and migratory waterfowl seasons	86-18-020
contests	86-14-102
Harris Lake game reserve	86-14-105
	86-18-010
Lower Crab Creek game reserve	86-14-105
	86-18-010
Quincy Lake game reserve	86-14-105
	86-18-010
Rocky Ford game reserve	86-14-105
	86-18-010
Sprague Lake game reserve	86-14-104
	86-17-004
Spring bear and turkey seasons	86-06-028
<u>Trapping</u>	
1986 trapping seasons and regulations	86-12-053
1987 trapping seasons and regulations	86-18-019
GENERAL ADMINISTRATION, DEPARTMENT OF	
Credit unions	
investments in common trust funds	86-04-068

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

GENERAL ASSISTANCE (See SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF)		HIGHER EDUCATION PERSONNEL BOARD—cont.	
GOVERNOR, OFFICE OF THE		Allocation	86-06-052 86-09-078
Affirmative action program	86-02-055	Annual performance evaluation	86-06-052 86-09-078
Bonds, state ceiling	86-11-058	Application materials, distribution	86-03-081
Columbia Indians, retrocession of		Appointing authority	86-06-052 86-09-078
criminal jurisdiction	86-14-114	Availability	86-06-052 86-09-078
Cowlitz County flooding	86-07-048	Board	86-06-052 86-09-077 86-09-078
Fire protection services	86-02-054 86-09-063	Certification	
Flooding	86-04-056 86-07-016	method	86-02-047 86-06-034
Hunger, task force established	86-11-057	selective	86-02-047 86-06-034
Legislative session on nuclear waste	86-16-049	Class	86-06-052 86-09-078
Low-level radioactive waste, surcharges and penalties	86-06-014	Collective bargaining	86-04-078
Spokane flood emergency	86-15-035	Corrective employment programs	86-02-047 86-06-034 86-02-047 86-03-081 86-04-076 86-06-034 86-06-052 86-09-078
State employee combined charitable contributions program	86-02-015 86-05-023 86-08-070	Definitions	
GREEN RIVER COMMUNITY COLLEGE (District 10)		Demotion, suspension, reduction, separation, dismissal	86-04-011 86-06-033
Meetings	86-02-032 86-09-029 86-09-082	Eligible lists definition	86-03-081
Smoking	86-06-044	Examinations eligibility	86-02-047 86-06-034
HEALTH, BOARD OF		Exclusive representative, petition for decertification	86-04-077 86-04-078 86-08-038 86-09-076 86-04-079 86-08-037 86-12-037 86-14-041 86-04-032 86-08-036 86-10-025 86-14-043 86-06-033 86-08-102 86-12-006 86-02-047 86-06-034 86-06-033 86-10-066 86-12-037 86-14-041 86-15-028 86-10-064 86-10-065 86-14-042 86-08-091 86-08-038 86-09-076
Dead bodies, transportation	86-01-071 86-10-074 86-14-008	Holidays	
Funerals care of bodies, burial	86-01-071 86-10-074 86-14-008	Layoff seniority	
Tuberculosis testing	86-01-070 86-05-013	Meetings	
HEALTH CARE FACILITIES AUTHORITY		Notice of unsatisfactory work	
Variable rate demand revenue bonds	86-08-048	Overtime	
HEARING AIDS, COUNCIL ON		Recruitment notices	
Fitting and dispensing	86-05-034 86-09-064	Removal from supervisory positions	
HIGHER EDUCATION COORDINATING BOARD		State internship program	
Degree Authorization Act	86-13-067 86-18-017	Suspension of operations	
Restrictions on student placement and compensation	86-07-042 86-10-014	Unfair labor practices	
State need grant	86-09-033 86-09-034 86-12-077	Withdrawal of notices	
Work study program	86-04-038 86-07-041 86-07-042 86-10-014	Written agreements, contents of	
HIGHER EDUCATION FACILITIES AUTHORITY		HIGHLINE COMMUNITY COLLEGE (District 9)	
Bond issuance, legal publication	86-17-048	Meetings	86-15-057
Revenue bonds public hearing	86-10-059	HISTORIC PRESERVATION, ADVISORY COUNCIL ON	
HIGHER EDUCATION IN SPOKANE, JOINT CENTER FOR		Tax valuation, rehabilitation	86-17-090 86-17-091
Meetings	86-01-081	HORSE RACING COMMISSION	
HIGHER EDUCATION PERSONNEL BOARD		Admission to grounds	86-04-042
Administrative assistant exemption	86-06-052 86-09-078	Funds	86-15-082
Administrative employees	86-06-052 86-09-078		
Affirmative action plans	86-02-047 86-06-052 86-09-078		
Agricultural employees	86-06-052 86-09-078		

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

HORSE RACING COMMISSION—cont.

Horses 86-04-042
 Licenses 86-04-042
 86-05-017
 86-09-072
 86-15-082
 applicant information
 New tracks and transfers of
 existing tracks
 licensing 86-09-092
 86-13-056
 86-04-042
 Payoffs on minus pools 86-09-072
 Records 86-04-042
 86-09-072
 86-15-082
 Washington-bred horses

HORTICULTURE

(See **AGRICULTURE, DEPARTMENT OF**)

HOSPICE CARE CENTERS

(See **SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF**)

HOSPITAL COMMISSION

Budget submittal 86-10-060
 86-11-040
 86-13-052
 86-15-018
 86-10-046
 86-14-081
 Patient discharge information 86-10-060
 Rules, schedules, etc. 86-08-077
 Rules 86-11-041

HOSPITALS

Boarding homes 86-09-031
 86-12-049
 86-06-030
 Certificate of need program
 Health facility construction
 fees 86-09-031
 86-12-049
 Medical facilities 86-09-031
 86-12-049
 Personnel 86-05-005
 86-08-086
 Rules 86-03-070
 86-08-002
 Schedule of charges 86-14-010
 86-14-072
 86-17-075

HUMAN RIGHTS COMMISSION

Age discrimination **86-18-014**
 AIDS **86-18-014**
 Lottery operations 86-11-039
 Meetings 86-02-013
 86-04-004
 86-04-006
 86-07-065
 86-08-025
 86-09-050
 86-13-036
 86-18-014
 Special meetings
 budget, officers, advisory council 86-02-014
 86-04-005
 86-13-042
 86-17-034
 request for reconsideration

INDIANS

Ceremonial
 Chehalis River 86-13-013
 86-14-057
 Colville Indians, retrocession of
 criminal jurisdiction 86-14-114
 Salmon
 Columbia River 86-14-012
 86-17-043
 86-18-076

INDIANS—cont.

Puget Sound 86-01-053
 86-15-017
 86-15-055
 86-16-015
 86-16-032
 86-16-050
 86-17-008
 86-17-011
 86-17-042
 86-18-047
 86-12-013
 Shad
 Subsistence fishing
 Chehalis River 86-11-073
 86-12-007
 86-12-033
 86-12-073
 86-14-009
 86-10-005
 86-09-015
 86-11-050
 86-12-014
 86-12-055
 86-17-060
 86-10-005
 86-10-005
 Wind River
 Yakima River

INDUSTRIAL INSURANCE APPEALS

Mediation conference 86-05-007
 Practice and procedure 86-03-021
 86-03-022
 86-03-023

INSURANCE COMMISSIONER

AIDS 86-17-076
 Alcoholism treatment 86-14-112
 86-18-027
 Commercial rate filings, prior approval 86-15-085
 86-18-042
 Day care service providers
 joint underwriting association 86-14-069
 86-15-062
 86-18-043
 Essential property insurance inspection
 and placement programs (FAIR) 86-17-067
 Fixed premium universal life insurance 86-02-011
 Marine risks 86-15-085
 Surplus line coverages 86-15-085

INVESTMENT BOARD

Meetings 86-01-089

JOINT ADMINISTRATIVE RULES

REVIEW COMMITTEE
(See **RULES REVIEW COMMITTEE**)

LABOR AND INDUSTRIES, DEPARTMENT OF

Amusement rides 86-07-055
 86-12-018
 86-12-019
 Appeals
 resumption of jurisdiction 86-11-070
 86-16-008
 Apprenticeship and training council
 meetings 86-15-010
 Boiler rules, board of,
 see **BOILER RULES, BOARD OF**
 Contractor compliance infractions 86-14-035
 86-14-039
 Crime victims compensation 86-01-003
 86-01-028
 Discriminatory action against employee
 based on claim filing, etc. 86-01-016
 Electrical contractors, etc., fees 86-10-017
 86-14-077
 86-14-078
 86-18-041

Subject/Agency Index

(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

LABOR AND INDUSTRIES, DEPARTMENT OF

—cont.

Electrical construction code 86-11-072
86-14-077
86-14-078
86-16-007
86-18-041

Explosives 86-05-026
86-10-044

Factory-built housing, construction standards 86-08-071
86-14-033
86-14-037

Farm labor contracting 86-01-004
86-01-027

Fire detectors
electric eyes 86-03-024

Hazard communication standard 86-06-051
86-10-001
86-10-035
86-12-004
86-03-050
86-04-036

Health care provider fees

Inoculation or immunological treatment for exposure to infectious occupational disease 86-13-034
86-13-035
86-18-025
86-05-027
86-08-015

Labor relations, repeal obsolete rules

Medical aid rules and maximum fee schedule 86-02-060
86-04-035
86-15-011
86-18-024
86-18-025

Mobile homes 86-14-036
86-14-040

Occupational health code 86-11-071
86-16-009

Plumbers 86-14-034
86-14-038

Prevailing wages 86-02-012
86-03-063

Retrospective rating plans and group insurance plans 86-03-062
86-06-018
86-07-011
86-11-074
86-17-002

Safety standards
construction work 86-01-069
86-03-073
86-03-074
86-03-024
86-03-025
86-03-026
86-03-027
86-03-028
86-03-029
86-03-030
86-03-031
86-03-032
86-03-033

Violations
repeat violations 86-06-002

Wheels, multi-piece and single-piece rim wheels 86-03-064

Worker right to know **86-18-070**

Workers' compensation
gainful employment for wages 86-13-025
86-13-026
86-18-036
86-01-036

group insurance plans

LABOR AND INDUSTRIES, DEPARTMENT OF

—cont.

health care vendors, fee schedule 86-01-054
86-06-032
86-11-074
86-17-002
86-13-025
86-13-026
86-18-036

overpayments, waiver of benefits 86-01-036
86-11-074
86-08-083
86-12-041
86-09-094
86-14-004
86-14-079
86-14-080
86-18-037

retrospective rating plans

risk classifications

self-insured employers

voluntary retirement/no longer attached to workforce 86-13-025
86-13-026
86-18-036

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS, BOARD OF REGISTRATION

Board duties 86-07-058
86-16-013

Examinations 86-07-058
86-16-013

LIBRARY

Advisory council 86-09-091

Grant programs 86-09-091

Meetings
certification of librarians, board for 86-09-009
86-09-043
86-03-015
86-08-001
86-10-008
86-16-067
86-03-015
86-06-006
86-09-035
86-16-038
86-09-091
86-12-067

commission 86-03-015
86-08-001
86-10-008
86-16-067
86-03-015
86-06-006
86-09-035
86-16-038
86-09-091
86-12-067

Western library network

Planning and development committee

Western library network operation rules 86-03-048
86-08-042

LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF

Acupuncture 86-07-061
86-10-038

Architects, corporate authority 86-04-086
86-10-037

Auction company licenses 86-14-017
86-14-086
86-17-094

Aviation
definitions
local service commuter registration 86-02-057
86-03-066
86-03-071
86-06-042
86-10-003
86-04-090
86-08-069
86-10-002
86-14-051

Bad checks

Collection agencies

Cosmetology instructors exams **86-18-055**
86-18-072

Escrow agents
cash deposit or securities 86-11-018
86-18-030

Examinations
monitoring 86-11-010

Marine fuel use study 86-03-057

Subject/Agency Index

(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.		LICENSING, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.	
Midwifery	86-11-036 86-16-012	White water river registration	86-11-062 86-12-016 86-15-037
Migrant workers, public assistance programs criteria	86-09-013 86-09-100	LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD	
Motor vehicles		Advertising	86-12-010 86-15-013 86-15-040 86-15-041 86-16-059 86-16-065
dealers, manufacturers	86-16-026 86-16-052	Advertising at less than price	86-04-084 86-07-021 86-14-100 86-16-060
dealers, salespersons		Banquet permits	86-07-046 86-09-075
license renewal	86-01-039	Beer packages, classification	86-01-026
financial responsibility	86-07-018	Beer suppliers and wholesalers	86-04-084 86-07-021 86-14-100 86-16-060 86-16-065
leased, tax liability	86-02-058	Brand signs and point-of-sale displays	
licensing	86-03-010 86-03-083 86-07-018 86-10-040 86-14-016	Breweries	
public assistance program criteria		out-of-state	
manufacturers		reporting of samples	86-08-096 86-11-015
license renewal	86-01-039	Containers	86-04-083 86-07-022
migrant workers, resident defined	86-09-013 86-09-100 86-14-016	Guest and courtesy cards	86-04-034 86-07-013
new residents	86-02-056	Hotels	
occupational license	86-03-084 86-07-018	by the bottle	86-09-027 86-09-086 86-12-022
open container law	86-07-018	Licenses	
registration		Class C	86-04-082 86-07-015 86-04-082 86-07-015 86-09-027 86-09-028 86-09-087 86-12-022 86-12-023 86-13-059 86-15-066
resident redefined	86-09-013 86-09-100 86-14-016	Class H	86-07-015 86-09-027 86-09-028 86-09-087 86-12-022 86-12-023 86-13-059 86-15-066
replacement plates and validation tabs	86-15-069 86-15-070	true party of interest	86-04-033 86-07-012 86-12-009 86-15-042
special fuel supplier or dealer	86-02-058	use of premises by private parties	86-09-085 86-12-021 86-02-007 86-11-046 86-15-039 86-18-018
wreckers, hulk haulers, scrap processors		Managers required, exceptions	86-07-047 86-09-074
license plates, destroying	86-16-053 86-16-077 86-01-039 86-08-028 86-16-077	Meetings	86-12-010 86-04-003 86-06-021 86-09-019 86-04-083 86-02-006 86-04-044 86-07-014
license renewal		Minors employed on premises	86-04-002 86-07-019 86-04-048 86-07-023
Occupational therapist		Minors prohibited, posting requirements	
inactive status	86-16-069	Outdoor advertising	
Prescription form completion	86-07-062 86-10-036	Prohibited practices	
Real estate		Records	
agent disclosure	86-16-068	Rules review plan	
broker		Treating	
course content	86-11-011	Use of insignia or reference to liquor control board prohibited	
examinations	86-04-091 86-11-011 86-04-091 86-01-038 86-06-011 86-03-044 86-11-011 86-11-011 86-11-011 86-11-061 86-16-055 86-04-091 86-11-011 86-01-038 86-06-011	Vending appointment	
licensure		Wineries	
records	86-01-038 86-06-011	domestic	
commission meetings	86-03-044	bulk wines	86-11-014
course approval	86-11-011	fruits used	86-11-014
fundamentals course content	86-11-011	records	86-08-095
management course content	86-11-061		
real estate law course content	86-16-055 86-04-091 86-11-011 86-01-038 86-06-011		
salespersons	86-04-091		
examinations	86-11-011		
schools	86-01-038 86-06-011		
Securities	86-11-034 86-11-035 86-14-045 86-14-087 86-15-003 86-15-023 86-17-061 86-17-062 86-18-012 86-03-011		
Tow truck operators	86-03-011		
Vessel title and registration requirements	86-07-060 86-10-068		

Subject/Agency Index

(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

LIQUOR CONTROL BOARD—cont.		LOTTERY COMMISSION—cont.	
retail sales	86-09-028	Slot machines prohibited	86-01-060
	86-09-087	Tickets	86-01-060
	86-12-023	MEDICAL ASSISTANCE	
out-of-state		(See SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES,	
reporting of samples	86-08-096	DEPARTMENT OF)	
	86-11-015	MEDICAL EXAMINERS, BOARD OF	
Wine suppliers and wholesalers	86-04-084	Acupuncture	86-13-069
	86-07-021		86-16-054
	86-14-100	Examinations waived for reciprocity	
LOTTERY COMMISSION		or waiver	86-03-056
Agents	86-01-060	Physician's assistants	86-08-093
Central and field organization	86-17-093		86-12-031
Compensation	86-07-028		86-13-069
	86-08-059	Registration revised	86-08-092
Contested cases and proposed orders	86-17-015	MEXICAN AMERICAN AFFAIRS,	
	86-17-093	COMMISSION ON	
Debts owed the state	86-17-015	Meetings	86-01-096
	86-17-093		86-04-016
Definitions	86-01-060		86-10-073
Hearings	86-01-060		86-17-007
Indian tribes		MINORITY AND WOMEN'S BUSINESS	
licensing of enterprises	86-11-039	ENTERPRISES, OFFICE OF	
	86-17-093	Application process	86-14-101
<u>Instant game number 19 – Three Cards Up</u>		Burden of proof	86-14-101
criteria	86-03-003		86-17-018
	86-03-079	Definitions	86-14-101
	86-03-080		86-17-018
definitions	86-07-028	Denial of certification	86-14-101
	86-03-003		86-17-018
	86-03-079	Goals for 1986-87	86-13-046
ticket validation	86-07-028		86-14-101
	86-03-003	Resubmission of applications	86-17-018
	86-03-079		86-17-018
	86-07-028	Revocation of certification	86-14-101
<u>Instant game number 20 – Cash Code</u>			86-17-018
criteria	86-07-029	NATURAL RESOURCES, DEPARTMENT OF	
	86-08-059	Board meetings	86-02-003
	86-12-001		86-08-087
definitions	86-07-029		86-10-009
	86-08-059		86-11-008
	86-12-001	Fire protection rules	86-13-021
ticket validation	86-07-029	Fire restrictions	
	86-08-059	closed season on DNR forest lands	86-09-041
	86-12-001		86-15-031
<u>Instant game number 21 – Sun Dollars</u>			86-15-053
criteria	86-08-079		86-17-005
	86-12-002		86-17-006
definitions	86-08-079		86-17-019
	86-12-002		86-17-020
ticket validation	86-08-079		86-17-024
	86-12-002		86-17-050
<u>Instant game number 22 – Silver Lining/ Silver Bells</u>			86-17-059
criteria	86-17-015		86-17-092
	86-17-093		86-18-006
definitions	86-17-015		86-18-011
	86-17-093		86-18-015
ticket validation	86-17-015		86-18-016
	86-17-093		86-18-050
Licenses	86-01-060		86-18-053
	86-17-015		
Lotto		Fire season, industrial fire tool	
end of game	86-08-079	requirements	86-10-011
	86-12-002	Forest fire advisory board	86-04-028
prizes	86-01-060		86-12-030
	86-07-039	Mineral prospecting leases and	
	86-08-079	mining contracts	
	86-11-039	royalties	86-09-068
	86-12-002		86-09-080
Meetings	86-02-037		86-12-017
On-line games	86-01-060		86-14-015
Prizes	86-01-060	Oil and gas leasing	86-04-081
	86-03-079		86-07-027
	86-17-015	Outdoor burning	86-14-070
	86-17-093		
Retailers	86-01-060		

Subject/Agency Index

(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

NATURAL RESOURCES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.		PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION—cont.	
Timber sales		Lakes	
initial deposits	86-12-008	combustion engines on Cascade Lake,	
WDPSC user's meeting	86-03-005	Moran State Park	86-08-097
	86-09-008		86-11-052
			86-11-053
NOXIOUS WEED CONTROL BOARD		Meetings	86-02-016
List	86-04-062		86-08-014
	86-07-024	Park capacities	86-02-062
			86-06-020
NUCLEAR WASTE BOARD		Park periods	86-02-062
Meetings	86-10-051		86-06-020
NURSING HOME ADMINISTRATORS, BOARD OF EXAMINERS		Peace and quiet	86-02-062
Registration of licenses	86-01-086		86-06-020
NURSING HOMES		Picnicking	86-02-062
Accounting and reimbursement system	86-07-054		86-06-020
	86-10-055	Public assemblies	86-04-085
Bed needs	86-09-049		86-08-014
	86-12-044	Swimming	86-02-062
Discharge allowance	86-07-053		86-06-020
	86-10-021	PENINSULA COLLEGE	
Tuberculosis testing	86-16-039	(District 1)	
OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY PRACTICE BOARD		Meetings	86-02-010
Code of ethics and conduct standards	86-14-018		86-06-009
Definitions	86-06-054	PERSONNEL BOARD/DEPARTMENT	
	86-10-004	Affirmative action	86-14-092
	86-14-018	Allocation, request for review	86-18-048
Exams	86-06-054	Application	
	86-10-004	disqualification	86-04-043
Foreign trained applicants	86-06-054		86-08-035
	86-10-004	Board	
	86-14-018	powers and duties	86-08-090
Licensure exemption	86-06-054		86-12-036
	86-10-004	Call-back provisions and compensation	
	86-14-018	for work preceding or following a	
Mandatory reporting	86-14-018	scheduled workshift	86-01-049
Unprofessional conduct or gross			86-02-044
incompetency	86-14-018		86-06-016
			86-06-017
OFF-ROAD VEHICLES (ORVS)			86-08-089
Hearings	86-05-016		86-09-057
OPTOMETRY, BOARD OF		for work on scheduled days off	
Continuing education	86-08-092	or holidays	86-08-089
	86-13-008		86-09-057
Eligibility	86-08-092	Career executive program	86-03-041
	86-13-008		86-06-015
Examination	86-08-092		86-06-055
	86-13-008		86-09-055
Licenses			86-12-035
renewal	86-07-059		86-14-082
	86-13-009		86-14-091
Optical prescriptions	86-08-092		86-17-039
	86-13-008	Certification, general methods	86-18-048
Postgraduate education programs	86-08-092	Compensation plan	86-14-071
	86-13-008	Disciplinary action	86-04-044
			86-08-035
OUTDOOR RECREATION, INTERAGENCY COMMITTEE FOR		Employee advisory service	86-10-070
Grant-in-aid policies	86-08-074	Fair Labor Standards Act	86-06-056
Meetings	86-01-033		86-09-054
	86-05-016		86-09-056
	86-13-031		86-12-025
PARKS AND RECREATION COMMISSION		Hours of work	86-08-088
Alcohol	86-02-062		86-09-057
	86-06-020	Miscellaneous leave	86-14-071
	86-10-058	Overtime provisions and compensation	86-01-014
	86-14-025		86-17-037
Camping	86-02-062		86-18-048
	86-06-020	Overtime rate	86-08-089
	86-16-037		86-09-057
Cross country ski trails	86-02-062	Pay	
Firearms	86-06-020	period	86-08-089
	86-02-062		86-09-057
Games	86-02-062	special pay ranges	86-02-044
		Predissmissal process	86-01-048
		Reduction in force	86-08-090
			86-11-007
			86-13-048

Subject/Agency Index

(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

PUGET SOUND WATER QUALITY AUTHORITY

—cont.

SEPA 86-01-012
86-04-054
86-04-055

RADIOACTIVE MATERIALS

(See **ECOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF; SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF**)

RED RASPBERRY COMMISSION

Assessments 86-06-046
86-13-012
Board 86-13-012
Definitions 86-06-046
86-13-012
Voting 86-06-046

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS, DEPARTMENT OF

Actuarial tables 86-04-080
86-07-026
86-09-037
86-09-052
86-13-022
Public employees retirement board
city managers 86-09-066
86-09-067
86-13-023

REVENUE, DEPARTMENT OF

(See also **FOREST PRODUCTS**)

Advertised price, etc. 86-03-016
Agricultural products 86-07-005
86-18-068
Air carriers 86-07-005
Artistic and cultural organizations 86-03-042
86-07-006
Automobile dealers/demonstrators and
executive vehicles 86-05-043
86-09-002
Excise tax rules
bona fide initiation fees and dues
contributions, donations, and
endowments 86-02-039
food products 86-02-039
real estate excise tax 86-13-010
86-16-080
religious, charitable, benevolent,
nonprofit service organizations,
and sheltered workshops 86-02-039
Feed, seed, fertilizer, and spray
materials 86-03-043
86-06-047
86-09-058
86-18-068
Food products **86-18-068**
Government contractors 86-07-056
86-10-016
Imports and exports 86-07-005
Magnesium 86-17-077
Maintenance agreements 86-03-016
Manufacturers tax credits 86-09-048
86-10-050
86-13-061
86-14-019
Meals 86-03-016
Metal bullion 86-03-042
86-06-048
86-09-016
New articles, components and
ingredients 86-17-077
Open space land
farm and agricultural land 86-06-008
86-09-088
homesite valuation 86-01-092
Poultry and hatching eggs **86-18-068**

REVENUE, DEPARTMENT OF

(See also **FOREST PRODUCTS**)—cont.

Property tax
exemptions 86-09-003
nonprofit organizations 86-12-034
Public utility tax 86-15-081
86-18-069
energy conservation and
cogeneration deductions 86-01-077
Real property 86-16-079
Refuse collection business 86-12-075
86-12-076
86-14-020
86-14-093
86-15-064
86-15-081
86-18-069
Sales and use tax deferrals
manufacturing, research, development 86-10-049
86-10-050
86-13-061
86-14-019
86-15-081
86-18-069
Sewerage collection business 86-15-081
86-18-069
Ships and vessels 86-16-078
Tax credits for manufacturers 86-09-048
86-10-050
86-13-061
86-14-019
Tax registration certificates 86-09-059
86-12-015
Tax returns
releases 86-09-051
86-12-024
Trade-ins, selling price,
sellers' tax measures 86-01-076
86-04-024
Use tax 86-16-064
Vending machines 86-15-080
86-18-022
Warranties, maintenance agreements,
and service contracts 86-03-016

RULES REVIEW COMMITTEE
Open space farm, residences 86-06-022

SEATTLE COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(District 6)
Meetings 86-01-005
86-01-030
86-01-057
86-03-065
86-07-001
86-08-034

SECRETARY OF STATE
Polling accessibility 86-05-053
86-08-044
86-08-045

SHORELINE MASTER PROGRAMS
(See **ECOLOGY, DEPARTMENT OF**)

SKAGIT VALLEY COLLEGE
(District 4)
Meetings 86-02-009
86-08-011

**SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES,
DEPARTMENT OF**
Adult family homes 86-01-079
86-10-029
86-16-019
Adult protective services 86-16-040
Boarding homes 86-03-070
86-08-002
Childbirth centers 86-01-035
86-04-031

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

**SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES,
DEPARTMENT OF—cont.**

Children's involuntary mental health treatment 86-02-019
86-02-048
Chore services 86-05-006
86-08-085
86-09-047
86-12-040
Community options program entry system 86-08-053
86-08-058
86-11-024
86-10-029
Congregate care facilities 86-16-019
Day care 86-01-025
86-03-077
86-03-078
86-09-032
86-10-020
86-12-020
86-12-051
86-18-001
Developmentally disabled,
see DEVELOPMENTALLY DISABLED
Domestic violence shelters **86-18-064**
86-18-065
Employment partnership program 86-13-063
86-16-047
Food stamps 86-01-009
86-01-078
86-03-006
86-05-028
86-05-030
86-08-019
86-08-022
86-08-032
86-08-084
86-11-026
86-13-004
86-15-012
86-15-088
86-15-089
86-15-090
86-16-042
86-16-043
86-17-012
86-17-013
86-18-058
86-18-059
86-18-060
86-18-063
Foster care 86-01-006
86-02-049
86-04-030
General assistance/continuing assistance
AFDC
applications 86-11-060
cost of living need standard 86-13-007
86-16-048
deprivation due to incapacity 86-13-064
eligibility
computation of available income
and resources **86-18-005**
effect of newly acquired income
and property 86-04-013
86-08-008
mandatory monthly reporting 86-01-010
86-12-038
86-16-044
86-04-014
overpayment, repayment 86-04-073
periodic review 86-04-073
redetermination 86-08-004
86-18-056

**SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES,
DEPARTMENT OF—cont.**

spouses, assignment or transfer
of income 86-14-068
86-14-075
86-18-005
WIN program participation 86-01-001
exclusions 86-08-016
86-11-021
86-08-057
86-11-023
86-10-031
86-10-032
funerals 86-08-057
86-11-023
86-10-031
86-10-032
incapacity, deprivation due to 86-10-031
86-10-032
Kitsap physicians service, sound
care plan **86-18-028**
86-18-029
payment standards raised for
vocational rehabilitation 86-02-030
86-02-050
86-03-076
86-07-002
redirection of warrant 86-03-076
86-07-002
suspension, termination, or reduction
of grant 86-05-008
86-07-025
86-09-081
86-10-023
86-07-052
86-10-022
86-03-070
86-08-002
Hearing aids 86-10-022
Hospice care center 86-03-070
86-08-002
Hospital, see HOSPITALS
IMR, see DEVELOPMENTALLY DISABLED
Labor camp certification 86-05-029
Medical assistance
allocation of excess income 86-12-042
86-12-043
86-17-022
86-01-002
86-08-017
86-08-018
86-08-020
86-08-021
86-11-022
86-11-060
86-12-042
86-12-043
86-17-022
86-01-080
86-04-019
86-04-020
86-16-041
86-16-046
86-04-019
86-04-020
86-08-005
86-08-031
86-08-033
86-11-025
86-17-058
86-17-074
86-16-081
86-16-082
86-03-045
86-11-045
86-14-099
86-18-078
application 86-04-007
86-04-008
86-09-007
certification 86-12-042
86-12-043
86-17-022
86-04-019
86-04-020
86-08-005
86-08-031
86-08-033
86-11-025
86-17-058
86-17-074
86-16-081
86-16-082
86-03-045
86-11-045
86-14-099
86-18-078
eligibility 86-04-007
86-04-008
86-09-007
institutions 86-12-042
86-12-043
86-17-022
86-04-019
86-04-020
86-08-005
86-08-031
86-08-033
86-11-025
86-17-058
86-17-074
86-16-081
86-16-082
86-03-045
86-11-045
86-14-099
86-18-078
inpatient hospital care 86-12-042
86-12-043
86-17-022
86-04-019
86-04-020
86-08-005
86-08-031
86-08-033
86-11-025
86-17-058
86-17-074
86-16-081
86-16-082
86-03-045
86-11-045
86-14-099
86-18-078
limited casualty program
medically indigent 86-04-007
86-04-008
86-09-007
medically needy
application process 86-12-042
86-12-043
86-17-022
86-04-019
86-04-020
86-08-005
eligibility 86-04-007
86-04-008
86-09-007
86-12-042
86-12-043
86-17-022
86-04-019
86-04-020
86-08-005

Subject/Agency Index

(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

income level 86-03-066
86-03-069
86-07-003
86-02-031

payment 86-14-067
physicians' services 86-14-074
psychotherapy **86-18-003**

prepaid health plans 86-03-046
86-04-041
86-13-033
86-16-045
86-17-021
86-04-007
86-04-008
86-09-007
86-03-047
86-02-031
86-02-031

prisoners 86-03-067
86-03-068
86-07-004

Mental health 86-02-019
children's involuntary treatment 86-02-048
86-09-013

Migrant workers

Nursing homes, see NURSING HOMES

Pregnancy 86-03-070
medical facilities for induction/
termination 86-08-002
86-04-025
86-08-054
86-17-066

Radiation machine facility registration

Radioactive materials 86-17-066
air quality and emissions
large volumes of naturally
occurring material 86-17-027
license fees 86-04-025
86-08-054
86-09-093
86-12-039
86-17-066
86-17-066

regulation
transportation and waste

Radioactive waste
low-level
disposal sites 86-09-025
86-09-026
86-11-019
86-11-020
86-17-026
86-17-066
86-11-019
86-11-020
86-17-026
86-17-027
86-14-006
86-14-007
86-18-004

uranium mill regulations
uranium mill tailing areas

site surveillance fee

SSI 86-01-007
86-03-045
86-03-067
86-03-068
86-07-004
86-10-024
86-10-030
86-14-061
86-02-033
86-02-034
86-05-009

Support enforcement

Vocational rehabilitation
administrative review 86-09-053
86-12-050
economic need 86-05-010

SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF—cont.

fair hearing 86-09-053
86-12-050
86-02-030
86-02-050
86-18-057

payment standards raised

Warrants, loss, theft or destruction
WIN 86-01-001
AFDC eligibility

SPOKANE COMMUNITY COLLEGES
(District 17)

Meetings 86-01-046
86-04-018
86-07-033
86-04-010

Trustees

STATE EMPLOYEES INSURANCE BOARD

Advertising/promotion 86-13-044
86-13-045
86-16-061
86-13-043
86-17-025
86-13-044
86-13-045
86-16-061
86-01-072
86-01-073
86-05-020
86-06-003
86-16-062
86-13-044
86-13-045
86-16-061

Eligible employees and retirees

Employer contribution

Legislators

Part-time faculty
Self-pay coverage

STATE PATROL

Private carriers
drivers qualification and hours of
service standards 86-05-015
86-08-067

SUPERINTENDENT OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION

Beginning teachers assistance program 86-11-029
86-15-049
86-17-086

Building selection process

Finance
administrative salary and insurance
benefits compliance 86-17-047
86-17-088

apportionment for part-time public
school attendance 86-01-020
86-01-021
86-05-035
86-08-076
86-15-052
86-01-022
86-01-023
86-17-045
86-17-087

general apportionment
salary compensation lid compliance

special allocation, instruction,
and requirements 86-01-019
86-05-036
86-05-037
86-08-075
86-17-046
86-17-089
86-01-018
86-07-038
86-11-030
86-15-051

Honors award program

Special education programs
education of all handicapped children 86-03-060
86-06-007

Special service program
financial assistance to local school
districts 86-11-027
86-15-048
86-11-028
86-15-050

Student health records

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

SUPPORT ENFORCEMENT (See SOCIAL AND HEALTH SERVICES, DEPARTMENT OF)		TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION/DEPARTMENT —cont.	
SUPREME COURT		Outdoor advertising control	86-01-063
CAR		Pilotage rates	
21	86-14-030	Puget Sound district	86-02-035
26	86-14-030	Rental of state highway lands and improvements	86-12-005 86-14-062 86-18-039
CJC preamble 1(c)	86-08-026		
CrR		Small business and minority contractors	86-01-064
2.1	86-14-001	TREE FRUIT RESEARCH COMMISSION	
2.2	86-14-001	Assessment rates	86-07-051 86-14-066
2.3	86-14-001	UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON	
3.1	86-14-001	Boat moorage facilities	86-11-031 86-17-016
3.2	86-14-001	Small works roster	86-04-009 86-08-027
3.3(d)	86-14-001	Meetings	86-02-001
3.3(h)	86-14-001	Parking fees	86-11-031 86-17-016
4.2(f)	86-14-001	Use of facilities	86-07-007 86-15-038
4.2(g)	86-14-001	URBAN ARTERIAL BOARD	
4.3	86-14-001	Meetings	86-02-059
4.7	86-14-001	86-04-061	
6.15(b)	86-14-001	86-06-035	
6.15(c)	86-14-001	86-08-066	
7.1(b)	86-14-001	86-15-006	
7.2(b)	86-14-001	UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION	
7.8	86-14-001	Contested cases, rehearing or reconsideration	86-13-019 86-13-020 86-16-024 86-17-003
GR		Contract carriers leasing	86-09-021 86-12-028 86-14-047
8.2	86-06-036	Deposits held by electric companies	86-03-012 86-03-038 86-07-032
JTIR		gas companies	86-03-013 86-03-039 86-07-031 86-10-018 86-10-019 86-13-040 86-14-048 86-14-113
6.2(a)	86-10-041	telecommunications companies	86-07-009
6.2(d)	86-11-056	Energy conservation plans	86-15-032
RAP		Interexchange telecommunications deposit or security	86-04-022 86-11-009
5.3(j)	86-14-001	Leasing	86-09-021 86-12-028 86-14-047
RLD		Meetings	86-01-050
2.4	86-06-019	Motor carriers	86-10-047
5.1	86-06-019	Permit rights transfer	86-09-069 86-12-029
5.5(a)	86-06-019	Political education activities	86-04-023 86-04-072
5.7	86-06-019	Tariffs	86-03-040
6.7	86-06-019	Telecommunications, accounting and reporting	86-03-037 86-07-008 86-09-022 86-13-003 86-14-049
TACOMA COMMUNITY COLLEGE (District 22)			
Meetings	86-01-045		
TAXES (See REVENUE, DEPARTMENT OF)			
TOXICOLOGIST, STATE			
BAC verifier infrared breath test instrument	86-01-067 86-01-068 86-05-003 86-13-027 86-13-028 86-15-073 86-15-074 86-16-058		
TRADE AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, DEPARTMENT OF			
Nonessential function bonds	86-16-034		
TRAFFIC SAFETY COMMISSION			
Meetings	86-10-069		
TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION/DEPARTMENT			
Aircraft registration	86-01-066		
Art work	86-01-065		
Ferry tolls	86-01-044 86-03-001 86-03-061 86-06-010 86-08-094 86-11-037 86-16-011 86-17-017		
Load limits on SR 11	86-03-007		
Meetings	86-18-066		
Mobile home movement	86-18-067		
Motorist information signs	86-04-069 86-08-023		

Subject/Agency Index
(Citations in **bold type** refer to material in this issue)

**UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION
COMMISSION—cont.**

Transportation of radioactive material
86-03-049
86-03-085
86-03-086
86-03-087
86-03-088
86-08-006

VETERANS AFFAIRS

Washington veterans home and Washington
soldiers home and colony 86-05-014

VETERINARY BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Code of ethics 86-01-085
Continuing education requirements 86-10-067
Examination review procedures 86-05-033
86-08-068
Medical facilities 86-10-067
86-13-070
Practice management 86-10-067
86-13-070

VOCATIONAL EDUCATION, COMMISSION FOR

Job Training Partnership Act education
coordination and grants program 86-14-003
Meetings 86-14-003
86-18-035
Private vocational schools,
registration 86-12-063
86-12-064
86-14-003
86-15-075
86-15-076
86-15-077
86-15-078
86-16-072

VOCATIONAL EDUCATION, COUNCIL ON

Meetings 86-07-017
86-11-048
86-13-030

VOLUNTEER FIREMEN, BOARD FOR

Meetings 86-01-034
86-03-019
86-09-005
86-15-079

WASHINGTON STATE UNIVERSITY

Meetings
board of regents 86-09-030
86-11-064
Motorcycle and moped parking
regulations 86-07-040
Parking regulations 86-13-065

WESTERN LIBRARY NETWORK
(See LIBRARY)

WESTERN WASHINGTON UNIVERSITY

Health and safety 86-03-020
Meetings 86-08-051
86-08-052

WHATCOM COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(District 21)

Meetings 86-04-045
86-06-004
86-08-049
86-11-055
86-14-027
86-15-015
86-15-046

YAKIMA VALLEY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
(District 16)

Meetings 86-01-029